
 

 
1 

 

 
AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 15, 2023 
10:00 A.M. 

 
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 

BOARD ROOM 
6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 

 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 373 012 992# 
 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by attending the meeting in-
person or by dialing the number provided above. Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board 

Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public 
Comment section of the meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING  
 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.  Thank you. 

 
 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 
 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
 
*A Municipal Water District 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


 

 
2 

1. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 113 

It is recommended that the Board: 
 
1. Hold a Public Hearing to receive public comments for the Board to 

adopt Ordinance No. 113, establishing compensation/benefits, and 
authorizing reimbursement of expenses for the Board of Directors 
and their appointed representative to the Metropolitan Water District 
of Southern California Board of Directors, and outside Committee 
members; and 

 
2. After closing the Public Hearing, adopt Ordinance No. 113. 

 
 

2. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

 
NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 
 

 

A. MINUTES 
Approve minutes of the February 1 and February 15, 2023 Board 
Meetings. 
 

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)  
Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the 
month of January 2023, in the amount of $26,587,372.14.  

 

C. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-3-2, AMENDING THE 
AGENCY’S SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR ALL GROUPS 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2023-3-2, 
amending the Agency’s Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups. 

 

D. ADOPT POSITION ON AB 759 SANITARY DISTRICTS (Community & 

Leg) 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt a position of “Support” for AB 759 
Sanitary Districts (Grayson). 

 

E. OXYGEN TRANSFER EFFICIENCY ANALYSIS MASTER SERVICE 
CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Award an aggregate master service consultant contract for Oxygen 
Transfer Efficiency Analysis services to DrH2O, LLC for a total 
aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $490,861 over a three-year 
period, with two, one-year options to extend; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to approve and execute the master 
service contract, subject to non-substantive changes.  

 



 

 
3 

 
F. RECYCLED WATER SUPERVISORY CONTROL AND DATA 

ACQUISITION MIGRATION DESIGN CONSULTANT CONTRACT 
AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Award a design consultant contract for the Recycled Water SCADA 
Migration, Project No. EN23119, to Eramosa International Inc., for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $371,640; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes.  

 

G. CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF ELECTRICAL 
PARTS AND SUPPLIES (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve Contract No 4600003232 for a five-year contract (two-year 
fixed price with three, one-year options to extend) for the not-to-
exceed amount of $1,000,000 to Royal Industrial Solutions for the 
purchase of electrical parts and supplies; and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.  
 
 

3. ACTION ITEM 
 
A. CARBON CANYON WATER RECYCLING FACILITY ASSET 

MANAGEMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1. Award a construction contract for the Carbon Canyon Water 

Recycling Facility (CCWRF) Asset Management and Improvements, 
Project No. EN17006.00, to Garney Pacific Construction in the 
amount of $20,856,916; 
 

2. Approve a contract amendment to CDM Smith for Engineering 
Services During Construction for the not-to-exceed amount of 
$899,775, increasing the contract from $3,326,339 to $4,226,114 
(27% increase); 

 
3. Approve the Lone Star Blower purchase in the amount of $171,000; 

 
4. Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of 

$1,742,950 to Project No. EN17006 increasing the budget from 
$30,007,050 to $31,750,000 in RC/10900 Fund; and 
 

5. Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract, 
contract amendment to CDM Smith, Lone Star Blower purchase, 
budget augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.  

 



 

 
4 

 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. SEMI-ANNUAL GRANTS UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
 

B. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 
UPDATES (POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

C. REVIEW OF PAY ESTIMATE PROCESSES (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 
(Audit) 

 
D. PROGRESS UPDATE FOR ALL PROCURE TO PAY AUDIT 

RECOMMENDATIONS – FIFTH UPDATE (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 
(Audit) 

 
E. INTERNAL AUDIT QUALITY CONTROL REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL 

COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT (WRITTEN) (Audit) 
 
F. INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT FOR MARCH 2023 

(WRITTEN) (Audit) 
 
G. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY 

(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 
 

H. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 
(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 

 

I. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community 

& Leg) 
 

J. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – MARCH 2023 (POWERPOINT) 
(Eng/Ops/WR) 

 
K. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 SECOND QUARTER BUDGET VARIANCE, 

PERFORMANCE UPDATES, AND BUDGET TRANSFERS 
(WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin) 
 

L. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/ 
POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin) 

 
 

5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
(WRITTEN)   
February 21 and March 7, 2023 SAWPA Commission meetings.  
 
 
 



5 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
REPORT (WRITTEN)
February 28, 2023 Special MWD Board Meeting and March 14, 2023
MWD Board meeting.

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT
(WRITTEN)
March 2, 2023 Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee meeting.

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT (WRITTEN)
February 23, 2023 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting.

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT
The next CDA Board meeting is scheduled for April 6, 2023.

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT
The next IERCA Board meeting is scheduled for May 1, 2023.

6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN)

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 

9. CLOSED SESSION

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a) –
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION

1. City of Ontario v. Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Case
No. CIVSB221925

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Two Cases

ADJOURN 
Declaration of Posting 

I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


            

PUBLIC HEARING   
          

1A 



Budget Impact 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, General Counsel

If approved, Ordinance No. 113 would increase the compensation for a Director's day of service from 
Two Hundred Sixty dollars ($260) to Three Hundred Twelve dollars ($312.00). The ordinance will be 
effective upon enactment. 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, General Counsel

Jean Cihigoyenetche, General Counsel



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

23063



 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.113 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY, A 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION/BENEFITS, 
AND AUTHORIZING REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES FOR 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR APPOINTED 
REPRESENTATIVES TO THE METROPOLITAN WATER 
DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 
(“Agency”) as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, it is recognized that each member of the Board of Directors expends 
a considerable amount of time and effort serving on committees and attending meetings 
including, but not limited to meetings of the Board of Directors; 
 
 WHEREAS, in consideration for the expenditure of time and effort, it is appropriate 
to provide reasonable compensation and to authorize reimbursement of expenses for the 
Board of Directors, pursuant to Water Code Section 20200 et seq.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, California Water Code Section 20202 provides that the Board of 
Directors may adopt an ordinance authorizing compensation for the Directors for a total 
of not more than ten (10) days in any calendar month and in an amount in excess of $100 
per day, as may be adjusted each year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, California Water Code 71256 provides that compensation for service 
on the board of directors of Metropolitan Water District shall be in addition to 
compensation received for services rendered as an Agency director; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Directors’ compensation was last adjusted in May, 2019; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency* as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Compensation.  Subject to the limitation of Section 2 of this 
Ordinance each member of the Board of Directors shall be compensated for attending:   

 
  (a) Regular, special, emergency and adjourned meeting of the Board of 
Directors. 
 



Ordinance No. 113 
Page 2 
 
  (b) Regular, special, emergency and adjourned meeting of a committee 
of the Board of Directors, provided that attendance is as a member of that committee. 
 
  (c) Regular special, emergency and adjourned meeting of a 
commission, Board, Joint Powers Authority, or committee, provided that membership 
on/in such body has been authorized by the Board of Directors.  However, if such member 
receives compensation from the body, then the Agency shall compensate the member 
only the difference between the current Agency compensation rate and the compensation 
paid by the respective body. 

(d) A conference related to Agency business provided that such 
compensation shall not exceed three days. 

 
  (e) Regular, special, emergency and adjourned meetings of a Board or 
Committee of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California provided that 
attendance is as a member of that committee.  
 
  (f)  City Council meetings within the member’s division. A member  may 
also attend other water agency meetings and other community meetings where the 
member is requested to attend by the Board President or General Manager or is making 
a presentation on the Agency’s behalf. 
   

(g) Meetings with local, state or federal elected officials or their staff 
members that are related to Agency business and meetings with Agency staff provided 
the meeting is first approved by the General Manager.  
 

(h) Court hearings or other legal proceedings related to Agency 
business. 
 

(i) Attendance at any meeting provided for under Sections 1.b, c, e, and 
f, shall also include payment to both the primary representative and the alternate 
representative to said body if they both attend said meeting. 
 

(j) Training sessions mandated by law including, but not limited to, 
ethics training and harassment training. 

 
(k) Attendance at Agency sponsored events, which are not considered 

Board Meetings or committee meetings such as service awards luncheons, leadership 
breakfasts, and similar events. 

 
(l) The Board of Directors may retroactively approve payment for 

attendance at any meeting/event attended by a member of the Board, the Agency 
representative to the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, or a committee 
member appointed from outside of the Agency by the Board to an Agency committee. 
 
 Section 2. Compensation for attendance at a meeting and/or conference as 
specified in Section 1, shall not exceed, on a per day basis, that amount of compensation 



Ordinance No. 113 
Page 3 
 
as established by the Board, regardless of the number of meetings and/or conferences 
that are attended on the same day; provided that the total compensable days in a calendar 
month shall not to exceed ten days, except that representatives to the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California shall be allowed an additional ten compensable days 
service as authorized by Water Code section 71256.  Attendance shall mean that the 
Director is present during not less than seventy five percent (75%) of the duration of the 
meeting or conference presentations.  
 

Section 3.  Members of the Board of Directors are eligible to enroll in Agency 
sponsored group insurance plans available to eligible employees for health, dental, vision, 
and life insurance. The benefits allowed to the members of the Board of Directors shall 
not be greater than the most generous schedule of benefits being received by any 
category of Agency employees. 
 
 Section 4. Representatives to the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California Board of Directors and committee members appointed from outside of the 
Agency by the Board to an Agency committee or to MWD shall be paid the current Agency 
compensation rate under the same terms and conditions as a Board member. 

 
Section 5. All compensation/benefits provided to members of the Board of 

Directors shall be reviewed at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors within the first 
quarter of every year and if changes are approved by a majority vote of the Board said 
changes shall become effective at the beginning of the next fiscal year. Currently the rate 
of compensation for members of the Board of Directors of the Agency shall be $312.00 
per day’s service. 
  
 Section 6. Reimbursement of Expenses.  Each member of the Board of 
Directors, Metropolitan Water District representatives and committee members appointed 
from outside of the Agency shall be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by such member in performing services rendered pursuant to Section 1, or in 
performing services otherwise authorized or ratified by the Board of Directors.  
Reimbursement for lodging, conferences and travel expenses shall be in accordance with 
Agency Policy A-37 and A-77 as may be amended from time to time. 
 
 Section 7. The Directors, Metropolitan Water District representatives and 
outside committee members shall be paid based upon a duly executed pay 
sheet/expense voucher submitted monthly by the Directors, Metropolitan Water District 
representatives and outside committee members to be approved by the President of the 
Board of Directors.  Said documents shall then be submitted to the Agency’s Executive 
Manager of Finance and Administration for review on a monthly basis.  In order to receive 
payment, each director/representative must submit monthly pay sheets/expense 
vouchers within 30 calendar days of the end of the month payment is requested. 
 
 Section 8. Repeal of Prior Ordinances and Resolutions.  Ordinance 107 is 
repealed as of the effective date of this ordinance and this ordinance shall supersede any 
and all other prior ordinances or resolutions in conflict with the provisions hereof. 



Ordinance No. 113 
Page 4 
 
 
 Section 9. Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective sixty (60) days 
after adoption. 
 
  
 
ADOPTED, this 15th day of March, 2023.  
 
 
 
 
                        

Marco Tule 
President of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
       
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency* and the Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 113 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA     ) 
COUNTY OF     )SS 
SAN BERNARDINO   ) 
 
   
 I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance being No. 113, was adopted at a regular 
meeting on March 15, 2023, of said Agency by the following vote: 
 
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:  
 
 ABSTAIN:  
 
 ABSENT:  
   
 
         
 
              
        Jasmin A. Hall 

Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2A 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR WORKSHOP/MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Marco Tule, President 
Steven J. Elie, Vice President 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer  
Michael Camacho, Director 
 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Paul Hofer, Director 

 
STAFF PRESENT 

Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Erik Cortez, Safety Analyst 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Ernie Rodelo, Safety Analyst 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 

    
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Director of Finance 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Linda Johnson, Records Management Supervisor 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 
Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 
Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Governmental Affairs 
Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
Marty Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Tule called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 
Garzaro took roll call and established a quorum. Safety Analyst Ernie Rodelo led the flag salute. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated that there was an additional item that needed to be 
added to the agenda for the Board to consider during Closed Session which came to the attention 
of staff after posting the agenda in the matter of Ortiz v. IEUA.   
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR ELIE, THE BOARD APPROVED 
THE ADDITION OF A CLOSED SESSION ITEM TO 
THE MEETING AGENDA, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: Hofer 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN DURING THE CLOSED SESSION OF THE JANUARY 18, 2023 
CLOSED SESSION  
This report was pulled for discussion.  
 
1. ACTION ITEM 

 
A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO THE 

GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT’S CONTRACT 
This item was pulled from consideration. 

 
 

2. WORKSHOP ITEMS 
 

A. SAFETY UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
Safety Officer Tony Arellano provided the staff presentation.  
 

    INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 
 
B. AB 2449: UPDATE TO BROWN ACT (POWERPOINT) 

Counsel Marty Cihigoyenetche provided the staff presentation.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding updated meeting participation provisions under      
AB 2449.  
 

    INFORMATION ITEM ONLY; NO ACTION TAKEN 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

 
 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 

General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh announced that IEUA hosted an event for the Greater 
Ontario Business Council prior to the Board meeting where San Bernardino County 
Supervisor Curt Hagman provided a presentation.  
 
General Manager Deshmukh stated that on January 25, the Agency participated in the 
Chino Valley Chamber of Commerce’s Job Fair. More than 160 job seekers registered to 
attend and IEUA was one of more than 25 employers who participated.    
 
General Manager Deshmukh also provided a water supply update considering the newly 
released water allocations.  

 
4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

There were no future requested agenda items from the Board of Directors. 
 
5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS  

There were no Board of Directors comments. 
 

6. CLOSED SESSION 
The Board recessed to Closed Session at 11:00 a.m.  
 
The meeting resumed at 11:30 a.m. General Counsel Cihigoyenetche stated the Board 
discussed the one case added to the agenda with no reportable action. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
President Tule adjourned the meeting at 11:31 a.m. in memory of General Manager of the 
Municipal Water District of Orange County Rob Hunter.  

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  MARCH 15, 2023 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023 

10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Marco Tule, President 
Steven J. Elie, Vice President  
Michael Camacho, Director 
 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Andrew Alonzo, Human Resources Officer 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Andrea Carruthers, Communications Officer 
Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Director of Finance 
Katelyn Crawford, Administrative Assistant II 
Julianne Frabizio, Project Manager 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 
Alex Lopez, Budget Officer 
Jason Marseilles, Manager of Engineering 
Lisa Mejri, Government Affairs Intern 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
Sandra Salazar, Associate Engineer 
Vicky Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer 
Jillian Simmons, Grants Administrator 
Travis Sprague, P.E., Principal Engineer  
Megan Trott, Senior Associate Engineer 
Brian Wilson, Principal Engineer 
Ashley Womack, Grants & Government Affairs Officer 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
Michelle Vizcarra, Human Resources Analyst 
Jeff Ziegenbein, Acting Director of Operations & Maintenance 

    
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Deborah Berry, Controller 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

Arin Boughan, Compost Facility Superintendent 
Stephanie Chancellor, Acting Communications Officer 
Marcus Coulombe, Sales Coordinator 
Robert Delgado, Manager of Maintenance 
Lucia Diaz, Manager of Facilities & Water Systems Programs 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Adrianne Fernandez, Administrative Assistant II 
Jon Florio, Deputy Manager of Maintenance 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Executive Assistant 
Linda Johnson, Records Management Supervisor 
Jeff King, Compost Facility Superintendent 
Ryan Love, Deputy Manager of Operations 
Joshua Oelrich, Deputy Manager of Maintenance 
Jason Racz, Senior Compost Operations & Maintenance Technician 
Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
Scott Sauls, Maintenance Planner 
James Simpson, Engineering Consultant 
Michael Smith, Maintenance Planner 

   
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
Debra Dorst-Porada, City of Ontario 

 
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Tule called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 
Garzaro took roll call and established a quorum. Government Affairs Intern Lisa Mejri led the flag 
salute.  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
 
NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
The following staff member from the Engineering Department was recognized: 
 

• Megan Trott, Senior Associate Engineer, P.E., reclassed December 25, 2022, 
Engineering 

 
The following staff member from the External & Government Affairs Department was introduced: 
 

• Jillian Simmons, Grants Administrator, hired January 30, 2023, Grants 
 
The following staff member from Finance Department was recognized: 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

 

• Alex Lopez, Budget Officer, promoted January 22, 2023, Finance 
 
The following staff member from the Human Resources Department was introduced: 
 

• Michelle Vizcarra, Human Resources Analyst, hired January 30, 2023, Human 
Resource 

 
The following staff member from the Information Technology Department was introduced: 
 

• Michael Zuniga, Control Systems Analyst I, rehired January 23, 2023, Operational 
Technology 
 

The following staff members from the Operations & Maintenance Department were introduced 
and recognized: 
 

• Ryne Stern, Recycled Water Distribution Operator, hired February 6, 2023, 
Groundwater Recharge 

• Nicoles DePierola Alvarado, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator V, reclassed 
October 30, 2022, Operations  

• Elisala Tela, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator-In-Training, hired January 23, 
2023 

• Raymond Matus, Compost Worker, hired January 23, 2023, Organics 
Management 

• Alyssa Tocker, Administrative Assistant I, hired January 8, 2023, Organics 
Management 

• Aaron Hernandez, Compost Worker, hired January 24, 2023, Organics 
Management 

 
The Board of Directors welcomed Ms. Simmons, Ms. Vizcarra, Mr. Zuniga, Mr. Stern, Mr. Tela, 
Mr. Matus, and Mr. Hernandez to the IEUA team. The Board of Directors congratulated Ms. Trott, 
Mr. Lopez, Mr. Alvarado, and Ms. Tocker on their promotions and reclassifications. 
 
 
1. CONSENT ITEMS 

 
A. MINUTES 
 
B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS  
 
C. RP-1 DEVICENET REPLACEMENT DESIGN CONSULTANT CONTRACT AWARD 

(Eng/Ops/WR)  
 
D. ADOPTION OF THE 2023 – 2024 FEDERAL AND STATE LEGISLATIVE 

PRIORITIES & POLICY PRINCIPLES (Community & Leg) 
 
E. RP-1 HEADWORKS BAR SCREEN SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN-BUILD 

CONTRACT AWARD (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
 
Director Hall requested that Item 1D be pulled for discussion. 

 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

4 

 

 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR ELIE, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 1A, 1B, 
1C, AND 1E, WERE APPROVED AS 
RECOMMENDED BELOW, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 

o Approved the minutes of the January 4 and January 18, 2023 Board Meetings.  
 

o Approved the total disbursements for the month of December 2022, in the amount 
of $26,961,777.56. 
 

o Awarded a design consultant contract for the RP-1 DeviceNet Replacement, 
Project No. EN23000, to Eramosa International Inc., for the not-to-exceed amount 
of $465,918; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, subject 
to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Awarded a design-build contract for the RP-1 Headworks Bar Screen System 

Improvements, Project No. EN23111, to GSE Construction Co., Inc. in the amount 
of $1,609,900; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
D. ADOPTION OF THE 2023 – 2024 FEDERAL AND STATE LEGISLATIVE 

PRIORITIES & POLICY PRINCIPLES (Community & Leg) 
This item was pulled from consideration and will be brought to a future Board 
Workshop for discussion.  
 

 
2. ACTION ITEMS 

 
A. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO GENERAL 

MANAGER’S EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT AND APPROVAL OF PERFORMANCE 
AWARD 
General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche provided the presentation noting that this item 
was requested by the Board. Discussion ensued regarding the comparison to other 
General Manager’s compensation, the amount of the increase and salary increases 
for the Agency as a whole. 
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR ELIE, THE BOARD APPROVED 
THE GENERAL MANAGER’S PERFORMANCE 
AWARD IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 10% 
OF THE BASE SALARY; AND APPROVED A 
RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT, AS 
RECOMMENDED, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

5 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  Hall 
 
     Absent: None 
 

B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-2, AMENDING THE AGENCY’S 
SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR ALL GROUPS 
Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise Garzaro provided the staff presentation 
indicating that this item updates the Agency’s Salary Schedule/Matrix to reflect the 
salary increase approved by the Board for the General Manager under Item 2A.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR ELIE, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR CAMACHO, ADOPTED RESOLUTION 
NO. 2023-2-2, AMENDING THE AGENCY’S 
SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX FOR ALL GROUPS, 
AS RECOMMENDED, BY THE FOLLOWING 
VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  Hall 
 
     Absent: None 
 

C. ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-1, AUTHORIZING IEUA TO ENTER INTO A 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER WATERSMART: WATER 
RECYCLING AND DESALINATION PLANNING 
Grants & Government Affairs Officer Ashley Womack provided the staff presentation.  
 

MOVED BY DIRECTOR CAMACHO, SECONDED 
BY DIRECTOR ELIE, THE BOARD ADOPTED 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2-1, AUTHORIZING THE 
GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT UNDER 
THE USBR’S WATERSMART: WATER 
REYCYCLING AND DESALINATION PLANNING 
GRANTS PROGRAM FOR THE CHINO BASIN 
ADVANCED TREATED RECYCLED WATER, 
STORAGE, AND PRODUCTION PROJECT, AS 
RECOMMENDED, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 

 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 

 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

6 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT UPDATES 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
Manager of Engineering & Construction Management Jason Marseilles provided an 
update on the following projects: Collection System Asset Management; Ely 
Monitoring Well Capital Project; and Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III. 

 
The following items were received and filed by the Board:  

 
B. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY (WRITTEN) 

(Community & Leg)  
 

C. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 

(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg)  
 

D. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg)  
 
E. PLANNING AND RESOURCES DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE 

(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 

F. LABORATORY SEMI-ANNUAL UPDATE (POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
G. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – FEBRUARY 2023 (POWERPOINT) 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
H. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT)  

 
 

4. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Jasmin A. Hall reported that at the February 7 Commission meeting, the 
Commission authorized the General Manager to extend the West Coast Advisors’ 
Agreement to provide state legislative affairs services for an additional period of 1 year 
for an amount not to exceed $117,000; they also approved the goals and objectives 
that will be used for the FYE 2024 and 2025 Budget.  
 
Director Hall reported that at the February 7 PA24 Committee meeting, the 
Commission authorized the execution of a General Services Agreement and Task 
Order with Woodard and Curran to provide Professional Services. 
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REPORT 
Director Camacho stated that he attended the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California’s Board Retreat for the last two days.  
 
General Manager Deshmukh provided additional details on the topics discussed at the 
MWD Board Retreat. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

7 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
There was nothing to report. 
 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 
Vice President Elie reported that at the January 26 Board Meeting, the CBWM Board 
approved the officer slate. The other items were routine in nature. The Board did 
discuss the Optimum Basin Management Program project description.  
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 
Vice President Elie reported that at the February 2 Board meeting, the CDA Board 
approved a 7.3% Cost-of-Living Adjustment for all CDA employees.  The General 
Manager reported that the South Archibald Plume project received millions of dollars 
in grant funds for the project and there are still additional funds available for similar 
projects.  

 
F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 

Director Hofer asked General Manager Deshmukh to provide the report. 
 
General Manager Deshmukh reported that at the February 6 Board meeting, the 
IERCA Board re-elected Jon Blickenstaff as Board Chair and Paul Hofer as Vice-Chair. 
The IERCA Board also approved the Investment and Disbursement Report for the 
months of October 2022 through December 2022.  
 
 

5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that on February 1, the Agency participated in 
the 2023 Virtual California Water Career Fair hosted by CWEA, which featured 154 
registered job seekers and helped the Agency to further develop our talent pipeline. 
 
General Manager Deshmukh stated in response to Director Hofer’s inquiry from January 
18 Board meeting regarding the amount of stormwater captured, the Agency captured a 
total of 7,618 acre-feet (AF) of stormwater this water year to date (since October 1, 2022). 
In October, we captured 265 AF; in November 1,867 AF; in December 2,846 AF; and last 
month and estimated 3,000 AF. The total Recycled Water delivered to Groundwater 
Recharge, which includes any lost Recycled Water due to storms is 1,389 AF. 
  
General Manager Deshmukh stated that he recently attended a General Manager’s 
Roundtable meeting in Sacramento and will attend the NACWA Conference where he will 
participate on a panel on February 16.  
 
 

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Director Hall asked that the 2023 – 2024 Federal and State Legislative Priorities & Policy 
Principles item be agendized for a Board Workshop. Director Hall also requested an 
update on staffing trends and an update on septic-to-sewer conversion efforts.  
 
President Tule asked that the staffing presentation include a breakdown of the areas of 
the organization that may be vulnerable due to anticipated retirements and include 
information regarding the organizations the Agency has partnered with the address 
workforce development.  

 

 

 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

8 

7. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 
Director Camacho stated he attended the Welcome Reception for MWD Chair Ortega and 
Update on California’s Water Supply on January 19; San Diego County Water Authority 
Reception for Chair Ortega on January 25; CASA 2023 Winter Conference on January 26; 
MWDOC Water Policy Forum & Dinner on February 9; and MWD Visioning Board Retreat 
from February 12 through February 14. 
 
Vice President Elie stated he attended the MWD Chair Ortega Welcome Reception and 
Update on California’s Water Supply on January 19; SCWC Quarterly Luncheon on 
January 27; Good Morning Ontario: Featuring SB County Supervisor Curt Hagman on 
February 1; Chino Valley Fire District Board Meeting on February 8; and MWDOC Water 
Policy Forum & Dinner on February 9. 

 
President Tule stated he attended the Chino Basin Water Conservation District Ribbon 
Cutting for Montclair #2 Spillway on January 19; and the Welcome Reception for MWD 
Chair Ortega and Update on California’s Water Supply on January 19. 

 
 
8. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 11:28 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Two Cases 
 

The meeting resumed at 11:41 a.m. General Counsel Cihigoyenetche stated the Board 
discussed one case under Item 9A with no reportable action. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
President Tule adjourned the meeting at 11:41 a.m.  

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  MARCH 15, 2023 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2022

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of January 2023 were $26,587,372.14. Disbursement activity
included check payments of $354,994.66 to vendors. There were no checks for worker's
compensation related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) of $19,392,841.69 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $4,951,310.19. The total
payroll was $1,882,108.60 for employees and $6,117.00 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of January 2023 in the amount of
$26,587,372.14.

03/08/23Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On February 15, 2023 the Board of Directors approved the December 2022 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $26,961,777.56.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23059



Page 1 of 1

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 354,994.66
2B Workers' Comp Checks $            .00
2C Vendor ACHs $ 19,392,841.69
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 4,951,310.19
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 6,117.00
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 1,882,108.60

Total Disbursements $26,587,372.14

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $10,550,487.79

Professional Svc’s for EN17110 – RP-4 Process 
Improvements; EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvements; for 
EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; EN19006- RP-5
Biosolids Facility.

MWD $ 2,762,434.10 November 2022 Water Purchases

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 1,169,096.42 P/R 26, 01, 02; Dir 01 Taxes

SO CALIF EDISON $ 766,848.28 11/04/22 – 01/16/23 Electricity

PERS $ 766,101.95 01/23 Health Ins; P/R 24, 26, 01

MNR CONSTRUCTION INC $ 668,399.87 Professional Svc’s for RW15003.06- Wineville/Jurupa/Force 
Main Improvements

FRESNO BANK $ 554,454.03
Escrow Retention Deposits - EN18006 RP-1 Flare 
Improvements EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; 
EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility

STATE WATER RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD $ 540,933.50 NPDES Annual Permits; Annual Waster Discharge Permits; 

7/21-6/22 Recycled Water Review Fees



























































































































































IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2C



Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-3-2, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/
Matrix for All Groups

California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5 establishes the requirement for California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) agencies to have a current, duly approved & adopted pay 
schedule by the agency’s governing body. CalPERS employers may only report payrates, for purposes of 
calculating retirement benefits, that meet the definition of a Publicly Available Salary Schedule. 
Maintenance of the Agency’s salary schedule falls under the responsibility of the HR Department, which 
includes presenting a revised comprehensive salary resolution to the Board of Directors as changes occur. 
The last salary schedule/matrix update for all the groups was approved by the Board on March 1, 2023. 
There are classification and compensation changes as follows: 
A. The creation of a new classification, Principal Control Systems Administrator at range 187. The new
classification will be responsible for developing, governing, and overseeing the administration of the
Agency's Distributed Control Systems and process automation computer platforms and networks.
B. Following a comprehensive classification and compensation review process, Human Resources staff
recommends a Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) designation modification for the Collection System
Supervisor classification from Exempt to Non-Exempt. This follows the completion of the required meet
and confer process with the Supervisors' Unit over changes to the bargaining unit classification. The
parties were able to reach agreement to proceed with the classification modification on March 6, 2023.

Adopt Resolution No. 2023-3-2, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups

Funding is appropriated in the FY 21/22 and 22/23 biennial budget.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Workplace Environment: IEUA is committed to providing a dynamic work environment with a 
highly skilled and dedicated workforce. 

On March 1, 2023, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2023-3-1, Amending the
Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for all groups.

Attachment A - Resolution No. 2023-3-2, Amending the Agency's Salary Schedule/Matrix for
all groups and Exhibit 1

Not Applicable

23061



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-3-2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE AMENDMENT OF THE AGENCY’S 
SALARY SCHEDULE/MATRIX 

WHEREAS, the Agency has compensation changes as a result of the creation of a new 
classification, Principal Control Systems Administrator, and a modification Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FLSA) designation for the Collection System Supervisor classification.

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to update the salary and classification information 
to comply with the California Code of Regulations (CCR) §570.5, and  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* does 
hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Agency’s salary schedule/matrix is hereby adopted and set forth in 
Exhibit “1” this resolution. 

SECTION 2: The salary information contained in Exhibit “1” shall be effective as of 
March 19, 2023.  

ADOPTED the 15th day of March 2023. 

________________________________   
Marco Tule 
President of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 

*A Municipal Water District



Resolution No. 2023-3-2 
Page 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA    ) 
COUNTY OF ) SS 
SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Jasmin A. Hall, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2023-3-2, was adopted at a regular 

Board Meeting on March 15, 2023, of said Agency by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

___________________________________ 
Jasmin A. Hall 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency* and of the  
Board of Directors thereof 

(SEAL) 

*A Municipal Water District



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Accountant I 175 UN Exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950

2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799

3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693

4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636

5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627

6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667

7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759

8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903

9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Accountant II 177 PR Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Accounting Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Accounting Technician I 170 GU Non‐exempt 1 $27.8606 $2,228.85 $4,829.18 $57,950

2 $28.5577 $2,284.62 $4,950.01 $59,400

3 $29.2717 $2,341.74 $5,073.77 $60,885

4 $30.0029 $2,400.24 $5,200.52 $62,406

5 $30.7534 $2,460.28 $5,330.61 $63,967

6 $31.5222 $2,521.78 $5,463.86 $65,566

7 $32.3101 $2,584.81 $5,600.43 $67,205

8 $33.1178 $2,649.43 $5,740.44 $68,885

9 $33.9457 $2,715.66 $5,883.93 $70,607

Accounting Technician II 173 GU Non‐exempt 1 $32.2520 $2,580.16 $5,590.35 $67,084

2 $33.0582 $2,644.66 $5,730.10 $68,761

3 $33.8851 $2,710.81 $5,873.43 $70,481

4 $34.7318 $2,778.55 $6,020.20 $72,242

5 $35.5996 $2,847.97 $6,170.61 $74,047

6 $36.4904 $2,919.24 $6,325.02 $75,900

7 $37.4020 $2,992.16 $6,483.02 $77,796

8 $38.3375 $3,067.00 $6,645.17 $79,742

9 $39.2962 $3,143.70 $6,811.35 $81,736

Administrative Assistant I 171 GU Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

Page 1 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Administrative Assistant I 171 GU Non‐exempt 2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369

3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526

5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166

6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844

7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566

8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329

9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Administrative Assistant I (confidential) 171 UN Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369

3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526

5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166

6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844

7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566

8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329

9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Administrative Assistant II 174 PR Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Administrative Assistant II (confidential) 174 UN Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Assistant Engineer 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Assistant General Manager 197 EX Exempt 1 $103.9875 $8,319.00 $18,024.50 $216,294

2 $106.5875 $8,527.00 $18,475.17 $221,702

Page 2 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Assistant General Manager 197 EX Exempt 3 $109.2520 $8,740.16 $18,937.02 $227,244

4 $111.9837 $8,958.70 $19,410.52 $232,926

5 $114.7827 $9,182.62 $19,895.68 $238,748

6 $117.6529 $9,412.24 $20,393.19 $244,718

7 $120.5938 $9,647.51 $20,902.94 $250,835

8 $123.6087 $9,888.70 $21,425.52 $257,106

9 $126.6991 $10,135.93 $21,961.19 $263,534

Associate Engineer 182 UN Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Biologist 181 LB Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Board Secretary/Office Manager 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Budget Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Business Systems Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

Page 3 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Business Systems Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Business Systems Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Business Systems Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

CAD Designer 178 UN Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Chemist 181 LB Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Chino Basin Program Manager 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913

3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486

4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

Page 4 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Chino Basin Program Manager 188 UN Exempt 5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901

6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748

7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693

8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735

9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Collection System Operator I 171 GU Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369

3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526

5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166

6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844

7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566

8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329

9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Collection System Operator II 175 GU Non‐exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950

2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799

3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693

4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636

5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627

6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667

7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759

8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903

9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Collection System Operator III 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Collection System Supervisor 185 SU Non-exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Communications Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

Page 5 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Communications Officer 186 UN Exempt 6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Communications Officer (Y‐Rated; Hired Before 

1/23/2022) 206 UN Exempt 1 $85.2866 $6,822.93 $14,783.02 $177,396

Compost Facility Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Compost Operator 174 GU Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Compost Sales Representative 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Compost Worker 170 GU Non‐exempt 1 $27.8606 $2,228.85 $4,829.18 $57,950

2 $28.5577 $2,284.62 $4,950.01 $59,400

3 $29.2717 $2,341.74 $5,073.77 $60,885

4 $30.0029 $2,400.24 $5,200.52 $62,406

5 $30.7534 $2,460.28 $5,330.61 $63,967

6 $31.5222 $2,521.78 $5,463.86 $65,566

7 $32.3101 $2,584.81 $5,600.43 $67,205

8 $33.1178 $2,649.43 $5,740.44 $68,885

9 $33.9457 $2,715.66 $5,883.93 $70,607

Construction Project Inspector 180 UN Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

Page 6 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Construction Project Inspector 180 UN Non‐exempt 4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Contracts Administrator I 177 PR Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Contracts Administrator II 180 PR Exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Contracts and Procurement Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Control Systems Analyst I 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Control Systems Analyst II 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

Page 7 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Control Systems Analyst II 182 GU Non‐exempt 5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Controller 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Deputy General Manager 199 EX Exempt 1 $117.3779 $9,390.24 $20,345.52 $244,146

2 $120.3121 $9,624.97 $20,854.11 $250,249

3 $123.3207 $9,865.66 $21,375.60 $256,507

4 $126.4029 $10,112.24 $21,909.86 $262,918

5 $129.5635 $10,365.08 $22,457.68 $269,492

6 $132.8025 $10,624.20 $23,019.10 $276,229

7 $136.1226 $10,889.81 $23,594.59 $283,135

8 $139.5255 $11,162.04 $24,184.42 $290,213

9 $143.0135 $11,441.08 $24,789.01 $297,468

Deputy Manager of Maintenance 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913

3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486

4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901

6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748

7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693

8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735

9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Deputy Manager of Operations 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913

3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486

4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901

6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748

7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693

8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735

9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Director of Engineering 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190

2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096

3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123

4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276

5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557

Page 8 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Director of Engineering 195 UN Exempt 6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972

7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520

8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209

9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Director of External and Government Affairs 193 UN Exempt 1 $85.5500 $6,844.00 $14,828.67 $177,944

2 $87.6890 $7,015.12 $15,199.43 $182,393

3 $89.8813 $7,190.51 $15,579.44 $186,953

4 $92.1284 $7,370.28 $15,968.94 $191,627

5 $94.4318 $7,554.55 $16,368.20 $196,418

6 $96.7924 $7,743.40 $16,777.37 $201,328

7 $99.2121 $7,936.97 $17,196.77 $206,361

8 $101.6924 $8,135.40 $17,626.70 $211,520

9 $104.2347 $8,338.78 $18,067.36 $216,808

Director of Finance 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190

2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096

3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123

4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276

5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557

6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972

7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520

8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209

9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Director of Finance (Y‐Rated; Hired Before 

1/23/2022) 208 UN Exempt 1 $117.1515 $9,372.12 $20,306.26 $243,675

Director of Human Resources 194 UN Exempt 1 $89.8308 $7,186.47 $15,570.69 $186,848

2 $92.0760 $7,366.08 $15,959.84 $191,518

3 $94.3784 $7,550.28 $16,358.94 $196,307

4 $96.7371 $7,738.97 $16,767.77 $201,213

5 $99.1563 $7,932.51 $17,187.11 $206,245

6 $101.6347 $8,130.78 $17,616.69 $211,400

7 $104.1760 $8,334.08 $18,057.18 $216,686

8 $106.7799 $8,542.40 $18,508.54 $222,102

9 $109.4496 $8,755.97 $18,971.27 $227,655

Director of Information Technology 194 UN Exempt 1 $89.8308 $7,186.47 $15,570.69 $186,848

2 $92.0760 $7,366.08 $15,959.84 $191,518

3 $94.3784 $7,550.28 $16,358.94 $196,307

4 $96.7371 $7,738.97 $16,767.77 $201,213

5 $99.1563 $7,932.51 $17,187.11 $206,245

6 $101.6347 $8,130.78 $17,616.69 $211,400

7 $104.1760 $8,334.08 $18,057.18 $216,686

8 $106.7799 $8,542.40 $18,508.54 $222,102

9 $109.4496 $8,755.97 $18,971.27 $227,655

Director of Operations and Maintenance 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190

2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096

3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123

Page 9 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Director of Operations and Maintenance 195 UN Exempt 4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276

5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557

6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972

7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520

8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209

9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Director of Operations and Maintenance (Y‐

Rated; Hired Before 1/23/2022) 208 UN Exempt 1 $117.1515 $9,372.12 $20,306.26 $243,675

Director of Planning and Resources 195 UN Exempt 1 $94.3222 $7,545.78 $16,349.19 $196,190

2 $96.6808 $7,734.47 $16,758.02 $201,096

3 $99.0976 $7,927.81 $17,176.93 $206,123

4 $101.5750 $8,126.00 $17,606.34 $211,276

5 $104.1140 $8,329.12 $18,046.43 $216,557

6 $106.7174 $8,537.40 $18,497.70 $221,972

7 $109.3847 $8,750.78 $18,960.03 $227,520

8 $112.1198 $8,969.59 $19,434.12 $233,209

9 $114.9226 $9,193.81 $19,919.93 $239,039

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician I 176 GU Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645

2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587

3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575

4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616

5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706

6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849

7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045

8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296

9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician II 179 GU Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician III    181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

Page 10 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Electrical & Instrumentation Technician IV 182 GU Non‐exempt 2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Employee and Labor Relations Advocate 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Engineering Services Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Engineering Services Specialist 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Engineering Services Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Engineering Technician 175 GU Non‐exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950

2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799

Page 11 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Engineering Technician 175 GU Non‐exempt 3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693

4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636

5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627

6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667

7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759

8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903

9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Environmental Resources Planner I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Environmental Resources Planner II 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Executive Assistant 178 UN Exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

External Affairs Analyst  180 UN Exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

External Affairs Specialist I 171 UN Exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369

3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

Page 12 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

External Affairs Specialist I 171 UN Exempt 4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526

5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166

6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844

7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566

8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329

9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

External Affairs Specialist II 177 UN Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Facilities Program Coordinator 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Facilities Program Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Facilities Specialist 177 PR Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Facilities Specialist ‐ Landscape 177 UN Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

Page 13 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Facilities Specialist ‐ Landscape 177 UN Exempt 5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Facilities Technician I 172 GU Non‐exempt 1 $30.7174 $2,457.40 $5,324.37 $63,892

2 $31.4856 $2,518.85 $5,457.51 $65,490

3 $32.2731 $2,581.85 $5,594.01 $67,128

4 $33.0799 $2,646.40 $5,733.87 $68,806

5 $33.9068 $2,712.55 $5,877.20 $70,526

6 $34.7544 $2,780.36 $6,024.12 $72,289

7 $35.6231 $2,849.85 $6,174.68 $74,096

8 $36.5140 $2,921.12 $6,329.10 $75,949

9 $37.4265 $2,994.12 $6,487.26 $77,847

Facilities Technician II 174 GU Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Facilities Technician III 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Financial Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Financial Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

Page 14 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Financial Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

General Manager 205 EX Exempt 1 $163.4615 $13,076.92 $28,333.33 $340,000

GIS Specialist 178 UN Exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Grants Administrator 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Grants and Government Affairs Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Groundwater Recharge Supervisor 187 SU Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793

2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112

3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515

4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003

5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577

6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242

7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998

8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848

9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Human Resources Analyst 181 UN Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

Page 15 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Human Resources Analyst 181 UN Exempt 5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Human Resources Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Human Resources Specialist 177 UN Exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

HVAC Technician 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Industrial Engine Technician I 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Industrial Engine Technician II 181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

Page 16 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Industrial Engine Technician II 181 GU Non‐exempt 6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Information Security Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Information Systems Analyst I 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Information Systems Analyst II 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Intern 001 OTR Non‐exempt 1 $16.0000

2 $17.0000

3 $18.0000

4 $19.0000

5 $20.0000

6 $21.0000

Internal Auditor 179 PR Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Page 17 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly AnnuallyClassification Title 

Inventory Resources Coordinator 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Laboratory Assistant 172 LB Non‐exempt 1 $30.7174 $2,457.40 $5,324.37 $63,892

2 $31.4856 $2,518.85 $5,457.51 $65,490

3 $32.2731 $2,581.85 $5,594.01 $67,128

4 $33.0799 $2,646.40 $5,733.87 $68,806

5 $33.9068 $2,712.55 $5,877.20 $70,526

6 $34.7544 $2,780.36 $6,024.12 $72,289

7 $35.6231 $2,849.85 $6,174.68 $74,096

8 $36.5140 $2,921.12 $6,329.10 $75,949

9 $37.4265 $2,994.12 $6,487.26 $77,847

Laboratory Scientist I 177 LB Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Laboratory Scientist II 179 LB Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Laboratory Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Page 18 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Maintenance Planner/Scheduler 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Maintenance Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Manager of Asset Management 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Compliance and Sustainability 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Contracts and Procurement 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Engineering 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473

Page 19 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Manager of Engineering 192 UN Exempt 2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710

3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052

4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503

5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066

6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743

7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536

8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450

9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Environmental Services 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Facilities and Water System 

Programs 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Human Resources 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Information Technology 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Internal Audit 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

Page 20 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Manager of Internal Audit 190 UN Exempt 2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Laboratories 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Manager of Maintenance 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473

2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710

3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052

4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503

5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066

6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743

7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536

8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450

9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Operations 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473

2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710

3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052

4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503

5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066

6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743

7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536

8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450

9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Regional Composting Authority 192 UN Exempt 1 $81.4775 $6,518.20 $14,122.77 $169,473

2 $83.5145 $6,681.16 $14,475.85 $173,710

3 $85.6020 $6,848.16 $14,837.68 $178,052

4 $87.7419 $7,019.36 $15,208.62 $182,503

5 $89.9356 $7,194.85 $15,588.85 $187,066

6 $92.1842 $7,374.74 $15,978.61 $191,743

7 $94.4885 $7,559.08 $16,378.01 $196,536

8 $96.8510 $7,748.08 $16,787.51 $201,450

9 $99.2722 $7,941.78 $17,207.19 $206,486

Manager of Water Resources 190 UN Exempt 1 $73.9015 $5,912.12 $12,809.60 $153,715

2 $75.7496 $6,059.97 $13,129.94 $157,559

Page 21 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Manager of Water Resources 190 UN Exempt 3 $77.6424 $6,211.40 $13,458.04 $161,496

4 $79.5837 $6,366.70 $13,794.52 $165,534

5 $81.5731 $6,525.85 $14,139.35 $169,672

6 $83.6125 $6,689.00 $14,492.84 $173,914

7 $85.7029 $6,856.24 $14,855.19 $178,262

8 $87.8452 $7,027.62 $15,226.51 $182,718

9 $90.0419 $7,203.36 $15,607.28 $187,287

Materials Specialist 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Mechanic I 172 GU Non‐exempt 1 $30.7174 $2,457.40 $5,324.37 $63,892

2 $31.4856 $2,518.85 $5,457.51 $65,490

3 $32.2731 $2,581.85 $5,594.01 $67,128

4 $33.0799 $2,646.40 $5,733.87 $68,806

5 $33.9068 $2,712.55 $5,877.20 $70,526

6 $34.7544 $2,780.36 $6,024.12 $72,289

7 $35.6231 $2,849.85 $6,174.68 $74,096

8 $36.5140 $2,921.12 $6,329.10 $75,949

9 $37.4265 $2,994.12 $6,487.26 $77,847

Mechanic II 176 GU Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645

2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587

3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575

4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616

5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706

6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849

7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045

8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296

9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Mechanic III 179 GU Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Mechanic IV 181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

Page 22 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Mechanic IV 181 GU Non‐exempt 4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Network Administrator  183 PR Exempt 1 $52.5270 $4,202.16 $9,104.68 $109,256

2 $53.8395 $4,307.16 $9,332.18 $111,986

3 $55.1856 $4,414.85 $9,565.51 $114,786

4 $56.5654 $4,525.24 $9,804.69 $117,656

5 $57.9799 $4,638.40 $10,049.87 $120,598

6 $59.4289 $4,754.32 $10,301.03 $123,612

7 $60.9145 $4,873.16 $10,558.52 $126,702

8 $62.4375 $4,995.00 $10,822.50 $129,870

9 $63.9986 $5,119.89 $11,093.10 $133,117

Office Assistant 166 GU Non‐exempt 1 $22.9246 $1,833.97 $3,973.61 $47,683

2 $23.4981 $1,879.85 $4,073.01 $48,876

3 $24.0856 $1,926.85 $4,174.85 $50,098

4 $24.6875 $1,975.00 $4,279.17 $51,350

5 $25.3044 $2,024.36 $4,386.12 $52,633

6 $25.9375 $2,075.00 $4,495.84 $53,950

7 $26.5856 $2,126.85 $4,608.18 $55,298

8 $27.2500 $2,180.00 $4,723.34 $56,680

9 $27.9313 $2,234.51 $4,841.44 $58,097

Office Assistant (confidential) 166 UN Non‐exempt 1 $22.9246 $1,833.97 $3,973.61 $47,683

2 $23.4981 $1,879.85 $4,073.01 $48,876

3 $24.0856 $1,926.85 $4,174.85 $50,098

4 $24.6875 $1,975.00 $4,279.17 $51,350

5 $25.3044 $2,024.36 $4,386.12 $52,633

6 $25.9375 $2,075.00 $4,495.84 $53,950

7 $26.5856 $2,126.85 $4,608.18 $55,298

8 $27.2500 $2,180.00 $4,723.34 $56,680

9 $27.9313 $2,234.51 $4,841.44 $58,097

Operations and Maintenance Training 

Coordinator 183 UN Non‐exempt 1 $52.5270 $4,202.16 $9,104.68 $109,256

2 $53.8395 $4,307.16 $9,332.18 $111,986

3 $55.1856 $4,414.85 $9,565.51 $114,786

4 $56.5654 $4,525.24 $9,804.69 $117,656

5 $57.9799 $4,638.40 $10,049.87 $120,598

6 $59.4289 $4,754.32 $10,301.03 $123,612

7 $60.9145 $4,873.16 $10,558.52 $126,702

8 $62.4375 $4,995.00 $10,822.50 $129,870

9 $63.9986 $5,119.89 $11,093.10 $133,117

Operations Specialist 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

Page 23 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Operations Specialist 179 UN Exempt 4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Operations Supervisor 185 SU Non‐exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Pretreatment & Source Control Inspector I 174 GU Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Pretreatment & Source Control Inspector II 177 GU Non‐exempt 1 $39.1967 $3,135.74 $6,794.11 $81,529

2 $40.1775 $3,214.20 $6,964.10 $83,569

3 $41.1813 $3,294.51 $7,138.11 $85,657

4 $42.2111 $3,376.89 $7,316.60 $87,799

5 $43.2664 $3,461.32 $7,499.53 $89,994

6 $44.3476 $3,547.81 $7,686.93 $92,243

7 $45.4563 $3,636.51 $7,879.11 $94,549

8 $46.5928 $3,727.43 $8,076.10 $96,913

9 $47.7577 $3,820.62 $8,278.01 $99,336

Principal Accountant 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Principal Control Systems Administrator  187 UN Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793

2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112

3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515

4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003

Page 24 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Principal Control Systems Administrator  187 UN Exempt 5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577

6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242

7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998

8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848

9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Principal Engineer 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913

3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486

4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901

6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748

7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693

8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735

9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Process Automation & Controls Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Procurement Specialist I 174 PR Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Procurement Specialist II1 175 PR Non‐exempt 1 $35.5529 $2,844.24 $6,162.52 $73,950

2 $36.4419 $2,915.36 $6,316.62 $75,799

3 $37.3525 $2,988.20 $6,474.44 $77,693

4 $38.2866 $3,062.93 $6,636.35 $79,636

5 $39.2438 $3,139.51 $6,802.28 $81,627

6 $40.2246 $3,217.97 $6,972.27 $83,667

7 $41.2303 $3,298.43 $7,146.60 $85,759

8 $42.2611 $3,380.89 $7,325.27 $87,903

9 $43.3178 $3,465.43 $7,508.44 $90,101

Project Manager I 184 PR Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714

2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582

3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522

4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535

5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

Page 25 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Project Manager I 184 PR Exempt 6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789

7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033

8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358

9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Project Manager II 185 PR Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Records Management Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Records Specialist 173 GU Non‐exempt 1 $32.2520 $2,580.16 $5,590.35 $67,084

2 $33.0582 $2,644.66 $5,730.10 $68,761

3 $33.8851 $2,710.81 $5,873.43 $70,481

4 $34.7318 $2,778.55 $6,020.20 $72,242

5 $35.5996 $2,847.97 $6,170.61 $74,047

6 $36.4904 $2,919.24 $6,325.02 $75,900

7 $37.4020 $2,992.16 $6,483.02 $77,796

8 $38.3375 $3,067.00 $6,645.17 $79,742

9 $39.2962 $3,143.70 $6,811.35 $81,736

Recycled Water Distribution Operator 179 OP Non‐exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Risk Specialist 174 PR Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

Page 26 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Risk Specialist 174 PR Non‐exempt 7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

RW/Groundwater Recharge Maintenance 

Technician 176 GU Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645

2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587

3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575

4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616

5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706

6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849

7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045

8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296

9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

RW/Groundwater Recharge Operations & 

Maintenance Specialist 179 UN Exempt 1 $43.2145 $3,457.16 $7,490.52 $89,886

2 $44.2952 $3,543.62 $7,677.85 $92,134

3 $45.4025 $3,632.20 $7,869.77 $94,437

4 $46.5375 $3,723.00 $8,066.50 $96,798

5 $47.7005 $3,816.04 $8,268.09 $99,217

6 $48.8933 $3,911.47 $8,474.86 $101,698

7 $50.1159 $4,009.28 $8,686.78 $104,241

8 $51.3688 $4,109.51 $8,903.94 $106,847

9 $52.6525 $4,212.20 $9,126.44 $109,517

Safety Analyst 178 PR Exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Safety Officer 186 UN Exempt 1 $60.8039 $4,864.32 $10,539.36 $126,472

2 $62.3241 $4,985.93 $10,802.85 $129,634

3 $63.8823 $5,110.59 $11,072.95 $132,875

4 $65.4794 $5,238.36 $11,349.78 $136,197

5 $67.1164 $5,369.32 $11,633.53 $139,602

6 $68.7943 $5,503.55 $11,924.36 $143,092

7 $70.5140 $5,641.12 $12,222.43 $146,669

8 $72.2770 $5,782.16 $12,528.02 $150,336

9 $74.0837 $5,926.70 $12,841.19 $154,094

Senior Accountant 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

Page 27 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Accountant 181 PR Exempt 6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Associate Engineer 184 UN Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714

2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582

3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522

4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535

5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789

7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033

8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358

9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Senior Associate Engineer ‐ PE 185 UN Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Senior Compost Operations and Maintenance 

Technician 181 GU Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Construction Project Inspector 182 UN Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Engineer 187 PR Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793

2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112

3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515

4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003

5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577

Page 28 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Engineer 187 PR Exempt 6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242

7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998

8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848

9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Senior Environmental Resources Planner 184 UN Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714

2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582

3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522

4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535

5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789

7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033

8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358

9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Senior External Affairs Specialist 180 UN Exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Senior Facilities Technician 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Senior Financial Analyst 183 PR Exempt 1 $52.5270 $4,202.16 $9,104.68 $109,256

2 $53.8395 $4,307.16 $9,332.18 $111,986

3 $55.1856 $4,414.85 $9,565.51 $114,786

4 $56.5654 $4,525.24 $9,804.69 $117,656

5 $57.9799 $4,638.40 $10,049.87 $120,598

6 $59.4289 $4,754.32 $10,301.03 $123,612

7 $60.9145 $4,873.16 $10,558.52 $126,702

8 $62.4375 $4,995.00 $10,822.50 $129,870

9 $63.9986 $5,119.89 $11,093.10 $133,117

Senior Information Systems Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

Page 29 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Information Systems Analyst 182 PR Exempt 7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Internal Auditor 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Inventory Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Management Analyst 182 PR Exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Senior Operations Specialist 184 UN Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714

2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582

3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522

4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535

5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789

7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033

8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358

9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Senior Policy Advisor 188 UN Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913

3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486

4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901

6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748

7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693

Page 30 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Policy Advisor 188 UN Exempt 8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735

9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Senior Policy Advisor (Y‐Rated; Hired Before 

1/23/2022) 207 UN Exempt 1 $87.4193 $6,993.55 $15,152.70 $181,832

Senior Pretreatment & Source Control 

Inspector 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Senior Project Manager 187 PR Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793

2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112

3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515

4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003

5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577

6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242

7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998

8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848

9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 181 OP Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Water Plant Operator 181 OP Non‐exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Senior Water Resources Analyst 184 PR Exempt 1 $55.1510 $4,412.08 $9,559.51 $114,714

2 $56.5299 $4,522.40 $9,798.54 $117,582

3 $57.9433 $4,635.47 $10,043.52 $120,522

Page 31 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Senior Water Resources Analyst 184 PR Exempt 4 $59.3919 $4,751.36 $10,294.62 $123,535

5 $60.8770 $4,870.16 $10,552.02 $126,624

6 $62.3986 $4,991.89 $10,815.77 $129,789

7 $63.9582 $5,116.66 $11,086.10 $133,033

8 $65.5568 $5,244.55 $11,363.20 $136,358

9 $67.1962 $5,375.70 $11,647.35 $139,768

Source Control/Environmental Resources 

Supervisor 187 SU Exempt 1 $63.8428 $5,107.43 $11,066.10 $132,793

2 $65.4385 $5,235.08 $11,342.68 $136,112

3 $67.0746 $5,365.97 $11,626.27 $139,515

4 $68.7515 $5,500.12 $11,916.93 $143,003

5 $70.4698 $5,637.59 $12,214.78 $146,577

6 $72.2318 $5,778.55 $12,520.20 $150,242

7 $74.0375 $5,923.00 $12,833.17 $153,998

8 $75.8885 $6,071.08 $13,154.01 $157,848

9 $77.7861 $6,222.89 $13,482.93 $161,795

Supervisor ‐ Environmental Compliance & 

Energy 188 SU Exempt 1 $67.0318 $5,362.55 $11,618.86 $139,426

2 $68.7082 $5,496.66 $11,909.43 $142,913

3 $70.4260 $5,634.08 $12,207.18 $146,486

4 $72.1861 $5,774.89 $12,512.27 $150,147

5 $73.9909 $5,919.28 $12,825.11 $153,901

6 $75.8404 $6,067.24 $13,145.69 $157,748

7 $77.7371 $6,218.97 $13,474.44 $161,693

8 $79.6803 $6,374.43 $13,811.27 $165,735

9 $81.6722 $6,533.78 $14,156.53 $169,878

Systems Administrator 181 PR Exempt 1 $47.6414 $3,811.32 $8,257.86 $99,094

2 $48.8323 $3,906.59 $8,464.28 $101,571

3 $50.0529 $4,004.24 $8,675.86 $104,110

4 $51.3044 $4,104.36 $8,892.78 $106,713

5 $52.5861 $4,206.89 $9,114.93 $109,379

6 $53.9015 $4,312.12 $9,342.93 $112,115

7 $55.2491 $4,419.93 $9,576.52 $114,918

8 $56.6299 $4,530.40 $9,815.87 $117,790

9 $58.0462 $4,643.70 $10,061.35 $120,736

Technology Specialist I 178 GU Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Technology Specialist II 180 GU Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

Page 32 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Technology Specialist II 180 GU Non‐exempt 3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Technology Specialist III 182 GU Non‐exempt 1 $50.0236 $4,001.89 $8,670.77 $104,049

2 $51.2736 $4,101.89 $8,887.43 $106,649

3 $52.5558 $4,204.47 $9,109.69 $109,316

4 $53.8693 $4,309.55 $9,337.36 $112,048

5 $55.2164 $4,417.32 $9,570.86 $114,850

6 $56.5962 $4,527.70 $9,810.02 $117,720

7 $58.0116 $4,640.93 $10,055.35 $120,664

8 $59.4621 $4,756.97 $10,306.77 $123,681

9 $60.9481 $4,875.85 $10,564.35 $126,772

Warehouse Supervisor 185 SU Exempt 1 $57.9068 $4,632.55 $10,037.20 $120,446

2 $59.3549 $4,748.40 $10,288.20 $123,458

3 $60.8385 $4,867.08 $10,545.34 $126,544

4 $62.3592 $4,988.74 $10,808.94 $129,707

5 $63.9183 $5,113.47 $11,079.19 $132,950

6 $65.5164 $5,241.32 $11,356.20 $136,274

7 $67.1539 $5,372.32 $11,640.03 $139,680

8 $68.8332 $5,506.66 $11,931.10 $143,173

9 $70.5539 $5,644.32 $12,229.36 $146,752

Warehouse Technician 171 GU Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369

3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526

5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166

6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844

7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566

8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329

9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I 174 OP Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II 176 OP Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645

2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587

3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575

Page 33 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator II 176 OP Non‐exempt 4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616

5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706

6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849

7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045

8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296

9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator III 178 OP Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator IV, V 180 OP Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator‐in‐

Training 171 OP Non‐exempt 1 $29.2539 $2,340.32 $5,070.70 $60,848

2 $29.9851 $2,398.81 $5,197.43 $62,369

3 $30.7347 $2,458.78 $5,327.36 $63,928

4 $31.5029 $2,520.24 $5,460.52 $65,526

5 $32.2914 $2,583.32 $5,597.20 $67,166

6 $33.0981 $2,647.85 $5,737.01 $68,844

7 $33.9260 $2,714.08 $5,880.51 $70,566

8 $34.7736 $2,781.89 $6,027.43 $72,329

9 $35.6433 $2,851.47 $6,178.19 $74,138

Water Plant Operator I 174 OP Non‐exempt 1 $33.8621 $2,708.97 $5,869.44 $70,433

2 $34.7087 $2,776.70 $6,016.19 $72,194

3 $35.5765 $2,846.12 $6,166.60 $73,999

4 $36.4659 $2,917.28 $6,320.78 $75,849

5 $37.3775 $2,990.20 $6,478.77 $77,745

6 $38.3121 $3,064.97 $6,640.77 $79,689

7 $39.2698 $3,141.59 $6,806.78 $81,681

8 $40.2515 $3,220.12 $6,976.93 $83,723

9 $41.2577 $3,300.62 $7,151.35 $85,816

Water Plant Operator II 176 OP Non‐exempt 1 $37.3294 $2,986.36 $6,470.45 $77,645

2 $38.2630 $3,061.04 $6,632.26 $79,587

3 $39.2188 $3,137.51 $6,797.94 $81,575

Page 34 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Water Plant Operator II 176 OP Non‐exempt 4 $40.2000 $3,216.00 $6,968.00 $83,616

5 $41.2049 $3,296.40 $7,142.20 $85,706

6 $42.2351 $3,378.81 $7,320.76 $87,849

7 $43.2909 $3,463.28 $7,503.78 $90,045

8 $44.3731 $3,549.85 $7,691.35 $92,296

9 $45.4827 $3,638.62 $7,883.68 $94,604

Water Plant Operator III 178 OP Non‐exempt 1 $41.1553 $3,292.43 $7,133.60 $85,603

2 $42.1842 $3,374.74 $7,311.94 $87,743

3 $43.2390 $3,459.12 $7,494.76 $89,937

4 $44.3193 $3,545.55 $7,682.03 $92,184

5 $45.4279 $3,634.24 $7,874.19 $94,490

6 $46.5630 $3,725.04 $8,070.92 $96,851

7 $47.7275 $3,818.20 $8,272.77 $99,273

8 $48.9207 $3,913.66 $8,479.60 $101,755

9 $50.1433 $4,011.47 $8,691.52 $104,298

Water Plant Operator IV, V 180 OP Non‐exempt 1 $45.3746 $3,629.97 $7,864.94 $94,379

2 $46.5092 $3,720.74 $8,061.61 $96,739

3 $47.6722 $3,813.78 $8,263.19 $99,158

4 $48.8640 $3,909.12 $8,469.76 $101,637

5 $50.0851 $4,006.81 $8,681.43 $104,177

6 $51.3375 $4,107.00 $8,898.50 $106,782

7 $52.6207 $4,209.66 $9,120.93 $109,451

8 $53.9361 $4,314.89 $9,348.93 $112,187

9 $55.2847 $4,422.78 $9,582.69 $114,992

Z‐Not in Use 165 (blank) (blank) 1 $21.8347 $1,746.78 $3,784.69 $45,416

2 $22.3803 $1,790.43 $3,879.27 $46,551

3 $22.9400 $1,835.20 $3,976.27 $47,715

4 $23.5135 $1,881.08 $4,075.68 $48,908

5 $24.1015 $1,928.12 $4,177.60 $50,131

6 $24.7034 $1,976.28 $4,281.94 $51,383

7 $25.3217 $2,025.74 $4,389.11 $52,669

8 $25.9544 $2,076.36 $4,498.78 $53,985

9 $26.6034 $2,128.28 $4,611.28 $55,335

167 (blank) (blank) 1 $24.0707 $1,925.66 $4,172.27 $50,067

2 $24.6722 $1,973.78 $4,276.53 $51,318

3 $25.2895 $2,023.16 $4,383.52 $52,602

4 $25.9212 $2,073.70 $4,493.02 $53,916

5 $26.5693 $2,125.55 $4,605.36 $55,264

6 $27.2332 $2,178.66 $4,720.43 $56,645

7 $27.9145 $2,233.16 $4,838.52 $58,062

8 $28.6121 $2,288.97 $4,959.44 $59,513

9 $29.3270 $2,346.16 $5,083.35 $61,000

168 (blank) (blank) 1 $25.2722 $2,021.78 $4,380.53 $52,566

2 $25.9039 $2,072.32 $4,490.03 $53,880

3 $26.5510 $2,124.08 $4,602.18 $55,226

4 $27.2145 $2,177.16 $4,717.18 $56,606

Page 35 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Z‐Not in Use 168 (blank) (blank) 5 $27.8948 $2,231.59 $4,835.12 $58,021

6 $28.5928 $2,287.43 $4,956.10 $59,473

7 $29.3073 $2,344.59 $5,079.95 $60,959

8 $30.0400 $2,403.20 $5,206.94 $62,483

9 $30.7914 $2,463.32 $5,337.20 $64,046

169 (blank) (blank) 1 $26.5337 $2,122.70 $4,599.19 $55,190

2 $27.1967 $2,175.74 $4,714.11 $56,569

3 $27.8765 $2,230.12 $4,831.93 $57,983

4 $28.5741 $2,285.93 $4,952.85 $59,434

5 $29.2880 $2,343.04 $5,076.59 $60,919

6 $30.0202 $2,401.62 $5,203.51 $62,442

7 $30.7707 $2,461.66 $5,333.60 $64,003

8 $31.5400 $2,523.20 $5,466.94 $65,603

9 $32.3284 $2,586.28 $5,603.61 $67,243

189 (blank) (blank) 1 $70.3832 $5,630.66 $12,199.77 $146,397

2 $72.1433 $5,771.47 $12,504.86 $150,058

3 $73.9467 $5,915.74 $12,817.44 $153,809

4 $75.7957 $6,063.66 $13,137.93 $157,655

5 $77.6900 $6,215.20 $13,466.27 $161,595

6 $79.6323 $6,370.59 $13,802.95 $165,635

7 $81.6226 $6,529.81 $14,147.93 $169,775

8 $83.6635 $6,693.08 $14,501.68 $174,020

9 $85.7553 $6,860.43 $14,864.27 $178,371

191 (blank) (blank) 1 $77.5962 $6,207.70 $13,450.02 $161,400

2 $79.5361 $6,362.89 $13,786.27 $165,435

3 $81.5246 $6,521.97 $14,130.94 $169,571

4 $83.5621 $6,684.97 $14,484.11 $173,809

5 $85.6510 $6,852.08 $14,846.18 $178,154

6 $87.7924 $7,023.40 $15,217.37 $182,608

7 $89.9871 $7,198.97 $15,597.77 $187,173

8 $92.2371 $7,378.97 $15,987.77 $191,853

9 $94.5428 $7,563.43 $16,387.44 $196,649

196 (blank) (blank) 1 $99.0366 $7,922.93 $17,166.35 $205,996

2 $101.5121 $8,120.97 $17,595.44 $211,145

3 $104.0500 $8,324.00 $18,035.34 $216,424

4 $106.6515 $8,532.12 $18,486.26 $221,835

5 $109.3174 $8,745.40 $18,948.37 $227,380

6 $112.0505 $8,964.04 $19,422.09 $233,065

7 $114.8525 $9,188.20 $19,907.77 $238,893

8 $117.7231 $9,417.85 $20,405.35 $244,864

9 $120.6664 $9,653.32 $20,915.53 $250,986

198 (blank) (blank) 1 $109.1866 $8,734.93 $18,925.69 $227,108

2 $111.9164 $8,953.32 $19,398.86 $232,786

3 $114.7140 $9,177.12 $19,883.76 $238,605

4 $117.5818 $9,406.55 $20,380.86 $244,570

5 $120.5212 $9,641.70 $20,890.35 $250,684

Page 36 of 37



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Salary Matrix 

Effective March 19, 2023 
Adopted March 15, 2023

EXHIBIT 1

Classification Title Salary Range Unit FLSA Step Hourly Biweekly Monthly Annually

Z‐Not in Use 198 (blank) (blank) 6 $123.5337 $9,882.70 $21,412.52 $256,950

7 $126.6231 $10,129.85 $21,948.01 $263,376

8 $129.7880 $10,383.04 $22,496.59 $269,959

9 $133.0327 $10,642.62 $23,059.01 $276,708

200 (blank) (blank) 1 $126.1803 $10,094.43 $21,871.27 $262,455

2 $129.3351 $10,346.81 $22,418.09 $269,017

3 $132.5683 $10,605.47 $22,978.52 $275,742

4 $135.8827 $10,870.62 $23,553.01 $282,636

5 $139.2794 $11,142.36 $24,141.78 $289,701

6 $142.7611 $11,420.89 $24,745.27 $296,943

7 $146.3303 $11,706.43 $25,363.94 $304,367

8 $149.9890 $11,999.12 $25,998.10 $311,977

9 $153.7380 $12,299.04 $26,647.92 $319,775

Note:

1. Incumbent Procurement Specialist I reclassified to Procurement Specialist II on 7/1/18 shall be exempt.

Page 37 of 37



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Adopt Position on AB 759 Sanitary Districts

On February 13, 2023, Assemblymember Timothy Grayson (D-Concord), introduced AB 759
Sanitary Districts. This bill aims to update and streamline accounting practices making it
possible for sanitary districts to develop their own accounting protocols.
Currently, the Sanitary District Act of 1939 requires the Board to approve the districts check
registers at a board meeting. This bill would allow each sanitary district to establish their own
protocols allowing district operations to run more efficiently. This bill would create parity
between sanitary districts and other local government agencies and special districts.

It is important to note, this bill would not change any existing local government transparency
requirements.

The California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) is sponsoring this bill.

Adopt a position of "Support" for AB 759 Sanitary Districts (Grayson).

03/08/23Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Taking legislative positions is in line with IEUA's business practices goal of advocating for the
development of policies, legislation and regulations that benefit the region.

On March 1, 2023 the Board adopted the 2023 Legislative Policy Principles.

1. AB 759 (D-Grayson) - Fact Sheet
2. AB 759 (D-Grayson) - Bill Text

Not Applicable



Attachment 1. AB ( ) -  



ASSEMBLYMEMBER TIM GRAYSON

AB 759
SANITARY DISTRICTS

Summary:

AB 759 will update the Sanitary District Act of 1939 
to modernize outdated and inefficient accounting 
practices that require a Sanitary District Board 
President to approve check registers at a board 
meeting.  

Background:

The Sanitary District Act of 1923 authorized the 
formation of sanitary districts in California and
specified how these districts are organized and how 
they should operate. 

Last updated in 1939, the Sanitary District Act outlines 
procedures for how check registers must be approved 
for payments to be dispersed. It requires the Board 
President to approve the district check register for 
payments to be dispersed at every board meeting, and 
for the approvals to be recorded in the board meeting 
minutes.

Problem:

The procedures for how sanitary districts disperse 
payments are outdated and redundant. In most cases, 
the check register that is being “approved” at board 
meetings are for payments that have already been 
issued. The district must issue checks in a timely 
manner, and waiting to issue payments until after the 
Board meets impedes the ability to maintain a 
reasonable flow of public business. 

Solution:

AB 759 will help cut through red tape and allow 
district operations to run more efficiently by changing 
the requirement for board approval of previously 
issued checks, to instead allow Sanitary Districts to 
establish their own protocols to authorize funds that 
better reflect current practices. 

This simple governance approach has been adopted by 
several different types of special districts and public 
agencies providing utility services. This bill would 
create parity between sanitary districts and other local 

government agencies and special districts who have 
already been granted this authority by the Legislature. 

Importantly, this bill does not change or alter any 
existing local government transparency requirements 
for sanitary districts, including annual audits. 

Support:

California Association of Sanitation Agencies
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District

Staff Contact: 
Robert Cruz
robert.cruz@asm.ca.gov



Attachment . AB ( ) - Bill Text



california legislature—2023–24 regular session 

ASSEMBLY BILL  No. 759 

Introduced by Assembly Member Grayson 
(Coauthor: Assembly Member Connolly) 

(Coauthor: Senator Glazer) 

February 13, 2023 

An act to amend Section 6801 of, and to repeal and add Section 6794 
of, the Health and Safety Code, relating to sanitary districts. 

legislative counsel
’
s digest 

AB 759, as introduced, Grayson. Sanitary districts. 
Existing law authorizes the formation of a sanitary district, pursuant 

to specified requirements. Existing law authorizes a sanitary district to 
acquire, plan, construct, reconstruct, alter, enlarge, lay, renew, replace, 
maintain, and operate garbage dumpsites and garbage collection and 
disposal systems, sewers, drains, septic tanks, and sewerage collection, 
outfall, treatment works and other sanitary disposal systems, and storm 
water drains and storm water collection, outfall and disposal systems, 
and water recycling and distribution systems, as the deemed necessary 
and proper by the governing board of the district. Existing law generally 
authorizes the district to expend money only upon written order of the 
board.

This bill would instead authorize funds to be expended in a manner 
prescribed by the board. 

Vote:   majority.   Appropriation:   no.  Fiscal committee:   no.

State-mandated local program:   no.

99



The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

 line 1 SECTION 1. Section 6794 of the Health and Safety Code is 
 line 2 repealed.
 line 3 6794. The treasurer shall pay out money of the district only 
 line 4 upon the written order of the board, signed by the president and 
 line 5 countersigned by the secretary.
 line 6 The order shall specify the name of the person to whom the 
 line 7 money is to be paid, the fund from which it is to be paid, and shall 
 line 8 state generally the purpose for which the payment is to be made. 
 line 9 The order shall be entered in the minutes of the board. 

 line 10 SEC. 2. Section 6794 is added to the Health and Safety Code,
 line 11 to read: 
 line 12 6794. The treasurer, or other person or persons that are 
 line 13 authorized by the board, shall draw checks or warrants to pay 
 line 14 demands when demands have been approved in the manner 
 line 15 prescribed by the board. 
 line 16 SEC. 3. Section 6801 of the Health and Safety Code is amended 
 line 17 to read: 
 line 18 6801. As an alternative to the functions of the treasurer, the 
 line 19 district board may elect to disburse funds of the district. Such 
 line 20 election shall be made by resolution of the board and the filing of 
 line 21 a certified copy thereof with the treasurer. The treasurer shall 
 line 22 thereupon and thereafter deliver to the district all funds of the 
 line 23 district. Such funds shall be deposited by the board in a bank or 
 line 24 banks, or savings and loan association or savings and loan 
 line 25 associations, approved for deposit of public funds and shall be 
 line 26 withdrawn only by written order of the district board, signed by 
 line 27 the president and secretary. The order shall specify the name of 
 line 28 the payee, the fund from which it is to be paid and state generally 
 line 29 the purpose for which payment is to be made. Such order shall be 
 line 30 entered in the minutes of the board. funds. The district board shall 
 line 31 appoint a treasurer who shall be responsible for the deposit and 
 line 32 withdrawal of funds of the district. district, in the manner 
 line 33 prescribed by the board. The treasurer shall deposit with the 
 line 34 district, prior to October 1st of each year, a surety bond in the 
 line 35 annual amount fixed by the district board. The deposit and 
 line 36 withdrawal of funds of the district shall thereafter be subject to 

99

— 2 — AB 759 



 line 1 the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at Section 53630), Chapter 
 line 2 4, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5, of the Government Code. 

O

99

AB 759 — 3 — 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2E



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Oxygen Transfer Efficiency Analysis Master Service Contract Award

The wastewater that Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) collects goes through multiple 
treatment processes. One of the processes, the secondary aeration is a biological nutrient 
removal method that relies on oxygen transfer using air diffusers. Over time, the air diffusers 
becoming less effective at transferring oxygen into the wastewater. This loss in oxygen transfer 
efficiency (OTE) increases maintenance cost and energy usage for aeration blowers.

IEUA uses a consultant to perform off-gas analyses to determine the OTE of air diffusers within 
IEUA’s secondary treatment aeration systems. The site specific OTE will be used to guide 
decisions related to air diffuser maintenance and replacement to keep the aeration system 
operating at maximum efficiency. The consultant’s contract recently expired and IEUA solicited 
oxygen transfer efficiency services on December 22, 2022, through a Request for Proposal on 
PlanetBids. On January 16, 2023, one proposal was received. A review committee consisting of 
Asset Management Group, Engineering, and Operations staff evaluated the proposal and found 
DrH2O, LLC as the best qualified to complete this work.

1. Award an aggregate master service consultant contract for Oxygen Transfer Efficiency
Analysis services to DrH2O, LLC for a total aggregate not-to-exceed amount of $490,861 over
a three-year period, with two, one-year options to extend; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to approve and execute the master service contract, subject to
non-substantive changes.

10800-137100-501000-520920/Professional fees and services
EN23026/Asset Management Condition Assessment Project

None.

1000 10800 137101 501000 EN23026

03/08/23
03/08/23

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

This  Oxygen Transfer Efficiency Analysis Services Contract is consistent with IEUA's 
Business Goal of Wastewater Management specifically the Asset Management objective that 
IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving 
requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.

On September 1, 2016, the Board of Directors approved a three-year contract with three one-year
optional term extension to DrH2O, LLC.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Master Service Contract (Click to Download)

Not Applicable

23041

https://www.dropbox.com/s/cqfzcxvyuwol5tw/First%20Draft%2C%20%20DRH2O%20LLC%20Master%20Services%20Contract%204600003237%2C%2001-30-2023.pdf?dl=0


 

 

Attachment 1 



Oxygen Transfer Efficiency Analysis
Master Service Contract Award

Francis Concemino

Acting Senior Project Manager

March 2023



• Oxygen from ambient air is used in the secondary treatment process, using blowers and diffusers.
• Diffuser loses effectiveness over time and results in higher energy consumption for the blowers.
• Measuring Oxygen Transfer Efficiency (OTE) provides information on when to repair or replace air diffusers.
• Since 2016, IEUA has relied on OTE analysis to make maintenance and process optimization decisions. In 

2021, IEUA used it to validate performance of newly installed disc diffusers at RP-4 for warranty purposes. 

Project Background

OTE testing and Analyzer set up at RP-4

2

Disc diffuser installation RP-4 Aeration diffuser normal operation 



• Procure and fabricate off-gas testing hoods and gas collection instruments.
• Oxygen transfer efficiency (OTE) testing and analysis for each aeration basin tanks per facility.

• OTE testing shall be completed every six months.
• Provide workshop to present OTE results and optimization recommendations.

3

Scope of Work

Facility: # of Tanks Tank Dimensions

RP-1 6 240 feet by 60 feet
CCWRF 6 180 feet by 45 feet
RP-4 6 360 feet by 35 feet
RP-5 2 540 feet by 60 feet

Off-gas testing and Analyzer set up at RP-4



• December 22, 2022:  PlanetBids Solicitation
—25 calendar days (16 working days)

• January 16, 2023:  Received one proposal

• Qualification-Based Selection:
—Proposal evaluated by IEUA staff
—Experience, reputation, history, capabilities

4

Consultant Selection

Proposal No. Consultant Proposal Fee

1 DrH2O, LLC $490,861

Dr. H2O’s crew performing OTE gas collection at Aeration 
basin Train 3 on 12/16/2021



5

Staff’s Recommendation:

• Award aggregate master service consultant contract for Oxygen Transfer 
Efficiency Analysis services to DrH2O, LLC for a total aggregate not-to-exceed 
amount of $490,861 over a three-year period, with two, one-year options to 
extend; and

• Authorize the General Manager to approve and execute the master service 
contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

The Oxygen Transfer Efficiency master service contract is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater Management 
specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the treatment facilities are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving 

requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2F



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Recycled Water SCADA Migration Design Consultant Contract Award

The Recycled Water Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (RW SCADA) Migration
project will migrate the existing agency-wide RW SCADA system to PlantPAx-based enterprise
distributed control system to meet current industry standards and achieve Inland Empire Utilities
Agency’s (IEUA) SCADA Master Plan objectives. The RW SCADA system has become
obsolete and is experiencing issues such as telecommunication inefficiencies, antiquated control
screens, cyber security risks, and difficulty maintaining interoperability. The provisions of the
proposed contract include an analysis and evaluation of the current SCADA system and design
services to develop a plan to solve the identified issues necessary for enhancing operations
efficiency and SCADA reliability. On November 16, 2022, IEUA issued a request for proposals
to design consultants listed on PlanetBids. On January 4, 2023, IEUA received one proposal
from Eramosa International, Inc. (Eramosa). Eramosa’s familiarity with IEUA's design guides,
workflows, SCADA standards, and an in-depth understanding of the Recycled Water SCADA
System Migration objectives, places Eramosa in the best position to assist staff in delivering the
design as the subject matter experts. The proposed contract for Eramosa is for a not-to-exceed
amount $371,640.

1. Award a design consultant contract for the Recycled Water SCADA Migration, Project No.
EN23119, to Eramosa International Inc., for a not-to-exceed amount of $371,640; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to non-substantive changes.

EN23119/RW SCADA Migration

None.

1000 127108 10600 590000 EN23119

03/08/23Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RW SCADA Migration Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives, that IEUA will
ensure that Agency systems are planned, constructed, well maintained, upgraded to meet
evolving requirements and changes in regional water use, and sustainably managed to protect
public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

None.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation 
Attachment 2 - Consultant Contract (Click to Download)

Not Applicable

https://www.dropbox.com/s/bhi3hf4tqltsbk4/PENDING_MARCH_BOARD_APPROVAL_%E2%80%93_ERAMOSA_EN23119.pdf?dl=0


 

 

Attachment 1 



Recycled Water SCADA Migration
Design Consultant Contract Award

Project No. EN23119

Cathy Nhothsavath

Associate Engineer

March 2023



2

Project Location:
Recycled Water Service Area

IEUA Recycled Water Stations



3

Project Background

CCWRF

RP-5 & 
RP-4

RP-1

• IEUA SCADA Master Plan (2012)

— Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
— Achieve standardization
— Improve data acquisition
— Optimize operational performance

• SCADA Enterprise Upgrades
— Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (2015-2016)

— Regional Plant No. 5 (2017-2019)

— Regional Plant No. 4 (2017-2019)

— Regional Plant No. 1 (Estimated 2023-2026)

— Recycled Water System (Estimated 2023-2026)

Recycled
Water

Ground 
Water 

RechargeGroundwater 
Recharge



4

Design Services

Challenges
1. Equipment Incompatibilities
2. Obsolete System
3. Cyber Security Risks
4. Antiquated Graphics Screens

Solutions
1. Develop Migration Plan
2. Generate Process Control Narratives (PCN)
3. Invent User-Friendly Graphics Screens

Benefits
1. Increased System Reliability
2. Safer Cyber-SCADA Environment
3. More Efficient Operations



5

Consultant Selection

Proposal No. Consultant Proposal Fee
1 Eramosa International, Inc. $371,640

• PlanetBids Solicitation Period
— November 16, 2022 – January 4, 2023
— 49 Calendar Days (31 Working Days)

• Qualifications-Based Selection
— Proposal evaluated by IEUA Staff
— Experience, reputation, history, capabilities



Project Budget and Schedule

Project Milestone Date

Design
Consultant Design Contract Award March 2023

Design Completion (Estimated) June 2024

Construction (Estimated)

Construction Contract Award September 2024

Construction Completion June 2026

6

Description Estimated Cost
Design Services $611,640
Design Services (This Action) $371,640

IEUA Project Management (~8%) $240,000

Construction Services                                                                               $690,000
Engineering Services During Construction (~15%) $450,000

IEUA Construction Services (~8%) $240,000

Construction $3,300,000
Construction Contract Estimate $3,000,000

Project Contingency (~10%) $300,000

Total Estimated Project Cost: $4,601,640
Current Total Project Budget: $4,630,000



7

Staff’s Recommendations

• Award a design consultant contract for the Recycled Water SCADA 
Migration, Project No. EN23119, to Eramosa International Inc., for 
a not-to-exceed amount of $371,640; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract, subject to 
non-substantive changes.

The RW SCADA Migration Project is consistent with IEUA's Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset 
Management and Water Quality objectives, that IEUA will ensure that Agency systems are planned, constructed, well maintained,

upgraded to meet evolving requirements and changes in regional water use, and sustainably managed to protect public health, 
the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.



CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2G



���������	
���������������������������������  !"#$�
%&'(()*�+��,  �-.!��,-$

/01234�516�78928:48;�/<<61=>?@ABCDEF�GHIJKF�LMMNOPQRSTNUVMQ�WXYVZ[\]MX̂�_ỲXMQ�aVb̀ X̂\P�\c�PNQ�dOefVQVeghijkk�lmmnjop�mnqros�tropuvolk�wx�yjvynzuz�nok{|} ~ ~ �����������Z
��������������@ ���������������@

���������� ¡��¢£¤�¥¦§¦̈©ª«¤�¬¦©̈�¦®�̄°̈¤±²¦̈³�́��µ¶¶··�¹̧º»·¼¶½

~~ ~~

¾¿ÀÁÂ�ÃÄÅ�ÆÇÆÈÉÊËÌÀ¿ÁÌ�ÍÎ¿ÀÏ�ÐÊÀ�ÌÂÑ�ÒÀÊÁÓÀÑÔÑËÌ�ÊÐ�ÕÖÑÁÌÀ×Á¿Ö�Ò¿ÀÌØ�¿ËÏ�ÙÓÚÚÖ×ÑØ�ÛÂÑ�ÜËÖ¿ËÏ�ÕÔÚ×ÀÑ�ÝÌ×Ö×Ì×ÑØ�ÍÞÑËÁß�àÜÕÝÍá�ÊÎËØÅ�ÊÚÑÀ¿ÌÑØÅ�¿ËÏ�Ô¿×ËÌ¿×ËØ�ÊâÑÀ�ÄÅÇÇÇ�ÑÖÑÁÌÀ×Á¿Ö�¿ØØÑÌØ�ØÓÁÂ�¿Ø�ÔÊÌÊÀØÅ�â¿À×¿ãÖÑ�ÐÀÑäÓÑËÁß�ÏÀ×âÑØÅ�ØÎ×ÌÁÂÞÑ¿ÀØÅ�ÁÊËÌÀÊÖ�Ú¿ËÑÖØÅ�¿ËÏ�¿ÁÌÓ¿ÌÑÏ�â¿ÖâÑØå�ÕÖÑÁÌÀ×Á¿Ö�ÑäÓ×ÚÔÑËÌ�×Ø�ÁÀ×Ì×Á¿Ö�ÌÊ�ØÓÚÚÊÀÌ�ÌÂÑ�ÁÊËâÑß¿ËÁÑ�¿ËÏ�ÌÀÑ¿ÌÔÑËÌ�ÊÐ�Î¿ØÌÑÎ¿ÌÑÀå�ÛÊ�ÑËØÓÀÑ�ÜÕÝÍæØ�ÑÖÑÁÌÀ×Á¿Ö�¿ØØÑÌØ�Ø¿ÐÑ�¿ËÏ�ÀÑÖ×¿ãÖÑÅ�ÑÖÑÁÌÀ×Á¿Ö�Ú¿ÀÌØ�ØÓÁÂ�¿Ø�ãÀÑ¿çÑÀØÅ�ÀÑÖ¿ßØÅ�Î×ÀÑØÅ�ÁÊËÏÓ×ÌØ�¿ËÏ�ÔÊÌÊÀ�ÁÊËÌÀÊÖ�ÏÑâ×ÁÑØ�¿ÀÑ�ÀÑäÓ×ÀÑÏå���Í�èÑäÓÑØÌ�ÐÊÀ�éÓÊÌÑØ�Î¿Ø�×ØØÓÑÏ�ÊË�ÒÖ¿ËÑÌê×ÏØ�ÊË�ëÁÌÊãÑÀ�ÆÇÅ�ÆÇÆÆ�¿ËÏ�ÊË�ìÊâÑÔãÑÀ�ÈÅ�ÆÇÆÆ�ÜÕÝÍ�ÀÑÁÑ×âÑÏ�ÌÂÀÑÑ�äÓÊÌÑØå�ÛÂÑ�äÓÊÌÑØ�ÎÑÀÑ�Ñâ¿ÖÓ¿ÌÑÏ�ã¿ØÑÏ�ÊË�ÚÀÑÏÑÌÑÀÔ×ËÑÏ�¿Î¿ÀÏ�ÁÀ×ÌÑÀ×¿�¿ËÏ�èÊß¿Ö�ÜËÏÓØÌÀ×¿Ö�ÙÊÖÓÌ×ÊËØ�Î¿Ø�ÏÑÌÑÀÔ×ËÑÏ�ÌÊ�ãÑ�ÌÂÑ�ØÓÚÚÖ×ÑÀ�ÌÂ¿Ì�ÎÊÓÖÏ�ÚÀÊâ×ÏÑ�ãÑØÌ�â¿ÖÓÑå��èÊß¿Ö�ÜËÏÓØÌÀ×¿Ö�ÙÊÖÓÌ×ÊËØ�×Ø�ÌÂÑ�ÁÓÀÀÑËÌ�ØÑÀâ×ÁÑ�ÚÀÊâ×ÏÑÀ�¿ËÏ�Â¿Ø�ÚÑÀÐÊÀÔÑÏ�ÎÑÖÖ�¿ËÏ�Â¿Ø�ÔÑÌ�ÜÕÝÍæØ�ÑíÚÑÁÌ¿Ì×ÊËØ�Ø×ËÁÑ�ÃîîÈå�ÛÂÑß�¿ÀÑ�¿ÖØÊ�ÌÂÑ�ÖÊÁ¿Ö�¿ÓÌÂÊÀ×ïÑÏ�Ï×ØÌÀ×ãÓÌÊÀ�ÊÐ�ÌÂÑ�ÍÖÖÑË�êÀ¿ÏÖÑß�ÚÀÊÏÓÁÌ�Ö×ËÑ�ÎÂ×ÁÂ�ÌÂÑ�ÍÞÑËÁß�Â¿Ø�ØÌ¿ËÏ¿ÀÏ×ïÑÏ�ÊËåÃå�ÍÚÚÀÊâÑ�ÉÊËÌÀ¿ÁÌ�ìÊå�ðñÇÇÇÇÈÆÈÆ�ÐÊÀ�¿�Ð×âÑòßÑ¿À�ÁÊËÌÀ¿ÁÌ�àÌÎÊòßÑ¿À�Ð×ÀÔ�Ð×íÑÏ�ÚÀ×ÁÑ�Î×ÌÂ�ÌÂÀÑÑÅ�ÊËÑòßÑ¿À�ÊÚÌ×ÊËØ�ÌÊ�ÑíÌÑËÏá�ÐÊÀ�ÌÂÑ�ËÊÌòÌÊòÑíÁÑÑÏ�¿ÔÊÓËÌ�ÊÐ�óÃÅÇÇÇÅÇÇÇ�ÌÊ�èÊß¿Ö�ÜËÏÓØÌÀ×¿Ö�ÙÊÖÓÌ×ÊËØ�ÐÊÀ�ÌÂÑ�ÚÓÀÁÂ¿ØÑ�ÊÐ�ÑÖÑÁÌÀ×Á¿Ö�Ú¿ÀÌØ�¿ËÏ�ØÓÚÚÖ×ÑØ��¿ËÏ��Æå�ÍÓÌÂÊÀ×ïÑ�ÌÂÑ��ÑËÑÀ¿Ö�¾¿Ë¿ÞÑÀ�ÌÊ�ÑíÑÁÓÌÑ�ÌÂÑ�ÁÊËÌÀ¿ÁÌå��¾¿×ËÌÑË¿ËÁÑ�ÝË×Ì�ò�¾¿ÌÑÀ×¿ÖØ�¿ËÏ�ÙÓÚÚÖ×ÑØ

��������ÕËÞ×ËÑÑÀ×ËÞÅ�ëÚÑÀ¿Ì×ÊËØ���	¿ÌÑÀ�èÑØÊÓÀÁÑØ�� ÉÂÀ×ØÌ×¿Ë¿�
¿×ØßÅ�
ÑÚÓÌß��ÑËÑÀ¿Ö�¾¿Ë¿ÞÑÀ

� �

�����������



����������	

�������������
������������������������� ��!���"#$#%&'()$'*(�
+,,-./012,34

56789:;<=�>?@A

BCD�EFDGHIJK�LMDHNOPHQM�RQONK�QGS�TUVVMPDK�WXGNOQHN�PK�HXGKPKNDGN�YPNC�NCD�ZL[EJK�\UKPGDKK�]XQM�QGS�̂QKNDYQNDO�_QGQFD̀DGNa�KVDHPbPHQMMI�NCD�EKKDN�_QGQFD̀DGN�XcdDHNPeDKa�NCQN�ZL[E�YPMM�DGKUOD�NCD�ODFPXGQM�KDYDO�KIKND̀�QGS�NODQǸDGN�bQHPMPNPDK�QOD�YDMM�̀QPGNQPGDSa�UVFOQSDK�NX�D̀DN�DeXMePGF�ODfUPOD̀DGNKa�KUKNQPGQcMI�̀QGQFDSa�QGS�HQG�QHHX̀ X̀SQND�HCQGFDK�PG�ODFPXGQM�YQNDO�UKDg�
hXGD

ENNQHC̀ DGN�i�j�RXYDORXPGN�RODKDGNQNPXG�ENNQHC̀ DGN�k�j�TDOePHD�WXGNOQHN�hXg�lmnnnnokok
hXN�EVVMPHQcMD



Contract Award for the Procurement 
of Electrical Parts and Supplies

Jon Florio

Deputy Manager of Maintenance 

March 15, 2023



• Agency operates and maintains over 5,000
electrical assets such as motors, variable
frequency drives (VFDs), switchgears,
control panels, and actuated valves.

• Electrical assets are critical to the
conveyance and treatment of wastewater.
They support a safe and permit compliant
operation of our treatment process.

Background

2

Control Panel Variable Frequency Drive (VFD)



• Electrical parts and supplies such as circuit
breakers, relays, electrical conduits, wires,
panels, and junction boxes are required to
perform safe and reliable equipment repairs.

• A long-term contract will support timely
repairs of equipment in a cost-effective
manner.

Maintenance Needs 

3

Conduit entering a Motor Control Center (MCC) Electrical Breaker Panel Electrical Junction Box



On November 3, 2022, three quotes were 
received:

Quotes Evaluation

4

Quotes Received
Royal Industrial Solutions
Sid Tool Co., Inc.
Consolidated Electrical Distributors

Quotes were evaluated based on pre-determined 
award criteria:
Award Criteria
• Competitive pricing on most-often purchased items 

(Qty: 200)
• Ability to supply manufacturer-specific items or 

commercially equivalent
• Discount off manufacturer price list and bidder’s 

catalog

Variable Frequency Drive (VFD)
Transformer



The evaluation of the three quotes received
concluded that Royal Industrial Solutions would
provide the best value to the Agency.

Quotes Evaluation Results

5

—Best Value
• Past performance, cost, experience, references, 

and competitive pricing
—Contract term: 5 years

• Two years with fixed price
• Three one-year options to extend with 

Consumer Price Index increases
—Experience with IEUA

• Current service provider since 1993
• Authorized distributor for Allen Bradly product 

line
• Staff is satisfied with their support

Motor Control Center (MCC)



• Approve Contract No. 4600003232 for a five-year contract (two-year firm fixed price with 
three, one-year options to extend) for the not-to-exceed amount of $1,000,000 to Royal 
Industrial Solutions for the purchase of electrical parts and supplies; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract. 

Staff’s Recommendation 

6

The Agency’s Electrical Parts and Supplies Contract is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal and Wastewater Management, 
specifically the Asset Management objectives, that IEUA will ensure the regional sewer system and treatment facilities are well 

maintained, upgrades to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use. 



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 1 of 10 

01/17/2023 

 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600003232 
FOR 

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND OPERATIONS (MRO) ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 
 
THIS CONTRACT (the "Contract"), is made and entered into this ______________ day 
of _________________, 2023, by and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a 
Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of San Bernardino under 
and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter interchangeably referred 
to as "Agency" or “IEUA”), and Royal Industrial Solutions, located in Riverside, California 
(hereinafter referred to as "Supplier"), for the procurement of maintenance, repair, and 
operations (MRO) electrical parts and supplies. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 
  
1. AGENCY PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT:  All technical direction related to 

this Contract shall come from the designated Project Manager.  Details of the 
Agency's assignment are listed below. 

 
 Project Manager: Jon Florio 
 Company Name: Inland Empire Utilities Agency  
 Address: 6075 Kimball Avenue 
  Chino, CA   91708 
 Telephone: 909-993-1861 
 Direct: 909-315-9357 
 Email: jflorio@ieua.org  
    
2. SUPPLIER ASSIGNMENT:  Special inquiries related to this Contract and the 

effects of this Contract shall be referred to the following: 
 
 Supplier: Gary Yost  
 Company Name: Royal Industrial Solutions 
 Address: 3200 Russell Street 
  Riverside, CA 92501 
 Telephone: 951-683-6625 
 Facsimile: 951-787-9883 
 Email: gyost@royal-ie.com  
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6

mailto:jflorio@ieua.org
mailto:gyost@royal-ie.com


 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 2 of 10 

01/17/2023 

3. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE:  The documents referenced below represent the 
Contract Documents. Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and 
Conditions the governing order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 
A. Amendments to Contract Number 4600003232  
B. Contract Number 4600003232 General Terms and Conditions. 
C. Agency’s Request for Quote Number RFQ-VC-22-002, Exhibit A. 
D. Supplier’s quote dated, November 3, 2022, Exhibit B. 

 
4. SUPPLY OF PRODUCTS/SPECIFICATIONS: Supplier services and 

responsibilities shall include and be in accordance with the following:   
 

A. Delivery Requirements: 
 
1. Provide miscellaneous electrical parts and supplies to the Agency on an 

“as-needed” basis in accordance with Exhibit B. 
 

2. Provide miscellaneous electrical parts and supplies as required. Agency 
staff may elect to will-call items at Supplier’s local facility, of if delivery is 
required, Supplier will deliver to the following location: 

 
  Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
  Warehouse 
  2662 E. Walnut Avenue 
  Ontario, CA 91761 
 
3. Each delivery will include a packing slip with: 

a. Supplier name 
b. Requestor’s name 
c. Contract number 
d. Date of purchase 
e. Quantity 
f. Unit price 
g. Extension for each item 

 
4. Unless a longer lead time is required, all deliveries must be made the 

same day wherever possible or within 24 hours. 
 

5. There will be no charge for delivery, all orders will be shipped FOB 
Destination, and no fuel charge, or any other additional charges will apply. 

 
5. TERM: The initial term of this contract is for two (2) years beginning March 15, 

2023, through April 30, 2025, with fixed pricing. Additionally, the Supplier shall 
agree to allow the Agency, at the Agency’s sole discretion, to extend this contract 
up to three (3) one-year periods for a total aggregate contract term of five (5) years. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 3 of 10 

01/17/2023 

6. PAYMENT, INVOICING, AND COMPENSATION:   
 

A. Supplier shall submit one invoice upon the delivery of the equipment. Agency 
shall pay Supplier's properly executed invoice, approved by the Project 
Manager, within thirty (30) days following receipt of the invoice.  

 
B. Total contract NOT-TO-EXCEED $1,000,000 for all services satisfactorily 

provided during the term of this Contract. 
 
C. Additionally, to qualify for payment, the Supplier shall prominently display, on 

the first page of the invoice, both: 
 

1. The Contract Number – 4600003232, and 

2. The Contract Release Purchase Order Number – 4500041775 

3. Supplier must accept payment electronically by Automated Clearing House 
(ACH) and provide Bank Routing information on ACH form provided by 
Agency 

 
The preferred method of receiving invoices is electronic. The Supplier should 
submit invoices by email & such invoices shall be submitted as follows: 

 
APGroup@ieua.org  

 
D. Concurrent with the submittal of the original invoice to the Agency’s Accounts 

Payable Department, the Supplier shall forward via email a copy of the invoice 
to the designated Project Manager, identified in Section 1, on Page 1 of this 
Contract. 

 
E. No Additional Compensation: Nothing set forth in this Contract shall be 

interpreted to require payment by Agency to Supplier of any compensation 
specifically for the assignments and assurances required by the Contract, other 
than the payment of expenses as may be actually incurred by Supplier in 
complying with this Contract, as approved by the Project Manager. 

 
F. Supplier may request taking advantage of the Agency’s practice of offering an 

expedited payment protocol to a Supplier who has proposed accepting an 
invoice amount reduction in exchange for early payment.  The Supplier may 
offer and the Agency may accept, applying a (1%, 2%, or 5%) discount (invoice 
amount reduction) to a Supplier’s invoice in exchange for payment of such 
invoice within (20, 15, or 10) days, respectively, of the date the invoice is 
received at the Agency’s APGroup@ieua.org email address. 

 
7. PRICE ADJUSTMENT: In the event the Agency exercises any of the Contract 

extensions provided for in Section 5 above, pricing for said extension shall be 
calculated as follows: 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6

mailto:APGroup@ieua.org
mailto:APGroup@ieua.org


 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 4 of 10 

01/17/2023 

Commencing on March 1, 2025, and continuing each March 1st thereafter, those 
prices provided may be adjusted plus or minus by a sum equal to the percentage 
change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban Consumers, in the Los 
Angeles-Riverside-Orange County(s), California index area as provided for in this 
section.  The basis for computing the adjustment to those prices provided shall be 
the percentage change for the twelve-month period from January to January, 
starting with the period of January 2024 to January 2025, and continuing every 
twelve months thereafter.  
 
Despite any changes in the CPI-U for any given twelve-month adjustment period, 
adjustments to the prices provided in the Proposal Rate/Fee Schedule shall not 
increase or decrease more than five (5) percent during any single twelve-month 
adjustment period. 
 
In the event the CPI is changed so that the base period differs from 1967=100, 
then the index applied as provided for above shall be corrected in accordance with 
the conversion factor published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau 
of Labor Statistics, or their successor.  If the CPI is discontinued or revised, such 
other governmental index or computation with which it is replaced shall be used in 
order to obtain substantially the same result as would have been obtained if the 
CPI had not been discontinued or revised. 
 
Price adjustment requests must be submitted in writing to the Project Manager 
prior to the contract renewal date for review and approval. 
 

8. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

A. Professional Responsibility: The Supplier shall be responsible to the level of 
competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals performing 
the same or similar type of service. 

 
B. Status of Supplier:  The Supplier is retained as an independent Supplier only, 

for the sole purpose of providing the services described herein and is not an 
employee of the Agency. 

 
C. Observing Laws and Ordinances:  The Supplier shall keep itself fully informed 

of all existing and future state and federal laws and all county and city 
ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of any 
services or tasks performed under this Contract, and of all such orders and 
decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the 
same.  The Supplier shall at all times observe and comply with all such existing 
and future laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and decrees, and shall protect 
and indemnify, as required herein, the Agency, its officers, employees and 
agents against any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any 
such law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by the Supplier, its 
employees, or subcontractors. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 5 of 10 

01/17/2023 

 
D. Grant/Loan Funded Projects: This project Is Not grant-funded. [For 

Federal/State grant/loan-funded projects, the Supplier shall be responsible to 
comply with all grant requirements related to the Project. These may include 
but shall not be limited to: Davis-Bacon Act, Endangered Species Act, 
Executive Order 11246 (Affirmative Action Requirements), Equal Opportunity, 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Requirements, Competitive 
Solicitation, Record Retention and Public Access to Records, and Labor 
Compliance and Compliance Review. Federal funds have additional 
requirements. See Exhibit B] 

 
E. Conflict of Interest:  No official of the Agency, who is authorized in such capacity 

and on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept, or approve, or to take 
part in negotiating, making, accepting, or approving this Contract, or any 
subcontract relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to this 
Contract, shall become directly or indirectly personally interested in this 
Contract. 

 
F. Equal Opportunity and Unlawful Discrimination:  During the performance of this 

Contract, the Supplier shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee 
or employment applicant because of race, color, religion, sex, age, marital 
status, ancestry, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, veteran 
status, or national origin. The Agency is committed to creating and maintaining 
an environment free from harassment and discrimination. 

 
G. Warranty: Supplier represents and warrants that the equipment shall be 

adequate to serve the purposes described in the Contract. For a period of two 
years, per the Request for Quote, Supplier shall, at no additional cost to the 
Agency, correct any and all errors in and shortcomings of the equipment, 
regardless of whether any such errors or shortcomings is brought to the 
attention of Supplier by Agency, or any other person or entity. Supplier shall 
within three (3) calendar days, correct any error or shortcoming that renders 
the equipment dysfunctional or unusable and shall correct other errors within 
thirty (30) calendar days after Supplier’s receipt of notice of the error.  Upon 
request of Agency, Supplier shall correct any such error deemed important by 
Agency in its sole discretion to Agency's continued use of the equipment within 
seven (7) calendar days after Supplier’s receipt of notice of the error. If the 
Project Manager rejects all or any part of the equipment as unacceptable and 
agreement to correct such equipment cannot be reached without modification 
to the Contract, Supplier shall notify the Project Manager, in writing, detailing 
the dispute and reason for the Supplier’s position. Any dispute that cannot be 
resolved between the Project Manager and Supplier shall be resolved in 
accordance with the provisions of this Contract. The Supplier’s liability, with 
respect to any claims arising out of the equipment and the Supplier, shall bear 
no liability whatsoever for any consequential loss, injury or damage incurred by 
the Agency, including but not limited to, claims for loss of use, loss of profits 
and loss of markets. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 6 of 10 

01/17/2023 

H. Disputes: 
 

1. All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be resolved in 
accordance with this section.  The Supplier shall pursue replacement of the 
equipment in accordance with the instruction of the Agency's Project 
Manager notwithstanding the existence of a dispute.  By entering into this 
Contract, both parties are obligated, and hereby agree, to submit all 
disputes arising under or relating to the Contract which remain unresolved 
after the exhaustion of the procedures provided herein, to independent 
arbitration. Except as otherwise provided herein, arbitration shall be 
conducted under California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1280, et seq., 
or their successor. 

 
2. Any and all disputes during the dispute period shall be subject to resolution 

by the Agency’s Project Manager; and the Supplier shall comply, with the 
Agency Project Manager instructions.  If the Supplier is not satisfied with 
the resolution directed by the Agency Project Manager, they may file a 
written protest with the Agency Project Manager within seven (7) calendar 
days after receiving written directive of the Project Manager's decision.  
Failure by Supplier to file a written protest within seven (7) calendar days 
shall constitute waiver of protest, and acceptance of the Project Manager's 
resolution.  The Project Manager shall submit the Supplier's written protests 
to the General Manager, together with a copy of the Project Manager's 
written decision, for his or her consideration within seven (7) calendar days 
after receipt of the protest-related documents.  The General Manager shall 
make his or her determination with respect to each protest filed with the 
Project Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the protest-
related documents.  If Supplier is not satisfied with any such resolution by 
the General Manager, they may file a written request for arbitration with the 
Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving written 
notice of the General Manager's decision. 

 
3. In the event of arbitration, the parties to this contract agree that there shall 

be a single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following manner: 
 

a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a list of five names of persons 
acceptable to the Supplier to be appointed as Arbitrator. The Agency 
shall determine if any of the names submitted by Supplier are acceptable 
and, if so, such person will be designated as Arbitrator. 
 

b. In the event that none of the names submitted by Supplier are 
acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator selected in Step 
(a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall submit to Supplier a list of five 
names of persons acceptable to Agency for appointment as Arbitrator. 
The Supplier shall, in turn, have seven (7) calendar days in which to 
determine if one such person is acceptable. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 7 of 10 

01/17/2023 

c. If after Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually agree upon 
a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an Arbitrator shall be 
submitted to the San Bernardino County Superior Court pursuant to 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.6, or its successor.  The costs of 
arbitration, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, shall 
be recoverable by the party prevailing in the arbitration.  If this arbitration 
is appealed to a court pursuant to the procedure under California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 1294, et seq., or their successor, the costs of 
arbitration shall also include court costs associated with such appeals, 
including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees which shall be 
recoverable by the prevailing party. 

 
4. Association in Mediation/Arbitration:  The Agency may join the Supplier in 

mediation or arbitration commenced by a Supplier on the Project pursuant 
to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq.  Such association shall be 
initiated by written notice from the Agency's representative to the Supplier. 

 
9. INFRINGEMENT:  Supplier represents and warrants that the Training and 

Documentation shall be free of any claim of trade secret, trademark, trade name, 
copyright, or patent infringement or other violations of any Proprietary Rights of any 
person. 

 
Supplier shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless, Agency, its officers, directors, 
agents, employees, successors, assigns, servants, and volunteers free and 
harmless from any and all liability, damages, losses, claims, demands, actions, 
causes of action, and costs including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses to the 
extent of Supplier’s negligence for any claim that use of the Training or 
Documentation infringes upon any trade secret, trade mark, trade name, copyright, 
patent, or other Proprietary Rights. 

 
Supplier shall, at its expense and at Agency's option, refund any amount paid by 
Agency under the Contract, or exert its best efforts to procure for Agency the right to 
use the Training and Documentation, to replace or modify the Training and 
Documentation as approved by Agency so as to obviate any such claim of 
infringement, or to put up a satisfactory bond to permit Agency's continued use of the 
Training and Documentation.  

 
10. NOTICES:  Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, 

or by depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon 
fully prepaid, and addressed to the party at the address set forth below: 

 
     Agency: Warren T. Green 
  Manager of Contracts and Procurement 
 Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
 P.O. Box 9020 
 Chino Hills, CA 91709 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 8 of 10 

01/17/2023 

 
 Supplier: Gary Yost 
  Royal Industrial Solutions 
  3200 Russell Street 
  Riverside, CA 92501 
 
 Any notice given pursuant to this section shall be deemed effective in the case of 

personal delivery, upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment 
of deposit in the course of transmission through the United States Postal Service. 

 
11. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this 

Contract shall take effect to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the 
Supplier, and their respective successors and assigns. No assignment of the 
duties or benefits of the Supplier under this Contract may be assigned, transferred, 
or otherwise disposed of, without the prior written consent of the Agency; and any 
such purported or attempted assignment, transfer, or disposal without the prior 
written consent of the Agency shall be null, void, and of no legal effect whatsoever. 

 
12. PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY:  Information made available to the Agency may be 

subject to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et 
seq.)  The Agency’s use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.  
The Agency shall use its best efforts to notify Supplier of any requests for 
disclosure of any documents pertaining to this work. In the event of litigation 
concerning disclosure of information Supplier considers exempt from disclosure; 
(e.g., Trade Secret, Confidential, or Proprietary) Agency shall act as a stakeholder 
only, holding the information until otherwise ordered by a court or other legal 
process.  If Agency is required to defend an action arising out of a Public Records 
Act request for any of the information Supplier has marked “Confidential,” 
“Proprietary,” or “Trade Secret,” Supplier shall defend and indemnify Agency from 
all liability, damages, costs, and expenses, in any action or proceeding arising 
under the Public Records Act. 

 
13. RIGHT TO AUDIT:  The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all 

Supplier’s records related to the Work.  The option to review and/or audit may be 
exercised during the term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of 
the Contract, or at any time thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment 
has been made to the Supplier.  The Supplier shall make all records and related 
documentation available within three (3) working days after said records are 
requested by the Agency. 

 
14. INTEGRATION:  The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract made and 

entered into by and between the Agency and the Supplier as to those matters 
contained in this contract.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any 
force or effect with respect to those matters covered by the Contract Documents.  
This Contract may not be modified, altered, or amended except by written mutual 
agreement by the Agency and the Supplier. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 9 of 10 

01/17/2023 

15. GOVERNING LAW:  This Contract is to be governed by and constructed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, in the County of San 
Bernardino. 

 
16. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  The Agency reserves and has the right to 

immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written 
notice to the Supplier.  In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay 
Supplier for all authorized and Supplier-invoiced services up to the date of such 
termination, as approved by the Project Manager. 

 
17. CHANGES:  The Agency may, at any time, make changes to this Contract’s Scope 

of Work, including additions, reductions, and other alterations to any or all of the 
equipment.  However, such changes shall only be made via a written amendment 
to this Contract.  The Contract Price and Equipment shall be equitably adjusted, if 
required, to account for such changes and shall be set forth with the Contract 
Amendment. 

 
18. FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects 

of acts occurring beyond their control, e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters, 
etcetera. 

 
19. PARTICIPATING PUBLIC AGENCIES: RESERVED 
 
20. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:  There are no liquidated damages. 
 
21. NOTICE TO PROCEED:  No services shall be performed or provided under this 

Contract unless and until this document has been properly signed by all 
responsible parties and a notice to proceed has been issued to the Supplier by the 
Project Manager. 

 
22. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE CONTRACT:  The Signatories, below, each 

represent, warrant, and covenant that they have the full authority and right to enter 
into this Contract on behalf of the separate entities shown below. 

 
23. DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS:  The Parties to this Contract and the individuals 

named to facilitate the realization of its intent, with the execution of the Contract, 
authorize the delivery of documents via facsimile, via email, and via portable 
document format (PDF) and covenant agreement to be bound by such electronic 
versions. 
 
 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6



 

 

4600003232 (VC) Page 10 of 10 

01/17/2023 

 
The parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of the day and year written 
above. 
 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: ROYAL INDUSTRIAL SOLUTIONS: 
 (A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT) 

 
 
_______________________   ________ ________________________   ________ 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E. (Date) Gary Yost (Date) 
General Manager Account Manager 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6042FE3E-B459-42DA-AF04-DA488E02ECB6

2/27/2023



ACTION 
ITEM 

3A



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements Construction Contract Award

Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) has been in operation for close to 30 years. 
To remain in compliance the plant requires upgrades and major equipment replacement. In April 
2017, the Board awarded a consulting engineering services contract for the CCWRF Asset 
Management and Improvements, Project No. EN17006, to CDM Smith for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $3,631,892 to design the improvements.

On February 9, 2023, IEUA received five bids with Garney Pacific Construction being the 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder, with a bid price of $20,856,916.

Staff also recommends purchasing the current Lone Star aeration blower to provide the 
redundancy needed during blower replacement in an amount of $171,000 and approving a 
contract amendment to provide engineering services during construction to CDM Smith, for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $899,775, for continuity between the design and construction phases.

We also request a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,742,950 from 
$30,007,050 to $31,750,000 (6% increase) in the Regional Capital (10900) Fund.

1) Award a construction contract for the Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF)
Asset Management and Improvements to Garney Pacific Construction in the amount of
$20,856,916;
2) Approve a contract amendment to CDM Smith  for the not-to-exceed amount of $899,775,
increasing the contract from $3,326,339 to $4,226,114 (27% increase);
3) Approve the blower purchase in the amount of $171,000;
4) Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,742,950 to Project No.
EN17006 increasing the budget from $30,007,050 to $31,750,000 in the RC/10900 Fund; and
5) Authorize the General Manager to execute all the above subject to non-substantive changes.

EN17006/CCWRF Asset Management and Improvement Project

If approved, a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,742,950 will increase the
CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements, Project No. EN17006.00, budget from
$30,007,050 to $31,750,000 in the Regional Wastewater Capital Fund (10900) Fund.

1000 127105 10900 595000 EN17006

03/08/23
03/08/23

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The CCWRF Asset Management and Improvement Project is consistent with the Agency's 
Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Water Quality objective that IEUA 
will ensure that Agency systems' are planned, constructed, and managed to protect public health, 
the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

In June 2022, the Board of Directors approved the construction contract for the CCWRF 12kV
Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements, Project No. EN17006.01, to Southern
Contracting Co. in the amount of $1,027,480.
In April 2017, the Board of Directors approved the consulting engineering services contract for
CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements, Project No. EN17006, to CDM Smith for the
not-to-exceed amount of $3,631,892.

The Facilities Master Plan Program Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2016061064) as
the appropriate CEQA environmental determination for the project improvements under the
CCWRF Facility Asset Management and Improvement Projects, EN17006.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint Presentation 
Attachment 3 - Construction Contract
Attachment 4 - Contract Amendment to CDM Smith (Click to Download) 

Addendum to

23044

https://www.dropbox.com/s/q4q1x5v9xxlyas7/CDM%20Smith%20Contract%20Amendment%204600002299-011.pdf?dl=0


Attachment 1 



 
   Page 1 of 1 

  
 
 

Background 
Subject: CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements Construction Contract Award 
  
Executive Summary: 
 
Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) has been in operation for close to 30 years 
with limited repair and rehabilitation work performed. To remain in compliance and continue 
meeting title 22 requirements, the plant requires several overhaul services, including major 
equipment replacement. Specifically, the headworks bar screens and conveyance system, odor 
control system, aeration blowers and controls, and tertiary filter components need improvement. 
In April 2017, the Board awarded a consulting engineering services contract for the CCWRF 
Asset Management and Improvements, Project No. EN17006, to CDM Smith for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $3,631,892 to prepare plans and specifications for the improvements identified above. 
 
On February 9, 2023, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) received five construction bids 
from pre-qualified contractors. Garney Pacific Construction was the lowest responsive, 
responsible bidder, with a bid price of $20,856,916 (engineer’s estimate of $25,500,000). The 
construction contract award was unanimously recommended for IEUA Board approval by the 
Regional Technical and Policy Committees. 
 
Staff is also recommending purchasing the Lone Star aeration blower already at CCWRF to 
provide the redundancy during the replacement of aeration blowers. Further, staff recommends a 
contract amendment to provide engineering services during construction to CDM Smith, for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $899,775, for continuity between the design and construction phases.  
 
Due to added scope items brought up by O&M during the design of the project, IEUA will be 
requesting an augmentation of the total project budget in the amount of $1,742,950 from 
$30,007,050 to $31,750,000 (6% increase) in the Regional Capital (10900) Fund. 
 
 Staff's Recommendation: 
 

1) Award a construction contract for the Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) 
Asset Management and Improvements, Project No. EN17006, to Garney Pacific 
Construction in the amount of $20,856,916; 

2) Approve a contract amendment to CDM Smith for Engineering Services During 
Construction for the not-to-exceed amount of $899,775, increasing the contract from 
$3,326,339 to $4,226,114 (27% increase); 

3) Approve the Lone Star Blower Purchase in the amount of $171,000; 
4) Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,742,950 to Project No. 

EN17006 increasing the budget from $30,007,050 to $31,750,000 in the RC/10900 Fund; 
and 

5) Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract, contract amendment 
to CDM Smith, Lone Star Blower Purchase, and budget augmentation, subject to non-
substantive changes. 



 

 

Attachment 2 



Ryan Ward, EIT

Associate Engineer

March 2023

Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF)
Asset Management and Improvements

Construction Contract Award
Project No. EN17006.00



Project Location

Carbon Canyon 
Water Recycling 
Facility (CCWRF)

2



Project Scope

Replace equipment at the end of service life:
• Headworks Bar Screens
• Odor Control System
• New Electrical Building
• Aeration Blowers
• Aeration Basin Ammonia Analyzers
• Tertiary Treatment Filter Improvements

3



• November 15, 2022:  PlanetBids Solicitation Posted
—86 calendar days (57 working days)

• February 9, 2023: Five bids were received from pre-qualified contractors
• Garney Pacific Construction: Lowest responsive, responsible bidder

Contractor Selection

Bidder’s Name Final Bid Amount
Garney Pacific Construction $20,856,916
Innovative Construction Solutions $21,049,000
J.F. Shea Construction Inc. $23,165,742
Kiewit Infrastructure West Company $24,657,000
Flatiron West, Inc. $25,610,742

Engineer’s Estimate $25,500,000

4



Description Estimated Cost
Design Services $4,919,708 

Design Contract (CDM Smith) $3,326,339 
IEUA Design Services $1,593,369 

Construction Services $2,174,775 
CDM Smith Engineering Services During 
Construction (this action) $899,775 
IEUA Construction Services (~5%) $1,275,000 

Construction $24,584,530 
Construction Contract (this action) $20,856,916 
Contingency (~10%) $2,100,000 
Lone Star Blower Purchase (this action) $171,000 
EN17006.01 CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements $1,456,614 

Total Project Cost $31,679,013 
Total Projected Budget $30,007,050 
Total Project Budget Increase (this action)* $1,742,950 
Revised Total Project Budget $31,750,000 

Project Budget and Schedule

Contract Milestone Date

Construction Award March 2023
Construction Completion September 2025

*Budget increase from Regional Wastewater Capital Fund (10900) 5



Staff’s Recommendation
• Award a construction contract for the Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) Asset 

Management and Improvements, Project No. EN17006.00, to Garney Pacific Construction in the 
amount of $20,856,916;

• Approve a contract amendment to CDM Smith for Engineering Services During Construction for the 
not-to-exceed amount of $899,775, increasing the contract from $3,326,339 to $4,226,114 (27% 
increase);

• Approve the Lone Star Blower Purchase in the amount of $171,000;

• Approve a total project budget augmentation in the amount of $1,742,950 to Project No. EN17006.00, 
increasing the budget from $30,007,050 to $31,750,000 in the RC/10900 Fund; and 

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the construction contract, contract amendment to CDM 
Smith, Lone Star Blower Purchase, and budget augmentation, subject to non-substantive changes.

The Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) Asset Management and Improvement Project is consistent with IEUA’s 
Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management objective that IEUA will ensure the Wastewater 

treatment plants are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate 
changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

6



 

 

Attachment 3 



 

Page 1 of 4 
CONTRACT  
CCWRF ASSET MANAGEMENT AND   
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.00 

460000xxxx 
Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility (CCWRF) Asset Management and 

Improvements Project, EN17006.00 
CONTRACT 

 
THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this 15th day of__March___, 2023, by and 
between ____Garney Pacific, Inc._________________, hereinafter referred to as 
"CONTRACTOR," and The Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, 
located in San Bernardino County, California, hereinafter referred to as "IEUA". 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and 
exchanged, IEUA and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 
 
1. CONTRACTOR agrees to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner, all work 

required under the Bid Documents for CARBON CANYON WATER RECYCLING 
FACILITY (CCWRF) ASSET MANAGEMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, 
EN17006.00, in accordance with the Bid Documents, and to furnish at their own 
expense, all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services necessary, except such 
materials, equipment, and services as may be stipulated in said Bid Documents to be 
furnished by IEUA, and to do everything required by this Contract and the said Bid 
Documents. 

 
2. For furnishing all said labor, materials, equipment, tools, and services, furnishing and 

removing all plant, temporary structures, tools and equipment, and doing everything 
required by this Contract and said Bid Documents; also for all loss and damage arising 
out of the nature of the Work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any 
unforeseen difficulties which may arise during the prosecution of the Work until its 
acceptance by IEUA, and for all risks of every description connected with the Work; 
also for all expenses resulting from the suspension or discontinuance of Work, except 
as in the said Bid Documents are expressly stipulated to be borne by IEUA; and for 
completing the Work in accordance with the requirements of said Bid Documents, 
IEUA will pay and said CONTRACTOR shall receive, in full compensation therefore, 
the price(s) set forth in this Contract. 

 
3. That IEUA will pay the CONTRACTOR progress payments and the final payment, in 

accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, with warrants drawn on 
the appropriate fund or funds as required, at the prices bid in the Bidding and Contract 
Requirements, Section C - Bid Forms and accepted by IEUA, and set forth in this 
below. 

 
Total Bid Price $20,856,916.00 (Twenty Million Eight Hundred Fifty-Six Thousand 
Nine Hundred Sixteen Dollars and ____Zero_____________ Cents). 



 

Page 2 of 4 
CONTRACT  
CCWRF ASSET MANAGEMENT AND   
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.00 

4. IEUA hereby employs the CONTRACTOR to perform the Work according to the terms 
of this Contract for the above-mentioned price(s), and agrees to pay the same at the 
time, in the manner, and upon the conditions stipulated in the said Bid Documents; 
and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, 
and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein 
contained. 

 
5. The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms, Information Required of 

Bidder, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, CONTRACTOR’s License Declaration, 
Specifications, Drawings, all General Conditions, Special Conditions and all Project 
Requirements, and all Addenda issued by IEUA with respect to the foregoing prior to 
the opening of bids, are hereby incorporated in and made part of this Contract, as if 
fully set forth. 

 
6. The CONTRACTOR agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before the 

date to be specified in a written "Notice To Proceed" and to complete said Work to the 
satisfaction of IEUA nine hundred and thirteen (913) calendar days after award of the 
Contract. All Work shall be completed before final payment is made. 

 
7. Time is of the essence on this Contract. 
 
8. CONTRACTOR agrees that in case the Work is not completed before or upon the 

expiration of the Contract Time, damage will be sustained by IEUA, and that it is and 
will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which IEUA will sustain in the 
event and by reason of such delay, and it is therefore agreed that the CONTRACTOR 
shall pay to IEUA the amounts as set forth in General Conditions, Section C – 
Changes to the Contract for each day of delay, which shall be the period between the 
expiration of the Contract Time and the date of final acceptance by IEUA, as liquidated 
damages and not as a penalty.  It is further agreed that the amount stipulated for 
liquidated damages per day of delay is a reasonable estimate of the damages that 
would be sustained by IEUA, and the CONTRACTOR agrees to pay such liquidated 
damages as herein provided.  In case the liquidated damages are not paid, the 
CONTRACTOR agrees that IEUA may deduct the amount thereof from any money 
due or that may become due to the CONTRACTOR by progress payments or 
otherwise under the Contract, or if said amount is not sufficient, recover the total 
amount. 

 
9. In addition to the liquidated damages, which may be imposed if the CONTRACTOR 

fails to complete the Work within the time agreed upon, IEUA may also deduct from 
any sums due or to become due to the CONTRACTOR, penalties and fines for 
violations of applicable local, state, and federal law. 

 
10. That the CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance and require 

all subCONTRACTORs to carry Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the 
California Labor Code. 



 

Page 3 of 4 
CONTRACT  
CCWRF ASSET MANAGEMENT AND   
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT, EN17006.00 

11. That the CONTRACTOR shall have furnished, prior to execution of the Contract, two 
bonds approved by IEUA, one in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the 
Contract Price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the Work, and one in the 
amount of one hundred (100) percent of the Contract Price to guarantee payment of 
all claims for labor and materials furnished. 

 
12. The CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold IEUA and 

its employees, Engineer, agents, officers, directors, servants and volunteers free and 
harmless from any and all liability, claims, judgments, costs and demands, including 
demands arising from injuries or death of persons (including employees of IEUA and 
the CONTRACTOR) and damage to property, arising directly or indirectly out of the 
obligation herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by the 
CONTRACTOR, its employees agents, representatives or subCONTRACTORs 
under or in connection with this Contract to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
The CONTRACTOR further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, demands or suit at the sole expense of 
the CONTRACTOR. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The CONTRACTOR and the General Manager of Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency*, thereunto duly authorized, have caused the names of said 
parties to be affixed hereto, each in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

 
13. The CONTRACTOR, by signing the contract does swear under penalty of perjury that 

no more than one final unappeasable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against the CONTRACTOR within the immediately preceding two 
year period because of the CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with an order of a 
Federal court which orders the CONTRACTOR to comply with an order of the National 
Labor Relations Board (Public Contract Code 10296). 

 
 
 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency*                                Contractor 
San Bernardino County, California. 
 
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
 
 Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E.    Bill E. Williams 
 General Manager     President 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 



INFORMATION 
ITEM

4A 



Grants Semi-Annual Update

Ashley Womack
Grants & Government Affairs Officer

March 15, 2023



$56.4
$16.5

$67.2
$118.2

$10.1 $3.1

$20.7 $4.7

$25.7

$0.6 $7.2

$124.8

$152.3 $16.7

$316.4

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

Recycled Water Wastewater
Treatment

Groundwater
Management

Safe Drinking Water Water Conservation Renewable Energy

G
ra

nt
/L

oa
n 

Am
ou

nt
 ($

M
illi

on
s)

State Grant Federal Grant SRF Loan WIFIA Loan
2

Grant & Loan Funding Overview 

Executed Grants + Loans = $941M
Federal 
Loans

$316M
State 
Loans

$294M

State   
Grants

$272M
Federal 
Grants

$59M



3

Grant & Loan Funding Overview 

*Does not include WSIP funding

Funding Agencies for IEUA’s Current 
Agreements and Applications

IEUA Grant/Loan Awards 
since 2000

Completed Projects Open/Active Projects
Awarded, In Negotiation

Open/Active
Projects
$525M

Awarded, In
Negotiation
$29M

Completed
Projects
$417M



• Working with CBP team to track and forecast funding opportunities
—Tracking legislation with advocacy partners to identify upcoming water 

infrastructure funding
—Flexible strategies to align CBP components with opportunities

4

Chino Basin Program (CBP) 
Applications Submitted 

Grant/Loan Program 
Name

Project Name Grant Application 
Amount

Loan Application 
Amount

FEMA Building Resilient 
Infrastructure & 
Communities 

BRIC 2022 Inland Empire 
Recycled Water Intertie 
and Aquifer Storage 
Project

$43,500,000

USBR Water Recycling 
and Desalination Planning 
Grant Program

Chino Basin Advanced 
Treated Recycled Water, 
Storage, and Production 

$2.8M

CA Clean Water State 
Revolving Fund (CWSRF)

Recycled Water 
Interconnection to the City 
of Rialto 

$65,000,000



• Other Funding Opportunities in Progress:
—USBR Water Recycling and Desalination Program –

Construction
• Feasibility Study updates to be submitted in March
• Anticipating the Notice of Funding Opportunity to be released 

in Spring 2023
—Community Project Request through Federal Delegation

• Injection and Monitoring Well Pilot
—EPA WIFIA for the entire CBP
—Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

• Advanced Treatment and Injection Wells
—CA State Water Resources Control Board – Recycled 

Water Program
—Governor’s Office of Planning and Research: Integrated 

Climate Adaption and Resiliency Program

5

Chino Basin Program (CBP) Funding



Awards:
• CA Department of Parks & Recreation

—Awarded $200,000 for the External & Government Affairs’ Department’s Discover the 
Environment and Water: An Education Program 

Applications Submitted:
• CA Department of Water Resources: Urban Community Drought Relief Program

—Requesting $15 million for the Turnkey Turf Transformation Program

Other Funding Opportunities Being Pursued:
• Community Project Requests through Federal Delegation

—Energy Recovery Project at RP-1

6

Other Recent Grant Activity



7

Other Recent Grant Activity

IEUA and CBWCD Ribbon Cutting 1/19/2023 with President Tule



8

Questions?



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4B 



Jason Marseilles, PE
Manager of Engineering & Construction Management

March 2023

Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates



Project 
Location

Map

2



NRWS Manhole & Collection Systems Upgrades FY22/23
Project Goal: Rehabilitate/Repair Existing Assets

Original Manhole Lid

3

Total Project Budget: $700k
Project Completion: June 2023

Construction Percent Complete: 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Biesiada, Josh

Assistant/Associate 
Engineer:

Trott, Megan

Administrative Assistant: Answer Advisory

Inspector: GK and Associates

Phase Contractor Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Construction
(Current) Norstar $413k 0%



4

RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building 
Project Goal: Increased Reliability

Total Project Budget: $1.4M
Project Completion: December 2024

Design Complete: 60%

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design Kennedy Jenks $212k 95%

Construction TBD $0 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Cayatte, Pierre

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Nhothsavath, Cathy

Administrative Assistant: Answer Advisory

Inspector: TBD

4

Blowers



RP-1 New Parking Lot 
Project Goal: Expand Capacity

5

Total Project Budget: $1.2M
Project Completion: August 2024

Design Percent Complete: 5%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Poeske, Matt

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Burns & McDonnel

Administrative Assistant: Guthrie, Rosalind

Inspector: TBD

Phase Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design
(Current) Bucknam $424k 0%

Construction TBD $0 0%

RP-1 Parking Lot



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4C 



Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Review of Pay Estimate Processes

IA completed the Review of Pay Estimate Processes. This audit was completed as part to the
comprehensive Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit. The scope of the
review was to evaluate the various steps to process Pay Estimates. Pay Estimates are monthly
progress payments for work completed on capital construction projects. Additionally, the scope
of the review was to identify areas of non-compliance or inefficiencies and propose
recommendations to make the overall process more efficient.
IA reviewed the most recent 18 month period, July 2021-December 2022. During this period,
the Agency paid over 240 Pay Estimates, totaling over $170 million. IA identified several
observations related to: improving efficiencies utilizing the various software tools to ensure
information is accurately calculated, uploaded and processed with the tools available.
Additional observations were related to the need to eliminate duplication of efforts, minimize
the number of copies with the same information and utilize reports and tools from SAP instead
on creating and relying on non-secured, manually created spreadsheets. Additional controls are
needed to safeguard data, improve supervisory review and approval of payment data before it is
submitted to Finance, and develop or update policies and procedures for the many activities. The
report attached provides details of the audit observations and the 27 audit recommendations.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

03/15/23Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Review of Pay Estimate Processes is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA's
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and
objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit, which includes Pay Estimates.

Attachment 1 - Review of Pay Estimate Processes
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23053



 
 

 

DATE:   February 27, 2023 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 
 

 
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Review of Pay Estimate Processes 
 
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Unit (IA) has 
performed an audit of the processes related to Pay Estimates. The audit was performed 
under the authority given by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-
2023 Annual Audit Plan and IA’s Charter. 
 
Audit Objectives and Scope 
The objective of the Review of Pay Estimate Processes was to evaluate the various steps 
taken to process Pay Estimates for timely payment.  The purpose was to evaluate that 
the Engineering and Finance departments have sufficient internal controls in place to 
properly review, verify and approve the amounts billed by the contractors. Additionally, to 
evaluate whether processes for payment are streamlined, follow Agency policies and 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). Lastly, to identify opportunities for efficiencies 
and improvement.     
 
The audit objectives were to:  

• Evaluate the Pay Estimate processes, including invoice submission, review 
receiving procedures and payment processing  

• Determine if Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) are established and followed 

• Evaluate internal controls  

• Evaluate the timeliness and efficiency of payments  

• Evaluate the use of technology and reporting tools 

• Evaluate the reasons why Accounts Payable staff must set aside an entire 
business week  to process Pay Estimates and delay all other types of payments 

• Identify opportunities to make processes efficient  

• Identify opportunities for improvements 
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 28 
 

 
 

IA is performing the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit in multiple 
phases. To-date, IA has issued the following audit reports:  
 

• Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit 
(dated August 20, 2021) This comprehensive report evaluated invoice and 
payment data and metrics, including the total number of invoices paid on time or 
late and the number of days invoices were paid after the due date, along with other 
analysis of financial information.  

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals (dated November 24, 2021) This report 
evaluated the Procure to Pay Processes for the Agency’s chemicals (from ordering 
to payments). IA provided 35 audit recommendations to: Operations & 
Maintenance, the Accounting and Contracts and Procurement (CAP) units of the 
Finance Department.  

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report - Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction 
Management (dated February 24, 2022) This report evaluated the Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional Services as administered by the Engineering & 
Construction Management (E&CM) unit, specifically the Master Contracts or 
Design Contracts. IA provided 21 recommendations to: E&CM, CAP, and the 
Accounting Unit.  
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Planning and Resources (dated May 25, 2022) This 
report evaluated the Procure to Pay Processes related to Professional Services 
administered by Planning and Resources. IA provided 11 recommendations to: 
Planning and Resources, CAP, and the Accounting Unit. 
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Home Depot (dated September 1, 2022) This report 
evaluated the Procure to Pay Processes related to Home Depot Credit Cards. IA 
provided 7 recommendations to: CAP, Accounting, and all departments using 
Home Depot Credit Cards. 
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of 
Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies (dated December 5, 2022) 
This report evaluated the Procure to Pay Processes related to Materials and 
Supplies. IA provided 19 recommendations to: CAP, Facilities and Water System 
Programs, Operations, Maintenance, Warehouse, Water Quality Laboratory, 
Accounting, and the Procurement Card Administrator. 

 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 3 of 28 
 

 
 

Quarterly progress reports are submitted to the Audit Committee to report on the 
implementation status of all P2P recommendations. To-date 120 recommendations have 
been provided.  
 
Audit Techniques Applied 

• Interviews of Agency staff 

• Review of Agency policies and procedures 

• Review of department Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 

• Analysis of financial transactions  

• Review of supporting documents 
 

Audit Results – Executive Summary 
As of February 2023, IA has provided 120 recommendations through seven (7) Procure 
to Pay (P2P) audits to improve the operational efficiencies and payment processes 
throughout the Agency. With the completion of each P2P audit, the Agency continues to 
evaluate and implement efficiencies to improve the day-to-day operations and processes. 
IA’s Review of Pay Estimate Processes is part of the P2P audits under the Accounts 
Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit. 
 
Pay Estimates or Progress Payments are monthly payments to a contractor for 
construction work that has been completed on a capital construction project. Pay 
Estimates are time-sensitive and require additional procedures to calculate the required 
retainer (which is the amount held until the project is completed). A “retention” is a fee or 
percentage of the monthly payment withheld from the contractor’s payment. Retainer 
funds are either held by IEUA or placed in an escrow account with a third-party (i.e., 
financial institution). Funds are returned to the contractor after the project has been 
completed and the Notice of Completion has been filed. 
 
Examples of current Agency construction projects, include: 
 

RP-5 Expansion Project  

RP-1 Flare Improvement project  

Philadelphia Lift Station Generator Upgrades  

RP-3 Diversion Structure  

Wineville Basin/Jurupa Basin/Force Main Project  

Bioassay Room Incubator Installation Contract 

 
The audit evaluated the most recent eighteen-month period June 2021 through December 
2022. During this 18-month period, Accounts Payable processed approximately 242 Pay 
Estimates, this was 11 to 18 per month, with an average of 13 Pay Estimates processed 
and paid per month. 
 
  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 4 of 28 
 

 
 

IA is providing 27 audit recommendations to improve Pay Estimate processes, 11 for 
Finance and 16 for Engineering. The report that follows provides details of IAs 
observations and recommendations related to Pay Estimates.  This audit report is 
organized as follows:  
 

• IA observations, findings, and recommendations 

• Narratives and flowcharts documenting the processes  

• Background information about Pay Estimates 

• Analysis of transactions selected and results of the detailed audit testing 
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to staff who assisted us during this review, 
including staff from the following units/departments: Engineering & Construction 
Management (E&CM), Finance (Accounts Payable and Budget), and Information 
Technology (IT).  The observations and recommendations in this report were shared with 
each of the respective units and departments between February 15, 2023, through 
February 23, 2023, their comments have been considered and where possible their 
responses have been incorporated. IA looks forward to the continued collaboration. 
 
The Review of Pay Estimates is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, 
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide 
recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work 
environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 
 
TV:sn:dp 

  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 5 of 28 
 

 
 

Observations and Recommendations 
Pay Estimates 

 
Pay Estimates are payments for progress completed for capital construction projects. Pay 
Estimate payments are governed by Public Contract Code §20104.50, which states that 
payments must be made Net 30. To ensure payments are made timely, Accounts Payable 
(AP) allocates all resources and staff time for an entire week (approximately the week 
when the 20th of each month happens or the 3rd week of the month) to process Pay 
Estimates. Payments for other types of goods and service are put on hold (unless they 
are considered urgent) and processed after all Pay Estimates have been processed.  
 
Delays and challenges in processing Pay Estimates are due to: 
 

• Finance cannot rely on the Pay Estimate Information submitted by Engineering.  
The information submitted from CIPO, Engineering’s project management system, 
will often have errors; therefore, AP must closely reconcile all information 
submitted using the many spreadsheets for each project. 
 

• There are no documented procedures or training provided for completing the 
receiving function in SAP and for processing Pay Estimates. 
 

• There are no documented or training provided for Engineering and Finance staff 
on the correct processes related to Pay Estimates, retentions, escrows and how 
to resolve issues when processing payments. 
 
 

Following is the matrix of IA’s observations and recommendations. IA identified 76 
recommendations 11 for Accounting and 16 for Engineering. The flowcharts that follow 
illustrate the steps involved in processing pay estimates. The financial information that 
follows summarizes IAs audit procedures applied to a selected sample of transactions 
and the results provide additional support for the observations identified.   
 
  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 6 of 28 
 

 
 

Internal Audit’s List of Observations and Recommendations 

 

Dept 
taking the 

lead to 
implement 

Observation, Issue, or Idea Recommendation 
Impact on revised/updated 

process with recommendation 
being implemented 

1 Accounting  

AP’s Multiple Excel Spreadsheets 

AP utilizes multiple excel spreadsheets to 
track and monitor Pay Estimate payment 
information for each construction project. 
The spreadsheets include a summary of the 
payments, retentions, escrows, and change 
orders. AP relies on the spreadsheets as a 
verification and reconciliation tool and as a 
method to keep information in a centralized 
location (i.e. year-to-date totals, contract 
balance, retention withheld). The 
information recorded in the excel 
spreadsheet is already entered SAP, the 
Agency’s ERP system, but according to AP, it 
not user friendly.  
 

As of February 7, 2023, the file folder 
located on the department’s shared drive 
has a total of 237 excel spreadsheets. The 
oldest excel file in the drive is 19 years old 
(last modified December 16, 2004).  There is 
a methodology for the filing system of the 
excel files, contractor name and project 
number, but this method may be inefficient 
when looking for a file (i.e., open, closed by 
fiscal year, archive files, etc.). Excel files 
follow the same naming convention – 
contractor name & project number.  AP 
agreed that the Pay Estimate folder on the 
department shared drive needs to be 
organized.  
 

Having to maintain and manage multiple 
excel spreadsheets has several risks 
including: time and resources to manage 
and organize, no protection to ensure files 
are not modified, moved, deleted, or 
corrupted. 
 

E&CM indicated they would like to have 
visibility to AP’s excel spreadsheets for 
verification and reconciliation prior to the 
release of retentions. Each time a retention 
release must be processed, E&CM Admin 
staff will request a copy of AP’s excel 
spreadsheet associated with the project. 

AP should take the lead to work with IT 
to determine if there are ways to 
eliminate the many excel spreadsheets 
with centralized report tools from SAP. 
Reports should assist with the review, 
tracking, reconciliation and monitoring of 
Pay Estimate payment information. The 
reports should include contract spending, 
retention/escrow funds including 
contractor information, contract balance, 
description/pay estimate number, gross 
invoice, net invoice, retentions/escrow 
withheld, year-to-date totals, etc.  SAP 
report tools should be available and 
visible to all staff that need the 
information.   

Leveraging the use of 
existing technologies or 
improving internal controls 
for the current process will 
ensure the process of 
tracking and managing Pay 
Estimate data is more 
efficient and the integrity 
of the information 
recorded.  
 
Developing & using 
electronic reports (in-lieu 
of spreadsheets), provides:  
- visibility & accessibility 

of the information 
- reduces email requests  
- reduces digital files that 

have to be managed 
- saves time, and  
- quicker/faster 

verification of the 
retention funds 
withheld  

 
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 7 of 28 
 

 
 

2 Accounting 

No Evidence of Supervisory Review 

IA observed there is no evidence of 
supervisory review on AP’s excel 
spreadsheets, which are utilized to process 
payments for Pay Estimates.  According to 
AP, supervisory review occurs when 
reviewing the supporting documentation for 
each Pay Estimate prior to payment. 
However, there is no supervisory review of 
the excel spreadsheets, which serves as the 
basis for all Pay Estimate payments.  

Determine a method or purpose for 
ensuring there is evidence of supervisory 
review on the spreadsheets to confirm 
that the information is up to date, 
accurate and reliable.  This internal 
control may not be necessary if reports 
are generated from SAP since payment 
information, retentions/escrows 
withheld are automatically and 
independently calculated in SAP. 
 
 

Supervisory review 
ensures there has been an 
independent check and 
verification of the payment 
amount and accuracy of 
the information recorded 
in the spreadsheet 

3 
Accounting 

and IT 

Potential Unauthorized Access to AP’s Excel 
Spreadsheets 

As of February 21, 2023, approximately 50 
or more staff members have access to the 
shared drive folder where AP’s Pay Estimate 
excel spreadsheets are kept. Staff that have 
access to this folder are in Accounting, 
Finance, Grants, and other 
units/departments.  

Accounting should take the lead to 
request from IT limited access to the 
shared drive folder where the excel 
spreadsheets for Pay Estimates are 
located. Including removing 
unauthorized users and deactivate users 
that are no longer with the Agency. 

Limiting the number of 
users preserves the 
integrity of the data.    

4 
Accounting, 
Engineering 

and IT 

CIPO- E&CM Excel-SAP-AP Excel -Esker 

During the audit and discussions with 
Finance and E&CM, it was discussed, the 
uses and needs of the various systems to 
process Pay Estimates: CIPO, Excel 
Spreadsheets, SAP, and possibly Esker. It 
may appear that there are inefficiencies in 
the use of the many systems.  These do not 
interface with each other and may appear to 
create duplication of data entry, risk of 
incorrect of information being uploaded, 
and not one centralized location of data to 
pull the reports necessary.  
 

CIPO is a cloud-based platform used by 
Engineering to record and track project-
related information. It does not interface 
with SAP. 
 

In SAP, there are 2 transaction codes utilized 
to process Pay Estimates:  
- MIRO – to enter and upload the Pay Estimate 
invoice information and to pull the receiving and 
match to the invoice and record the information 
in the financial module. (Finance to evaluate the 
possibility of eliminating receiving, which would 
eliminate MIRO). 
-F-51 – to withhold the retention amount from 
the payment that is being processed. Also, F-51 is 
also utilized to process any funds that are to be 

withheld in an escrow account with bank.  
 

Engineering, Finance, and IT should work 
together to explore possibilities of CIPO 
interfacing with SAP. 
 
 

If the systems can 
interface each other, CIPO 
with SAP, it will streamline 
processes and create 
efficiencies because there 
will be one centralized 
location for uploading the 
supporting documentation 
and this will eliminate the 
7-9 copies of the Pay 
Estimate, workflow 
through CIPO for approvals 
to eliminate the need for 
DocuSign, and possibly 
eliminate the many Excel 
spreadsheets maintained 
by AP.  
 
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 8 of 28 
 

 
 

Multiple Excel spreadsheets – details 
discussed under Observation 1. 
 

Esker, the new invoice recognition system 
used to upload, route, and monitor invoices. 
Interfaces with SAP. As of the date of this 
report, AP and E&CM have not decided on the 
possibility of using Esker for Pay Estimates.  
 

Having to use multiple systems to compile, 
record, track, calculate, monitor, and retain 
the information for Pay Estimates, can 
create inefficiencies, duplicate information 
and duplicate data entry. 

5 
Accounting, 
Engineering 

and IT 
See observation #4 above for details. 

Finance should take the lead to evaluate 
if there are ways to make SAP entries for 
Pay Estimates more efficient, currently 
there are two transactions codes that 
require processing, MIRO for the 
receiving and F-51 are for the retention. 
Determine if the receiving function in 
SAP is necessary or if there is a more 
efficient method that can be 
implemented to recognize the Pay 
Estimate liability in the Agency’s financial 
system. 

Reducing the number of 
SAP transaction codes 
utilized to process Pay 
Estimates provides time 
savings and reduces the 
number of SAP screens AP 
must navigate through to 
process and post the 
payment.  

6 
Accounting, 
Engineering 

and IT 
See observation #4 above for details. 

Finance should take the lead to evaluate 
reporting tools available in SAP to 
manage projects, contracts, contractor, 
etc. and eliminate the use and reliance 
on the many excel spreadsheets. 

Leveraging technologies 
reduces the reliance on 
manual excel spreadsheets 
(outside of SAP). 

7 
Accounting, 
Engineering

and IT 
See observation #4 above for details. 

Finance should take the lead to evaluate 
the possibility of using Esker to process 
Pay Estimates. 

Leveraging technologies 
provides greater visibility 
of pay estimate 
information to assist in 
managing invoices and 
transactions and avoids 
manual and duplicate 
entries.  

8 Accounting 

Pay Estimates saved in multiple locations 

There are a total of 9 copies of the Pay 
Estimate documentation saved in various 
locations throughout the Agency.  The Pay 
Estimate documentation can range from 4 
pages to up to 40 pages or more and 
contains the summary and details of the 
amounts billed from CIPO and saved in a 
PDF format.  Finance keeps 4 copies; 
Engineering keeps 5 copies.  
 

Finance Department should reevaluate 
the need to have 4 copies of the Pay 
Estimate saved in multiple locations 
(both inside and outside of SAP). Finance 
should work with IT and Records 
Management to determine the most 
efficient method for linking/interfacing 
the documentation and eliminate the 
need for multiple copies. 
 

Leveraging technologies 
and the integration of the 
various systems may 
reduce the number of 
copies that must retained 
and Pay Estimate 
information may be 
interlinked among the 
systems.  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 9 of 28 
 

 
 

Also, see observation # 4 above for details 
related to the possibility of interfacing 
systems to eliminate multiple copies. 
 

AP saves the Pay Estimate supporting 
documentation in the following locations:  

1) Pay Estimate documentation provided from E&CM is 
saved in the Finance Department’s shared drive (drive (G 
drive > FA > ACCT > AP staff folder)  

2) Pay Estimate documentation uploaded in SAP (MIRO) – 
updated with the document number assigned in the 
financial module  

3) Pay Estimate documentation uploaded in SAP (F-51) – 
updated with the document number assigned in the 
financial module (same as above, when uploaded to 
MIRO) 

4) Pay Estimate documentation is saved in the folder on the 
department shared drive (G drive > FA > ACCT > AP > 
Invoices Paid - ACH > Payment date > Organization) that 
serves as the backup for payments that are scheduled for 
that payment cycle.  

 

Saving the Pay Estimate information in 
multiple locations (SAP and network drives) 
has always been the business practice and 
can take time and resources. 

9 Accounting 

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 

Currently, there are no documented SOPs 
for the many activities to process Pay 
Estimates.  AP staff indicated that they 
currently have their own desk notes, these 
were not provided to IA for review, and 
these are not available to other staff or the 
supervisor. 

Finance should take the lead to 
document the many activities and 
procedures to process payments for Pay 
Estimates.  SOPs should include 
information for resolving issues or 
discrepancies. The SOP should contain 
the location where necessary 
information is saved, such as the project 
spreadsheets and other information. 

SOPs provide guidance to 
ensure procedures are 
consistent, are a training 
manual for employees and 
provide criteria to evaluate 
employee performance. 
SOPs should be documented 
once all the 
recommendations and 
changes have been 
implemented.  

10  Accounting  

On-going Training on Pay Estimates 

There is a need to provide on-going training 
to AP staff to ensure the processing of Pay 
Estimates is efficient and to ensure there is 
always a back-up person available to 
process. 

Finance should provide on-going training 
to all staff on the various accounting 
responsibilities, including processing Pay 
Estimates to ensure the processes are 
working as intended. 

Training should be done 
periodically after the SOPs 
have been documented 
and any new procedures 
have been incorporated. 

11 
Accounting, 
Engineering

and IT 

Evaluate improving the Pay Estimate Document 

Finance Management noted that there are 
opportunities to improve the Pay Estimate 
cover sheet (IEUA Construction Progress Pay 

Estimate Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment).  
 

This is a one-page form that displays the 
information and costs for both the one-
month period and the total contract amount 
(to-date). Due to the multiple pieces of 
information on the Pay Estimate, it can be 
confusing for staff that may need to review 
for processing and posting payments.  

Finance Management should take the 
lead to work with Engineering to 
evaluate if the Pay Estimate form 
requires improvements to ensure it 
serves as an effective communication 
tool for both departments about the 
payment information.  AP relies on the 
information on the Pay Estimate to 
process accounting transactions, 
ensuring the information is available, 
reliable, visible, and complete will 
improve efficiencies in processing 
payments, retentions, escrows, etc. 

Improve communications 
about the required 
accounting transactions 
and processes resulting 
from a Pay Estimate 
request.  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 10 of 28 
 

 
 

12 Engineering 

CIPO – Pay Estimate Payment Information 
Engineering’s Project Management Tool 
(CIPO) sometimes provides incorrect data 
when generating the financial information 
for Pay Estimates. According to Engineering 
staff, CIPO has very complicated formulas 
that are built into the platform, and when 
CIPO runs updates and patches, it creates 
errors in the formulas and calculations that 
result in the data being exported incorrectly. 
 

Per Engineering staff, in the 8-month period 
from July 2022 to mid-February 2023, there 
have been eight (8) support tickets 
submitted from IEUA staff to CIPO related to 
Pay Estimates related to issues about 
rounding errors, changes to units, 
discrepancies, renumbering, format, and 
others.  This equates to about one support 
ticket every month. Often, it is AP staff who 
identify the errors and issues (this is one 
reason why AP relies on the many 
spreadsheets). These are issues that require 
they be reviewed at the Project Manager 
level before sending to AP. These errors 
delay the processing of the Pay Estimates. 

Engineering Management should take 
the lead to evaluate the accuracy and 
reliability of using CIPO to ensure the 
system is the most effective tool to 
gather Pay Estimate information. Or 
work closely with IT to evaluate if there 
are modules or functions in SAP, the 
Agency’s ERP system, to upload Pay 
Estimate information.   
 
 
 

Determine if CIPO is the 
most effective tool for 
compiling Pay Estimate 
information or if SAP has 
tools that can be 
leveraged.  

13 Engineering 
See observation #13 above for details of 
observation and findings 

Engineering Management should work 
with CIPO to develop an ongoing process 
to test and verify the reliability of 
patches and updates to ensure CIPO has 
accurate formulas and calculations 
before relying on the data and 
submitting to AP for processing.  

Ensure CIPO delivers on 
product quality and ensure 
there are adequate 
controls that assure 
formulas and totals are 
accurate and can be relied 
on.  

14 Engineering 

Additional Controls and Training are needed to 
verify the accuracy of Pay Estimate data before 
submitting to AP 

Each month, prior to staff creating the Pay 
Estimate, there are 3 reviewers and 
approvers in CIPO:  Inspector, Project 
Manager and Contractor.    Additionally, 
when Pay Estimates are generated by admin 
staff there are 3 to up to 7 reviewers and 
approvers.  Even with this level of review 
and approval, there are errors on the Pay 
Estimates that Accounts Payable identifies 
and must be resolved by Engineering prior 
to processing the Pay Estimates.    
 

The responsibility of reviewing, verifying and 
approving payment information should be 
the responsibility of the department 

Engineering Management must 
implement additional internal controls to 
ensure there is adequate review, 
verification, and approval of the Pay 
Estimate information from the Project 
Managers and other reviewers and 
approvers prior to submitting to AP for 
payment, to ensure its accuracy and 
prevent delays in payment process. 

The responsibility of 
reviewing, verifying and 
approving payment 
information should be the 
responsibility of the 
department requesting 
payments, not of AP.  AP 
should have sufficient 
reliance on the 
information submitted and 
focus on processing the 
payment on time.  
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 11 of 28 
 

 
 

requesting payments, not of AP.  AP should 
have sufficient reliance on the information 
submitted and focus on processing the 
payment on time.  
 

Having incorrect data listed on the Pay 
Estimate supporting documentation and/or 
when the receiving function is performed 
incorrectly in SAP, both events, can impact 
and/or delay the processing of the Pay 
Estimates. 

15 Engineering 

Additional Controls and Training are needed to 
ensure the Receiving Function is performed 
accurately  

AP staff noted that there have been issues 
and delays resulting from the incorrect 
receiving function in SAP. When professional 
service invoices are received, staff are 
required to receive for the net total amount 
due, whereas for Pay Estimates, staff should 
receive for the gross invoice amount 
because SAP calculates the retention 
amount based on this total. E&CM staff 
agreed that training for their internal admin 
staff could be improved. Incorrect receiving 
delays the processing of the payments on 
Pay Estimates.  

Engineering Management must 
implement additional internal controls 
and provide staff training to ensure the 
Receiving function in SAP is performed 
correctly.  Additionally, there should be a 
process to review the receiving 
information entered by staff prior to 
information sent to AP, to ensure its 
accuracy and prevent delays in payment 
process. 

The responsibility of 
reviewing, verifying and 
approving payment 
information and that the 
receiving was done 
accurately should be the 
responsibility of the 
department requesting 
payments, not of AP.  AP 
should have sufficient 
reliance on the 
information submitted and 
focus on processing the 
payment on time.  
 

16 Engineering 

Multiple copies of the Pay Estimate Packets 
(possibly 7-9 copies of the Pay Estimate) 
For each Pay estimates, E&CM saves, 
attaches/uploads, and retains the Pay 
Estimate supporting documentation in 
multiple locations and/or systems, they are: 
CIPO, network/shared drives, SAP, and 
Laserfiche.  Saving the Pay Estimate 
documentation in multiple locations (SAP 
and network drives) has been the practice.  
 

As noted earlier in the report, between both 
AP and E&CM, the Pay Estimate 
documentation is saved at least 7-9 times. 
Each time the Pay Estimate documentation 
is saved, it may be the same as the original 
or updated with SAP processing information.  

Engineering Management should take 
the lead to reevaluate the processes for 
Pay Estimates and determine the need to 
have the Pay Estimate documentation 
saved/uploaded in multiple locations 
(both inside and outside of SAP).  If 
needed, work with IT and Records 
Management to determine the most 
efficient method for linking and/or 
interfacing the documentation and 
eliminate the need for multiple copies. 

Reducing the number of 
places/locations where the 
Pay Estimate 
documentation must be 
retained will eliminate 
duplicate copies of the 
same information 

17 Engineering 

Engineering Multiple Excel Spreadsheet(s) 

Engineering utilizes excel spreadsheets to 
summarize Pay Estimate information for 
each construction project. The spreadsheets 
summarize the following: contractor, project 
number, Pay Estimate number, Change 
Order number when applicable, amount 

Engineering should take the lead to work 
with IT and possibly Finance, to 
determine if there are ways to eliminate 
the reliance on excel spreadsheets with 
centralized reports from SAP or 
leveraging AP’s spreadsheets. Reports 
should assist with the review, tracking, 

Leveraging the use of 
existing technologies or 
improving internal controls 
for the current process will 
ensure the process of 
tracking and managing Pay 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 12 of 28 
 

 
 

received, SAP receiving information. Most of 
the information recorded in the excel 
spreadsheets is already entered in CIPO 
and/or SAP.  Engineering uses the 
spreadsheets to communicate the Pay 
Estimates and the details of each for the 
items that need to be processed for 
payment each month and to keep 
information in a centralized location.  

reconciliation and monitoring of Pay 
Estimate payment information. The 
reports should include the needed 
information that both departments rely 
on.  SAP report tools should be available 
and visible to all staff that need the 
information.   

Estimate data is more 
efficient.  

18 Engineering 

Pay Estimate Timeline: 20th of the month/3rd 
week of the month 

Engineering determines and sets the due 
dates for Pay Estimates. Currently, Pay 
Estimates are scheduled to be paid on the 
Thursday of the week of the 20th day of the 
month. This date/timeframe is listed in the 
project specification documents per E&CM. 
There is no governing document (i.e., code, 
Agency ordinance, regulation, policy) that 
supports why the 20th of the month was 
selected to process Pay Estimates. According 
to the PCC code, contractors are required to 
be paid the monthly progress payment 
within 30 days of presenting an invoice. For 
IEUA, invoices are uploaded by the 20th of 
the month are scheduled for payment on 
the 20th of the following month.  
 

To process Pay Estimates, Contractor’s 
upload the Schedule of Values (billable 
amounts)/invoice amounts on the 20th day 
of each month in CIPO, then it is reviewed 
and approved by Inspector and Project 
Manager. After the PM’s approval, the 
documentation is routed for approval via 
DocuSign to an additional 3-7 reviewers and 
approvers.  After all signatures are obtained, 
the receiving is performed in SAP by admin 
staff. Once all the Pay Estimates for the 
month have been compiled, E&CM Admin 
staff will provide this information to AP via 
spreadsheets and an email during the week 
prior to the 20th day of the month. AP must 
process all Pay Estimates scheduled for that 
month during the week of the 20th, which is 
approximately 3-4 business days.  
 
During discussions with both E&CM and AP, it 
was noted that E&CM utilizes on average 23-26 
days, while AP uses on average 3-5 days to 
process Pay Estimates.  

Engineering and AP should discuss and 
work together to determine if 
Accounting requires more time to 
process Pay Estimates. If AP requires 
more time, then Engineering should 
reevaluate its internal processes and 
determine if they can provide more time 
to AP to process Pay Estimates.  
Additionally, Engineering should work 
with Finance staff to determine if the 
20th of the month is the most effective 
date to process and Pay Estimate or if 
changes and efficiencies can be achieved 
by reevaluating internal processes to 
ensure all information is provided timely 
to AP. 

Reviewing and 
reevaluating processes and 
timelines to ensure these 
are efficient and meet 
requirements.  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 13 of 28 
 

 
 

19 Engineering 

Pay Estimate Signatures Criteria & Efficiency 

IA selected 18 Pay Estimates for testing and 
noted between 2-7 signatures are obtained 
on the Pay Estimate using DocuSign 
documentation, including the contractor, 
inspector, Project Manager (PM), Principal 
Engineer, Manager of Engineering, Director 
of Engineering, and Deputy General 
Manager.  These approvals are after 3 
approvals have already been obtained via 
workflows in CIPO (contractor, inspector, 
and PM).  
 

According to Engineering’s SOP, admin staff 
obtain the approval signatures per the 
approval authority on Agency Policy A-50 
(April 27, 2015).   
 

Agency Policy A-50 is currently applied by AP 
to verify approval and processing invoices.  
 

For Pay Estimates, A-50 requires the 
following: (see screenshot below) 
• Two signatures for invoices greater than 

$250,000 

• One signature for invoices less than or equal 
to $250,000 

• One signature for invoices less than or equal 
to $100,000  

 

  
*Invoices greater than $250,000 require 2 signatures  
 

There are several issues with this policy, IA 
has in the past provided recommendations 
to make needed updates:   
1) policy is outdated, effective April 2015  
2) the positions listed in Agency Policy A-50 
are outdated and need to be updated to 
coincide with the current organizational 
chart changes,  
3) it is not clear if all 5 signatures are 
required or only those signatures at the 
highest level  

Engineering Management should take 

the lead to evaluate internal controls for 

requiring multiple signatures on Pay 

Estimates. Engineering should follow 

their own SOP requirements and Agency 

Policy A-50 regarding approval authority 

and ensure only required signatures are 

obtained per the dollar threshold 

required.  Evaluate the costs and benefits 

of requiring 3-7 reviewers and signatures 

on each Pay Estimate and note that A-50 

does not have a requirement for the 

Agency’s GM to approve Pay Estimates.  

 

 

Ensure staff and processes 
follow the requirements of 
the Agency Policy for Pay 
Estimate approval 
authority. 
 
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 14 of 28 
 

 
 

20 Engineering See observation #19 above for details 

Engineering Management should take 

the lead to work with HR to update 

Agency Policy A-50 to ensure the 

required authority, reviews and 

approvals for Pay Estimates are 

documented in the policy.  Ensure the 

Agency’s practice meets the policy 

requirements to ensure internal controls 

are implemented and work as intended.  

The Policy requires updates to positions 

and threshold levels and dollar amounts.   

Updating the policy 
provides clarity on the 
number of signatures on 
the Pay Estimates 
documentation. 

21 
Engineering 

and AP 

Receiving function of Pay Estimates 

Engineering certifies the work performed by 
the contractor when: 

- providing their approval via workflows in 
CIPO,  

- providing their electronic signature on the 
Pay Estimate documentation via DocuSign, 
and  

- Admin staff perform the receiving function 
in SAP.   

 

IA observed there was a time delay between 
the PM’s approval and when the receiving 
function was performed in SAP. In 8 of the 
18 Pay Estimates tested, IA noted that 
receiving in SAP occurred over 10 days after 
the PM’s approval. For the 18 items tested, 
the number of days between the PM’s 
approval and the receiving in SAP ranged 
from 1 day to 26 days, with an average of 9 
days. (See attachment 1 for details) 

Engineering Management must 
implement additional internal controls 
and provide staff training to ensure the 
receiving function is completed timely 
and accurately.  Once additional 
recommendations and internal controls 
related to ensuring the accuracy of the 
information of Pay Estimates have been 
implemented, Engineering Management 
might want to evaluate implementing 
efficiencies and establishing the purpose 
for the receiving function in SAP.  
Because Pay Estimates and 
documentation are approved on multiple 
systems and by multiple approval levels, 
the receiving function may or may not be 
necessary to certify the payment is ready 
to be processed. At this time, the 
receiving function should be completed 
as soon as possible after the PM has 
approved to not delay the payment 
process.  

 
 
Implement internal 
controls and evaluate 
efficiency processes to 
ensure the receiving 
process is completed 
timely and does not delay 
the payments. 
 
 

22 
Engineering 

and AP 

Evaluate improving the Pay Estimate Document 

Finance Management noted that there are 
opportunities to improve the Pay Estimate 
cover sheet (IEUA Construction Progress Pay 

Estimate Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment).  
 

This is a one-page form that displays the 
information and costs for both the one-
month period and the total contract amount 
(to-date). Due to the multiple pieces of 
information on the Pay Estimate, it can be 
confusing for staff that may need to review 
for processing and posting payments. 

 
Engineering Management should take 
the lead to work with Finance to evaluate 
ways to improve the Pay Estimate form 
to ensure it serves as an effective 
communication tool for both 
departments about the payment 
information.  AP relies on the 
information on the Pay Estimate to 
process accounting transactions, 
ensuring the information is available, 
reliable, visible, and complete will 
improve efficiencies in processing 
payments, retentions, escrows, etc.  

Improve communications 
about the required 
accounting transactions 
and processes resulting 
from a Pay Estimate 
request.  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 15 of 28 
 

 
 

23 Engineering 

Delays due to the Contractor not uploading by 

the 20th of the month 

The Pay Estimate process begins once the 

Contractors upload the Schedule of Values 

(billable amounts). Ideally, this must be 

done by the 20th day of each month. This 

enables the approval process to begin.  
 

In the 15 of the 18 Pay Estimates tested, IA 
noted that the Schedule of Values were 
uploaded by the contractor, after the 20th 
day of each month, ranging between 2 days 
to 21 days after the required date, and an 
average of 8 days after the 20th of each 
month. If information is delayed in being 
uploaded, the review, approval, receiving, 
and payment processes are also delayed. 

Engineering should coordinate with the 
contractors to ensure the Schedule of 
Values are completed and uploaded into 
CIPO no later than the 20th of each 
month.  
 

 
If information is delayed in 
being uploaded, the 
review, approval, receiving 
and payment processes 
are also delayed. 
 
Ensuring the Schedule of 
Values is uploaded in a 
timely manner, allows 
Engineering sufficient time 
to review and approve for 
accuracy and resolve any 
issues or discrepancies.  

24 Engineering 

Net 30 & Public Contract Code (PCC) 
According to PCC §20104.5 (b), any local 
agency that fails to make a progress 
payment within 30 days after receipt of a 
payment request from a contractor on a 
construction contract shall pay the 
contractor interest. Therefore, for Pay 
Estimates, IEUA is required to pay the 
contractor within 30 days to comply with the 
Public Contract Code.  

IA selected a sample of 18 Pay Estimates and 
calculated the number of days it took to pay 
the Pay Estimate.  The audit found that of 
the 18 Pay Estimates tested, 13 were paid 
late, between 8 and 35 days late, an average 
of 4 days late. 

 
Engineering Management should take 
the lead to work with AP to tighten 
internal controls to ensure payments are 
made according to PCC rules, Net 30.  
See all recommendations provided in this 
report to improve processes and 
implement efficiencies to ensure the 
payments for the Pay Estimates are 
processed, reviewed, approved and 
received in SAP in a timely manner and 
provide AP sufficient time to reconcile 
and process payments, to ensure the 
Agency does not incur an interest and/or 
have to pay a contractor interest.  

Improving the Agency’s 
internal processes ensures 
compliance with the 
requirements of the PCC to 
ensure the Agency does 
not incur an interest 
and/or have to pay a 
contractor interest, E&CM 
should prioritize getting 
the documentation 
efficiently to AP and to 
provide AP enough time to 
process the payments in a 
timely manner.  
 

25 Engineering 

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for Stop 
Notices 

Currently, Engineering has SOP ENGCM-07, 

effective date: 9/30/2022. The current SOP 

needs to be updated or additional SOPs 

should be considered.  Specifically, the 

following should be addressed: guidance 

and processes for Stop Notices, currently 

there are no processes in case this event 

occurs. 

Engineering should review their SOP and 
include processes (step-by-step 
procedures) related to Stop Notices. 

SOPs should be reviewed 
and revised once all the 
recommendations and 
changes have been 
implemented, such as the 
invoice recognition system 
(Esker) has been 
implemented. 
 
SOPs provide value by 
documenting consistent 
procedures for employees 
to follow and be trained 
and evaluated on.  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 16 of 28 
 

 
 

26 Engineering 

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for 
the Receiving Function in SAP 
Currently, Engineering has SOP ENGCM-07, 

effective date: 9/30/2022. The current SOP 

needs to be updated to provide specific 

processes and detailed steps for the 

receiving in SAP.  For example, there is no 

information about the gross vs. net amounts 

that need to be received because the 

retention/escrow are calculated based on 

these amounts.  There are often errors and 

delays caused related to receiving in SAP 

specifically related to the gross amount vs. 

the net amounts the AP identify and must be 

resolved by E&CM. 

Engineering should document guidelines 
about processing the receiving for Pay 
Estimates, specifically providing 
guidelines and information about the 
dollar amounts to be received (gross vs. 
net) and the retention/escrow withheld.  

SOPs provide guidance to 
ensure procedures are 
consistent, are a training 
manual for employees and 
provide criteria to evaluate 
employee performance. 
SOPs should be 
documented once all the 
recommendations and 
changes have been 
implemented.  

27 Engineering 

On-going Training on Pay Estimates 
There is a need to provide on-going training 
to all Engineering staff to ensure the 
creating and processing of Pay Estimates is 
efficient to ensure all information is as 
accurate and complete and prepared to be 
processed for payment. Evaluate training 
available from CIPO and develop processes 
to accurately download Pay Estimate 
information, review information, receive in 
SAP, prior to submitting to AP for payment. 

Engineering should provide on-going 
training to all staff on the various Pay 
Estimate requirements and 
responsibilities; including carefully 
reviewing and comparing information 
from the schedule of values to the Pay 
Estimate, and ensure the receiving is 
done correctly to ensure the processes 
are working as intended and minimize 
delays to the payment processes and 
minimize AP’s review, reconciliation and 
involvement in verifying data.    

Training should be done 
periodically after the SOPs 
have been documented 
and any new procedures 
that have been 
incorporated. 

 

  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 17 of 28 
 

 
 

 
Invoice Payment Processes for Pay Estimates: 

IA attempted to confirm the process with Engineering & Construction Management, confirmation was not received.  

Below is a description of the process based on discussions and meetings.  

Pay Estimates are monthly progress payments for construction work that has been completed on capital projects.  

 

Engineering & Construction Management (E&CM)  

1) Once a project has been awarded to a contractor, E&CM sets up and records all the information related to the 

contract/project in CIPO Cloud® (Capital Improvement Program Office), which is a cloud-based 

construction project management software.  

2) E&CM provides the account access, log-in information, and password resets, as required to the contractor 

for CIPO Cloud®.  

3) Contractor submits the monthly Pay Estimate (invoice) and schedule update in CIPO Cloud®. 

4) Pay Estimates (invoices) are required to be uploaded by the 20th day of each month and is for construction 

work to be completed through the end of the month.  For example, Pay Estimates (invoices) submitted on 

January 20th, 2023, are for construction work completed through January 31st, 2023. 

5) After the Pay Estimates (invoices) have been upload into CIPO Cloud®, it goes through the review and 

approval process via workflow:  

a. Pay Estimate (invoice) is first reviewed for accuracy by the inspector and should be conducted within 

3 business days from the date of receipt. Agency has two (2) inspectors on staff and consultant 

inspectors, which review all information recorded in CIPO Cloud® and can approve or 

disagree/reject with the invoice. The following information is verified during the review process:  

i.  Invoice materials quantities matching the Daily Reports 

ii. If the work is performed on times-and-materials basis, verify that the submitted level of effort 

matches the Daily Reports 

iii. Invoice Unit Prices match the approved baseline Schedule of Values 

iv. Review the updated redlines drawings in the field  

b. If the inspector agrees with the Pay Estimate, then it is forwarded to the Project Manager (PM).  

c. If the inspector disagrees and/or additional information/clarification is required on the invoice, then 

inspector communicates the rejection to the contractor and waits until the information has been 

corrected on the invoice and re-uploaded into CIPO Cloud®. 

d. Once the invoice is approved by the inspector in CIPO Cloud®, a notification is generated via 

workflow.   

6) PM reviews the invoice:  

a. If PM disagrees and rejects the invoice, then is sent back to the inspector for further research and 

review with the contractor. 

b. Once the PM agrees with the invoice, then it is approved, and the PM will notify E&CM admin staff 

that the Pay Estimate is ready for further processing. 

7) E&CM admin staff receive notification when a Pay Estimate (invoice) has been approved in CIPO Cloud®. 

Additionally, E&CM admin staff will log into CIPO Cloud®, to see what invoices have been approved for 

their assigned projects.  

8) For approved Pay Estimates, E&CM admin staff will export and print Construction Progress Pay Estimate 

Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment form/checklist and any support documentation from CIPO Cloud®. 

9) E&CM admin staff will circulate the Construction Progress Pay Estimate Periodic Estimate for Partial 

Payment form/checklist and supporting documentation for review and approval via DocuSign® to the 

designated approvers. The number of approvals required is based on the payment dollar amount as defined 

by the Agency Policy A-50 (effective: April 27, 2015) and Procurement Ordinance Number 110 (adopted 

September 21, 2022). Pay Estimates require between 2 to 6 signatures.    



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 18 of 28 
 

 
 

10) DocuSign® provides email notification after the documents have been signed. 

11) After the approvals have been obtained, E&CM admin staff will save the Construction Progress Pay 

Estimate Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment form/checklist and supporting documentation in the 

corresponding project folder located on the department’s internal shared drive. 

12) E&CM admin staff perform the receiving in SAP (transaction code ML81N) and upload the 

attachment/backup in SAP (transaction code MIGO). 

13) E&CM admin staff will update their excel spreadsheet with the Pay Estimate receiving information and 

upload the approved/signed Pay Estimate into CIPO Cloud®. 

14) After all the Pay Estimates have been compiled and received, an email is sent to AP and Finance with the 

following information: a list of all the Pay Estimates that are scheduled to be paid for the month and a copy 

of each Pay Estimate with any supporting documentation (includes the receiving from SAP).                                                                                                            

Release of Retention Withheld (to be paid after 35 calendar days and no-Stop Notices have been received) 

15) After the project has been completed, the contractor files a Notice of Completion (NOC) with the County 

of San Bernardino. NOC is provided to the Agency.  

16) E&CM Admin staff request from AP staff the spreadsheet (created and utilized to track Pay Estimate 

information) for the associated project.  

17) E&CM Admin staff prepare the memo and obtain the approvals via DocuSign. 

18) After the approved memo and supporting documentation have been compiled, E&CM Admin staff will 

forward this information to Accounting Management to process the check to release of the retention funds 

that have been withheld to back to the contractor. 

Stop Notices  

19) Vendor/Subcontractor of the General Contractor files the Stop Notice with the County of San Bernardino, 

which is provided to the Agency. 

20) E&CM Admin staff coordinates and sends correspondence to the General Contractor to address the Stop 

Notice. If the issues are not resolved, then AP will hold onto the retention funds. If issues are resolved, then 

AP will process the release of the retention funds. 

 

 

Accounts Payable (AP) 

This narrative was shared with staff for review and confirmation, commends provided were incorporated. 

For Capital Construction projects, the invoices are not sent to AP, and thus, these invoices are not included in AP’s 

in-take processes.  

 

1) Starting point for processing the Pay Estimates is the monthly email that is sent by E&CM. The email includes 

a list/summary of the Pay Estimates to be processed for that month and copies of the Pay Estimates including 

any supporting documentation. 

 

Email-Pay Estimate-Excel Spreadsheet  

2) AP staff saves the Pay Estimate information that were provide via email to a folder on the department shared 

drive. 

3) AP staff opens the Pay Estimate that they have been assigned to process, and then navigates to the Accounting 

department’s shared drive to open the corresponding excel spreadsheet associated with that project number.  

• For each project number, AP has created an excel spreadsheet that contains information about the 

project, such as: contractor name and address, contract number, purchase order number, fund number, 

project number, project description, payment method, retention/escrow, contract amount, contract 

expiry date (number of contract days) and payment details.  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 19 of 28 
 

 
 

• For each individual Pay Estimate payment, AP staff records the payment date, description of the pay 

estimate, gross invoice amount, net invoice amount (payment), balance of contact, and retention 

withheld.  

 

4) AP staff inputs the pay estimate information into the excel spreadsheet, and performs the following when 

comparing both the excel spreadsheet and the Pay Estimate:  

a. Verifies the payment/dollar amount and Pay Estimate number 

b. Balances the pay estimate to the excel spreadsheet (which is used as the supporting documentation 

for Note 8 (Construction Commitments) in the Annual Financial Comprehensive Report  

c. Reviews the contract time summary and ensures the contract is current  

d. Reviews the totals, resolves any rounding differences, and ensures the dollar amounts agree to pay 

estimate information 

e. Matches the dollar amounts to the contract and general ledger 

f. Reviews if there are any change orders and ensures those are incorporated and recorded 

5) Next, AP reviews the pay estimate information for appropriate approval levels.  

 

SAP processing  

6) AP staff will enter in the invoice into SAP (transaction code: MIRO – Enter Incoming Invoice).  

• Pay Estimate invoices are not entered nor uploaded into the Invoice Held Feature (SAP transaction 

code: MIR6) in SAP because AP does not know the invoice exists until they receive the Pay 

Estimates from E&CM. Additionally, Pay Estimates do not have traditional invoice numbers 

assigned to them like other regular invoices that come into the Agency. 

7) Types of information entered into the fields in the various tabs in SAP, include: invoice receipt date, invoice 

date, posting date, (dollar) amount, reference number, text (description), header text, payment method and 

PO number/invoice party number. SAP will generate any open line items whereby receiving has been 

performed. 

8) Then, AP staff will select the transaction for processing, and the SAP system automatically verifies dollar 

amounts received with the pay estimate information inputted to ensure they are in balance. AP staff will 

research and resolve any issues identified as part of the 3-way matching process. 

9) After the three-way match has been performed and the transaction is in balance, AP proceeds to finish 

processing and posting the transaction in SAP.  Then, SAP will post the transaction to the general ledger 

accounts assigned in the financial system and issues a document number (Invoice Receipt number). Once all 

items have been posted, the GR/IR account (upon refresh) shows the transaction has been processed as 

indicated by the assigned Document Type. 

 
Note: For the dollar amount to be withheld, the Contractor selects if the funds will be held via retention or escrow. Retention is a 

dollar amount that the Agency withholds and places in their account and releases the funds after the Notice of Completion has been 

posted for 35 days. Escrow is a dollar amount that the Agency places in an escrow account (with an external party) and earns interest 

for the contractor.   

 

Retention 

10) AP staff must process the retention dollar amount in SAP (transaction code: F-51 – Pay Est Retention). 

11) AP will enter in the information related to the retention into the corresponding fields in SAP. There are 

specific general ledger indicators to distinguish if it is a retention or escrow. 

12) Then, SAP calculates the payment amount to the vendor and the retention amount to be withheld. Typically, 

the retention percentage is 5% of the dollar amount being paid on the invoice. 

13) AP updates the payment terms field from net 30 to net 20 to ensure the payment will be captured to be paid 

by the 20th of the month and/or the Thursday on the 3rd week of the month. 

14) AP staff verifies the accounting information (i.e., fund, general ledger account, description, amount, etc.) 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 20 of 28 
 

 
 

15) AP staff records the document number and retention number on the Pay Estimate information and saves the 

PDF file to the Accounting department’s shared drive. 

16) AP staff uploads the Pay Estimate information as an attachment in two different modules (Accounts Payable 

and General Ledger side) in SAP; F-51 – Pay Est Retention and MIRO – Enter Incoming Invoice. 

 

Escrow 

17) AP staff must process the escrow amount in SAP (transaction code: F-51 – Pay Est Retention). 

18) AP will enter in information related to the escrow into the corresponding fields in SAP. There are specific 

general ledger indicators to distinguish if it is an escrow or retention.  

19) Next, SAP generates the list of all the escrow amounts and AP selects the dollar amount to be paid to 

escrow.  

20) AP staff verifies the accounting information assigned (i.e., fund, general ledger account, description, amount, 

etc.). After all the information and data has been entered into the different fields, then AP staff reviews the 

accounting entries, saves and posts in SAP. 

21) AP verifies the bank information for the contractor. AP will only verify the bank information at the time of 

setup, not for each transaction.  

22) AP staff uploads the Pay Estimate information as an attachment to the two different transaction codes in SAP; 

R-51 – Pay Est Retention and MIRO – Enter Incoming Invoice. 

 

Payments   

23) According to AP – once an invoice has been set up, entered, and posted into the financial module – SAP 

“flags” the items as “not due” or “overdue.” For items “not due,” SAP will leave the item as an open 

payable for scheduling of payment to be completed closer to the due date. For items “overdue,” payment is 

automatically scheduled for the next payment cycle. 

Note: The liability is recognized upon completion of the Receiving in SAP. 

24) After all the Pay Estimates have been processed in SAP, AP determines what items will be paid in the SAP. 

25) Accounting Management will run a “Prelist” on all the items that will be processed, and once the “Pre-list” 

has been reviewed, then a final list is generated.  

Note: The “Pre-list” is reviewed by Agency Management, and items that are not included will be 

researched and reviewed to determine if they should be included in the current payment cycle.  

26) After the prelist is approved, then those transactions are pulled through for payment. With the update 

payment information, AP will generate the necessary information for the payment file. 

27) Final list is submitted to Budget staff, who obtains the approvals and signatures via DocuSign. If the total 

dollar amount is greater than $10 million, then Budget staff have to contact the bank (or vice versa) to 

provide additional information on the reasons the total amount being disbursed is greater than $10 million.  

28) Budget staff upload the electronic file to the bank for processing and payment, (if applicable) while 

physical checks are printed and mailed. 

 
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 21 of 28 
 

 
 

Process Flowchart – Pay Estimates 
The diagram on this and the following pages provides the overview of the Pay Estimates process. 
This flowchart shows Engineering’s processes.  
 

 
 

  

 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 22 of 28 
 

 
 

This flowchart shows Finance’s processes.  

 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 23 of 28 
 

 
 

Detailed Audit Testing and Analysis 
IA obtained the Pay Estimate Summary (excel spreadsheet), which was provided by 
E&CM to AP and recaps the Pay Estimates that are to be processed for the month, the 
excel file contained the information for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 (as of 
January 13th, 2023). IA judgmentally selected a total of 18 Pay Estimates from July 2021 
up until December 2022. IA selected one Pay Estimate per month and selected different 
contractors and projects to measure the amount of time it takes to complete each step 
and process a payment for the Pay Estimate. IA applied testing procedures to evaluate 
the 18 items selected. IA reviewed the current processes used by E&CM and AP to 
determine the timeliness of receiving and payments. IA’s review showed the following 
observations (findings and observation have been used to create the recommendations 
included in the matrix above:)  
 

Details of IA Testing Findings are shown below – see Attachment 1 for details 
Late Contractor upload dates 
The Contractor uploaded the Schedule of Values after the 20th day of each month in 15 of the 18 
Pay Estimates selected, between 2 and 21 days, averaging about 8 days after the required 20th 
day. 
 
Inspector Approvals 
The inspector did not approve the Pay Estimate in a timely manner in 3 of the 18 Pay Estimates. 
After closer inspection, 2 of those 3 because of the weekend days. 1 (item no. 11) Pay Estimate 
was not approved in a timely manner, 13 days late. 
 
Signatures (Pay Estimate back up documentation) 
In 1 of the 18 (item no. 18), the documentation uploaded into SAP did not contain DocuSign 
signatures for any of the required approvals. Although the approvals took place in CIPO, the SAP 
documentation did not contain the appropriate signatures.  
 
Delayed in the Receiving Process 
In 8 (items no. 2, 3, 6, 7, 13, 14, 16, and 17) of the 18 samples, the Pay Estimates took over 10 
days after the Project Manager's approval before receiving was performed in SAP ranging from 10 
to 26 days, averaging 9 days total. 

 
Receiving to AP  
3 of the 18 (items no. 2, 7, and 11) Pay Estimates took over 10 days, ranging from 12-19 days, after 
the receiving was performed before the Engineering Staff sent the Pay Estimate information to the 
Accounts Payable Unit for processing.  
 
Late Processing 
6 of the 18 (items no. 1, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 17) Pay Estimates or 33% of the sample selections were 
processed by Accounts Payable over 10 days, ranging from 10-15 days) after being received from 
E & CM.  
 
Delayed Payments 
The time the Pay Estimate was paid exceeded the net 30 date for 13 of 18 samples selected, 
averaging over 4 days. 
 

 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 24 of 28 
 

 
 

Background Information  
As stated in the FY 2021/2022 and FY 2022/2023 Operating and Capital Program Budget, 
E&CM (within the Engineering Department) provides design, administration, and 
construction management for water, wastewater, and energy projects that implement the 
Agency’s Capital Improvement Program.  
 
E&CM core focus is the administration of the Agency’s capital construction projects. To 
aid with their goals, the uses a Project Management tool called Capital Improvement 
Program Office (CIPO) Cloud®, which is the leading cloud-based construction 
management system. CIPO is an end-to-end platform that allows owners and 
Construction Management professionals to define the environment that will meet their 
business practices, track, manage, and control all documents, and display the progress 
of the projects in one place. CIPO enables the organizations and contractors to create 
schedules and detailed list of the work/tasks performed and completed, and provides 
workflows so approvals can be obtained efficiently, and to ensure that projects are 
finished in a timely manner while having a centralized location to view progress, status 
and provides dashboards.  
 
For each construction project, the contractor’s progress for the work completed is 
uploaded into CIPO and requires collaboration between the contractor and the E&CM 
about the work performed, and the monthly payments for those capital projects and any 
Professional/consulting services are handled through the Accounts Payable (AP) Group 
within the Accounting Unit. 
 

Pay Estimates are “monthly estimated progress payments” for construction work that has 
been completed on construction/capital projects, subject to the Public Contract Code 
(PCC). According to the AP Group of the Accounting Unit, the amount of time required to 
process, post, pay, and reconcile payments for Pay Estimates is much longer than any 
other types of payments. Per discussion with the Accounting Unit staff, Pay Estimates are 
time-sensitive and required to be paid within thirty (30) days after an invoice has been 
received (per PPC § 20104.50). To ensure these invoices are paid timely, every month, 
the Accounting Unit Management dedicates all AP Group Staff for an entire week 
(approximately the 3rd week of the month) to process Pay Estimates. Payments for other 
types of goods and services are put on hold and postponed until all Pay Estimates have 
been processed.  

 
Financial Information – Pay Estimates 

 
The table that follows summarizes the quantity and dollar amount of the Pay Estimates 
that have been compiled by E&CM and processed and posted for payment by AP. Data 
is for an eighteen-month period:  
  



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 25 of 28 
 

 
 

 
 

Information about Pay Estimate Processed by AP 

(Dollar amounts listed below does not take into account Retentions/Escrow  

amounts that have been withheld)  

Fiscal Year 
Number of  

Pay Estimates Processed 

Dollar Amounts  

Received  

2021-2022 170 $119,963,685.64 

2022-2023 

(July to December 2022only) 
72 51,677,485.93 

Total 242 $171,641,171.57 

Source: Pay Estimate Schedule provided by Engineering Department.  

 

Thus, AP processed an average of 13 Pay Estimates during this period, with 11 Pay 
Estimates being the minimum and 18 pay estimates the maximum per month. 
 
 

Agency Policy 
For each Pay Estimate, E&CM obtains between two to seven approval signatures via 
DocuSign on the Pay Estimate documentation. According to their department-specific 
Standard Operating Procedures, EC&M follows the Agency Policy A-50 for approval 
signatures.  
 

 
 
 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 26 of 28 
 

 
 

IA reviewed the A-50 policy and noted the following: 
 

• Policy has not been updated for at least seven (7) years; effective date is 2015 
 

• Policy is titled for Non-Purchase Order Invoice Approval, but all professional 
services and Pay Estimates follow the Purchase Requisition/Purchase Order 
process in SAP, not non-PO process 
 

• Positions and job titles listed in the table in this policy are outdated which are not 
consistent with the current organizational chart  
 

• The policy may be confusing because it is not clear if invoices above a threshold 
requires all signatures below the amount and above the amount.  For example 
for Pay Estimates above $250,000, it is not clear if only the 2 signatures are 
required or if all 5 signatures are required. 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 27 of 28 
 

 
 

Attachment 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Sample 

No. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contractor 

Name 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Payment 

Amount 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date Pay 

Estimate is 

required 

to be 

Uploaded 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Net 30 Date Contractor 

Upload Date 

Source: 

CIPO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Inspector 

Approval 

Date 

Source: 

CIPO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project 

Manager 

Approval 

Date 

Source: 

CIPO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Receiving 

Date in SAP 

Source: SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Invoice 

Receipt Date 

Source: SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Processing 

Date 

Source: 

SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date Paid 

Source: 

SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

Approvals 

on the Pay 

Estimates 

Source: 

PDF in SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

days between 

the required 

upload date 

and the 

Contractor 

upload date 

 

 

 

Number 

of days 

between 

Contract

or upload 

date and 

Inspector 

Approval 

date 

 

 

 

Number of 

Days 

Between 

Inspector’s 

approval 

and the 

Project 

Manager’s 

Approval 

 

Number of 

days between 

the Project 

Manager’s 

approval and 

Receiving 

performed in 

SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

days between 

receiving and 

Engineering 

Staff 

submitting 

the PE 

information 

to AP Group 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

days 

required to 

process the 

Pay Estimate 

after 

receiving the 

Pay Estimate 

information 

 

 

 

Number 

of days 

between 

the 

processing 

and the 

payment 

 

 

 

Does the 

Pay 

Estimate 

attached in 

SAP have 

signed 

approvals? 

 

(Yes or No) 

 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

Days between 

Net 30 date 

and Payment 

date  

 

(A) 

 

(B) 

 

(C) 

 

(D) 

 

(E) 

 

(F) 

 

(G 

 

(H) 

 

(I) 

 

(A)-(C) 

 

(C)-(D) 

 

(D)-(E) 

 

(E)-(F) 

 

(F)-G) 

 

(G)-(H) 

 

(H)-(I) 

 

(H) - (B) 

 

1 

 

 

Cedro 

 

$132,397 

 

 

 

7/20/21 

 

 

 

8/19/21 

 

 

 

 

8/10/21 

 

 

 

 

8/11/21 

 

 

 

8/12/21 

 

 

 

8/16/21 

 

 

 

8/12/21 

 

 

 

8/26/21 

 

 

 

8/26/21 

 

 

 

7 

 

 

 

21 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

-4 

 

 

 

14 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

 

7  

    4,000.00 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

SCW 

 

67,722.50 

 

8/20/21 

 

9/19/21 

 

 

8/23/21 

 

 

8/23/21 

 

8/25/21 

 

9/8/21 

 

9/20/21 

 

9/22/21 

 

9/23/21 

 

5 

 

3 

 

0 

 

2 

 

14 

 

12 

 

2 

 

1 

 

Yes 

 

4 

 

3 

 

WM Lyles 

 

165,700.02 

 

 

 

9/20/21 

 

 

 

10/20/21 

 

 

 

9/22/21 

 

 

 

9/24/21 

 

 

 

9/27/21 

 

 

 

 

10/11/21 

 

 

 

10/18/21 

 

 

 

10/19/21 

 

 

 

10/21/21 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

14 

 

 

 

7 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

 

1 
 

14,000.00 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

Charles King 

 

 

684,775.14 

 

 

 

10/20/21 

 

 

11/19/21 

 

 

11/2/21 

 

 

 

11/2/21 

 

 

11/2/21 

 

 

11/10/21 

 

 

11/11/21 

 

 

11/18/21 

 

 

11/18/21 

 

 

7 

 

 

13 

 

 

0 

 

 

0 

 

 

8 

 

 

1 

 

 

7 

 

 

0 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

-1 

 

5 

 

MNR 

 

180,077.00 

 

11/20/21 

 

12/20/21 

 

11/22/21 

 

 

11/22/21 

 

12/1/21 

 

12/7/21 

 

12/13/21 

 

12/15//21 

 

12/15/21 

 

7 

 

2 

 

0 

 

9 

 

6 

 

6 

 

2 

 

0 

 

Yes 

 

-5 

 

6 

 

JF Shea 

 

261,250.00 

 

12/20/21 

 

1/19/21 

 

12/17/21 

 

 

12/20/21 

 

12/20/21 

 

1/11/22 

 

1/17/21 

 

1/19/21 

 

1/20/22 

 

7 

 

-3 

 

3 

 

0 

 

22 

 

6 

 

2 

 

1 

 

Yes 

 

1 

 

7 

 

Tharsos, Inc. 

 

168,040.00 

 

1/20/22 

 

2/19/21 

 

1/10/22 

 

 

1/11/22 

 

1/13/22 

 

2/8/22 

 

2/22/22 

 

2/23/22 

 

2/24/22 

 

7 

 

-10 

 

1 

 

2 

 

26 

 

14 

 

1 

 

1 

 

Yes 

 

5 

 

8 
New 

Millennium 

 

3,987.00 

 

2/20/22 

 

3/22/21 

 

3/2/22 

 

 

3/2/22 

 

3/2/22 

 

3/11/22 

 

3/16/22 

 

3/24/22 

 

3/24/22 

 

4 

 

10 

 

0 

 

0 

 

 

 

9 

 

5 

 

8 

 

0 

 

Yes 

 

2 

 

9 
 

Norstar 

 

108,772.00 

 

3/20/22 

 

4/19/21 

 

4/6/22 

 

 

4/6/22 

 

4/6/22 

 

4/12/22 

 

4/12//22 

 

5/23/22 

 

5/24/22 

 

7 

 

17 

 

0 

 

0 

 

6 

 

0 

 

41 

 

1 

 

Yes 

 

35 



 
Review of Pay Estimate Processes  
February 27, 2023 
Page 28 of 28 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Sample 

No. 

 

 

 

 

 

Contractor 

Name 

 

 

 

 

 

Payment 

Amount 

 

 

 

 

 

Date Pay 

Estimate is 

required 

to be 

Uploaded 

 

 

 

 

 

Net 30 Date 

 

Contractor 

Upload Date 

Source: 

CIPO 

 

 

 

 

 

Inspector 

Approval 

Date 

Source: 

CIPO 

 

 

 

 

 

Project 

Manager 

Approval 

Date 

Source: 

CIPO 

 

 

 

 

 

Receiving 

Date in SAP 

Source: SAP 

 

 

 

 

 

Invoice 

Receipt Date 

Source: SAP 

 

 

 

 

Processing 

Date 

Source: 

SAP 

 

 

 

 

Date Paid 

Source: 

SAP 

 

 

Number of 

Approvals 

on the Pay 

Estimates 

Source: 

PDF in SAP 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

days between 

the required 

upload date 

and the 

Contractor 

upload date 

 

 

Number of 

days 

between 

Contractor 

upload date 

and 

Inspector 

Approval 

date 

 

 

Number of 

Days 

Between 

Inspector’s 

approval 

and the 

Project 

Manager’s 

Approval 

 

Number of 

days 

between the 

Project 

Manager’s 

approval 

and 

Receiving 

performed 

in SAP 

 

 

 

Number of 

days 

between 

receiving 

and 

Engineering 

Staff 

submitting 

the PE 

information 

to AP Group 

 

 

Number of 

days 

required to 

process the 

Pay 

Estimate 

after 

receiving the 

Pay 

Estimate 

information 

 

Number 

of days 

between 

the 

processing 

and the 

payment 

 

Does the 

Pay 

Estimate 

attached in 

SAP have 

signed 

approvals? 

 

(Yes or 

No) 

 

 

 

 

Number of 

Days between 

Net 30 date 

and Payment 

date 

 

(A) 

 

(B) 

 

(C) 

 

(D) 

 

(E) 

 

(F) 

 

(G 

 

(H) 

 

(I) 

 

(A)-(C) 

 

(C)-(D) 

 

(D)-(E) 

 

(E)-(F) 

 

(F)-G) 

 

(G)-(H) 

 

(H)-(I) 

 

(H) - (B) 

 

10 
 

Charles King 

 

222,875.00 

 

 

 

4/20/22 

 

5/20/22 

 

4/29/22 

 

5/3/22 

 

5/10/22 

 

5/11/22 

 

5/12/22 

 

5/24/22 

 

5/24/22 

 

7 

 

9 

 

4 

 

7 

 

1 

 

1 

 

12 

 

0 

 

Yes 

 

4 

 

 

 

11 

 

 

 

W. A. Rasic 

 

93,859.50 

 

 

 

 

5/20/22 

 

 

 

6/19/22 

 

 

 

5/19/22 

 

 

 

6/1/22 

 

 

 

6/2/2022 

 

 

 

6/1/22 

 

 

 

6/20/22 

 

 

 

6/30/22 

 

 

 

6/30/22 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

 

-1 

 

 

 

13 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

-1 

 

 

 

19 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

 

11  

3,130.60 

 

12 
 

Big Sky 

Electric 

 

160,780.00 

 

6/20/22 

 

7/20/22 

 

6/29/22 

 

6/30/22 

 

6/30/22 

 

7/8/22 

 

7/11/22 

 

7/21/2022 

 

7/21/22 

 

7 

 

9 

 

1 

 

0 

 

8 

 

3 

 

 

10 

 

0 

 

Yes 

 

1 

 

13 
 

Metro 

 

86,000.00 

 

7/20/22 

 

8/19/22 

 

7/25/22 

 

7/26/22 

 

8/3/22 

 

8/15/22 

 

8/22/22 

 

8/24/22 

 

8/25/22 

 

4 

 

5 

 

1 

 

8 

 

12 

 

7 

 

2 

 

1 

 

Yes 

 

6 

 

 

14 

 

 

Ferreira 

 

(4,966.00) 

 

 

8/20/22 

 

 

9/19/22 

 

 

 

9/2/22 

 

 

 

9/6/22 

 

 

 

9/6/2022 

 

 

 

9/16/22 

 

 

 

9/16/22 

 

 

 

9/21/22 

 

 

 

9/22/22 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

13 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

 

3  

37,973.00 

 

 

 

15 

 

 

MNR 

 

433,054.74 

 

 

9/20/22 

 

 

10/20/22 

 

 

10/10/22 

 

 

10/10/22 

 

 

10/10/22 

 

 

10/11/22 

 

 

10/13/22 

 

 

10/18/22 

 

 

10/20/22 

 

 

7 

 

 

20 

 

 

0 

 

 

0 

 

 

1 

 

 

2 

 

 

5 

 

 

2 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

0 

 

482,744.21 

 

 

 

16 

 

 

Doty Bros 

56,697.00  

 

10/20/22 

 

 

11/19/22 

 

 

 

 

11/10/22 

 

 

11/10/22 

 

 

11/10/22 

 

 

11/21/22 

 

 

11/22/22 

 

 

 

12/1/22 

 

 

12/1/22 

 

 

5 

 

 

21 

 

 

0 

 

 

0 

 

 

11 

 

 

1 

 

 

9 

 

 

0 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

12 
7,553.11 

16,767.09 

 

17 
 

Best 

Contracting 

 

598,636.64 

 

11/20/22 

 

12/20/22 

 

11/22/22 

 

11/22/22 

 

11/22/22 

 

12/7/22 

 

12/8/22 

 

12/20/22 

 

12/20/22 

 

7 

 

2 

 

0 

 

0 

 

15 

 

1 

 

12 

 

0 

 

Yes 

 

0 

 

18 
 

GCI 

Construction, 

Inc. 

 

21,850.00 

 

12/20/22 

 

 

1/19/23 

 

1/5/23 

 

1/5/23 

 

1/5/23 

 

1/9/23 

 

1/13/23 

 

1/18/23 

 

1/19/23 

 

0 

 

16 

 

0 

 

0 

 

4 

 

4 

 

5 

 

1 

 

No 

 

0 

 



Review of Procure to Pay Processes 
for Pay Estimates

Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

March 15, 2023



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit

2

Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit

Date Issued Recommendations

August 20, 2021 Interim Audit Report 

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals

Date Issued Recommendations

November 24, 2021 35

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services –

Engineering & Construction Management (E&CM)

Date Issued Recommendations

February 24, 2022 21

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Planning and Resources

Date Issued Recommendations

May 24, 2022 11

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards

Date Issued Recommendations

September 1, 2022 7 (no longer applicable)

The Agency has taken steps to phase out the Home Depot Credit Card program and absorb the purchases through the expanded Procurement Card

program, as originally proposed by IA through the Procurement Card Audit in 2018. IA will not follow up on the 7 recommendations.

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies

Date Issued Recommendations

December 2, 2022 19

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Pay Estimates

Date Issued Recommendations

February 27, 2023 12
27



Pay Estimate Audit Objectives

3

• Evaluate the Pay Estimate processes, including:

• Pay Estimate review and submission,

• Receiving function

• Processing payments

• Evaluate internal controls

• Evaluate the timeliness and efficiency of processes

• Evaluate the use of technology and reporting tools

• Determine if Agency Policies and Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs) are working as intended and align with current practices

• Identify opportunities and opportunities for improvement



• Pay Estimates

—Pay Estimates are payments for progress completed for construction projects. Pay 
Estimate payments are time-sensitive and governed by Public Contract Code 
§20104.50. (must be paid Net30)

• Engineering & Construction Management Department

—With the use of the software system CIPO Cloud, the contractor and E&CM team set up 
project schedules, upload invoices and workflow items for review and signature

• CIPO – DocuSign - AP Excel Spreadsheets – SAP – Esker (5 systems)
—Pay Estimates are uploaded and reviewed by Engineering using CIPO

—Review and approval is done in CIPO and using DocuSign

—Information is reviewed and verified by AP and Engineering using various excel 
spreadsheets

—Receiving function and processing payments is done by AP in SAP.

—AP allocates all resources for an entire week

—Pay Estimates currently do not go through Esker

4

Pay Estimate Payments and the Process

4



Scope of Audit

5

Pay Estimates processed during Audit Period of 18 Months: 

July 2021 through December 2022

Total Number of Pay Estimates Paid Amount Paid

FY 2021-2022 170 $119,963,686

FY 2022-2023 

(through December 2022)
72 51,677,486

Total 242 $171,641,172

Average Per Month

13

Average Per Pay Estimate

709,261



CIPO Dashboards

6



CIPO - Pay Estimate Management

7



Process Flowchart – Engineering & Construction Management

8

Software: CIPO

Review and approval of  work progress and cost submissions in CIPO :

Approvers/Reviewers

Contractor

Project Manager

Inspector  

Software: DocuSign

Route Pay Estimates for 

review and approval

Approvers/Reviewers

Contractor

Project Manager

Inspector  

Software: SAP

PR-PO

Receiving

Liability created

Engineering’s 

own 

spreadsheets: 

Pay Estimates 

summary of 

received items.

Findings:

Use of CIPO – DocuSign – Spreadsheets – SAP

Multiple Reviewers

Multiple Copies

Email Notification

From Engineering 

to AP



Findings

9

• CIPO

• DocuSign

• Excel Spreadsheets

• SAP

• Email

Use of multiple systems that may contain the same information: 

• CIPO (3)

• DocuSign (3-7 total)

• Spreadsheets (reviewed by Admin)

• SAP Receiving (approval to receive services 1)

Multiple Reviewers review and sign the same information

• Engineering 5

• Accounting 4

Multiple Copies of Pay Estimates (4-40 Pages each)

9



Process Flowchart - Accounts Payable

10

Software:

Excel Spreadsheets to verify and 

confirm all information submitted from 

Eng because there is no reliance on 

CIPO calculating the correct totals

Software:

SAP to enter transaction for: 

Pay Estimate information (MIRO)

Escrow or Retention amount (F-51)

Findings:

• Use of Excel Spreadsheets (over 200)

• Spreadsheets are not secure and safe

• No reliance on CIPO information

• Multiple Copies of Pay Estimate (4)

• AP staff dedicates a full week to process 

pay estimates by Net 30 and not met



Process Flowchart - Accounts Payable ACH Payment 

11

ACH Payment is processed after all information is logged into SAP



Findings

12

• CIPO

• DocuSign

• Excel Spreadsheets

• SAP

• Email

Various Systems with the same information to compile information

• CIPO (3)

• DocuSign (3-7 total)

• Spreadsheets (reviewed by Admin)

• SAP Receiving (approval to receive services 1)

No reliance on CIPO information due possible errors with updates and patches

• Engineering 5

• Accounting 4

Multiple Copies of Pay Estimates (4-40 Pages each)

• Engineering 5

• Accounting 4

AP staff dedicates a full week to process pay estimates by Net 30 and sometimes it is not met



Audit Results & Additional Findings

13

• The contract or project specification requires the Contractor upload Schedule of Values in 
CIPO by the 20th

• 15 of the 18 Pay Estimates showed the contractor uploaded, between 2 and 21 days after 
the required date, averaging about 8 days after the 20th which is the required date.

Late Contractor upload dates into CIPO

• The Inspector is required to approve the Pay Estimate within 3 business days

• 1 Pay Estimates was approved 13 days late

Inspector Approvals

• All items are reviewed and approved in CIPO by the Contractor, Inspector and the PM

• All items should be reviewed and approved again using DocuSign with 3-7 signatures

• 1 of the 18 Pay Estimates did not have any DocuSign approvals (per SAP)

• The other 17 pay estimates had between 2 and 7 DocuSign approvals

IEUA Approval Signatures



Agency Policy A-50
Approvals and approval authority

14

Effective April 27, 2015



- Continued - Audit Results & Additional Findings

15

• SAP Receiving is performed by Engineering staff once the Pay Estimate is 
ready to be processed for payment

• It takes an average of 9.44 days for receiving to be completed

• In 8 of the 18 items tested, it took between 10-26 days to complete receiving

Delayed in the Receiving Process

• In 3 of the 18 items reviewed, it took between 12-19 days, after the receiving 
was performed before Engineering sent the Pay Estimate to AP for 
processing

• In 6 of the 18 items reviewed, it took AP between over 10 days after items 
were received from Engineering to process for payment 

• Noted that some of the 18 items tested were paid late, exceeded the Net30

• Non-compliance with PCC and the contract

Delayed Payments 



- Continued - Audit Results & Additional Findings

16

• Used as a monitoring and reconciliation tool to process payments

• Track the same information already entered in CIPO and SAP

• Currently there are over 200 spreadsheets, some dating as far back as 2004

• Data Integrity - there are over 50 authorized users that can access & modify 
spreadsheets

• No evidence of supervisor review to ensure accuracy of the spreadsheets

• Engineering would like to have access to the spreadsheets but they have the 
information in CIPO

• CIPO & SAP have the same information as the spreadsheets

• Need to use and rely on monitoring and report tools from CIPO and SAP

Multiple Excel Spreadsheets to process Pay Estimate Payments



- Continued - Audit Results & Additional Findings

17

• SOPs need to be documented and/or updated for all processes

• AP does not have SOPs

• AP does not have a back up AP person to process Pay Estimates

• Engineering SOP needs to be updated 

• There are no back ups in AP to process Pay Estimates

• Additional controls and adequate review of the accuracy of Pay 
Estimate data sent from CIPO (Engineering) to Accounts Payable

• There are often errors and incorrect information calculated that 
transfers from CIPO to AP and AP must review and correct

Staff Training & Standard Operating Procedures



- Continued - Audit Results & Additional Findings

18

• The audit found there were 8 support tickets in an 6-month period

• It is unclear if support tickets are an additional cost to the Agency

• Staff stated CIPO updates and patches create errors in formula calculations

• Errors go undetected by Engineering staff and incorrect information may be 
submitted to AP

• DocuSign signatures indicate that 3-7 different staff review and approve Pay 
Estimates 

• Inaccurate information is submitted to AP creates additional review and 
verification for AP after Pay Estimates have been approved by 3-7 individuals

• Request CIPO to verify formulas when updates are rolled out

CIPO – upgrades, patches and accuracy of information



- Continued - Audit Results & Additional Findings

19

• There are various systems that do not interface or communicate

• This creates duplication of information

• The information is identical or very similar in each

• CIPO is a project management tool used by Engineering and contains all payment 
information

• SAP is the Agency’s ERP system which contains all payment information

• All receiving and payment is processed in SAP

• Accounts Payable maintains over 200 Excel spreadsheets as a monitoring and 
reconciliation tool for all construction projects and contracts

• Currently, Esker is not used to track and route Pay Estimates, 

CIPO – SAP – Excel Spreadsheets - Esker



Internal Audit provides: 

• Recommendations for Accounting

• Recommendations for Engineering

Pay Estimates Review Audit Recommendations

20



The Review of Pay Estimate Processes is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of
Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard
assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational
goals and objectives.

Questions?



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4D 



Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations - Fifth Update

Internal Audit (IA) completed a follow up review of the audit recommendations provided
through the various Procure to Pay (P2P) audits under the comprehensive Accounts Payable
Operational and Internal Control audit. The scope of these audits was to evaluate the payment
processes for the Agency's goods and services and to determine if internal controls and
processes are efficient to ensure vendor invoices are paid timely. This is the fifth progress
update.

To-date, IA has provided 93 recommendations through six comprehensive P2P audits. Of the 93
audit recommendations provided, 41 are now implemented, 27 are in progress of being
implemented and 25 are considered no longer applicable because alternate controls have been
implemented to address the risks and observations identified. The attached report provides
details of the results and responses provided by the departments. IA will continue to provide
quarterly progress updates for all outstanding recommendations, including new
recommendations through additional P2P audits.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

03/15/23Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations - Fifth Update is consistent
with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and
Business Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide recommendations that foster a
strong control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist
management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit.

Attachment 1 - Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations - Fifth Update
Attachment 2 - Progress Update List of all outstanding P2P audits
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

23052



DATE: February 23, 2023 

TO: Shivaji Deshmukh 
General Manager 

FROM: Teresa V. Velarde 
Manager of Internal Audit 

SUBJECT:  Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – 
Fifth Update 

Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Unit (IA) is providing 
a progress update of the ninety-three (93) audit recommendations provided in the 
previous six (6) Procure to Pay (P2P) audits completed under the comprehensive 
Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit. The progress update is 
provided under the authority given by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2022/2023 Annual Audit Plan and IA’s Charter. 

Audit Objective 
The scope of the original audits was to evaluate the ordering, receiving, and payment 
processes for the Agency's goods and services and to identify observations and 
recommendations for improvements to the processes to ensure the vendor invoices are 
paid on time.  The purpose of the quarterly progress reports is to provide a status of each 
original audit recommendation from the P2P audits, including the corrective action plans, 
and planned dates for implementation. 

Background 
As detailed in the original audit reports, goods and services purchased by the Agency are 
considered critical to the wastewater treatment process because of public health 
regulatory requirements and are critical to the business initiatives of the Agency.  The 
original audits evaluated the internal controls and business processes in place to ensure 
goods and services are ordered, delivered, received, and paid for in a timely manner, 
while following approved procurement guidelines.  Good internal controls and sound 
business practices ensure the Agency can operate according to regulatory requirements 
and maintain healthy business relationships and a good business image with its vendors. 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 2 of 8 
 
 

 
 

To date, IA has completed the following audits related to the comprehensive Accounts 
Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit:  
 

Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 

Date Issued Recommendations 

August 20, 2021 Interim Audit Report  

   

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals 

Date Issued Recommendations 

November 24, 2021 35 

   

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services –  
Engineering & Construction Management (E&CM) 

Date Issued Recommendations 

February 24, 2022 21 

  

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Planning and Resources 

Date Issued Recommendations 

May 24, 2022 11 

  

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards 

Date Issued Recommendations 

September 1, 2022 7 (no longer applicable) 

The Agency has taken steps to phase out the Home Depot Credit Card program and absorb the 
purchases through the expanded Procurement Card program, as originally proposed by IA through 
the Procurement Card Audit in 2018. IA will not follow up on the 7 recommendations. 

  

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies 

Date Issued Recommendations 

December 2, 2022 19 

 

Review of Pay Estimate Processes 

Date Issued Recommendations 

February 27, 2023 27 

 
The dashboard that follows provides a breakdown of the audit recommendations provided 
to each department and unit through the P2P audits with the status for each. The attached 
report, provides a detailed list of each outstanding recommendation, noting the 
departments’ current responses, planned date for implementation and IA comments and 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 

 
 

the final disposition for each recommendation. The list attached provides a list of items 
that were still outstanding as of February 23, 2023.  Audit recommendations resolved are 
not included.  For additional information about prior audit recommendations, resolutions 
and final disposition of each, IA refers readers to the original final P2P Audits and prior 
Progress Update Reports submitted through scheduled Audit Committee Meetings. 
Reports are also available on IA’s website on AIM or can be requested by contacting any 
member of IA. 

 

Of the 93 audit recommendations:  

• 41 are now implemented  

• 27 are in progress of being implemented 

• 25 are considered no longer applicable because alternate controls were 
implemented (includes 7 related to Home Depot Credit Cards). These 
recommendations are considered closed.  

 
Of the 27 recommendations in progress: 
 

• 1 recommendation is in progress of being implemented by the Procurement Card 
Administrator.  The recommendation relates to finalizing and implementing an 
Agency PCard policy that provides clear guidelines for the use of the Procurement 
Card.  The Pilot PCard Policy is currently in draft form, IA has provided comments, 
the policy is being evaluated by Human Resources before it is finalized and 
implemented. According to the PCard Administrator, the draft pilot PCard policy is 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 4 of 8 
 
 

 
 

discussed with all Agency employees who are issued a new PCard. This policy 
requires it be finalized and issued to all employees.  
 

• 3 recommendations are in progress of being implemented by CAP. One 
recommendation relates to making updates to Agency Policy A-50 related to non-
POs and approval authorities.  The policy updates will be made once Esker, the 
Agency’s new invoice recognition software system is fully implemented. The 
remaining two recommendations relate to working closely with IT to make 
processes more efficient in SAP, the Agency’s ERP system. CAP continues to 
meet with Information Technology (IT) to discuss the needed updates.  

 

• 12 recommendations are in progress of being implemented by the following 
departments or units:  Operations, Maintenance, the Warehouse, the Water 
Quality Laboratory and Facilities & Water Systems Programs. The 
recommendations relate to tightening controls related to the receiving function. 
These recommendations will be considered in progress until all staff is fully trained 
on Esker and departments evaluate process changes because processes will 
require updates as a result of the implementation.  IA will follow up on these 
processes during the next quarterly progress update. 

 

• 11 recommendations are in progress of being implemented by Finance.  The 
recommendations are broken down as follows: 

 

• 6 relate to documenting Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the 
many accounting activities and processes  

• 2 relate to establishing Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the various 
processes completed by the department to ensure activities and staff can 
be measured and evaluated 

• 1 recommends making email communication more efficient 

• 1 recommends training is provided to staff after SOPs and KPIs are adopted 

• 1 recommends the continuation of periodic and on-going meetings with 
administrative staff and others that perform receiving functions to discuss 
items that require immediate attention 

 
The following chart provides a summary of the 18 audit recommendations provided to 
Finance and the proposed implementation plan for each (refer to the attached matrix of 
all recommendations for the complete recommendation).  
 

P2P  
Report 

Recommendation 
Number 

Accounting’s proposed method for implementation:  

Chemicals 26 
SOP: Develop SOP that documents the processes specific to how and what 
items AP selects for the 3-way match and payment processing. 

Chemicals 27 
Training: Develop SOP on the current processes and provide training to staff 
on any new processes established.  



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 5 of 8 
 
 

 
 

Chemicals 29 
KPI’s: Develop Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) after the invoice 
recognition software system has been implemented. 

Chemicals 30 
SOP: Develop SOP that documents the 3-way match and methodology for 
what and when matching is performed.  

Chemicals 31 
SOP: Develop SOP that documents the methodology for receiving, matching 
and processing payments.  

Chemicals 32 
SOP: Develop SOP that documents regarding data entry and supporting 
documentation (i.e. bill of lading, etc.). 

Chemicals 33 
SOP & KPIs: Develop SOP that addresses accuracy of data entry, KPI’s for 
the matching and payment processes, monitoring of invoices, and 
communication of delayed items.  

Chemicals 35 
SOP: Develop SOP that documents and addresses accuracy of data entry 
and back posting of items. 

E&CM 10 
SOP: Develop SOP and document the timeframe for monitoring and 
handling delays. 

P&R 11 Email: Procure an invoice recognition software solution. Discuss and 
determine the best communication method with Agency staff.  

M&S 19 Coordination Meetings: Accounting should continue to lead periodic 
meetings with the administrative assistants or staff responsible for SAP 
receiving and if needed include CAP staff or others to discuss open items, 
invoices, receiving responsibilities and items that require attention. 

 

Highlights 
IA participates in various meetings with all Agency departments related to the 
implementation of the audit recommendations and the many Agency initiatives related to 
the P2P audit recommendations. IA is readily available to assist with special requests and 
audit projects, when requested, and in accordance with the Internal Audit Unit Charter 
and the Annual Audit Plan.  
 
Highlights of the recommendations that have been implemented in the recent months 
include the following:  
 

• Esker Implementation:  With the implementation of Esker, Accounting has been able 
to clear 7 recommendations that were previously In Progress. Esker provides visibility 
of pending invoice items and staff can take follow-up action immediately. Esker also 
provides several dashboards and reports to quantify various metrics and activities and 
keep track of the processes.   
 

• Staffing changes: Accounting continues to make needed updates and changes. 
 

• Software system: Accounting is working closely with IT on the implementation of the 
Agency’s new invoice recognition software (Esker). The purpose of the software is to 
automate the upload and routing of invoices, this system will ensure all invoices are 
accounted for, tracked, monitored and sent to the appropriate approver for signature 
and proper receiving in SAP. Esker was launched in January 2023. 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 6 of 8 
 
 

 
 

 

• IT Reports: IT has been working closely with Accounting to develop monitoring reports 
that can be used to have greater visibility of all payable items.  IT is also working 
closely with all Agency departments to develop additional monitoring and review 
reports. The reports will assist with sorting items, planning, prioritizing, and scheduling 
various activities with the end goal of ensuring payments are made on time. 

 
• Expanded Procurement Card (P-card) program: In September 2022, the Agency 

expanded the P-card program to consolidate the various credit programs used by the 
Agency and to make small dollar purchases more efficient. A dedicated P-Card 
Administrator was assigned to implement and oversee the program, provide training 
and assistance to end-users, and implement US Bank Online system process. As of 
the date of this report, the Agency has expanded the use of the program and has 
issued 135 P-cards for both IEUA and IERCA as of February 9, 2023 (from 20 cards 
in 2018).  
 

• P-Card policy/guidelines: Agency Management drafted the P-Card policy in August 
2022. IA reviewed the draft policy and provided comments and suggestions for 
consideration. The updated and revised draft P-Card policy has not been finalized. 
Policy A-89 (Procurement Card, effective: 01/26/2016) continues to be available on 
the Agency’s intranet as the guidelines for the P-Card use. 
 
In August of 2022, the new P-card Pilot Program Policy was drafted to update the existing P-
card Policy. This is currently under review and pending full implementation.  The new P-card 
Pilot Program Policy is provided to all new users of a P-card. It provides guidelines for the 
proper use of the P-cards and employees are required to adhere by the draft policy. 

 

• Procurement Ordinance: The Board of Directors approved the new Procurement 
Ordinance No. 110 on September 21st, 2022. The most significant changes to the 
Ordinance include:  

 

o Increase the dollar threshold from $3,500 to $10,000 for procurements, before two or more 
quotes are required. Thus, any purchases under $10,000 require only one quote and/or 
can be procured from any vendor. (Previously, procurements less than $3,500 required 
one quote, while procurements greater than $3,500 required multiple quotes from the 
different vendors) 
 

o Increase the dollar threshold from $5,000 to $10,000 for the single-transaction limit on the 
Procurement card 
 

o Increase the dollar threshold from $ 40,000 to $150,000 for the single change order or 
amendment 
 

o Increase the dollar threshold from $100,000 to $150,000, before Board approval and action 
is required, which usually impacts purchases and contracts  

 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 7 of 8 
 
 

 
 

• Agency Policy A-50: Contracts and Procurement (CAP) has addressed the original 
P2P recommendations provided. In June 2022, a new recommendation was provided 
related to taking the lead to make updates to Agency Policy A-50 (Non-Purchase 
Order Invoice Approval, effective 4/27/2015) regarding procurements for Purchase 
Orders and Non-Purchase Orders. After the Esker software system has been 
implemented, CAP will be taking the lead to clarify Agency guidelines related to 
procurements. 

 

• CAP Café: Other recommendations, already implemented, suggested that CAP reach 
out to the departments to work closely with them to gain a clear understanding of their 
unique procurement requirements and to provide additional training, guidance, and 
assistance to ensure the transactions follow the Agency’s P2P process.  CAP initiated 
a virtual Q&A session each month “CAP Café” where attendees can ask questions, 
request guidance, assistance, and discuss any unique issues. The additional outreach 
efforts have provided valuable information for all users. 

 

• Standard Operating Procedures: The E&CM Department has documented, finalized, 
and signed their SOP for processing invoices and pay estimates (Owner: Manager of 
Engineering, Doc Name: Pay Estimate/Invoice Processing, Doc Number: ENGCM-07, 
Revision No. 1 and Effective: September 1, 2022). IA suggests E&CM ensure the SOP 
is readily available and accessible by all department staff, and can serve as a guide 
and/or training tool for staff.  

 
The next progress update will report on the 34 remaining recommendations. Additional 
progress updates will be submitted until all recommendations are addressed. 
 
The attached matrix provides a status for each of the outstanding audit recommendations. 
For additional details, IA refers readers to the original audit reports, received and filed by 
the Board of Directors. The reports can be accessed through the Agency’s intranet 
website or requested from the Manager of Internal Audit. IA will provide additional 
progress updates until all P2P audit recommendations have been addressed.  
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to staff for their cooperation and assistance during 
this progress update and look forward to the continued collaboration. 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA met with each of the respective department managers and representatives to discuss 
the observations, the status of each recommendation, and corrective action plans.  Where 
possible, their comments have been incorporated. 
 
The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update is consistent with the Agency’s 
Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s 
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work 
environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update 
February 23, 2023 
Page 8 of 8 
 
 

 
 

Procure to Pay Timeline: 
 

         –
 8/30/2021

Interim Accounts 
Payable Operational & 
Internal Controls Audit

         –         
Procure to Pay Services P&R

11 recommendations

         –          
Procure to Pay Home Depot

7 recommendations

6/7/2021
Audit Committee 

Meeting

8/30/2021
Audit Committee 

Meeting

12/6/2021
Audit Committee 

Meeting

3/7/2022
Audit Committee 

Meeting

6/6/2022
Audit Committee 

Meeting

9/12/2022
Audit Committee 

Meeting

12/12/2022
Audit Committee 

Meeting

         –           
Procure to Pay Materials and Supplies

19 recommendations

          –         
Procure to Pay E&CM
21 recommendations

         – 
6/7/2021

IA Preliminary Review

5/1/2021
Executive 

Management & 
Asset 

Management 
brought to IA s 

attention

          –          
Procure to Pay Chemicals

35 recommendations

9/13/2021
GM created 
Strike Team

April
2021

May
2021

June
2021

July
2021

August
2021

Sept.
2021

Oct.
2021

Nov.
2021

Dec.
2021

Jan.
2022

Feb.
2022

March
2022

April
2022

May
2022

June
2022

July
2022

August
2022

Nov.
2022

Dec.
2022

Procure to Pay Chemicals
Operations addressed 16 recommendations

P2P Services P&R
P&R addressed 6 recs

12/31/2022
(Estimated)

Esker 
Implementation

(Go Live)

Accounting Department Staffing & Changes

9/2022
PCard 

Expansion 
Program 

9/21/2022
Procurement 

Ordinance 110
Board Approval

Procure to Pay E&CM
E&CM addressed 7 recommendations

PCard Policy 
Updates 

GRIPT Report 
created by IT

Invoice Held 
Report created 

by IT & 
Accounting

Folders created 
in SharePoint 

(AIM) by IT 

10/12/2022
Esker Meeting 

to discuss 
implementation

Sept.
2022

Oct.
2022

Accounting has addressed 13 P2P recommendations and is working to address 18 P2P recommendations

P
2

P
 A

u
d

it
 P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

A
ge

n
cy

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 1 of 21 

 
 

    Status   

P2P Rec # 

Unit(s) 
Taking 

the 
Lead 

Recommendation Implemented 
In 

Progress 
Not 

Implemented 

No 
Longer 

Applicable 

Department's Response, Corrective 
Action Plan and Proposed Date for 

Implementation 
IA Notes 

M&S 8 Ops 
M&S 

Operations should establish and document 
clear procedures, KPI’s, metrics and/or 
goals for the timely processing of all 
receiving.  This includes ensuring that 
anyone who physically receive shipments of 
goods, promptly forward the shipping 
documents to the appropriate person that 
will perform the receiving in SAP.  Ensure 
the procedures include details of the 
expectation of all involved in the receiving 
process, from the person who physically 
receives items, to the individual who does 
the receiving in SAP, including procedures 
to use current/existing or other technology 
when feasible and if it makes the process 
more efficient and quicker.  Ensure 
procedures contain metrics, goals and KPIs 
for the timeliness of the items.  

 
X 

  
    

M&S 9 Ops 
M&S 

Periodically review the Open PO Report as 
an additional monitoring control to check for 
any items that require receiving in SAP. 
Also, refer to closing information/instructions 
provided by Accounting each month for the 
SAP code to run the report and for 
additional closing instructions or seek 
assistance from Accounting or CAP to run 
report or identify items that still require 
receiving in SAP. 

 
X 

  
    

 
         

M&S 10 Mnt Maintenance should establish and 
document clear procedures, KPI’s, metrics 
and/or goals for the timely processing of all 
receiving.  This includes ensuring that 
anyone who physically receive shipments of 
goods, promptly forward the shipping 
documents to the appropriate person that 
will perform the receiving in SAP.  Ensure 
the planners forward any information about 
items ordered or received promptly to the 
administrative assistants for receiving into 
SAP. Ensure the procedures include details 
of the expectation of all involved in the 

 
X 

  
    



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 2 of 21 

 
 

receiving process, from the person who 
physically receives items, to the individual 
who does the receiving in SAP, including 
procedures to use current/existing or other 
technology when feasible and if it makes the 
process more efficient and quicker.  Ensure 
procedures contain metrics, goals and KPIs 
for the timeliness of the items. 

M&S 11 Mnt Periodically review the Open PO Report as 
an additional monitoring control to check for 
any items that require receiving in SAP. 
Also, refer to closing information/instructions 
provided by Accounting each month for the 
SAP code to run the report and for 
additional closing instructions or seek 
assistance from Accounting or CAP to run 
report or identify items that still require 
receiving in SAP. 

 
X 

  
    

 
         

M&S 12 WHS Warehouse should establish and document 
clear procedures, KPI’s, metrics and/or 
goals for the timely processing of all 
receiving, similar to the new procedures 
established to ensure receiving for 
chemicals within 5-7 days. 
Warehouse indicated that they currently 
complete the receiving in SAP within 3-5 
days and rely on the Open PO Report to 
monitor the timeliness of receiving. 
Additionally, Warehouse staff indicated that 
they perform the receiving for anything that 
comes through the warehouse and 
sometimes items that do not come through 
the warehouse, whether it is inventory or 
not.  

 
X 

  
    

M&S 13 WHS Warehouse staff should take the lead to 
frequently communicate with all 
administrative assistants about the 
responsibilities for completing the receiving 
function in SAP for inventory and non-
inventory items and for items that are 
physically delivered to the warehouse and 
those delivered to other Agency locations. 
Warehouse staff may want to periodically 
send out email messages or use other forms 
of disseminating information about the 
responsibilities for SAP receivers.  
Warehouse should use the Open PO report 

 
X 

  
    



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 3 of 21 

 
 

as tool to guide the discussion about the 
items needing receiving.  

 
         

M&S 14 Lab Lab should work closely with Accounting 
and CAP to establish and document clear 
procedures, KPI’s, metrics and/or goals for 
the timely processing of all receiving into 
SAP, for both goods and services. (Similar 
to the new procedures established to ensure 
receiving for chemicals is completed within 
5-7 days). 

 
X 

  
    

M&S 15 Lab Lab should incorporate the use of existing or 
new technologies (such as iPhones) to 
upload delivery documentation directly into 
SharePoint/OneDrive for their administrative 
staff.  (Lab agrees to use technology and 
mentioned that they currently have 2 shared 
Lab iPhones that can be used for the 
uploading of documents to make the 
process more efficient.) 

 
X 

  
    

M&S 16 Lab Periodically review the Open PO Report as 
an additional monitoring control to check for 
any items that require receiving in SAP. 
Also, refer to closing information/instructions 
provided by Accounting each month for the 
SAP code to run the report and for 
additional closing instructions or seek 
assistance from Accounting or CAP to run 
report or identify items that still require 
receiving in SAP. 

 
X 

  
    

M&S 17 Lab Lab staff should take the lead to periodically 
meet with staff completing SAP receiving 
(currently Engineering administrative staff or 
other administrative assistant) to discuss 
and coordinate receiving responsibilities, 
including: 
• Create a list to indicate which Lab staff to 
send invoices to for approval via DocuSign 
(provide list to Accounting or administrative 
assistance as a guide). 
• Discuss items that always need invoices 
sent for signature approval (i.e., Airgas 
rentals). 

 
X 

  
    

 
         



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 4 of 21 

 
 

M&S 6 Facilities Facilities and Water System Programs 
should establish and document clear 
procedures, KPI’s, metrics and/or goals for 
the timely processing of all receiving. (May 
consider using as an example similar new 
procedures established for chemical 
receiving is done within 5-7 days). 

 
X 

  
    

M&S 7  Facilities Periodically review the Open PO Report as 
an additional monitoring control to check for 
any items that require receiving in SAP. 
Also, refer to closing information/instructions 
provided by Accounting each month for the 
SAP code to run the report and for 
additional closing instructions or seek 
assistance from Accounting or CAP to run 
report or identify items that still require 
receiving in SAP. 

 
X 

  
    

  

M&S 1 PCard 
Admin 

The PCard Administrator should establish a 
strategy to continuously review the program 
and the related policies and reinforce the 
guidelines and requirements of the 
Procurement Ordinance, Procurement Card 
Policy and other related Agency Policies 
that provide guidelines and policies for the 
use of PCards. Additionally, to take the lead 
to make necessary updates to policies and 
processes and ensure employees are aware 
of the required policies, to ensure the PCard 
program is working as intended. 

 
X 

  
On 2/7/2023 Pcard Administrator responded:  
The PCard Admin continues to review all 
charges during the statement period.  
 
PCard Admin sends reminder emails to all users 
each month about items requiring attention.  
 
Depending on the items requiring attention there 
are individual emails that are sent to different 
users pertaining to their issues.   
 
PCard Admin reviews all charges to ensure that 
it aligns with the Procurement Ordinance 110.  
This is done through perusing the card portal 
and spot checking. 
 
IT provides an additional level of review prior to 
posting for any missing required documentation 
or support.  

2/7/2023.  Thank you for your response.  This 
recommendation is specific to your current 
process which you have addressed and also 
related to reinforcing the current guidelines 
and policies, IA has the following follow up 
questions:   
 
Do you have any SOPs for the processes the 
Pcard Admin performs? If so please provide 
copies. 
 
Do you share the related Agency policies with 
users? If so which ones?   
 
Do you see the need for any updates to the 
Agency policies? If so, what are they? 
 
Have you noticed anything that requires 
attention?  Is there anything IA can assist 
with? 

M&S 2 PCard 
Admin 

Perform periodic spend analysis to provide 
an added level of oversight and to identify 
potential maverick or unauthorized 
spending, splitting or duplicate purchases, 
etc., or other errors or misuse.  Ensure any 
misuse is reported to the appropriate level 
and reinforce Agency policies. 

X 
   

On 2/7/2023 Pcard Administrator responded:  
PCard Admin reviews spend daily to ensure that 
staff is abiding by the Procurement Ordinance 
110.   
 
Typical authorization limit is set at 5K per 
transaction and 10K monthly (below 
Procurement Ordinance threshold). 
 
Staff will need to request additional  one time 

 2/7/2023.  Thank you for your response.  This 
recommendation is specific to the process you 
have described in the above recommendation 
#1 and in #2.  IA has the following follow up 
questions:  
 
What limits are set on users?  Do they all have 
the same limits or different?  
 
When we meet or during a separate/follow-up 
meeting, can you please walk IA through a 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 5 of 21 

 
 

increase for additional funding per purchases 
pass the allotted threshold amount and 
approved and reviewed by their management 
before increase is provided. 

typical “spend analysis/review” for our 
understanding? (this will be done during the 
actual Pcard audit – planned for April or June) 
 
IA would like to request view access for the 
account so that we can begin gathering 
preliminary data for our planned audit.  
 
Have you noticed anything that requires 
attention?   
 
Do you have any proposed ideas to improve 
this spend analysist or review?   
 
Is there anything IA can assist with? 

M&S 3 PCard 
Admin 

Continuously work directly with users to 
provide needed training and guidance on 
processes related to the PCard to ensure 
users understand the intent and 
requirements of the program. 

X 
   

On 2/7/2023 Pcard Administrator responded:  
PCard Admin, Jeanina Romero and Kristine 
Day continuously provide training to end-users 
daily to ensure that the Procurement Ordinance 
110 is followed. 
 
In the future we are looking at doing PCard 
refresher training or questionnaires for end-
users  and will have a back-up PCard authorizer 
when Administrator is out of office. 

 2/7/2023.  Thank you for your response. 
As a quick follow up question, do you currently 
provide users with any materials, policies, 
procedures?  If so, please share.  
 
Do you have any proposed ideas?   
 
Is there anything IA can assist with?  

 
         

M&S  4 CAP CAP should consider working with IT to set 
up an automated purchase order processing 
system. The new system should include a 
system of checks and balances for purchase 
order approval. Upon approval, the 
Agency’s financial system, SAP, should 
automatically generate the purchase order 
and email it to the vendor, requestor, and 
CAP staff. 

 X   On 2/7/2023P CAP stated they have had several 
meetings with IT in support of having the automation 
of the PR to PO established.  IT continues to research 
and evaluate the process requirements to support this 
automation.  We have not received a status update 
from IT as to the potential implementation timeline. 

  

M&S 5 CAP CAP take the lead to work with IT to ensure 
there is a designated line item/area in SAP 
where users can add contact information 
about the PR/PO to facilitate follow up 
questions from either staff or vendors.  It 
would be beneficial to have the contact 
information for the person that initiated the 
requisition. For vendor follow up. 
 
CAP indicated that SAP can populate the 
information with the SAP user information 
and they are already working with IT to have 
this information populate on the PO.   

 X    On 2/7/2023, CAP stated they have been working 
closely with IT to identify the work order number 
associated with PO’s. There are some challenges in 
pulling the requestor contact information.   While IT 
continues to explore the functionality, CAP is 
evaluating the manual process of entering the contact 
information for the requestor in the body of the PO. 
 
This will allow for the full name, email and phone 
number to be included and visible in the PO. 

  



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 6 of 21 

 
 

P&R 8 CAP CAP should take the lead to make needed 
updates to Agency Policy A-50 and the 
Procurement Ordinance, to ensure they 
provide policy requirements for both PO and 
Non-PO items and addresses the changes 
resulting from the recent Agency 
reorganization to establish the most current 
and applicable controls for the Agency’s 
procurement activities. 

 
X 

  
On 11/28/2022 It was discussed that updates to the 
policy will be made after the implementation of Esker - 
the new invoice upload system.            
  
On 8/22/22 Received update from CAP: Yes, we had 
a meeting with a lot of great discussion.  The meeting 
included CAP and Accounting.  The policy is under 
review, CAP is taking the lead on the review with track 
changes.  Areas of discussion included updating the 
definition in 4.1 to identify that invoices for NPO aren’t 
tied to a contract or PO routed through the formal P2P 
process. 
Update the workflow to remove the reference to the 
Procurement Ordinance.  This is because the 
ordinance is not the governing document for invoice 
approvals. 
Update 5.2.A Guidelines to include more accurately 
identify the types of goods and services that should be 
processed via NPO. 
Update the table in 5.3A for correct titles and 
thresholds. 
Update details in 5.4 Processing to include AP related 
information and where the new Invoice processing 
software will be applied. 
 
CAP stated they would take the lead to evaluate A-50 
and provide recommendations to update.  

8/22/22 IA will follow up with CAP during 
the next quarterly update in 
October/November.  IA is also available to 
review the updates. 
 
8/17/2022.  CAP is meeting with 
Accounting to discuss and review the 
required policy updates.  
 
November 2022 - CAP indicated they 
continue to work on this item.  

 
         

M&S 18 Acct 
 

Invoice 
Routing 

 
 

Accounting should consider routing all 
invoices to all Agency staff and place 
the responsibility on department staff to 
perform receiving with shipping 
documents when those are available 
and use the invoices when 
delivery/shipping documents are not 
available.   
 
As an example, Maintenance indicated 
that the vendors Superior and Royal are 
a couple examples of vendors that 
include labor on the invoices and 
therefore, staff require the invoice for 
the receiving process. The Lab 
indicated that Fisher Scientific sends 
orders in partial shipments and does 
not include shipping documents 
therefore staff require the actual invoice 
from staff to perform the receiving. 

X    

 

2/23/2023 Due to the implementation of 
Esker, the invoice recognition software 
system, this recommendation is 
considered Implemented.   
 
Invoices are now uploaded to Esker 
and there is visibility by all.  The 
responsibility will fall on the 
department to ensure the receiving is 
completed timely and AP will follow up 
on open items. 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 7 of 21 

 
 

M&S 19 Acct 
 

Meetings 

Accounting should continue to lead 
periodic meetings with the 
administrative assistants or staff 
responsible for SAP receiving and if 
needed include CAP staff or others to 
discuss open items, invoices, receiving 
responsibilities and anything requiring 
attention to ensure vendor payments 
are made timely.   

 X     

CHEM 23 Acct 
 

Software 

Accounting should work with BIS to 
develop an Aging Report or a report 
that shows all outstanding invoice 
information, including total days 
held and outstanding or overdue so 
that Accounting can take prompt action. 
OR Accounting should work with BIS to 
export and fully utilize the Held 
Invoice Report to review all items 
and ensure any outstanding items 
are reviewed promptly. 
AND  Accounting should formalize and 
document specific procedures for how 
items are selected for matching and 
processing for payment before the due 
date. 

X 
   

On 8/2/22 the department responded the 
following:  CHEM # 23 – SAP already has an AP 
aging report; but as discussed in Strike Team 
meetings, the aging report does not address 
invoices that are not yet in SAP and/or on hold. 
Until we have visibility of all incoming invoices 
there is no report that BIS can develop that would 
address the observation noted. As such, the 
Agency is looking into the implementation of an 
AP automation solution. Pending that solution, 
Accounting has worked with IT to develop 
dashboards using SAP data downloaded into an 
Excel pivots/charts. This new tool has been 
helpful to understand the historical invoice 
payment volume and rate of on-time payments. 
These dashboard charts are also now being used 
by the Strike Team Lead (Ryan Ward) to evaluate 
progress and have been presented to Agency 
Senior Leadership. Regarding the invoices on 
hold, IT has provided instructions on how to 
download that data into Excel, and staff can use it 
to help sort through the data as needed. 
Accounting has informal desk manuals for how to 
match and process payments in SAP; however, 
any updated written procedures or formal SOPs 
are pending the potential implementation of an AP 
automation solution. We consider this 
recommendation implemented as only the SOP is 
outstanding which is addressed under 
recommendation CHEM #26.  
 
Prior Progress Update Responses: As of January 
2022, the Accounting Department continues to have 
staff vacancies, specifically replacement of an 
Accounting Technician who retired as of June 2021.  
The lack of staff has created a “triage” situation within 
the department, and when end-user’s department staff 
or vendor representatives inquire about an 
outstanding invoice, that invoice will demand AP 
staff’s attention and be processed as quickly as 
possible.  Given the volume of vendor payments to be 
processed vs the current staff workload capacity, it’s 
difficult for AP staff to proactively identify invoices that 

2/23/2023 2/23/2023 Due to the 
implementation of Esker, the invoice 
recognition software system, this 
recommendation is considered 
Implemented.  Esker provides 
dashboards and metrics.  There is an 
Aging report and metric.  
 
8/3/2022 Accounting has determined 
that placing all invoices in the "held" 
feature is the most efficient method to 
process AP items.  There is currently a 
desk procedure on the uploading/intake 
of invoices using the "held" feature.  
Accounting stated that a final SOP will 
be formalized and finalized upon the 
implementation of all new/updated 
accounting processes. This will be 
addressed through #26 below.  It 
should also be noted that in this 
recommendation IA also suggested 
there be a process for staff to monitor 
items to frequently review and evaluate 
the outstanding items and past due 
items and elevate them for additional 
attention and prompt processing.  IA 
provided this second part of the 
recommendation related to 
documenting how the Held Invoice 
database is used to track, monitor and 
prioritize payments, in the new 
recommendation under ENG #11. To 
streamline and simplify the 
recommendations, this 
recommendation will be considered 
Implemented since AP determines 
logging in the invoice held feature is a 
good control.  The part regarding SOPs 
is in progress in Reco #26 and Eng #11 
re utilizing the date in the invoice held 
feature continues to be In Progress. 
8/3/2022  
 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 8 of 21 

 
 

are overdue.  However, we disagree that staff are 
waiting to process payments until someone inquires.  
Instead, AP staff process payments based on: 
product/service being purchased (for example, priory 
is given to chemical vendors since the product is 
critical to plant operations), and if the goods receipt 
has been performed (i.e., ability to perform the 3-way 
match.)  Accounting management agrees it would be 
very helpful to be able to extract data from the SAP 
Held Screen (code MIR6 in SAP) and has advised BIS 
of our request. We will continue to work with BIS to 
create a report, or data extraction capabilities (i.e., 
export to Excel), of invoices pending on hold.  We 
additionally agree documented SOPs for vendor 
payment processing is needed (see also 
recommendation 26.) Further, management is 
considering updating the criteria used by SAP to 
select which payments to process, so that payments 
will be picked up by the system for processing prior to 
the due date (see also recommendation 25.) 
Additionally, the Accounting Supervisor is working 
closely with AP staff to help prioritize which payments 
to process, especially given the current workload and 
need to triage which invoices get processed first.    
 
Accounting management has reviewed with the IT 
Department what the Controller is calling the “P2P 
monitoring report” (not sure what the official name is?) 
that the IT Unit has developed. We believe the report 
will be useful to proactively identify items that are 
pending and will potentially delay payment, as well as 
be more helpful than a traditional “aging” report for 
this purpose. As a reminder, SAP does already have 
an AP aging report, but it only captures the 
transactions once received as that’s when the liability 
is booked to the balance sheet. See also 
recommendation #21 regarding extracting held invoice 
data, as well as #26 regarding SOPs.  

Prior Progress Update Response: This 
recommendation is considered In 
Progress.  Accounting has worked with IT 
and there is now a way to export the 
information into a report that can be used 
to sort and prioritize items.   The process 
for how and when to use the report should 
be documented in a SOP.  Planned date 
for full implementation is 2/28/22.   

CHEM 26 Acct 
 

SOP 

Formalize and document specific 
procedures to specify how and what 
items should be selected by AP staff 
to perform the 3-way match AND 
processing of payments, also 
specify the frequency of when this 
process should be completed.  SOPs 
establish consistent procedures for 
employees to follow and be trained and 
evaluated on.  

 
X 

  
Response on 8/2/2022: CHEM # 26 – Updated 
formal SOPs remain outstanding. At this time, 
dedicating AP staff to revising the SOPs will only 
slow down invoice processing. Even if an outside 
consultant is retained to document AP processes, 
staff will need to be interviewed, verify accuracy 
of documentation, and test the new SOPs. Further, 
the Agency is in process of obtaining AP 
automation software which will change the SOPs. 
While Accounting management agrees that 
updated SOPs are best practice, the existence of 
SOPs does not necessarily increase efficiency or 
on-time vendor payments. Additionally, 
Accounting already has many informal “desk 
manuals” that are used by new staff to guide then 
on the steps for processing; while not in standard 

8/5/2022:  this recommendation is 
specific to how and what items AP staff 
select to perform the 3-way match and 
process payments.   Accounting has 
committed to completing all SOPs after 
all processes have been finalized and 
adopted.  This recommendation will be 
considered In Progress until the SOP is 
documented. The department can 
provide desk procedures or draft SOPs 
for IA's review or provide an 
approximate timeline for 
implementation to consider this In 
Progress.IA considers the 
recommendation In Progress until the SOP 
is fully documented, finalized, distributed 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 9 of 21 

 
 

Agency SOP format, these desk manuals are 
effective in providing new and temporary staff 
instruction on how to process payments. In regard 
to a timeline of completion, we will align to and 
incorporate this task as part of implementation of 
any new AP automation software - TBD.   Staff 
also stated that while we continue to make 
changes to payment processes, we believe it 
would be a better use of staff time to wait until we 
finish other payment solutions. Prior Progress 
Update Response: Accounting Management agrees 
there is a need for documented SOPs for payment 
processing in order to establish consistence 
procedures and strengthen the internal control 
environment. We will complete a draft of SOPs for 
Executive Management review no later than January 
31, 2022, and/or once all recommendations and 
changes affecting AP processes have been 
implement.Response on 2/17/2022:  SOPs are in 
process; however, they are  taking much longer than 
anticipated, particularly given the unresolved lack of 
personnel capacity in the Accounting Unit. As noted at 
the Strike Team meeting, the AP Process Overview 
SOP was not ready for any sort of review but was 
forwarded only as evidence of the progress being 
made. The plan is for the Controller to continue to 
work on the AP Process Overview SOP, while the AP 
staff formalize and review all the various desk 
manuals, guides, cheat sheets, and other various 
references that are provided to staff. By February 
24th, we will have the Mail / Invoice Intake desk 
manual completed which will be used to assist in 
training the new Interns onboarding the week of 
February 28th. By March 24th, the Accounting Unit 
will submit a draft of the Process Overview SOP that 
is ready for review by the IA team, which will include 
the references (names) of the other desk manuals. 
We might combine some of the desk manuals or turn 
others into a full separate SOP?  The new (more 
realistic) goal for this entire project is the end of the 
fiscal year, June 30.   

to staff for training.  A Draft SOP was 
forwarded. IA will provide review 
comments and recommendation to 
consider in finalizing the SOP.   This 
recommendation suggests an SOP for the 
3-way match, other recommendations 
suggest SOPs for other processes and 
procedures within Accounting.   

CHEM 27 Acct 
 

Training  

Training should be provided periodically 
to reinforce the documented SOPs to 
ensure employees are following 
consistent procedures. 

 
X 

  
Response on 8/2/2022:  CHEM # 27 – Training on 
new SOPs is outstanding since updated SOPs 
aren’t completed. Note that training of AP staff is 
provided on an ongoing basis as needed. Existing 
SOPs and desk procedures are provided to new 
AP staff as part of the onboarding and on-the-job 
training process.  
Accounting Management agrees AP staff should be 
provided training on any new processed established 
as the result of this review.  The Accounting 
Supervisor will be responsible for ensuring the 
existing staff as well as new AP staff are trained on 
the SOPs, on an ongoing basis. In addition to training 

8/5/2022: This recommendation will be 
considered In Progress - there are no 
final SOPs to provide staff training on 
current process.  However, the 
department processes are evolving, 
and new staff have been hired and 
training is on-going.  IA requests a 
"plan for on-going and future training", 
for example, types of training, timeline 
and plans, etc.  Accounting staff have 
not provided an anticipated date for 
documentation of SOPs or planned 
training. Once all SOPs are formalized 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 10 of 21 

 
 

sessions, the Accounting Supervisor regularly meets 
with the AP team and will use those meetings to 
reinforce best practices as well as any updates to the 
SOPs.  
Response on 2/17/2022:  See recommendation # 26 
regarding timeline of SOP creation. As previously 
noted, training will be provided to new staff as they 
onboard, as well as on an ongoing basis. The SOPs 
will be distributed to all AP team members, and 
evidence of the distribution will be provided to IA as it 
occurs. While the SOPs are mostly documenting 
processes that are already occurring, any new or 
changed procedures will be communicated to the AP 
team via their weekly meetings with the Accounting 
Supervisor over AP.  

and finalized, Department management 
can determine how to best provide 
training and information on the new 
SOPs, a plan of action for that training 
can be provided as a response to this 
recommendation for an In Progress 
status. Additionally, Accounting staff 
should consider providing some type of 
training now even if SOPs have not 
been finalized, also for an In Progress 
status. 

CHEM 29 Acct 
 

KPIs 

Accounting should establish and 
document performance metrics and 
KPI's, goals and objectives and a 
method to measure how timely invoices 
are paid. 
Work with BIS to establish any reports 
that can provide measurements and 
metrics. 

 X   Response on 8/2/2022: CHEM # 29 – The primary AP 
KPIs related to invoice processing is to ensure 
payments are made to vendors within contract terms 
(no late payments), as well as not having audit 
findings from the external auditor related to vendor 
payments. IT developed a dashboard using SAP data 
uploaded into Excel pivot table / charts which shows 
how many PO invoices (VI documents) and non-PO 
invoices (VM documents) were paid on-time and the 
total volume per month. This dashboard has helped 
management look at historical and current on-time 
pay rates. The Agency is looking at an AP automation 
solution which includes analytic reports, allowing for 
easier monitoring of vendor payments. Once that 
solution is implemented, Accounting management will 
identify what monitoring reports best serve our needs 
to measure performance, and if any additional KPIs 
should be tracked.  
 
Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting 
Management agrees performance metrics and goals 
for on-time payments should be established. We will 
work with BIS to create any reports needed to monitor 
our department’s adherence with the performance 
metrics.  Accounting department management will use 
the established metrics to continue to monitor 
timeliness of vendor payments, identify the cause of 
transactions not meeting these goals, and how to 
prevent such delays.  The Accounting Supervisor will 
further consider these metrics as part of their 
probationary or annual evaluation of AP staff’s job 
performance. 

8/5/2022:  The response indicates that the 
department will explore KPIs after the AP 
automated solution is implemented.  The 
recommendation will continue to In 
Progress as with the prior progress report 
until KPIs have been established.  
 
Prior Progress Update disposition: IA 
considers this recommendation not 
implemented at this time.  Does 
Accounting have a timeline for establishing 
KPIs, goals and objectives and a method 
to measure how timely invoices are paid?  
 
Based on this new response, this 
recommendation will be considered In 
Progress until all Key Indicators are 
formalized and more defined 
measurements/goals are established, and 
the monitoring reports are being used to 
measure what is intended to measure.  
Once this practice is in place and 
consistently applied, the recommendation 
will be considered Implemented.     

CHEM 30 Acct 
 

SOP 

Document and formalize an Agency 
Policy or Department SOP about the 
requirement for completing 
receiving, matching, and processing 
payments. 
-Specify the types of documents that 

 
X 

  
8/2/2022 response provided:  CHEM # 30 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26. 
 
Prior Progress Update Responses:  The Strike Team 
responded that the recommendation will also be 
addressed in recommendation six (6) with the creation 

8/5/2022:  This recommendation is 
related to SOPs.  This specific Reco #30 
is related to documenting the 
requirement for completing receiving, 
matching and processing payments, to 
specify the types of documents that 
should be included and verified in SAP 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 11 of 21 

 
 

should be included and verified in 
SAP or other required reports, before 
payments are processed. 
-Specify if the Bill of Lading provided 
by the delivery drivers to the 
operators should be uploaded into 
SAP at the time SAP Receiving is 
completed or be retained in hard-
copy and where specifically. 

of a SOP.   
 
Accounting management recommends the Bill of 
Lading continue to be attached to the receiving 
transaction in SAP by the receiver. Receiving support 
documents, such as the Bill of Lading, assists AP staff 
in verification of the 3-way match since sometime the 
information on the invoice doesn’t align with the 
information on the purchase order and/or to resolve 
errors in the receiving that may prevent payment 
processing. Hard copies of documents do not need to 
be forwarded to the Accounting Department. 

or other required reports needed before 
payments are processed - specifically 
to address the need for a Bill of Lading 
or other deliver document.  
Recommendation Chem #26 is related 
to document the process for when and 
how the matching is completed and 
when payments are processed only.  
This recommendation, CHEM #30 
steamed from the audit finding where 
35% of the Bill of Lading items were 
missing. If these documents were 
missing, how was accounting able to 
complete the 3-way match?  While 
Chem #26 suggests the SOPs, CHEM 
#30 suggests incorporating details of 
the information that should be obtained 
and used to complete the matching. If 
accounting has a desk procedure, 
please provide for IA review.  Both #26 
and #30 will be considered In Progress.   
 
Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the 
provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress. 

CHEM 31 Acct 
 

SOP 

Document and formalize in an Agency 
Policy or Department SOP about the 
requirement for completing receiving, 
matching, and processing payments. 
 
-Specify the types of documents that 
should be included and verified in 
SAP or other required reports, before 
payments are processed. 
 
-Specify that the invoice received by 
Accounts Payable should be 
documented with a date received 
and uploaded into SAP and 
accurately matched to the 
corresponding transaction. 
 
Accounting should work with BIS to 
develop an Aging Report or a report 
that shows all outstanding invoice 
information, including total days held 
and outstanding or overdue so that 
Accounting can take prompt action.  

 
X 

  
8/2/2022 response provided:  CHEM # 31 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26. 
 
Accounting management agrees SOPs need to be 
created to document the vendor payment process 
(see also recommendation 26.)  Accounting 
management will follow-up with BIS to create a report 
or the ability to pull data from the hold screen (MIR6) 
to determine how long invoices have been pending 
payment (see also recommendation 23.)  

8/5/2022:  This is a 4-part 
recommendation re SOP:  
1. SOP re receiving, matching and 
processing pmts.  This first item is being 
addressed under CHEM #26 
2. Specify the types of documents that 
should be included and verified in SAP 
or other required reports.  
3.  Specify that the invoice received by 
AP should be documented with a date 
received and uploaded into SAP and 
accurately matched to the 
corresponding transaction.  
4. develop a report that shows all 
outstanding invoices - this portion of the 
recommendation is being addressed under 
CHEM #23 re Aging or other tracking 
report.  
 
Reco #31 is related to the findings 
noted in the report:  8% of items tested 
did not include an invoice in SAP.  How 
did AP staff complete the matching and 
the payment?   In 3% of items tested AP 
staff did not document the date the 
invoice was received (no date-stamp on 
invoice).  
In 13% of items tested there was a 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 12 of 21 

 
 

difference in the amounts paid when 
compared to the amount of the 
vendor's invoice. 
A policy or SOP should incorporate the 
requirements for the detailed items 
needed and the supporting documents 
that should be included.  
Recommendation Chem #26 is related 
to document the process for when and 
how the matching is completed and 
when payments are processed.  This 
recommendation will be considered IP 
until all items are addressed in new 
SOP or alternate controls or 
department disagrees with the 2 
remaining items. 
 
Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the 
provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress. 

CHEM 32 Acct 
 

SOP 

Document and formalize in an Agency 
Policy or Department SOP about the 
requirement and expectation for the 
accuracy of data entry. 
 
-Emphasize the importance that staff 
is expected to make every attempt to 
ensure the data entered in SAP for 
receiving and invoice processing 
needs to be accurate and accurately 
match the corresponding supporting 
documentation. 
 
-Specify when it is allowable and 
when it is not allowable to back-post 
or post-date information.   

 
X 

  
8/2/2022 Response provided: CHEM # 32 – 
Accounting staff communicate with Agency 
receivers on a daily basis. Accounting staff 
additionally participate in the CAP Café and other 
trainings, such as the Fiscal Year End Training, to 
advise receivers on best practices. We consider 
this recommendation implemented as only the 
SOP is outstanding which is addressed under 
recommendation CHEM # 26.   
 
Prior Progress Update Response: The Strike Team 
responded that the recommendation will also be 
addressed in recommendation six (6) with the creation 
of a SOP.    
 
 Accounting management agrees a formal Agency 
Policy regarding appropriate use of data fields within 
SAP is needed. For AP processes, the data field 
usage will be defined withing the AP SOPs (see also 
recommendation 26.) Accounting management will 
further consult with other Agency departments 
regarding suggested best practices to incorporate 
within SOPs over SAP receiving or other P2P 
processes. Additionally, the Accounting Supervisor 
will provide feedback and training to receivers on the 
use of SAP data fields as part of the ongoing bi-
weekly coordination meetings with Administrative 
Assistants (see also recommendation 28.)  

8/5/2021: The intent of the 
recommendation is meant to have 
accounting take the lead to clarify, 
inform and emphasize the importance 
of data entry accuracy with regards to 
dating information.  The finding related 
to this recommendation noted that 15% 
of items tested had incorrect/inaccurate 
dates or data resulting from either data-
entry errors or back-posting 
information. This recommendation will 
remain In Progress if accounting will 
address this in an SOP or if there is any 
communication re these. CHEM #26 is 
specific to an SOP for procedures 
related to matching and processing 
payments.  
 
Prior Progress Update disposition: Per 
responses provided on 2/17/22, the 
provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress. 

 

CHEM 33 Acct 
 

SOP 

Document and formalize in an Agency 
Policy or Department SOP about the 
requirement and expectation for the 
accuracy of data entry. 

 
X 

  
8/2/2022 Accounting response: CHEM # 33 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26. 
 
Prior Progress Update Responses: The Strike Team 

8/5/2022:  Recommendation #26 
specifically relates to documenting the 
methodology for performing the 
matching and processing payments.  
This reco #33 is a 4-part 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 13 of 21 

 
 

 
-Specify what is an acceptable best 
practice and approximate time frame 
for processing the invoice, complete 
the 3-way match, and process for 
payment.  
 
-Specify how invoices uploaded are 
monitored to ensure that items are 
processed by the payment terms.  
 
-Specify how delayed items should 
be handled and communicated with 
the goal of issuing payment by the 
payment terms or that items are 
processed by the payment terms. 

responded that the recommendation will also be 
addressed in recommendation six (6) with the creation 
of a SOP.   
 
Similar to recommendation thirty-three (33), 
Accounting management agrees a formal Agency 
Policy regarding appropriate use of data fields within 
SAP is needed. For AP processes, the data field 
usage will be defined withing the AP SOPs (see also 
recommendation twenty-six (26).) Accounting 
management will further consult with other Agency 
departments regarding suggested best practices to 
incorporate within SOPs over SAP receiving or other 
P2P processes. Additionally, the Accounting 
Supervisor will provide feedback and training to 
receivers on the use of SAP data fields as part of the 
ongoing bi-weekly coordination meetings with 
Administrative Assistants (see also recommendation 
twenty-eight (28)).  

recommendation:   
 
1. to document a procedure for the 
expectation of accuracy of data - this is 
going to be addressed with CHEM #32 
above. 
2. to specify the expected time frame 
for processing the invoice - uploading it 
in the database, when 3way match 
should be completed and process for 
payment.  These would provide the 
metrics needed to track the 
performance of AP duties and track the 
progress of invoices. This part of the 
recommendation is In Progress, 
pending completion of all SOPs and 
KPIs established as well as training. 
3. to specify how invoices are monitored to 
ensure they are paid on time.  This is 
being addressed through the 
recommendation related to creating an 
aging or other tracking report that provides 
visibility of all invoices received and 
through the implementation of the software 
system.  
4.to specify how delayed items should 
be handled and communicated.  This 
part of the recommendation requires 2 
above be completed so there is a 
monitoring tool then there needs to be 
some communication or procedure on 
what is done when items are delayed.  
 
This recommendation was also 
provided as a result of the audit 
findings in the report:   
20% of items tested were paid after the 
invoice due date even when the 
receiving was completed within less 
than 15 days.  What measures can AP 
put in place to prevent late payments 
when receiving is done timely?  
80% of items tested were paid late 
because receiving was completed date.  
However, the payment was issued 
between 1-180 days after the receiving 
was completed and they invoices were 
already overdue.  What tool/method 
does AP have to monitor late 
invoices/late receiving?   
 
There does not appear to be any 
procedures for handling delayed items 
and there does not appear to be a 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 14 of 21 

 
 

systematic method to select items that 
have been received for timely payment.  
 
Prior Progress Update disposition: Per 
responses provided on 2/17/22, the 
provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress. 

CHEM 35 Acct 
 

SOP 

Document and formalize in an Agency 
Policy or Department SOP about the 
requirements and expectations for 
AP staff to open/download invoices, 
date, upload, match and process 
invoices in SAP and process 
payments.  
Consider establishing KPI’s and/or 
benchmarks to determine a 
reasonable amount for invoice 
retrieving, uploading, matching, and 
posting to be performed and 
processing the Invoices for payment. 

 
X 

  
8/2/2022 Accounting response: CHEM # 35 –  This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26. 
 
Prior Progress Update Response:  Accounting 
Management agrees there is a need for documented 
SOPs for payment processing in order to establish 
consistence procedures and strengthen the internal 
control environment. We will complete a draft of SOPs 
for Executive Management review no later than 
January 31, 2022, and/or once all recommendations 
and changes affecting AP processes have been 
implement (see also recommendation twenty-six (26)).   
Accounting Management agrees performance metrics 
and goals for on-time payments should be established 
(see also recommendation twenty-nine (29)).  

8/5/2022:  Recommendation #26 
specifically relates to the method for 
when and how the 3-way match 
process is selected and how invoices 
are selected and processed for 
payments.  This reco #35 is specifically 
related to:  
 
1. the requirements of AP staff to 
open/download, date, upload and 
match and process invoices in SAP and 
process payments on time. What is the 
acceptable timeframe for AP staff to 
acknowledge the invoices and upload 
for monitoring and tracking?    
2. incorporate goals/objectives and 
KPIs specific to AP staff duties. 
 
The original audit findings noted that 
13% of the items tested, AP staff 
"received by AP staff date" was more 
than 30 days after the vendor's invoice 
date. This delayed the invoice 
processed by AP.  30 days after the 
invoice date will make the payment late.  
In these items all invoices were emailed 
to the AP email address.  There were no 
reference notes as to the reasons for 
the delay in the receiving of the invoice.  
There needs to be a consistent method 
for the timing of retrieving the invoices 
and uploading them to begin the 
payment process.  
This recommendation will continue to 
be In Progress until the department 
determines a method with 
timelines/metrics for the different 
activities.  
Prior Progress Update disposition:  Per 
responses provided on 2/17/22, the 
provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress. 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 15 of 21 

 
 

ENG 10 Acct The Accounting management evaluate 
and make necessary updates to its 
internal processes and procedures to 
ensure all professional service 
invoices are received by AP staff and 
are immediately sent to the 
corresponding Agency department 
for approval and receiving.   
 
Accounting management continuously 
work closely with the E&CM 
Department and other Agency 
Departments and keep a reference list 
of the professional/consulting 
services vendors that each 
Department is managing, to ensure 
proper reference and routing of the 
invoices is done immediately upon 
receipt.  This will require continuous 
communication with the Departments as 
well as continuous communication with 
vendors to specify instructions for 
submitting invoices.   
 
Accounting management track the 
professional/consulting services 
invoices in the Invoice Held database 
or other tracking database to monitor 
when they are received by the Agency 
and when they are due for payment.  

 
X 

  
Response provided on 8/2/2022: ENG # 10 – 
Accounting believes a significant benefit to 
implementing an AP automation software solution will 
be the ability to capture and make visible within the 
system all incoming invoices, as well as provide a 
workflow and/or forwarding capability within the 
system which is more efficient than the current 
process. Meanwhile, to increase the efficiency of 
forwarding invoices that need approval, the AP team 
has created a “cheat sheet” using Excel of service 
vendors and the associated department personnel the 
invoice should be forwarded to. This guide is now 
being used by the Accounting Interns responsible for 
mail processing, invoice in-take and forwarding. 
Accounting has also been using an invoice in-take log 
to capture all invoices that come into the Accounting 
department. Accounting management believes the 
best solution for this audit observation will be AP 
automation software. Although selection and 
implementation of the software is still pending, see 
recommendation ENG # 12, that solution was not part 
of this recommendation; as such, Accounting 
considers this recommendation implemented as 
noted. Additionally, staff stated that staff is instructed 
to review the inbox and mail daily and forward to the 
appropriate department immediately.  
 
First Progress Update Response: The Agency is 
currently in the process of evaluating technology 
solutions to improve the visibility of incoming invoices, 
as well as possibility of creating workflow to distribute 
and approve invoices. BIS has been coordinating 
these efforts. Last demo held on 4/5/22; next 
scheduled for 4/18/22. 
 
Accounting and Finance Management meets with 
E&CM monthly to, amongst other topics, review 
issues with payments to vendors.  The last meeting 
was on 3/29/22. Additionally, the Supervisor of 
Engineering Services and the Accounting Supervisor 
do share lists of vendors used by E&CM, as well as 
lists of invoices received in AP.  As part of review of 
these recommendations, EN&C staff met with 
Accounting Management, as well as CAP and IT staff 
on 4/6/22 to review possible areas of improvement for 
the P2P for services.  

8/5/2022:  This is a 3-part 
recommendation and accounting 
agrees with the recommendation:   
1. Invoices should be immediately sent 
to departments: Is this being done, if 
so, how?  
2. create a reference list of the 
professional services with the 
corresponding department to help in 
routing. Per the response provided by 
accounting, the "cheat sheet" should 
facilitate identifying where the invoices 
go.  This portion of the 
recommendation will be considered 
implemented pending IA receives a 
copy of the cheat sheet.  
3. Invoice Held tracking: Per 
accounting, all invoices are now 
tracked in the invoice held feature. 
 
First progress update disposition: Per 
Accounting's response, Accounting plans 
to move forward with implementing a new 
technology solution to improve uploading 
invoices received.  This will be an on-
going, long-term project to address the 
recommendation. 
 
In the meantime, to address the 
recommendation based on the 
current/existing practices, Accounting will 
continue to use current processes to 
receive and forward invoices.  No changes 
to current practices are planned?  The 
recommendation suggests to: *evaluate an 
update internal processes to immediately 
send the invoice to the department, *to 
work closely with E&CM to keep a 
reference list of the professional/consulting 
service vendors, including continuous 
communication, and *to track the service 
invoices.  Accounting did not respond to 
these items in the recommendation.  The 
response indicates that the plan is to work 
on implementing new software.  If 
Accounting disagrees with the 
recommendation, please indicate so.  
 
As of 4/18/22, based on the response 
provided, this recommendation is 
considered Not Implemented, pending full 
implementation of new software.  

 

ENG 11 Acct The Accounting management should 
   

X As of January 2023, the Agency has implemented 
a software program, Esker, which has changed the 

2/23/23  Per staff’s response regarding 
the implementation of Esker and the 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 16 of 21 

 
 

 take the lead to work with the IT 
Department to develop useful 
monitoring report from SAP to assist 
with the review, tracking, and 
monitoring invoice due dates, open 
invoices, and prioritizing payments. 
(Note:  This similar recommendation 
was provided in the Procure to Pay 
Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-one (21).  As 
of February 15, 2022, the IT 
Department has developed a way to 
export the data into excel to create 
reports).   
New Recommendation:   
The Accounting management should 
determine how this new 
reporting/monitoring tool 
(information from the Held Invoices) 
will be used and implement a 
procedure to assist with tracking, 
monitoring and prioritizing making 
timely payments.  

way incoming invoices are processed. The 
discussion regarding the use of MIR6 screen in 
SAP is no longer relevant.   
 
Response on 8/2/2022: ENG # 11 – The 
recommendation is to create monitoring reports, 
specifically to review invoices that are pending in 
MIR6. Accounting does not believe that is necessary, 
as AP staff and management can look at and review 
the items on hold using the existing SAP screens. 
Working with IT, staff now know how to download this 
data into Excel to view/sort more easily as needed; 
see also CHEM recommendation #21. As such, 
Accounting management disagrees with the 
recommendation and instead suggest that purchase 
and implementation of an AP automated software 
solution that includes monitoring reporting capability is 
a better solution; see ENG recommendation # 12. 
Accounting doesn’t agree with this recommendation.  
 
Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting now 
has the ability to export data on held invoices in SAP 
(via the MIR6 transaction) into Excel. This has been 
helpful when researching the status of a payment. 
Additionally, the Interns that joined Accounting as of 
2/28/22 are now trained on mail processing / invoice 
in-take process, and have been maintaining the 
invoice log. This log records all invoices that come into 
Accounting, either by email or post mail. However, we 
continue to struggle with visibility of all incoming 
invoices, and are looking into additional technology 
solutions as noted above (see recommendation 
number 10.) Pending the Agency possibility 
purchasing an external solution, we have held off on 
creating any additional reports. Further, any reports 
derived from the data in SAP will not capture the non-
PO invoices. Accounting many times is not aware that 
a non-PO purchase has been made, and therefore 
has no way of knowing there is an invoice outstanding 
until it arrives in Accounting. We would like to see 
adherence to the Agency's Purchasing Ordinance by 
all Agency staff, so that the vast majority of all 
purchases are made using a PO (note this is not 
specific to services, but is an issue with various types 
of purchases.) 

feaures for processing invoices, 
indicates there is no longer a need to 
review MIR6 in SAP.  IA considers this 
recommendation No Longer Applicable. 
 
8/5/2022:  
This recommendation may be similar to 
CHEM #21 but it is not the same.  As 
noted, the recommendation was 
Updated for this report only.  
 
The "new recommendation" suggests 
for accounting, as a best practice, to 
implement a method/report for viewing, 
tracking, monitoring and prioritizing all 
invoices to plan to make all payments 
timely, specifically to monitor all 
payments in one report with greater 
visibility.  Based on the response 
provided by Accounting - The 
department will not be using the 
invoice held information to assist with 
tracking, monitoring and prioritizing 
making payments, the department 
believes navigating through the various 
screens for view items on hold.  One 
single report would perhaps be more 
efficient.   
 
The department now disagrees with the 
recommendation, does the department 
have an alternate control that is in 
place to track, monitor, view and 
prioritize invoices for payment?  If so, 
please provide a copy to clear the 
recommendation.  If the department will 
wait until the software solution is 
implemented, this recommendation will 
continue to be in In Progress. 
 
Prior Progress Update Disposition:   
The recommendation states that 
Accounting should determine how to use 
the MIR6 export into excel and determine 
how it will be used for tracking, monitoring, 
prioritizing and making timely payments.    
The recommendation suggests to 
document this into a procedure to assist 
with consistency of this process.    
 
The recommendation was not addressed.  
This recommendation is considered Not 
Implemented. 
 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 17 of 21 

 
 

The response provides information on:  1. 
the mail processing/ invoice in-take 
process, 2. invoice log (in addition to the 
Invoice Held screen), 3.evaluation of 
technology solutions to assist with visibility 
of all incoming invoices, 4. Non-PO 
invoices and transactions, 5. Procurement 
Ordinance adherence. 
 
However, the recommendation is 
suggesting Accounting document a 
methodology/procedure for how it intends 
to use the MIR6 information to review, 
track, and monitor invoice due dates and 
open invoices and prioritize payments. 
Since this step was not addressed, the 
recommendation is considered Not 
Implemented.  If Accounting does agree 
with this recommendation, please indicate 
so and why.  

ENG 12 Acct The Accounting management should 
take the lead to work with the IT 
Department and determine if an invoice 
recognition software or other 
technology tools could assist with the 
uploading of invoices. 

X 
   

Response on 8/5/2022: ENG # 12 – Accounting 
agrees with this recommendation and 
implementation is in progress.  
 
Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting concurs 
with this recommendation and is currently working 
with IT staff to determine feasibility.  (See also 
recommendation 10 above.)  Note too that if such as 
solution is purchased, we will need to revise any 
relevant SOP related to vendor payment processing.  

2/23/2023 2/23/2023 Due to the 
implementation of Esker, the invoice 
recognition software system, this 
recommendation is considered 
Implemented.   
 
8/5/2022 Recommendation is In 
Progress. Accounting continues to 
work with IT attending demos from 2 
different vendors.    
 
Prior Progress Update disposition: IA has 
participated in some of the meetings and 
demonstrations regarding software 
solutions for invoice recognition.  This 
recommendation is considered IP.  

ENG 13 Acct It is recommended that the 
Accounting management: 
• establish a procedure to track all 
open invoice issues, 
• open invoice issues are reviewed 
by the Accounts Payable supervisor 
at the end of each month to ensure 
open items are cleared, 
• work with the IT Department to 
determine a more streamlined/efficient 
process in SAP to verify that receiving 
was completed and expedite the three-
way match, and 
• utilize software tools such as SAP 
Concur for invoice process and 

X 
   

Response on 8/2/2022: ENG # 13 –  This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26. 
 
Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting does 
not believe that the variability in the time it takes to 
process one vendor payment vs another is an 
indication of poor internal controls, but instead is the 
nature of processing a variety of types and complexity 
of invoices, as well as other factors that determine the 
time it takes to perform the 3-way match.   
An external technology solution may assist in the 
efficiency of the matching process, as well as AP’s 
ability to more quickly follow-up on issue or 
outstanding items preventing payment processing. 
Accounting is currently working with IT to explore 
options. (See recommendation 12 above.)  
While the statistics noted in the observation do not 

2/23/2023 2/23/2023 Due to the 
implementation of Esker, the invoice 
recognition software system, this 
recommendation is considered 
Implemented.  With the implementation 
of Esker, issues will be visible and easy 
to follow up on.  AP noted they have 
several meetings during the week to 
evaluate the items that are not being 
processed and cleared.  
 
8/5/2022:  This recommendation 
specifically suggests that accounting 
establish a procedure or process for 4 
items and by procedure/process it is 
intended to be an actual step in the 
process, a control, an added tool; this 
recommendation is not indicating a 

 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 18 of 21 

 
 

management. align to historical trends noted when data is pulled 
directly from SAP (using the FBL1N transaction), it is 
known that vendor payments aren’t being processed 
timely. However, there are many factors, as 
evidenced by the recommendations in this report to 
departments throughout the Agency, not just 
Accounting, that influences the timeliness of vendor 
payments. Using transactional data pulled from SAP 
directly (again, via FBL1N), after each payment run (at 
least weekly) Accounting Management (Deborah / 
Javier) look at the payments that were paid 
significantly late (over 60+ days) to analyze the cause 
of the delay to identity possibly process improvement 
opportunities. These issues and possible preventive 
solutions are discussed with the Accounting 
Supervisor during weekly meetings.  
We do not agree that creating a separate tracking for 
“invoice issues” is an efficient way to monitor vendor 
payment processing. Instead, on an ongoing basis, as 
part processing payments, AP staff follow-up on 
issues that are preventing invoices from being 
processed. The Accounting Supervisor reviews open 
invoice issues on a daily basis through monitoring the 
AP Group email, the GR/IR report (FBL3N screen for 
account 200900), as well as through communication 
with AP and other Agency staff. 

written/documented SOP is needed as 
that is addressed separately.  The 
processes recommended are:  1) to 
track all open invoice issues 2) open 
invoice issues are reviewed by a 
supervisor to ensure these are cleared 
3) research a more efficient process to 
expedite the 3-way match 4) utilize a 
software tool for invoice management.   
Per all responses 3 is being addressed 
under prior recommendation, 4 is also 
it's standalone recommendation in Eng 
#12.  Accounting needs to address 1 
and 2 and demonstrate there is a 
control or process in place for these 
and demonstrate how.  These are 
provided as a recommendation 
because the findings under this audit 
were that 73% totaling over $1M in 
professional services invoices were 
paid late in FYs2019 and 2020.  The 
follow up question is:  what alternate 
controls and best practices can 
accounting demonstrate to show that 
these findings/recommendations are 
being addressed?  This recommendation 
will be considered in progress because 2 
of the 4 bullet points are being addressed 
under other recommendations and 
anticipating accounting has adopted 
different processes to address the first 2. 
Prior Progress Update disposition: The 
recommendation is suggesting controls to 
improve how invoices are selected to be 
matched and processed for payment.  
"Controls" include anything related to a 
process/procedure. IA has not been 
provided with any documented procedures 
for how the department selects and 
processes matching and payments.  The 
recommendation is encouraging and 
suggesting that the department work to * 
formalize a procedure/process to track all 
open invoices, *formalize a 
procedure/process to review open invoice 
issues by a supervisor at the end of each 
month to ensure that anything that is due 
and was not processed for payment is 
addressed and follow up on, *work with IT 
to determine a more efficient process 
within SAP to verify that any items pending 
receiving are addressed/resolved so that 
they are paid timely, and to *utilize SAP to 
manage invoices, which includes 



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 19 of 21 

 
 

continuously reviewing invoices that are 
due and require receiving and to ensure 
there is a process in place to follow up.   
 
Per the response provided, the 
recommendation is considered In 
Progress, until the department 
documents/implements a SOP for 
reviewing, monitoring invoices. 

ENG 14 Acct The Accounting management work 
with the IT Department to evaluate 
the feasibility of implementing a 
centralized SharePoint portal (like the 
one developed for E&CM) and 
determine if it would be of value to have 
for all Professional Services invoices 
where they can be stored for further 
processing.   In addition, Share Point 
can assist AP staff in sorting and 
identifying invoices for their staff and 
ensure they track the approvals 
needed.Accounting management 
should work with IT to determine the 
feasibility of utilizing SAPs workflow 
process to route invoices for approval 
while keeping track of where they are in 
the approval process and ensuring 
timely payments.Additionally, 
establish formal, documented 
procedures for Accounting and other 
departments using SharePoint to 
ensure there is consistency in using 
SharePoint and timely processing 
invoices for approval and payment.  

X 
   

8/2/2022 response provided: ENG # 14 – The 
solution suggested is purchase and 
implementation of AP automation software, as 
outlined under recommendation ENG # 12. 
Accounting requests this recommendation be 
changed to “NA” and/or combined with ENG # 
12.Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting 
concurs with the recommendation and is currently 
working with IT to evaluate possible technology-based 
solutions to assist with the routing of invoices. (See 
recommendation 10 and 12 above.)  

2/23/2023 2/23/2023 Due to the 
implementation of Esker, the invoice 
recognition software system, this 
recommendation is considered 
Implemented.  With the implementation 
of Esker, sharepoint portal is not 
necessary as all items are visible.   
 
8/5/2022:  This is a 3-part 
recommendation - the original finding 
was related to making the routing of 
service invoices more efficient and 
eliminating the lack of visibility of the 
invoices when routed. The 3 parts are: 
1- work with IT re SharePoint - this part 
has been addressed, per emails and 
correspondence related to new 
improvements. 2-utilizing workflows to 
route invoices - this part is In Progress 
pending the implementation of a 
software tool. 3-formal, documented 
procedures specific for Accounting and 
department staff using SharePoint - this 
is being addressed through - based on 
recent review of email correspondence, 
this is being drafted for email 
distribution. IA considers this 
recommendation In Progress pending 
finalizing the process for the various 
SharePoint folders and the instructions 
on using such. Prior Progress Update 
Disposition: Per Accounting's response, 
Accounting plans to move forward with 
implementing a new technology solution to 
improve uploading invoices received.  This 
will be an on-going, long-term project to 
address the recommendation.This 
recommendation will be considered In 
Progress. 

 

P&R 10 Acct To minimize delays in routing invoices 
for approval and paying on time, IA 
recommends Accounting take the lead 
to work closely with the IT and 
respective departments involved to:  

X 
   

8/2/2022 Response received: P&R # 10 – 
Recommendations implemented under other audit 
observation; see recommendation ENG # 10. 
Accounting considers this recommendation 
implemented.   

2/23/2023 2/23/2023 Due to the 
implementation of Esker, the invoice 
recognition software system, this 
recommendation is considered 
Implemented.  With the implementation of 
Esker, all items are uploaded and are 
visible by all, workflow is on Esker.  



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 20 of 21 

 
 

1) determine if having an updated list of 
current vendors and related projects per 
department would be a good reference 
to rely on for timely/properly routing 
invoices,  
2) determine if a SharePoint Document 
Library (similar to the one developed for 
Engineering & Construction 
Management) will assist with routing,  
3) implement other technologies and 
solutions (new and/or existing) or 
workflow to implement a more efficient 
tool to manage and route invoices that 
are shared amongst various Agency 
departments, and\ 
4) work directly with vendors to request 
they add additional identifying 
information directly on the invoices 
(project/contract, PM, etc.). 

 
This recommendation is considered In 
Progress per the updates provided and 
discussed with Planning.  
 
8/5/2022: In Reco ENG #10, currently In 
Progress, accounting stated that they believe 
there will be a significant benefit to 
implementing an AP automation software 
solution with the ability to capture and make 
visible within the system all incoming invoices 
as well as provide a workflow capability which 
will be more efficient than the current 
process.  This response indicates that AP is 
supportive and pending the implementation of 
the new AP software tool and will rely on this 
tool to establish a consistent system and best 
practice for uploading and routing vendor 
invoices to the correct department.   
In the response provided AP did not address 
the fourth item which states that the 
department work with vendors to request they 
add additional identifying information on the 
invoices so that it assists identifying where 
the invoices go.  
IA determines this recommendation as In 
Progress until Accounting can provide a final 
disposition for item #4 to determine if this is 
something they will work on.  All other items 
of this recommendation will be considered No 
Longer Applicable since the software solution 
will be addressed under ENG #12. And the 
routing of professional service invoices is 
being addressed through ENG #10.   

P&R 11  Acct Accounting management should take 
the lead to work directly with P&R 
department to determine the most 
efficient/effective way to communicate 
that the receiving function in SAP has 
been performed. Both departments 
should discuss and agree if there is a 
need to use email communication for 
invoice management.  

 
X 

  
8/2/2022 Response received: P&R # 11 – A 
meeting was held on July 18, 2022, with P&R 
management and administrative personnel. No 
specific changes to procedures resulted. 
Accounting management believes implementation 
of an AP automation software will allow for AP 
visibility of invoices being routed for signature; 
see recommendation ENG # 12.  

8/5/2022:  The intent of the 
recommendation is to eliminate the many 
emails that come to accounting from 
internal and external sources.  It is unclear 
what the consistent message and process 
will be. It is unclear what the process will 
be.  When reviewing the response in ENG 
#16 re the new internal email address and 
this response and our discussion with 
Planning, it is unclear what the 
communication to staff is and what 
Accounting will do.  Accounting is 
choosing to keep the same process in 
place and not make any changes or 
modification to the current 
communication process.  Accounting 
believes that the implementation of the 
software solution will be a benefit to this 
process.  IA considers this 
recommendation In Progress until there is 
one consistent method across the Agency 
to simplify the process and to assist with 
eliminating the email traffic.  



P2P Audit Recommendations - 5th Progress Update Report 
Page 21 of 21 

 
 

 

 Status  

Unit Implemented 
In 

Progress 
Not 

Implemented 
No Longer 
Applicable 

Total Original Audit 
Recommendations 

Operations – Materials & Supplies - 2 0 - 2 

Maintenance – Materials & Supplies - 2 0 - 2 

Warehouse – Materials & Supplies - 2 0 - 2 

Water Quality Laboratory – Materials & 
Supplies  

- 4 0 - 4 

Facilities and Water System Programs – 
Materials & Supplies 

- 2 0 - 2 

Procurement Card Program 2 1 0 - 3 

Contracts and Procurement 7 3 0 1 11 

Accounting 10 11 0 10 31 

Operations – Chemicals 12 0 0 4 16 

Engineering & Construction Management 6 0 0 1 7 

Planning 4 0 0 2 6 

Home Depot Credit Cards 0 0 0 7 7 

Total Recommendations  41 27 0 25 93 

Percentages 44% 29% 0% 27% 100% 

 



Progress Update
for all P2P Audit Recommendations

Fifth Update

Teresa Velarde 

Manager of Internal Audit 

March 15, 2023



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit

2

Interim Audit Report: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit

Date Issued Recommendations

August 20, 2021 Interim Audit Report 

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals

Date Issued Recommendations

November 24, 2021 35

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services –

Engineering & Construction Management (E&CM)

Date Issued Recommendations

February 24, 2022 21

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Planning and Resources

Date Issued Recommendations

May 24, 2022 11

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards

Date Issued Recommendations

September 1, 2022 7 (no longer applicable)

The Agency has taken steps to phase out the Home Depot Credit Card program and absorb the purchases through the expanded Procurement Card

program, as originally proposed by IA through the Procurement Card Audit in 2018. IA will not follow up on the 7 recommendations.

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies

Date Issued Recommendations

December 2, 2022 19

Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Pay Estimates

Date Issued Recommendations

February 27, 2023 12
27



Audit Recommendations related to the P2P Audits

3

Of the 93 recommendations: 

• 41 are now implemented (44% of all recommendations)

• 27 are in progress of being implemented (29% of all recommendations)

• 25 are considered no longer applicable because alternate controls were implemented

• 7 of the 24 are related to the Home Depot Credit Cards and no longer applicable.



P2P Recommendations In Progress

4

Of the 27 recommendations in Progress: 

11 recommendations are in progress of being implemented by the Finance Department

• 6 relate to documenting Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the many processes

• 2 relate to establishing Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the various processes 
completed by the department to implement measurable metrics

• 1 relates to making email communication more efficient

• 1 relates to providing staff with on-going training after SOPs and KPIs are adopted

• 1 relates to having periodic and on-going meetings with administrative staff and others to 
discuss receiving functions and other items that require attention



P2P Recommendations In Progress

5

Of the 27 recommendations in Progress: 

3 recommendations are in progress of being implemented by Contracts and Procurement (CAP)

• One relates to Agency Policy A-50 and needed updates.  Policy documents the approval 
authorities for Non-PO items.  The policy updates will be made once Esker, is fully 
implemented. 

• One relates to making processes more efficient in SAP by setting up an automated purchase 
order processing system where upon approval, small dollar POs automatically generate the 
purchase order. 

• One suggests to include an area in SAP where users can add requestor contact information 
in case there are follow up questions. 



P2P Recommendations In Progress

6

Of the 27 recommendations in Progress: 

12 recommendations are in progress of being implemented by various units: 

Operations, Maintenance, Warehouse, Water Quality Laboratory and Facilities & Water Systems Programs

• The 12 recommendations relate to tightening internal controls related to the receiving function to 
ensure receiving is completed timely and as soon as possible to allow Accounting sufficient time to 
process payments. 

• Recommended SOPs for the timely completion of receiving

• Recommended staff rely on other SAP reports to manage and track open items

• Recommended improving communications among the departments and timely follow up of items



P2P Recommendations In Progress

7

Of the 27 recommendations in Progress: 

1 recommendation is in progress of being implemented by the Procurement Card Administrator

• The recommendation relates to finalizing and implementing clear guidelines for the use 
of the Procurement Card.  The policy is currently in draft form, IA has provided 
comments, the policy is being evaluated by Human Resources before it is finalized and 
implemented. Currently, the draft policy is provided to all Agency employees who are 
issued a new P-Card. 



Agencywide Highlights & Implementation Strategies 
to address P2P recommendations 

8

• Implementation of Esker

• Accounting Department Staff Changes

• Continuous review and update of processes to ensure vendor payments are efficient and timely

• On-going staff training on Esker and SAP processes

• IT continues to develop additional monitoring reports and tools and provide training

• Updated Procurement Ordinance No. 110

• Expanded the Agency’s Procurement Card (P-card) program

• Drafted updated P-card policy/guidelines, and in progress of being finalized and implemented

• Standard Operating Procedures are planned for completion



Esker -
The following slides provide an example of metrics derived from Esker, the Agency’s invoice 
recognition software system.  During the Audit Committee Meeting, staff will be providing a live 
demonstration of the information the system captures and how the information is used. The 
information on the attached dashboards will change because Esker captures live updates. 

9



Esker - Dashboards

10



Esker - Dashboards

11



The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations – Fifth Update

is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace

Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide

recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,

promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving
organizational goals and objectives.

Questions?



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4E 



Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Internal Audit Quality Control Review of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

IA completed a quality control review of the Agency's audited Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022. Each year, IA coordinates with Accounting to
review draft versions of Agency's ACFR before it is finalized and published. IA's review is one
of additional quality control. The review includes a review to ensure financial information
transferred accurately and correctly between financial schedules and narratives and to ensure a
professional presentation of the ACFR. Additionally, IA reviewed the financial reports for the
Single Audit and Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority, and provide comments prior to
finalization.

In the past, this report has been submitted to the Audit Committee through the IA Quarterly
Status Report in a memo issued to the Department. Going forward, IA will document this
review in audit report format.

The report attached, provides details of IA's review.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

03/15/23Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Quality Control Review of the ACFR is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of
Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA's
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and
objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the quality control review of the ACFR.

Attachment 1 - IA Quality Control Review of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Not Applicable

23051



 
 

 

 

 

DATE:   February 23, 2023 

  

TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 

  General Manager 

   

   
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 

  Manager of Internal Audit 

 

SUBJECT:  Internal Audit’s Quality Control Review: 

  Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 

 

The Internal Audit Unit (IA) performed a quality control review of the Agency’s Annual 

Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) prepared by the Finance Department. IA’s review was 

performed on “draft” versions of the ACFR, prior to Finance finalizing the ACFR.  On December 

19th, 2022, IA completed our review of the draft ACFR with the information provided as of this 

date.  Additionally, IA completed a quality control review of the financial statements for the 

Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) prior to finalizing. Finance provided 

the following draft documents used by IA to complete the Quality Control Review:  

 

Date Type of Information 

November 1, 2022 Trial Balances 

November 1, 2022 GFOA Comments on FY 2021 ACFR 

November 10, 2022 Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), Basic Financial 

Statements, and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

November 22, 2022 Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 

November 23, 2022 Individual Fund Statements and Schedules  

December 1, 2022 MD&A, Notes, Financials, and RSI 

December 19, 2022 Statistical Section 

January 30, 2023 
2022 Annual Financial Report for Inland Empire Regional Composting 

Authority 

 

  



Results of Internal Audit’s Quality Control Review: 
Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

February 23, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 

During the progress of the review, IA provided Finance with comments, edits, and 

recommendations for their consideration prior to finalizing the ACFR. This report documents 

IA’s Quality Control Review of the sections provided and lists a general summary of the results 

of the review. 

 

Assistance with IA Quality Control Review – Audit Committee Advisor 

This year, IA engaged the Audit Committee Financial Advisor to assist with the review. The Audit 

Committee Financial Advisor provided a review of the IEUA Financial Statements and Notes to 

the Financial Statements.  All comments, edits, feedback, and suggestions provided by the Audit 

Committee Financial Advisor were submitted to Finance for their review and consideration.  

 

Quality Control Review of the ACFR  

IA applied the following procedures: 

 

• Reviewed for math accuracy and consistency in the referencing of dollar amounts and 

totals among the narratives, notes and statements, and for overall professional 

presentation. 

 

• Verified the consistency of the amounts between the Basic Combining Financial 

Statements and Combining Non-Major Financial Statements as compared to the 

Individual Fund financial statements, except for the Statement of Cash Flows. 

 

• Recalculated for mathematical accuracy the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 totals on the 

financial statements. 

 

• Checked titles and years to ensure updates were made for the years they correspond to. 

 

• Reviewed narratives for consistency, completeness, spelling, and grammatical accuracy.  

 

• Reviewed numerical values in narratives for consistency with corresponding tables. 

 

• Reviewed table percentages to ensure the math was accurate and totals were consistent 

with corresponding pie charts or narrative information. 

 

• Reviewed formatting throughout the report (narratives, tables, charts, graphs, etc.) for 

consistency, legibility, and clarity. 

 

• Reviewed Management’s Discussion and Analysis and verified that prior year and 

current year totals matched either the prior year published ACFR or current year totals. 
 

  



Results of Internal Audit’s Quality Control Review: 
Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

February 23, 2023 

Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 

Scope of Review  

IA did not perform tests of financial transactions, nor audit the accounts or any financial 

information and did not assess the reliability or accuracy of the financial information reported 

in the financial statements. The Agency relies on the professional work of the External Auditors, 

Clifton Larson Allen, LLP (CLA), who are the Agency’s Certified Public Accountants, contracted 

to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

The External Auditors and IA rely on Agency’s management for the completeness and 

reliability of the information presented in the ACFR and reliability of the internal controls. 

Consistent with the requirements of the IA Charter and the Audit Committee Charter 

requirements, IA’s review is intended to provide an additional level of quality control. 

 

Observations  

During IA’s quality control review, observations that IA noted were promptly communicated to 

Finance staff for appropriate corrective action. In some instances, IA did not verify that all 

recommendations were addressed or incorporated because staff continued to finalize the ACFR. 

The observations IA considered most significant and requiring attention prior to finalizing and 

publishing the ACFR are listed in the bullet point items below, details have been provided to 

Accounting under separate correspondence: 

 

• Noted spelling errors and inconsistences in the line-item presentations between and 

among the schedules and in the narratives. 

 

• Noted errors in sentence structure, sentence completeness, spacing, and punctuation. 

 

• Noted errors in formatting consistency of narratives, tables, and graphics. 

 

• Noted errors in table percentages and mathematical accuracy. 

 

• Noted errors in category names and percentages in tables that were not consistent with 

corresponding pie charts. 

 

• Noted errors in numerical values in the narrative that were not consistent with 

corresponding tables or the financials. 

 

• Provided comments and recommendations related to mathematical accuracy, grammar, 

formatting, completeness, etc. 

 

• Noted instances where there were differences in amounts between different sections of 

the ACFR, for example among the schedules. 

 

  



Results of Internal Audit’s Quality Control Review: 
Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

February 23, 2023 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 
 

Bond Disclosure Compliance Review 

For the FY 2021/22 ACFR, IA was provided with the draft ACFR document for review.  Any 

information related to the Continuing Disclosure Compliance was reviewed as part of the ACFR 

review, no additional information was provided related to bond disclosure requirements, such as 

additional separate reports.  

 

Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority (CBRFA) 

Finance did not provide the draft financial statements for the CBRFA for FY 2022 to IA for review 

and comments prior to finalizing the published version. IA did not complete a quality control 

review of the CBRFA financial statements, and therefore no comments and/or suggestions could 

be provided for consideration prior to CLA finalizing the report. This is consistent with past 

practice, as IA has historically focused only on the IEUA ACFR. IA is available to assist with the 

review of all financial statements. 

 

Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) 

IA reviewed the financial statements for the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority 

(IERCA) for FY 2022. IA noted similar observations as with the IEUA ACFR, including the 

following observations.  

 

• Provided comments and recommendations for mathematical accuracy. 

 

• Provided recommendations related to grammar, punctuation, and formatting.  

 

• There were various discussions about CLA’s finding and recommendation. CLA noted 

a finding in the financial report and is providing a recommendation. The finding relates 

to accrual of liabilities and expenses. Finance Management has documented a 

comprehensive corrective action plan to mitigate the risk of the same finding in the 

future. 

 

 

IEUA Single Audit 

As of the date of this report, the Single Audit is in progress of being completed by CLA.  It should 

be noted that in early to mid-February, the Single Audit work had been completed by CLA. 

Subsequently, during the final review of the Single Audit report, the Agency received information 

from the State that funding for one program came from State funds and not Federal funds.  This 

required the project to be removed from the Single Audit report. With this information, the audit 

needed to reflect audit procedures on a Federal Program not a State Program.  Agency Management 

authorized additional work for the Single Audit to ensure only the correct federal programs are 

reported. Staff is working closely with CLA to ensure the Federal awards and programs are 

reported accurately on the Single Audit report and completed by the March 31st deadline. This 

additional audit work will materialize in a change order of possibly up to $5,000. IA will continue 

to stay involved in the review and finalization of the Single Audit. 

 
  



Results of Internal Audit’s Quality Control Review: 
Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

February 23, 2023 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 
 

Single Audit Reporting Package to be completed by IA 

IA will be submitting the required reports for regulatory reporting and filing by the required date 

of March 31 with the following organizations:  

 

County of San Bernardino 

State Controller’s Office 

State Water Resources Control Board 

 

During the June 2023 Audit Committee Meeting, IA will update the Audit Committee that all 

required filings have been completed.  

 

 

Conclusion 

Due to Finance staff challenges, there were delays with the work of the ACFR.  A change order 

of $6,000 was submitted and approved for additional work that CLA auditors performed during 

the Financial Audit. Additionally, it should be noted that it has been IA’s practice to complete 

and report to the Audit Committee the results of IAs Quality Control Review by the scheduled 

Audit Committee Meeting in December. This year has been an exception to this timeline because 

most items were provided later than planned. The delays were largely due to challenges and staff 

vacancies within the Finance Department. Going forward, Finance is developing plans to ensure 

all audit deliverables are completed by established goal dates.  

 

IA appreciates the opportunity to provide the quality control review of the FY 2022 ACFR. and 

appreciates staffs support and assistance during this review. Please contact any member of the 

Internal Audit Unit if you have questions. 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4F 



Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Internal Audit Quarterly Status Report for March 2023

The Audit Committee Charter requires that a written status report be prepared and submitted
each quarter. The Internal Audit (IA) Quarterly Status Report includes a summary of significant
audit activities for the reporting period.

During this quarter, along with additional routine audit projects and administrative tasks, IA
staff completed the Review of Pay Estimate Processes. Additionally, IA completed the Quality
Control Review of the Agency's financial reports and the fifth Progress Update for all P2P audit
recommendations which evaluated the status of 34 outstanding recommendations. Other audit
projects are also discussed in this status report. IA continues to participate in various
committees and discussions and assists with requests for review of Agency policies and
procedures, and provides recommendations to improve internal controls.

For additional information and insight, attached is, Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the
Nations a comprehensive report on occupational fraud published every two years by the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, also at
https://legacy.acfe.com/report-to-the-nations/2022/

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

03/15/23Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The IA Status Report is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by describing IAs progress in providing
independent evaluations and audit services of Agency financial and operational activities and
making recommendations for improvement, to promote a strong, ethical internal control
environment, safeguarding Agency's assets and fiscal health, providing recommendations to
improve processes and to assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.

On December 21, 2022, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and
IA Unit Charters. The Charters require a Quarterly Status Report.

Attachment 1 - Internal Audit Quarterly Status Report for March 2023
Attachment 2 - Occupational Fraud 2022: Report to the Nations

Not Applicable

23050



 

Page 1 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

Projects Completed This Quarter 

Project: 

Review of Pay Estimate Processes  

Scope: 

The scope of the Pay Estimate review was to evaluate the various steps and processes to process Pay Estimate 
payments, and to propose recommendations to make the process overall more efficient.  Specifically, the 
objectives included evaluating internal controls, reviewing compliance with Public Contract Code, policies and 
procedures, identifying operating efficiencies and areas for improvement related to the compilation and review of  
Pay Estimate documentation, and analyzing the invoice payment processes to ensure contractors are paid timely.  

Status: Complete 

Internal Audit (IA) worked closely with the Engineering and Finance (Accounts Payable) groups to evaluate the 
Pay Estimate processes. The Pay Estimate Processes audit included reviewing Engineering’s responsibilities 
and processes for compiling, reviewing and verifying the pay estimate financial information.  Additionally, 
reviewing Accounts Payable responsibilities and processes for reviewing and processing the payment. The audit 
noted several observations and provides recommendations to Engineering and Finance to implement efficiencies 
to improve the overall operational payment proceses. 

 
The report attached under separate cover provides details of the audit procedures, detailed flowcharts and 
narratives for each of the processes and a summary of the audit procedures applied and the results of audit work.  
 

 

Project: 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit:  
Quarterly Progress Update for all P2P Audit Recommendations – 5th Progress Update 

Scope: 

The purpose of the Progress Update for all Procure to Pay (P2P) Audit Recommendations is to provide a status 
related to the 93 audit recommendations provided through the P2P audits.  

Status:  On-going 

As of February 23, 2023, of the 93 audit recommendations provided through the P2P audits, 41 are now 
considered implemented, 27 are in progress of being implemented and 25 are considered no longer applicable 
because alternate controls were implemented. Of the 27 recommendations in progress, 11 are in progress of 
being implemented by Finance, 3 are in progress of being implemented by Contracts and Procurement, 1 is in 
progress of being implemented by the Procurement Card Program Administrator, and the remaining 12 are in 
progress of being implemented by various Agency units/departments. IA will continue to provide quarterly 
progress reports until all audit recommendations have been addressed.   
 
The report is included under a separate cover and provides details of the follow up review results. 
 

 

  



 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

Project: 

IA Quality Control Review of the FY 2021/22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) 

Scope: 

Annually, prior to the Board approval of the ACFR, IA completes a quality control review of the various schedules 
and sections of the ACFR. The role of IA is one of an added quality control review to ensure a professional 
presentation of the financial information. IA reviews to ensure financial information transfers accurately between 
the financial schedules and narratives including from prior year to current year, and check for recommendations 
made by Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).   

Status:  Complete 

Specifically, IA’s review includes the following audit procedures:  
• Verified that the FY 2022 amounts and totals on the financial statements were transferred accurately 

from the FY 2022 Trial Balance.  
• Recalculated the FY 2022 totals on all financial statements for mathematical accuracy.  
• Checked titles and years to ensure updates were made for the years they correspond to.  
• Reviewed narratives for completeness, spelling and grammatical accuracy.  
• Reviewed all sections of the ACFR to ensure consistency and a professional presentation.  
• Reviewed the Single Audit Report and IERCA financial report. 

  
IA’s report is included under a separate cover and provides details of the review. 
 

 

Projects In Progress 

Project: 

Audit Software Review Project: Workpaper and Data Analytics Software Tools 

Scope: 

IA is evaluating the costs and benefits of implementing automated audit tools to enhance audit processes. The 
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Audit Standard 1220.A2 provides guidance for exercising due professional care 
for internal auditors.  IIA 1220.A2 states that internal auditors must consider the use of technology-based audit 
and other data analysis techniques.  
 
The use of technology, including, an automated working paper system as well the use of data analytics would 
enhance the audit capabilities and efficiency of the audit process.  Currently, IA is using Microsoft Office products. 
SharePoint is not geared toward auditing tools and creating audit workpapers. Resources, including costs and 
staff time, will be necessary for implementation and maintenance. IA is carefully evaluating costs/benefits as well 
as risks and opportunities. Benefits and opportunities include time saving; quicker, more robust and larger scale 
analysis of transactions; sustainability; efficiencies; report production; dashboards; continuous monitoring; 
storage; workpaper documentation and review administration. 
 

Status:  In Progress 

To date, IA has met with the three audit workpaper software vendors: AuditBoard, TeamMate and Workiva.  Each 
vendor has provided a quick version of a demo and preliminary information.  AuditBoard provided a three-day 
sandbox opportunity.  Additional meetings will be scheduled to obtain additional information for further research 
and evaluation with all vendors. 
 



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

IA has met with both the IT and CAP departments to discuss requirements before moving forward. Both 
departments have provided helpful insight and guidance to consider for a successful process, project 
implementation and considerations.  IA will continue to work with internal departments before moving forward.  
In January 2023, the Agency implemented Esker, a new invoice recognition software system. This system will 
assist the Agency with improvidng visibility of routing and tracking all invoices. IA plans to explore the features 
available within Esker to determine if there are any analytical reports and tools for audit procedures. For this 
reason, IA has delayed further evaluation of audit software tools. 
 
Any proposed plans to move forward with the audit workpaper software tool will be discussed in detail with the 
GM and any affected Agency departments. IA will bring updates to the Audit Committee every quarter for 
review/discussion. Any proposed changes will be carefully evaluated, budgeted, and planned with sufficient 
advanced time and notice.  

 

Project:  On-going Committees & Meetings 

Scope: 

IA is asked to participate in various meetings to gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities, risks, and be a 
resource to provide feedback and recommendations.  

Status:  On-going 

During this quarter, IA participated in meetings related to the Agency’s Budget, various Finance Meetings related 
to Esker and improvements in efficiencies, Safety Committee and other programs. The meetings provide an 
opportunity for IA to gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities and identify potential risks that assist in audit 
planning.  During the meetings, IA provides input and suggestions related to the initiatives underway. During this 
quarter, IA spent approximately 40 hours of staff time participating in these types of meetings.  
 

Project:  
Follow-Up IT Equipment Audit – Information Technology Department & Cybersecurity Assessment  

Scope: 

To evaluate the status of the two open audit recommendations from the original IT Equipment audit completed in 
2012.  The recommendations are:  

• Original Recommendation # 3 (dated August 2012): ISS implement appropriate tracking systems that include relevant information 
on IT purchases (i.e., serial numbers, etc.), are updated timely and are complete and accurate. ISS should establish procedures to 
enter, modify, and delete information in the tracking systems that address areas such as timeliness for updates, responsibilities for 
maintaining the systems, and the types of items included in the tracking system. 
 

• Original Recommendation # 1 (dated November 2012): ISS should ensure that any services procured with P-Cards are expressly 
authorized by the Manager of CAP, CFO, AGM, or GM prior to committing to services.  
 

Additionally, to evaluate additional areas that require review and evaluation including processes for the inventory 
and accountability of computer equipment issued for remote work.  Lastly to perform a cybersecurity assessment 
including evaluating that the Agency has plans for the mitigation and resolution of any potential cyber attack, or 
a disaster preparedness plan. 
 

Status: In Progress 

IA has met several times with Information Technology staff to discuss audit plans. IA is working closely with IT 
staff to assess cybersecurity controls, determine future internal audit assessments and evaluate the audit 
recommendations. During the meetings it has been discussed the approach for technology assets inventory, 
capitalization policy, cybersecurity controls, incident response plans and IT initiatives.  The outstanding 
recommendations may no longer be applicable.  IA is working closely with IT staff to finalize and determine the 
scope of an audit and propose the project under the IA Annual Audit Plan in June. 
 



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

Project: Final Report: Review of Agency COVID-19 Expenses 

Scope: 

The original evaluation reviewed the expenses incurred by the Agency in response to the ongoing global 
pandemic (COVID-19).  Expenses include costs incurred to comply with health guidelines, prevent the spread of 
COVID-19, transition employees to work from home, ensure proper on-site precautions and protect Agency 
personnel and the public. The objectives of the review were to evaluate if the expenses follow proper internal 
controls, contain the required supporting documentation, and meet compliance requirements according to Agency 
policies and procedures  

Status: In Progress 

IA will contact the Grants Unit to evaluate reportable updates.  This coordination/report will be scheduled through 
the Annual Audit Plan as required. A final report will be presented to the Audit Committee when final financial 
information is available. 

 

 

Report of Open Audit Recommendations 

Scope: 

To evaluate the implementation status of the outstanding recommendations. 
 
The Internal Audit Unit (IA) Charter requires IA to follow up on the status of outstanding audit recommendations 
to determine if corrective actions have been implemented.  A recommendation is considered “outstanding” if it 
requires corrective action to address the finding and risk identified.  IA performs follow-up reviews to ensure that 
risks have been addressed and the recommendation is cleared/satisfied when corrective actions are 
implemented.  Follow-up reviews are scheduled through the Board-approved Annual Audit Plan. Agency 
Management supports the implementation efforts of the recommendations previously provided and/or the 
development of alternative controls to address the original risks identified. 

Status:  On-going 

As of March 2023, there are 118 outstanding audit recommendations. Details about each of the outstanding 
recommendations are submitted with the Annual Audit Plan each June.  This summary provides an updated count 
of the outstanding recommendations. This summary includes new recommendations provided during this fiscal 
year and considers any recommendations cleared during the year (up to the prior quarter).  A follow-up review is 
typically scheduled between 12–24 months from the date of the original audit, to allow time for full implementation. 
If a recommendation is deemed not implemented, the recommendation remains outstanding or alternate controls 
to mitigate any risks are evaluated to determine if the risk has been addressed and the recommendation is no 
longer applicable.  A follow-up review is also scheduled sooner, if requested by the Audit Committee or Executive 
Management and/or the department audited.  The audited business units are encouraged to submit additional 
information for IA review if they determine the recommendation has been satisfied.  

 

Area Audited 
Report Issued 

Date 

No. of Recs. 
Remaining to 
be Verified by 

IA* 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up  
(Deferred Recommendations related to Agency Policies) 

August 29, 2013 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – ISS  February 29, 2016 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – FAD December 5, 2016 6 

2017 Petty Cash Audit & Follow-Up Review June 5, 2017 7 

Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 5  

Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 7 

Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 4 

Inter-fund Transactions Audit August 30, 2018 1 



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Human Resources Audit: Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review 

December 2, 2019 7 

Recycled Water Revenues Audit  May 28, 2020 3  

Human Resources: Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 2 

Human Resources Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee Training and 
Development Programs 

August 31, 2020 5 

Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up audit:  
Review of Vehicle Inventory Procedures 

May 27, 2021 1 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal 
Controls Audit Report Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for: 

• Chemicals (November 24, 2021) 

• Engineering & Construction Management (February 24, 2022) 

• Planning & Resources (May 26, 2022) 

• Materials & Supplies (December 2022) 
 

(Open recommendations as of March 1, 2023) 

See dates each audit 
was completed under 
column called Area 

Audited 

27 

Regional Contract Review – Final Audit Report 
(planned for full implementation with the renegotiation of the 
Regional Contract)  

December 16, 
2015 

31 

Total Outstanding Audit Recommendations 118 

* Items/changes resulting from projects completed during this quarter are not updated on this chart. This Outstanding 

Recommendations Table is updated only when audit reports are have been received and filed by the Audit Committee 

and the Board of Directors.  

Summary 

As of March 2023, 118 recommendations remain outstanding:  
o 27 relate to the Procure to Pay audits completed; these are reviewed quarterly 
o 31 relate to the renegotiation of the Regional Contract (to be evaluated next quarter) 
o 20 relate to required Agency policy updates; HR is working with a consultant to make changes 
o 40 recommendations are eligible for follow-up evaluation 

 

Special Projects 

Purpose: 

IA perform special reviews and projects including analyzing transactions, evaluating documents and policies, 
verifying information, assisting with interpretation of Agency Policies or other required procedures, and providing 
recommendations and feedback on results of the analysis, engaging necessary assistance if and/or when 
necessary, reporting to the General Manager and the Audit Committee.  These services are provided according to 
the IA Charter and the Audit Committee Charter, the Annual Audit Plan, and audit guidelines. Special Projects can 
be short or long-term projects, typically requiring approximately more or less 80 hours of staff time and requiring 
setting aside or delaying work on scheduled audit projects.  

Scope: 

The scope of the review is not generally known, the scope of the work is planned in response to the special project 
requirements and the work must be handled with the highest degree of confidentiality, sensitivey, and care, as with 
all audit projects. Special Projects are usually considered highly confidential. 

Status:  On-going and Complete 

During this quarter, the Manager of Internal Audit performed a review of an allegation brought forward through 
Human Resources. The allegation related to the use of Agency credit cards.  IA gathered information and 
documentation and performed interviews with the required staff.  The Audit Committee Advisor assisted with an 



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

interview and provided feedback related to the fidnings of the allegation.  It should be known that during our review, 
the original allegation was modified to clarifty that there are no known instances of wrongdoing or violations at the 
Agency. IA found that the Agency has implemented Agency policies and a Procurement Ordinance to provide 
guidelines for using Agency credit cards.  Additionally, the Agency is in the process of finalizing an updated 
Procurement Card Policy with updated guidelines and requirements.  Based on the results of IAs review, there is 
no warranted need for additional review and no concerns requiring further attention. The Agency’s GM was 
provided with IAs final disposition of the review.This review took approximately 50 hours.   

 
During this quarter, the Manager of Internal Audit has also been involved with additional projects that are on-going.  
IA will report once items have been fully evaluated and closed out.  

 

Management Requests 

Purpose: 

IA assists Agency Management with analysis requests, evaluations, and information verification; assists with the 
interpretation of Agency policies and procedures; and/or provides review and feedback on new policies or 
procedures. Additionally, staff assists with interviews, document evaluations and discussions when asked and time 
permits. These services are provided according to the IA Unit Charter, the Audit Committee Charter, the Annual 
Audit Plan, and best practices.  Management requests are short-term projects, typically lasting no more than 80 
hours where IA determines it has the necessary staff, skills, and resources to provide the requested assistance 
without having to delay/defer scheduled audits and priority projects.   

Scope: 

The scope of each review is agreed upon between the department manager requesting the evaluation, review, 
analysis, or assistance; the Manager of IA; and when deemed appropriate by the Leadership Team and department 
Managers. The scope of the review is planned according to the requirements of the request. 

Status:  On-going 

During this quarter, IA provided assistance, attended meetings and responses to requests to evaluate Safety 
related policies, continued engagement and assistance with Esker implementation questions, and discussions 
related to the Agency’s tax filing responsibilities and continued discussions related to the implementation of 
schedules and plans related to the financial audit of IERCA and the IEUA Single Audit. 

 

 
Audit News and Trends 

The Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) published it’s 2022 Report to the Nations on Occupational 
Fraud.  This is a report issued every two years and provides the results of data compiled from fraud cases from 
around the world. This is an excellent compilation of frauds investigated by professional Certified Fraud Examiners 
around the world.  This is a good resource of information related to the types of frauds that most organizations are 
at risk of, detection methods that can be adopted and other data and resources provided. 
 
https://legacy.acfe.com/report-to-the-nations/2022/  
 

 

 
Internal Audit Staffing and Professional Development 

Staffing 

 

The Internal Audit Department is staffed as follows: 

https://legacy.acfe.com/report-to-the-nations/2022/


 

Page 7 of 7 

 

Internal Audit Unit Quarterly Status Report 

• 1 Full-time Manager of Internal Audit 

• 1 Full-time Senior Internal Auditor 

• 1 Full-time Internal Auditor 
 

Professional Development 

As required by the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and the IA Unit 
Charter, auditors must regularly enhance their knowledge, skills, and other competencies through continuing 
professional development. Audit standards require practicing internal auditors attain, a minimum of 40 continuing 
professional education credits every 2 years.  During the past quarter, IA staff have continued to stay abreast of 
industry developments through review of industry literature and participation in on-line webinars. Most training is 
obtained through the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), the global association for the Profession of Internal 
Auditing, and virtual trainings, most of which have been complimentary.  
 
All training hours met the requirements for Continuing Professional Education (CPE) and earned CPE credits. 
These highlighted trainings are in addition to mandatory IEUA Safety Trainings and other Agency training related 
to finance, procurements, etc. During this quarter, staff attended the following trainings: 
 

• IIA -3 chapter collaboration – Data Analytics, Automation, Articial Intelligence, and CAE Roundtable 

• IIA Inland Empire Chapter (Webinar) – Cybersecurity Fraud  

• IIA National (Webinar) – The Internal Audit Action Plan: How to Increase Your Value as an Internal Auditor 

• CSMFO – Introduction to Governmental Accounting 

 

Two members of the IA team participate in the local chapters of the IIA in an officer/board capacity. All members 
volunteer in IIA activities. All members of the IA team have various certifications and higher degrees as required 
by the IIA standards and the IA Charter. 
 

 
 

Future Audit Committee Meeting Dates 

• Monday, June 12, 2023 - Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, September 11, 2023 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, December 11, 2023 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 
• Monday, March 11, 2024 - Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

 



Occupational Fraud 2022:

A Report to the nations®

Occupational Fraud 2022:

A Report to the nations®

O
C

C
U

PATIO
N

AL FRAU
D

 2022: A
 REPO

RT TO
 TH

E N
ATIO

N
S



2

On behalf of the ACFE and the greater anti-fraud community, I am pleased to present Occupational Fraud 2022: A 
Report to the Nations, the latest exploration by the ACFE into the factors and toll of occupational fraud. While this is our 
12th edition of the report, this particular study is unique in that it explores frauds that were investigated largely during 
a global pandemic—a time when anti-fraud professionals, like so many others, were challenged to find new, innovative 
ways to conduct much of their work. 

And yet, our research shows how successfully Certified Fraud Examiners around the world were able to adapt. Even 
during this time of disruption, occupational frauds were detected more quickly and losses were limited when compared 
to prior years. While we always appreciate the participation and dedication of CFEs, this year we are especially 
grateful for their contributions to this study, which highlights the work they have collectively undertaken during such a 
challenging time.

Thanks to these anti-fraud experts, our research provides valuable information about the costs, methods, perpetrators, 
and outcomes of occupational fraud schemes derived from more than 2.000 real cases of fraud affecting organizations 
in 133 countries and 23 industries. We know that to effectively confront any problem—but certainly one this immense 
and pervasive—we must first thoroughly understand it. The inaugural Report to the Nation was launched in 1996 by 
ACFE Founder, Dr. Joseph T. Wells, CFE, CPA, because he recognized the need to provide this type of foundational 
information about occupational fraud. In the decades that followed, we have continued this important line of study to 
improve our profession’s ability to prevent, detect, and respond to fraud. 

It is my hope that this report not only honors the CFEs who pushed through the challenges of the pandemic and shared 
their experiences in investigating fraud during that time, but also provides actionable insight for business leaders, 
the public, and the anti-fraud community as a whole on how to effectively protect organizations from the harms of 
occupational fraud.

 
Bruce Dorris, J.D., CFE, CPA 
President and CEO, Association of Certified Fraud Examiners

FOREWORD

FOREWORD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



  CONTENTS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 3

CONTENTS
Foreword 2

Key Findings 4

Introduction 6

Spotlight: The Global Cost of Fraud 8

How Is Occupational Fraud Committed? 9

Categories of Occupational Fraud 9

Duration of Fraud Schemes 13

Velocity of Fraud Schemes 15

Spotlight: How Do Perpetrators Conceal Their Frauds? 17

Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud 18

Cryptocurrency Schemes 20

Detection 21

Initial Detection of Occupational Fraud 21

Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness 24

Reporting Mechanisms 26

Parties to Whom Whistleblowers Report 27

Victim Organizations 28

Type of Organization 28

Size of Organization 29

Industry of Organization 32

Anti-Fraud Controls at Victim Organizations 34

Spotlight: Modifying Anti-Fraud Controls Following a Fraud          39

Spotlight: COVID’s Effect on Occupational Fraud 40

Background Checks 41

Internal Control Weakness that Contributed to the Fraud              42

Perpetrators 44

Perpetrator’s Position 44

Perpetrator’s Tenure 46

Perpetrator’s Department 46

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk? 48

Perpetrator’s Gender 51

Perpetrator’s Age 54

Perpetrator’s Education Level 55

Collusion by Multiple Perpetrators 56

Perpetrator’s Criminal Background 57

Perpetrator’s Employment History 57

Behavioral Red Flags Displayed by Perpetrators 58

Human Resources-Related Red Flags  59

Spotlight: Behavioral Red Flags of Fraud 60

Case Results 62

Internal Action Taken Against Perpetrators 62

Spotlight: Response to Fraud 63

Recovering Fraud Losses 65

Methodology 66

Analysis Methodology 66

Survey Participants 67

Regional Focus 70

Asia-Pacific 70

Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia 72

Latin America and the Caribbean 74

Middle East and North Africa 76

Southern Asia 78

Sub-Saharan Africa 80

United States and Canada 82

Western Europe 84

Statistical Appendix 86

Index of Figures 89

Fraud Prevention Checklist 92

Glossary of Terminology 94

About the ACFE 95



ASSET MISAPPROPRIATION SCHEMES
are the most common but least costly

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FRAUD SCHEMES
are the least common but most costly

Among these cases, cryptocurrency was most commonly used for:

A TYPICAL FRAUD CASE

$8,300
causes a loss of

per
month

12 monthslasts
before detection

of fraud cases
involved the use

of CRYPTOCURRENCY

Making
bribery and
kickback payments48% Converting

misappropriated
assets43%

of cases
$593,000
median loss

9%

$100,000
median lossof cases

86%

8%

CFEs estimate that 
organizations LOSE 

of revenue
to FRAUD
each year

MEDIAN LOSS 
PER CASE:

AVERAGE LOSS 
PER CASE:

$117,000

$1,783,000
5%

ORGANIZATIONS WITH HOTLINES
detect fraud more quickly and have lower losses

than organizations without hotlines

Without fraud hotlines

$200,000

18
Months

$100,000
12

Months

With fraud hotlines

Median loss
Duration

SCHEMES

OUR STUDY COVERED:

Causing total losses of more than 

$3.6 Billion

2,110
CASES

133
COUNTRIESfrom

of frauds were
detected by tips,

DETECTION

42%

More than HALF
of all tips came
from employees

which is nearly 3x as many cases as
the next most common method

Email and web-based 
reporting BOTH surpassed 

telephone hotlines

Web-based/
online form
Telephone
hotline

Email 
33%

27%

40%

KEY FINDINGS

was the most common scheme 
in every global region

4 KEy FiNDiNgS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



PERPETRATORS

11%

CASE RESULTS

of cases were referred to
law enforcement

58%

of perpetrators were 
terminated by their employers 

61%

of cases referred to law enforcement 
resulted in a conviction

66%

of organizations that didn't refer cases to law 
enforcement cited internal discipline as the reason

50%

Real estate

$435,000

$400,000

$250,000

$203,000

$200,000

Wholesale trade

Construction

Utilities

Transportation and warehousing

KEY FINDINGS
VICTIM ORGANIZATIONS

TOP 5 MEDIAN LOSSES BY INDUSTRY

ORGANIZATIONS WITH THE 
FEWEST EMPLOYEES HAD THE 

HIGHEST MEDIAN LOSS 
($150,000)

The presence of anti-fraud controls
is associated with

LOWER
fraud losses

QUICKER
fraud detection

Increased management
review procedures

Increased use of proactive
data monitoring/analysis

Nearly HALF of cases occurred due to:

of victim organizations
MODIFIED their anti-fraud
controls following the fraud.

ORLack of
internal controls

Override of 
existing controls

ANTI-FRAUD CONTROLS

$337,000

$125,000

$50,000

Owners/executives committed 
only 23% of occupational frauds, 
but they caused the largest losses 

Owner/executive

Manager

Employee

Nearly half of all occupational frauds 
came from these four departments: 

Operations

of perpetrators had a
prior fraud conviction

Only 6%

15%

Accounting

Sales

Executive/upper
management

12%

11%

displayed
BEHAVIORAL RED 
FLAGS of fraud

AND

75% 64%

5  KEy FiNDiNgS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



INTRODUCTION  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations6

Occupational fraud is very likely the most costly and 
most common form of financial crime in the world. 
The term occupational fraud refers to frauds that are 
committed by individuals against the organizations that 
employ them.1 

There are two key reasons why this type of crime 
is so prevalent. The first is that any organization 
with employees must, to some extent, entrust those 
employees with access to or control over its assets, 
whether that means keeping its books, managing its 
bank accounts, safeguarding its inventory, etc. It is this 
very trust that can make organizations vulnerable to 
occupational fraud. Because all frauds, at their heart, 
are based upon breaches of trust. The second reason 
occupational fraud is so costly and common is simply 
that there are so many people in a position to commit 
these crimes. The global labor force consists of more 
than 3.3 billion people2, a large majority of whom will 
never steal or abuse the trust of their employers. But if 
even a tiny percentage of these individuals cross the 
line, the result is millions of occupational fraud schemes 
being committed annually.

We do not know precisely how many people engage 
in occupational fraud each year, but we know that the 
collective harm these criminals inflict is enormous. 
As you will see in this report, global losses are likely 
measured in trillions of dollars. This represents money 
that could have been spent creating jobs, producing 
goods and services, or providing public services. Instead, 
it went into the pockets of fraudsters.

The data contained in Occupational Fraud 2022: 
A Report to the Nations represents our best effort to 
understand and measure the impact of occupational 
fraud. Based on 2,110 cases of occupational fraud 
that were investigated between January 2020 and 
September 2021, we have compiled statistics on the 
methods used to commit these crimes, the means by 
which they were detected, the characteristics of both the 
victims and the perpetrators, and the ways in 
which victim organizations responded after the 
frauds were detected. 

This report is based on data that was supplied to us by 
Certified Fraud Examiners (CFEs) throughout the world 
who took part in the 2021 Global Fraud Survey. Each 
CFE who participated in the study was presented with an 
online questionnaire consisting of 77 detailed questions 
about a fraud case the CFE had personally investigated. 
We are deeply grateful to the CFEs who took part in 
this survey and shared information so that others could 
benefit from their experiences. This report is, in many 
ways, a testament to the dedication and generosity of 
those CFEs.

The frauds represented in this study were committed 
in 133 countries, and they targeted organizations in 
23 distinct industry categories. They attacked large 
multinational businesses, small private companies, 
government agencies, nonprofits, and every other size 
or type of organization imaginable. This report truly is 
a global study of occupational fraud, and as its results 
make clear, no organization is immune from these crimes.

This study represents the most comprehensive 
examination available of the costs, methods, 
victims, and perpetrators of occupational fraud.

INTRODUCTION

1 Occupational fraud is formally defined as the use of one’s occupation for personal enrichment through the deliberate misuse or misapplication of the 
employing organization’s resources or assets.
2 The World Bank DataBank, “Labor Force, Total (1990–2020),” https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/SL.TLF.TOTL.IN.

https://data.worldbank.org/indicator/SL.TLF.TOTL.IN


  iNTRODUCTiON  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 7

FIG. 1  REPORTED CASES BY REGION

• The methods by which occupational
fraud is committed

• The means by which occupational frauds
are detected

• The characteristics of the organizations
that are victimized by occupational fraud

• The characteristics of the people who
commit occupational fraud

• The results of the cases after the frauds
have been detected and the perpetrators
identified

The goal of Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations  is to compile 
detailed information about occupational fraud cases in five critical areas:

United States and Canada
 CASES: 675 (36%)

Sub-Saharan Africa
 CASES: 429 (23%)

Asia-Pacific
 CASES: 194 (10%)

Western Europe
 CASES: 145 (8%)

Latin America 
and the Caribbean

 CASES: 95 (5%)

Southern Asia
 CASES: 138 (7%)

Middle East and North Africa
 CASES: 138 (7%)

Eastern Europe and 
Western/Central Asia 

 CASES: 78 (4%)



Fraud is a truly global problem, aecting organizations in every region and in every industry worldwide. Measuring the true extent of the 
damage caused by occupational fraud can be challenging due to the inherent nature of concealment and deception involved in most 
schemes. However, our study provides some valuable insight into the scope of this issue and how it aects organizations everywhere.

THE GLOBAL COST OF FRAUD 

25TH PERCENTILE

75TH PERCENTILE
MEDIAN

$20,000 $117,000
$600,000

$20,000 $100,000 $200,000 $300,000 $400,000 $500,000 $600,000

LOSS PER CASE

OUR STUDY COVERED

$1,783,000
AVERAGE LOSS PER CASE

$1 MILLION+
OF CASES HAD LOSSES OF 21%

Causing total
losses of more than $3.6 Billion

2,110
CASES

133
COUNTRIES

from

WWW.IMF.ORG/EXTERNAL/DATAMAPPER/NGDPD@WEO/WEOWORLD

CFEs estimate that 
organizations LOSE 

of revenue
to FRAUD
each year5%

Projected 
against 2021 GWP 
($94.94 TRILLION), 

that’s more than

lost to
FRAUD GLOBALLY

$4.7 
TRILLION

$0

$1,000,00

$1,200,000

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

Western 
Europe

United States 
and Canada

Sub-Saharan 
Africa

Southern 
Asia

Middle East 
and North Africa

Latin America 
and the 

Caribbean

Eastern Europe 
and Western/
Central Asia

Asia-Pacific

$15,000

$121,000

$723,000

$1,125,000

$915,000
$875,000

$352,000

$649,000
$577,000

$173,000

$60,000
$120,000
$20,000

$100,000
$15,000

$500,000

$92,000

$10,000

$186,000

$42,000

$175,000

$33,000

$190,000

$42,000

LOSS PER REGION

Percentile

 Percentile
(Median)

Percentile

75th

50th

25th

KEY

$173,000
$60,000

THE GLOBAL COST OF FRAUD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations8

https://www.imf.org/external/datamapper/NGDPD@WEO/WEOWORLD


HOW IS OCCUPATIONAL 
FRAUD COMMITTED?

Categories of Occupational Fraud 
At the top level, there are three primary categories of occupational fraud. Asset misappropriation, which involves an em-
ployee stealing or misusing the employer’s resources, is the most common, with 86% of cases falling under this category. 
These schemes, however, tend to cause the lowest median loss at USD 100,000 per case (see Figure 2). In contrast, 
financial statement fraud schemes, in which the perpetrator intentionally causes a material misstatement or omission in the 
organization’s financial statements, are the least common (9% of schemes) but costliest (USD 593,000) category. The third 
category, corruption—which includes offenses such as bribery, conflicts of interest, and extortion—falls in the middle in 
terms of both frequency and losses. These schemes occur in 50% of cases and cause a median loss of USD 150,000.

Since the release of the first Report to the Nation in 1996, we have analyzed 
more than 20,000 cases of occupational fraud reported to us by CFEs. In each 
study, we have explored the mechanisms used by the fraud perpetrators to 
defraud their employers. Even with the shift toward digital payments, remote work 
environments, and technology-based organizations, the schemes and methods 
fraudsters use to commit occupational fraud remain consistent over time. A 
taxonomy of these schemes is provided in the Occupational Fraud and Abuse 
Classification System, also commonly referred to as the Fraud Tree (see Figure 3). 

9HOW IS OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD COMMITTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

50%$150,00o
Corruption

86%$100,00o

Asset
misappropriation

Financial
statement fraud

9%$593,00o
Median loss
Percent of cases

FIG. 2  HOW IS OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD COMMITTED?



10 HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

 

Corruption

Conflicts of 
Interest

Cash

Theft of Cash 
on Hand

Theft of Cash 
Receipts

Fraudulent
Disbursements

Inventory and All 
Other Assets

Purchasing
Schemes

Sales 
Schemes Bid Rigging

Skimming Cash Larceny

Asset 
Requisitions 

and Transfers

LarcenyMisuse

False Sales 
and Shipping

Purchasing 
and Receiving

Unconcealed 
Larceny

Sales

Unrecorded Write-O� 
Schemes

Lapping 
Schemes

Unconcealed

Understated

Receivables Refunds 
and Other

Billing 
Schemes

Payroll 
Schemes

Expense 
Reimbursement 

Schemes

Check and 
Payment 

Tampering
Register 

Disbursements

Forged Maker False Voids

False RefundsForged 
Endorsement

Authorized 
Maker

Altered Payee

Mischaracterized 
Expenses

Ghost 
Employee

Commission 
Schemes

Overstated 
Expenses

Fictitious 
Expenses

Multiple 
Reimbursements

Falsified 
Wages

Shell 
Company

Non-
Accomplice 

Vendor

Personal 
Purchases

Invoice 
Kickbacks

Timing 
Di�erences

Fictitious 
Revenues

Improper 
Asset 

Valuations

Concealed 
Liabilities and 

Expenses

Timing 
Di�erences

Understated 
Revenues

Improper 
Asset 

Valuations

Overstated 
Liabilities and 

Expenses

Improper 
Disclosures

Improper 
Disclosures

Illegal Gratuities Economic 
ExtortionBribery

Net Worth/
Net Income

Overstatements

Net Worth/
Net Income

Understatements

Asset Misappropriation  Financial Statement Fraud

FIG. 3  OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD AND ABUSE CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM (THE FRAUD TREE)3

3 The definitions for many of the categories of fraud schemes in the Fraud Tree are found in the Glossary of Terminology on page 94.



11

ASSET MISAPPROPRIATION SCHEMES
are the most common but least costly

of cases
86% $100,000

median loss

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FRAUD SCHEMES
are the least common but most costly

of cases

$593,000
median loss9%

HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

Fraudsters do not necessarily limit themselves to one method of stealing. Of the cases in our study, 40% involved 
more than one of the three primary categories of occupational fraud. As noted in Figure 4, 32% of fraudsters 
committed both asset misappropriation and corruption schemes as part of their crime, 2% misappropriated assets 
and committed financial statement fraud, 1% engaged in both corruption and financial statement fraud, and 5% 
included all three categories in their schemes.

FIG. 4  HOW OFTEN DO FRAUDSTERS COMMIT MORE THAN ONE TYPE OF OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD?

Asset 
misappropriation

Asset misappropriation and corruption

Asset misappropriation and financial statement fraud

Financial statement fraud only

Corruption, asset misappropriation, and financial statement fraud

Corruption only

Asset misappropriation only

Corruption and financial statement fraud

Corruption

Financial 
statement fraud

47%

32%

12%

5%

2%

1%

1%



HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations12

ASSET MiSAPPROPRiATiON SUB-SCHEMES
Because asset misappropriations make up such a large percentage of occupational fraud cases, we divide these frauds 
into nine distinct categories to better illustrate how they affect organizations. Figure 5 is a heat map that shows the 
frequency and median loss of each asset misappropriation sub-scheme (see Glossary on page 94 for definitions of each 
sub-scheme). Billing schemes present a significant risk given that they are the most common form of asset misappro-
priation and also cause the highest median loss. Other high risks based on the combination of frequency and financial 
impact are check and payment tampering, as well as noncash schemes (such as theft of physical assets, investments, or 
proprietary information). 

FIG. 5  WHICH ASSET MISAPPROPRIATION SCHEMES PRESENT THE GREATEST RISK?

Less risk More risk

Billing

Noncash

Expense reimbursements

Skimming
PayrollCash larceny

Cash on hand
Register 

disbursements

Check and 
payment tampering

Category Number of cases Percent of all cases Median loss
Billing 416 20% $100,000 
Noncash 385 18% $78,000 
Expense reimbursements 232 11% $40,000 
Check and payment tampering 208 10% $100,000 
Cash on hand 199 9% $15,000 
Skimming 198 9% $50,000 
Payroll 198 9% $45,000 
Cash larceny 169 8% $45,000 
Register disbursements 58 3% $10,000 

Less risk More risk

Billing

Noncash

Expense reimbursements

Skimming
PayrollCash larceny

Cash on hand
Register 

disbursements

Check and 
payment tampering

Category Number of cases Percent of all cases Median loss
Billing 416 20% $100,000 
Noncash 385 18% $78,000 
Expense reimbursements 232 11% $40,000 
Check and payment tampering 208 10% $100,000 
Cash on hand 199 9% $15,000 
Skimming 198 9% $50,000 
Payroll 198 9% $45,000 
Cash larceny 169 8% $45,000 
Register disbursements 58 3% $10,000 



13

FIG. 6  HOW DOES THE DURATION OF A FRAUD RELATE TO MEDIAN LOSS?

Duration of Fraud Schemes
Try as they might, organizations cannot prevent all fraud; if an organization is operational long enough, eventually an 
employee will commit fraud. Consequently, the ability to quickly detect fraud is crucial. Our research indicates that the 
median duration of fraud—that is, the typical time between when a fraud begins and when it is detected—is 12 months. 
Additionally, Figure 6 shows that the longer a fraud remains undetected, the greater the financial loss.

HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

49–60 
months

37–48 
months >60 months19–24 

months
13–18 

months
25–36 
months≤6 months 7–12 

months

6%5%4%

9%9%

13%

$800,00o

$450,00o

$698,00o

$300,00o

$110,00o$100,00o
$47,00o

$125,00o

21%

33%

Median loss

Percent of cases



HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations14

FIG. 7  HOW LONG DO DIFFERENT OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD SCHEMES LAST?

When designing anti-fraud controls, assessing fraud risks, and implementing proactive detection measures, it is helpful to 
understand the potential impact of different types of fraud schemes. In addition to analyzing the frequency and median 
loss of the categories of occupational fraud (see Figures 2 and 5), we also examined the duration of cases (in months) in 
each category. As noted in Figure 7, companies tend to catch register disbursements, noncash, corruption, and cash on 
hand schemes the quickest (12 months). Other schemes such as billing, check and payment tampering, expense reim-
bursements, financial statement fraud, and payroll typically last a year and a half before being uncovered.

18 months

18 months

18 months

18 months

18 months

16 months

14 months

12 months

12 months

12 months

Billing

Check and payment tampering

Expense reimbursements

Financial statement fraud

Payroll

Skimming

Cash larceny

Cash on hand

Corruption

Noncash

Register disbursements 12 months



HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 15

FIG. 8  WHAT IS THE TYPICAL VELOCITY (MEDIAN LOSS PER MONTH) OF DIFFERENT OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD SCHEMES? 

Register disbursements

Cash on hand

Expense reimbursements

Payroll

Skimming

Cash larceny

Billing

Check and payment tampering

Noncash

Corruption

Financial statement fraud

$800

$1,300

$2,200

$2,500

$3,100

$3,200

$5,600

$5,600

$6,500

$12,500

$32,900

Median loss Median duration Scheme velocity  
(loss per month)

One perpetrator $57,000 12 months $4,800

Two perpetrators $145,000 12 months $12,100

Three or more perpetrators $219,000 12 months $18,300

Employee $50,000 8 months $6,300

Manager $125,000 16 months $7,800

Owner/executive $337,000 18 months $18,700

<100 employees $150,000 16 months $9,400

100+ employees $100,000 12 months $8,300

Velocity of Fraud Schemes
Fraud schemes affect companies differently, and organizations must make decisions about how and where to direct their 
anti-fraud efforts. Therefore, we analyzed how quickly occupational fraud tends to cause harm, as well as the variation in 
this speed among different scheme types. 
 
To determine the velocity for different types of fraud, we divided the loss amount by the number of months the scheme 
lasted before detection. The median velocity for all cases reported was a loss of USD 8,300 per month. Analyzing the ve-
locity by scheme type, however, reveals that certain types of occupational fraud cause damage much faster than others. 
As Figure 8 shows, financial statement fraud schemes have the greatest velocity of USD 32,900 per month, followed by 
corruption schemes, with a velocity of USD 12,500 per month. Organizations can use this data to prioritize their resourc-
es—for example, by investing more in measures aimed at protecting against high-velocity schemes.



HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations16

Register disbursements

Cash on hand

Expense reimbursements

Payroll

Skimming

Cash larceny

Billing

Check and payment tampering

Noncash

Corruption

Financial statement fraud

$800

$1,300

$2,200

$2,500

$3,100

$3,200

$5,600

$5,600

$6,500

$12,500

$32,900

Median loss Median duration Scheme velocity  
(loss per month)

One perpetrator $57,000 12 months $4,800

Two perpetrators $145,000 12 months $12,100

Three or more perpetrators $219,000 12 months $18,300

Employee $50,000 8 months $6,300

Manager $125,000 16 months $7,800

Owner/executive $337,000 18 months $18,700

<100 employees $150,000 16 months $9,400

100+ employees $100,000 12 months $8,300

Our analysis also reveals differences in scheme velocity based on the number of perpetrators involved in a case, as well 
as what position the primary perpetrator holds. Schemes with three or more perpetrators escalate faster than those with 
just one or two perpetrators. Likewise, schemes committed by an owner/executive have a velocity nearly three times that 
of schemes committed by employees and manager-level individuals. These findings emphasize how those in the highest 
positions can damage the company much more quickly than those in lower-level positions.

$8,300
causes a loss of

per
month

12 monthslasts
before detection

A TYPICAL FRAUD CASE



Examining the methods fraudsters use to conceal their crimes can assist organizations 
in more e�ectively detecting and preventing similar schemes moving forward.

TOP 5 CONCEALMENT METHODS USED BY FRAUDSTERS

HOW DO PERPETRATORS CONCEAL THEIR FRAUDS?

OF CASES involved
the creation of
fraudulent evidence57% OF CASES involved concealment 

methods a�ecting BOTH physical 
and electronic evidence.38%

of managers CREATED 
fraudulent evidence. 
61%48%

of executive-level perpetrators 
DESTROYED evidence. 

EVIDENCE

�����
Created fraudulent 
physical documents

39%

�����
Altered physical 

documents

32%
Altered electronic 
documents or files

�����
25%

Created fraudulent 
electronic documents 

or files 

�����
28%

�����
Destroyed or withheld

physical documents

23%

CONCEALMENT BY POSITION

Created
fraudulent evidence 57% Both physical and

electronic evidence 38%

Altered existing 
evidence 52% Electronic evidence 22%

Deleted or
destroyed evidence 37% Physical evidence 18%

HOW DO PERPETRATORS CONCEAL THEiR FRAUDS?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 17



CRIMINAL 
PROSECUTION,

Fewer organizations 
are pursuing 

CIVIL ACTION
against the perpetrator.

but more are taking

A DECADE OF OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD: TRENDS FROM 2012–2022 

Median lossMedian duration

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 2022

16

14

18

20

$140, ooo18 Months $117, ooo12 Months

160,000

140,000

120,000

100,000

1280,000

Median losses down

16%
Median duration down

33%

Frauds are being 
caught FASTER

and causing 
SMALLER losses.

Criminal action Civil action

2012
65% 23%

29%58%

2022

Median loss

Male Female

2012 2022

$91,00o

$200,00o

$125,00o
$100,00o

are perpetrating anMEN

FRAUDS, but the gap in
percentage of INCREASING

LOSSES has NARROWED. 

MALE

2012
65%

2022
73%

FEMALE

2012
35%

2022
27%

A DECADE OF OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD: TRENDS FROM 2012—2022  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations18



These five have  the most:INCREASED 

Formal fraud
risk assessments 36% 46% 11%

Fraud training 
for managers/

executives 47% 59% 12%

Anti-fraud policy 47% 60% 13%

Fraud training
for employees 47% 61% 14%

Hotline 54% 70% 16%

More perpetrators are in roles with

HIGHER LEVELS
OF AUTHORITY

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 2022

62%

56%

The percentage of cases

is on the 
involving CORRUPTION

RISE
33%

2012

50%

2022

FRAUDSTERS
are COLLABORATING MORE  

1 Perpetrator 2+ Perpetrators

2012
58%

2022
42%

2022
58%

2012
42%

Implementation rates for 
17 of the 18 analyzed 

anti-fraud controls have
INCREASED OVER 
THE LAST DECADE

Increase2012 2022

Manager/executive/owner

A DECADE OF OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD: TRENDS FROM 2012—2022  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 19



of fraud cases
involved THE USE

OF CRYPTOCURRENCY8%

Among these cases, cryptocurrency was most commonly used for:

�����Making bribery
and kickback

payments

48% �����Converting
misappropriated

assets

43%

FIG. 9  Among frauds involving cryptocurrency, how was it used?

Bribery or kickback 
payments made in 

cryptocurrency

Conversion of 
misappropriated assets 

to cryptocurrency

35%

Proceeds of fraud 
laundered using 
cryptocurrency

Misappropriation 
of organizational 
cryptocurrency 

assets

Manipulation of reported 
cryptocurrency assets on 
the financial statements 

Other

43%48%

19% 17% 5%

Cryptocurrency Schemes
The rise of blockchain technology, along with more organizations incorporating the use of cryptocurrency into their regu-
lar operations, creates another opportunity for individuals to perpetrate fraud. Only 8% of the frauds in our study involved 
the use of cryptocurrency (though anecdotal evidence suggests this number will rise in future years). Among these cas-
es, the most common ways cryptocurrency was utilized were making bribery and kickback payments in cryptocurrency 
(48%) or converting misappropriated assets to cryptocurrency (43%).

20 HOW iS OCCUPATiONAL FRAUD COMMiTTED?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



DETECTION

Detection is an essential step in fraud investigation because the speed with which 
fraud is detected—as well as the way it is detected—can have a substantial impact 
on the magnitude of the fraud. It is also an important component of fraud prevention 
because fraud examiners can take steps to improve how they detect fraud within 
their organizations. As a result, this might increase staff’s perception that fraud will be 
detected and possibly deter future misconduct. Our data explores how fraud is initially 
detected, when it is detected, and who reports it. 

21DETECTiON  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

Initial Detection of Occupational Fraud and Tip Sources
Knowing the most common methods by which fraud is discovered is the foundation for effective detection of occupa-
tional fraud. Despite the increasing number of advanced fraud detection techniques available to organizations, tips 
were still the most common way occupational frauds were discovered in our study by a wide margin, as they have 
been in every one of our previous reports. As shown in Figure 10, 42% of cases in our study were uncovered by tips, 
which is nearly three times as many cases as the next most common detection method. Therefore, implementing 
effective processes to solicit and thoroughly evaluate tips is a crucial priority for fraud examiners. 

Figure 11 identifies the sources of tips that led to fraud detection. More than half of all tips came from employees, 
while nearly a third of tips came from outside parties, including customers, vendors, and competitors. This reinforces 
the fact that anti-fraud education and the communication of designated reporting mechanisms should target both 
internal staff and external parties.



DETECTiON  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations22

42%

16%

12%

6%

5%

5%

4%

4%

3%

2%

1%

1%

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

Document examination

By accident

Account reconciliation

Automated transaction/data monitoring

External audit

Surveillance/monitoring

Notification by law enforcement

Confession

Other

55%

18%

16%

10%

5%

3%

3%

Employee

Customer

Anonymous

Vendor

Other

Shareholder/owner

Competitor

MEDiAN LOSS AND DURATiON By DETECTiON METHOD
Results from our data show that some fraud detection methods are more effective than others in that they correlate 
to lower fraud losses. Figure 12 shows the relationship between the detection method and the associated fraud 
scheme duration and loss, respectively. In this chart, the pink bars indicate schemes that were detected by passive 
methods—that is, the fraud came to the victim’s attention through no effort of their own—including notification by po-
lice, by accident, or by a fraudster’s confession. In general, most passively detected schemes lasted longer and were 
associated with higher median losses relative to all other detection methods. The light blue bars indicate active de-
tection methods—those that involved a process or effort designed (at least in part) to proactively detect fraud—such 
as document examination or surveillance/monitoring. Schemes discovered through an active method were shorter in 
duration and had lower median losses than those detected passively. The dark blue bars indicate detection methods 
that could potentially be passive or active, including tips and external audit.

This data highlights that when fraud is detected proactively, it tends to be detected more quickly and results in lower 
losses; in contrast, passive detection results in longer-lasting schemes and increased financial damage to the victim. 
Anti-fraud controls such as automated transaction/data monitoring, surveillance, account reconciliation, ongoing and 
proactive management review, and internal audit departments are all tools that can lead to more effective detection 
of occupational fraud. 

FIG. 10  HOW IS OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD INITIALLY DETECTED? FIG. 11  WHO REPORTS OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD?



FIG. 12  HOW DOES DETECTION METHOD RELATE TO FRAUD LOSS AND DURATION?

23

Notification by law enforcement

$500,000
18 months

Document examination

$200,000
12 months

Confession

$159,000
14 months

Tip

$117,000
12 months

Internal audit

$108,000
12 months

Management review

$105,000

12 months

By accident

$100,000
23 months

Account reconciliation

$74,000
8 months

Surveillance/monitoring

$60,000
6 months

Automated transaction/data monitoring

$50,000
6 months

Passive detection method

Potentially active or 
passive detection method

Active detection method

External audit

$219,000
20 months

DETECTiON  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



Maintaining a hotline or reporting mechanism increases the chances of earlier fraud detection and reduces 
losses. Fraud awareness training encourages tips through reporting mechanisms.  

had hotlines

of 
VICTIM 
ORGANIZATIONS

70%
$100,000

$200,000

Fraud losses were

at organizations without hotlines
2X HIGHER

With hotlines

Without hotlines

HOTLINE AND REPORTING MECHANISM EFFECTIVENESS

EFFECT OF EMPLOYEE AND MANAGER FRAUD AWARENESS
TRAINING ON HOTLINES AND REPORTING

TRAINING INCREASES
the likelihood of detection by tip

58%

42%

Reports of fraud are 
MORE LIKELY TO
BE SUBMITTED 
through hotlines

with training

Without training

Percent of tips made through hotline

With training

of cases detected 
by tip with training

of cases detected 
by tip without training

Organizations with 
hotlines detect frauds 

MORE QUICKLY

12 months

18 months

With hotline

Without hotline

Organizations with hotlines are more
likely to detect fraud BY TIP

With
hotlines 47% Without

hotlines31%

Percent of cases detected by tip

HOTLiNE AND REPORTiNg MECHANiSM EFFECTiVENESS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations24



HOTLINE IMPLEMENTATION AND TIP DETECTION RATES BY REGION

United States and Canada
Eastern Europe and 
Western/Central Asia

Latin America
and the Caribbean Sub-Saharan

Africa

Western Europe

Southern Asia

Middle East 
and North Africa

80%

58%

Asia-Pacific

75%

36%

72%

51%

76%

48%

63%

32%

68%

41%

Hotline implementation rate            
Percent of cases detected            
by tip

68%

41%

67%

41%

Cases 
detected 
by tip

<100 employees
33%

100+ employees
44%

2012 2014 2016 2018 2020 2022

42%

Since 2012, the percent of tips made through 
hotlines has INCREASED DRAMATICALLY

LARGE ORGANIZATIONS are especially 
likely to detect occupational fraud by tip

ORGANIZATIONS WITHOUT HOTLINES ARE 3.5X MORE LIKELY
to discover fraud through an external audit and nearly 2X more likely by accident

2%

7%Without hotline

External audit

With hotline 4%

7%Without hotline

By accident

With hotline

58%

25HOTLiNE AND REPORTiNg MECHANiSM EFFECTiVENESS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



DETECTiON  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations26

Reporting Mechanisms
In cases where a reporting mechanism was used to report fraud, we asked respondents to specify how the tip arrived. In 
our previous studies, telephone hotlines were the most common mechanism whistleblowers used. However, as shown 
in Figure 13, telephone hotline use has declined substantially, while email and web-based/online reporting have both 
surpassed telephone hotlines. These findings demonstrate that whistleblowers’ preferred methods of reporting fraud are 
diverse and evolving, particularly regarding online and electronic forms. Consequently, organizations should maintain 
multiple channels for reporting fraud.

FIG. 13  What formal reporting mechanisms did whistleblowers use?

40%

26%

33%

2018 2020 2022

Telephone hotline

Email

Web-based/online form

Mailed letter/form

Other

Fax

42%

40%

33%34%

27%

9%

7%

9%

16%17%

10%

12% 12%

32%

23%24%

33%

1%

<1%

1%2%

2016

of frauds were
detected by tips,42%

which is nearly 3x as many cases as
the next most common method

More than HALF of all tips
came from employees



DETECTiON  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 27

Parties to Whom Whistleblowers Report
Not all tips about suspected fraud are reported through a formal reporting mechanism. Some reports are made informally 
to individuals within the organization. Figure 14 indicates that whistleblowers who do not use hotline mechanisms are 
most likely to report their concerns to their direct supervisors (30%). But this chart also makes clear that whistleblowers 
may reach out to a wide variety of parties, such as executives, internal audit, fraud investigation teams, or their cowork-
ers. Because almost anyone in an organization could potentially receive a report, it is important to provide all staff with 
guidance on how fraud allegations are handled within the organization and what to do if they receive a report about 
suspected fraud.

FIG. 14  To whom did whistleblowers initially report?

Direct supervisor

Executive

Internal audit

Fraud investigation team

Other

Board or audit committee

Owner

Coworker

Law enforcement or regulator

Human resources

In-house counsel

External audit

30%

15%

12%

12%

9%

9%

8%

8%

8%

5%

3%

1%



28 ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

VICTIM ORGANIZATIONS

Other

$218,000  

4%

Nonprofit

$60,000

9%

Government

$138,000

18%

Public
company

$118,000

25%

Private
company

$120,000

44%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 16  WHAT LEVELS OF GOVERNMENT ARE VICTIMIZED BY 
OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD?

*Dollar amounts are median loss. Median loss calculations 
for categories with fewer than 10 cases were omitted.
 

($200,000*)National: 46%

State/provincial: ($56,000*)27%

Other: (N/A*)2%

($125,000*)Local: 25%

Other

$218,000  

4%

Nonprofit

$60,000

9%

Government

$138,000

18%

Public
company

$118,000

25%

Private
company

$120,000

44%

Median loss

Percent of cases

To determine how the impact of fraud varies among victim organizations, we asked 
survey participants about the victim organizations in their cases, including their size, type, 
industry, and which anti-fraud controls they had in place when the schemes occurred. 

Type of Organization
More than two-thirds (69%) of frauds reported by our 
survey respondents occurred in for-profit organizations, 
with 44% of the victim organizations being private 
companies and 25% being public companies, as shown 
in Figure 15. Private and public companies suffered 
a median loss of USD 120,000 and USD 118,000, 
respectively. Nonprofit organizations were the victims 
in only 9% of the reported fraud cases and suffered the 
smallest median loss of USD 60,000.

Government agencies at different levels can vary 
widely in terms of their operations, personnel, and 
budgets, and therefore tend to be impacted differently 
by fraud. To analyze this, we separated the government 
organizations in our study by level. National-level 
entities represented the highest number of reported 
frauds (46%) and had the greatest median loss of USD 
200,000, which is nearly four times the median loss 
incurred by state/provincial-level entities (USD 56,000). 
Additionally, local governments, which tend to be 
smaller in terms of staffing and resources, suffered the 
second-highest median loss of USD 125,000, more than 
twice as much as state/provincial-level entities.

FIG. 15  WHAT TYPES OF ORGANIZATIONS ARE 
VICTIMIZED BY OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD?



29 ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

25%$138,00o
10,000+ employees

$100,00o 24%
100–999 employees

29%
1,000–9,999 employees

$100,00o

22%
<100 employees

$150,00o

Median loss
Percent of cases

FIG. 17  HOW DOES AN ORGANIZATION’S SIZE RELATE TO ITS OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD RISK?

Size of Organization
In Figure 17, we categorized all victim organizations based on their number of employees. Small businesses (fewer 
than 100 employees) had the highest median loss of USD 150,000, while the largest organizations (more than 10,000 
employees) had a median loss of USD 138,000. Even though the median loss figures for small and large organizations 
were similar, the impact of such a loss is likely far more significant at a smaller organization.



Real estate

$435,000

$400,000

$250,000

$203,000

$200,000

Wholesale trade

Construction

Utilities

Transportation and warehousing

TOP 5 MEDIAN LOSSES BY INDUSTRY

ORGANIZATIONS WITH THE 
FEWEST EMPLOYEES HAD THE 

HIGHEST MEDIAN LOSS 
($150,000)

ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations30

Figure 18 shows the distribution of victim organizations based on revenue size. Median losses ranged from USD 100,000 
in the smallest organizations to USD 150,000 in the largest. But again, an organization with less than USD 50 million in 
annual revenue is likely to feel that impact much more than an organization with a revenue of USD 1 billion or more.

FIG. 18  how does an organization’s gross annual revenue relate to its occupational fraud risk?

12%$150,00o
$500 million–$999 million

24%$150,00o
$1 billion+

26%$105,00o
$50 million–$499 million

38%$100,00o
<$50 million

Median loss
Percent of cases



Corruption 24%

54%

Billing 13%

19%

Check and 
payment tampering

10%

8%

Payroll
8%

8%

Financial 
statement fraud

5%

10%

Noncash 9%

19%

Expense
reimbursements

7%

11%

Register
disbursements

1%

3%

Cash larceny 7%

7%

Skimming 9%

8%

Cash on hand 7%

9%

<100 Employees

100+ Employees

ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 31

In Figure 19, we compare the frequency of schemes in small businesses (i.e., those with fewer than 100 employees) and 
larger organizations (i.e., those with more than 100 employees). The most significant difference involves corruption, 
which is much more prevalent in larger organizations than smaller ones (54% and 24%, respectively). Misappropriation of 
noncash assets was also more than twice as common in larger organizations. Only two schemes occurred more fre-
quently in smaller organizations than larger organizations: skimming and check and payment tampering.

FIG. 19  HOW DO FRAUD SCHEMES VARY BY ORGANIZATION SIZE?



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations32

FIG. 20  HOW DOES OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD AFFECT ORGANIZATIONS IN DIFFERENT INDUSTRIES?Industry 
of Organization
Survey participants were 
asked to identify the victim 
organization’s industry. The  
industries affected by the 
greatest number of cases in 
our study were banking and 
financial services, government 
and public administration, and 
manufacturing. It is important 
to note that this does not 
necessarily mean that more 
fraud occurs in these indus-
tries; rather, it might indicate 
that these industries employ 
more CFEs than others. The 
real estate industry suffered 
the highest median loss of 
USD 435,000, followed by the 
wholesale trade sector with 
the next-highest median loss 
of USD 400,000.

Information 

MEDIAN LOSS

$58,000
60

CASES

Arts, 
entertainment, 
and recreation

MEDIAN LOSS

$73,000
41

CASES

Banking and  
financial services

MEDIAN LOSS

$100,000
351

CASES

Construction

MEDIAN LOSS

$203,000
78

CASES

Education

MEDIAN LOSS

$56,000
69

CASES

Energy

MEDIAN LOSS

$100,000
97

CASES

Agriculture, 
forestry, fishing, 

and hunting

MEDIAN LOSS

$154,000
39

CASES

Food service  
and hospitality

MEDIAN LOSS

$55,000
52

CASES

Government and  
public administration

MEDIAN LOSS

$150,000
198

CASES

Health care

MEDIAN LOSS

$100,000
130

CASES

Insurance

MEDIAN LOSS

$130,000
88

CASES

Manufacturing

MEDIAN LOSS

$177,000
194

CASES

Mining

MEDIAN LOSS

$175,000
22

CASES

Real estate

MEDIAN LOSS

$435,000
41

CASES

Religious, 
charitable, or 

social services

MEDIAN LOSS

$78,000
58

CASES

Retail

MEDIAN LOSS

$65,000
91

CASES

Services 
(other)

MEDIAN LOSS

$100,000
32

CASES

Services 
(professional)

MEDIAN LOSS

$125,000
41

CASES

Technology

MEDIAN LOSS

$150,000
84

CASES

Transportation 
and warehousing

MEDIAN LOSS

$250,000
82

CASES

Wholesale trade

MEDIAN LOSS

$400,000
28

CASES

Utilities

MEDIAN LOSS

$200,000
30

CASES

(e.g., publishing, media, 
telecommunications)



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 33

MOST COMMON SCHEMES By iNDUSTRy
Identifying the frequency of various fraud schemes within industries could help organizations in those industries deter-
mine which controls to implement. The heat map in Figure 21 shows the most common types of schemes that occurred in 
industries with more than 50 reported cases. The risks are shaded from light to dark blue, with darker variants represent-
ing higher-risk areas. For example, the most common fraud scheme in the retail industry was corruption (43%), followed 
by noncash schemes (24%); its lowest area of risk was financial statement fraud (4%).

FIG. 21  What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in various industries?

Cases Bi
llin

g

Ca
sh

 la
rc

en
y

Ca
sh

 o
n 

ha
nd

Ch
ec

k a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

t 
ta

m
pe

rin
g

Co
rru

pt
io

n

Ex
pe

ns
e 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

ts

Fin
an

cia
l s

ta
te

m
en

t f
ra

ud

No
nc

as
h

Pa
yr

ol
l

Re
gi

ste
r d

isb
ur

se
m

en
ts

Sk
im

m
in

g

INDUSTRY
Banking and financial 
services 351 10% 11% 14% 14% 46% 8% 11% 11% 4% 2% 10%

Government and public 
administration 198 21% 8% 7% 9% 57% 12% 8% 16% 16% 3% 8%

Manufacturing 194 26% 5% 9% 7% 59% 10% 12% 23% 10% 4% 8%

Health care 130 20% 6% 8% 8% 50% 11% 9% 18% 12% 2% 9%

Energy 97 24% 9% 6% 8% 64% 16% 8% 13% 6% 3% 2%

Retail 91 19% 10% 9% 9% 43% 7% 4% 24% 5% 7% 14%

Insurance 88 15% 9% 8% 10% 40% 9% 5% 8% 10% 2% 11%

Technology 84 21% 6% 10% 6% 54% 14% 8% 30% 5% 1% 1%

Transportation and 
warehousing 82 20% 9% 15% 4% 59% 11% 7% 22% 9% 4% 11%

Construction 78 24% 8% 10% 14% 56% 17% 18% 24% 24% 3% 9%

Education 69 26% 9% 12% 12% 49% 12% 12% 19% 14% 4% 12%

Information 60 15% 5% 5% 8% 58% 12% 12% 33% 7% 2% 7%

Food service and 
hospitality 52 19% 10% 21% 17% 54% 13% 13% 29% 19% 10% 17%

Less risk More risk



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations34

Anti-Fraud Controls at Victim Organizations
Fraud doesn’t happen in a vacuum; organizations often enact specific internal controls designed to prevent, detect, or 
mitigate any attempted wrongdoing. However, the effectiveness of these measures in deterring and uncovering fraud 
can depend on many factors and can change over time. Consequently, it can be helpful for organizations to benchmark 
their own anti-fraud controls against those of other organizations.

We asked survey respondents which, if any, of 18 common anti-fraud controls the victim organization had in place at 
the time the fraud occurred. As shown in Figure 22, the two most common of these controls were external (indepen-
dent) audits of financial statements and a formal code of conduct, each of which were implemented in 82% of the victim 
organizations. Other common controls include an internal audit department (77%), management certification of financial 
statements (74%), and an external (independent) audit of the internal controls over financial reporting (71%). 

FIG. 22  what anti-fraud controls are most common?

Code of conduct

External audit of financial statements

Management certification of financial statements

Internal audit department

External audit of internal controls over financial reporting

Hotline

Independent audit committee

Anti-fraud policy

Fraud training for managers/executives

Fraud training for employees

Employee support programs

Dedicated fraud department, function, or team

Management review

Formal fraud risk assessments

Proactive data monitoring/analysis 

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Suprise audits

Rewards for whistleblowers

82%

82%

77%

74%

71%

70%

69%

67%

61%

60%

59%

56%

48%

46%

45%

42%

25%

15%



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 35

EFFECTiVENESS OF ANTi-FRAUD CONTROLS
To help evaluate the effectiveness of these 18 anti-fraud controls, we compared the median losses and median durations 
in cases in which the victim organization had the control in place against cases in which the victim organization lacked 
the control. The results of these analyses are reflected in Figures 23 and 24. As noted, the presence of all 18 controls 
was associated with a lower median loss, and all but one control (employee support programs) was correlated with faster 
fraud detection. 

In particular, two controls—job rotation/mandatory vacation policies and surprise audits—were associated with at least 
a 50% reduction in both median loss and median duration. Interestingly, these are among the least common controls 
implemented, with only 25% of organizations having a job rotation/mandatory vacation policy and 42% using surprise 
audits, indicating that numerous organizations have an opportunity to add these highly effective tools to their anti-fraud 
programs. Other controls with notable reductions in both measures include proactive data monitoring/analysis and for-
mal fraud risk assessments.

AND

The presence of anti-fraud controls
is associated with

LOWER
fraud losses

QUICKER
fraud detection

Nearly HALF of cases
occurred due to:

ORLack of
internal controls

Override of 
existing controls

Increased management 
review procedures

Increased use of proactive
data monitoring/analysis

75% 64%



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations36

FIG. 23  How does the presence of anti-fraud controls relate to median loss?

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

Rewards fo
r whistle

blowers

Employee support p
rograms

Independent audit committe
e

Management certifi
cation of financial sta

tements

External audit o
f financial sta

tements

Management re
view

External audit o
f internal controls o

ver financial re
portin

g

Dedicated fra
ud departm

ent, fu
nction, or te

am

Internal audit d
epartm

ent 

Fraud tra
ining for m

anagers/e
xecutives

Code of conduct

Formal fra
ud risk

 asse
ssm

ents

Fraud tra
ining for employees 

Anti-fr
aud policy

Proactive data monitoring/analysis 

Surprise
 auditsHotline

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Median loss with controls in placeMedian loss without controls in place

Control Percent 
of cases 

Control 
in place

Control not 
in place

Percent 
reduction

Job rotation/mandatory vacation 25% $ 64,000  $140,000 54%
Hotline 70% $ 100,000  $200,000 50%
Surprise audits 42% $ 75,000  $150,000 50%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 45% $ 80,000  $150,000 47%
Anti-fraud policy 60% $ 100,000  $183,000 45%
Fraud training for employees 61% $ 97,000  $177,000 45%
Formal fraud risk assessments 46% $ 82,000  $150,000 45%
Code of conduct 82% $ 100,000  $168,000 40%
Fraud training for managers/executives 59% $ 100,000  $165,000 39%
Internal audit department 77% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 48% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 71% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
Management review 69% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
External audit of financial statements 82% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
Management certification of financial statements 74% $ 100,000  $140,000 29%
Independent audit committee 67% $ 103,000  $142,000 27%
Employee support programs 56% $ 90,000  $120,000 25%
Rewards for whistleblowers 15% $ 100,000  $105,000   5%

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

Rewards fo
r whistle

blowers

Employee support p
rograms

Independent audit committe
e

Management certifi
cation of financial sta

tements

External audit o
f financial sta

tements

Management re
view

External audit o
f internal controls o

ver financial re
portin

g

Dedicated fra
ud departm

ent, fu
nction, or te

am

Internal audit d
epartm

ent 

Fraud tra
ining for m

anagers/e
xecutives

Code of conduct

Formal fra
ud risk

 asse
ssm

ents

Fraud tra
ining for employees 

Anti-fr
aud policy

Proactive data monitoring/analysis 

Surprise
 auditsHotline

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Median loss with controls in placeMedian loss without controls in place

Control Percent 
of cases 

Control 
in place

Control not 
in place

Percent 
reduction

Job rotation/mandatory vacation 25% $ 64,000  $140,000 54%
Hotline 70% $ 100,000  $200,000 50%
Surprise audits 42% $ 75,000  $150,000 50%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 45% $ 80,000  $150,000 47%
Anti-fraud policy 60% $ 100,000  $183,000 45%
Fraud training for employees 61% $ 97,000  $177,000 45%
Formal fraud risk assessments 46% $ 82,000  $150,000 45%
Code of conduct 82% $ 100,000  $168,000 40%
Fraud training for managers/executives 59% $ 100,000  $165,000 39%
Internal audit department 77% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 48% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 71% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
Management review 69% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
External audit of financial statements 82% $ 100,000  $150,000 33%
Management certification of financial statements 74% $ 100,000  $140,000 29%
Independent audit committee 67% $ 103,000  $142,000 27%
Employee support programs 56% $ 90,000  $120,000 25%
Rewards for whistleblowers 15% $ 100,000  $105,000   5%



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 37

FIG. 24  How does the presence of anti-fraud controls relate to the duration of fraud?

M
ed

ian
 m

on
th

s t
o 

de
te

ct
io

n

0

5

10

15

20

Management re
view

Employee support p
rograms

Fraud tra
ining for m

anagers/e
xecutives

Independent audit committe
e

Fraud tra
ining for employees

Anti-fr
aud policy

Hotline

External audit o
f internal controls o

ver financial re
portin

g

External audit o
f financial sta

tements

Management certifi
cation of financial sta

tements

Internal audit d
epartm

ent

Code of conduct

Rewards fo
r whistle

blowers

Dedicated fra
ud departm

ent, fu
nction, or te

am

Formal fra
ud risk

 asse
ssm

ents

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Surprise
 audits

Proactive data monitoring/analysis

Median duration with controls in placeMedian duration without controls in place

Control Percent 
of cases 

Control 
in place

Control not 
in place

Percent 
reduction

Proactive data monitoring/analysis 45% 8 months 18 months 56%
42% 9 months 18 months 50%

Job rotation/mandatory vacation 25% 8 months 16 months 50%
Formal fraud risk assessments 46% 10 months 18 months 44%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 48% 10 months 18 months 44%
Rewards for whistleblowers 15% 8 months 13 months 38%

82% 12 months 18 months 33%
Internal audit department 77% 12 months 18 months 33%
Management certification of financial statements 74% 12 months 18 months 33%

69% 12 months 18 months 33%
External audit of financial statements 82% 12 months 18 months 33%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 71% 12 months 18 months 33%

70% 12 months 18 months 33%
60% 12 months 18 months 33%

Fraud training for employees 61% 12 months 18 months 33%
Independent audit committee 67% 12 months 18 months 33%
Fraud training for managers/executives 59% 12 months 15 months 20%
Employee support programs 56% 12 months 12 months 0%

Surprise audits

Code of conduct

Management review

Hotline
Anti-fraud policy

M
ed

ian
 m

on
th

s t
o 

de
te

ct
io

n

0

5

10

15

20

Management re
view

Employee support p
rograms

Fraud tra
ining for m

anagers/e
xecutives

Independent audit committe
e

Fraud tra
ining for employees

Anti-fr
aud policy

Hotline

External audit o
f internal controls o

ver financial re
portin

g

External audit o
f financial sta

tements

Management certifi
cation of financial sta

tements

Internal audit d
epartm

ent

Code of conduct

Rewards fo
r whistle

blowers

Dedicated fra
ud departm

ent, fu
nction, or te

am

Formal fra
ud risk

 asse
ssm

ents

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Surprise
 audits

Proactive data monitoring/analysis

Median duration with controls in placeMedian duration without controls in place

Control Percent 
of cases 

Control 
in place

Control not 
in place

Percent 
reduction

Proactive data monitoring/analysis 45% 8 months 18 months 56%
42% 9 months 18 months 50%

Job rotation/mandatory vacation 25% 8 months 16 months 50%
Formal fraud risk assessments 46% 10 months 18 months 44%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 48% 10 months 18 months 44%
Rewards for whistleblowers 15% 8 months 13 months 38%

82% 12 months 18 months 33%
Internal audit department 77% 12 months 18 months 33%
Management certification of financial statements 74% 12 months 18 months 33%

69% 12 months 18 months 33%
External audit of financial statements 82% 12 months 18 months 33%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 71% 12 months 18 months 33%

70% 12 months 18 months 33%
60% 12 months 18 months 33%

Fraud training for employees 61% 12 months 18 months 33%
Independent audit committee 67% 12 months 18 months 33%
Fraud training for managers/executives 59% 12 months 15 months 20%
Employee support programs 56% 12 months 12 months 0%

Surprise audits

Code of conduct

Management review

Hotline
Anti-fraud policy



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations38

ANTi-FRAUD CONTROLS iN SMALL BUSiNESSES
Small organizations face unique challenges in combatting fraud—from limited financial resources and smaller staff sizes 
that require many individuals to perform numerous functions, to the large amount of trust needed to keep operations 
running and the business growing. Unfortunately, that means that many of the protective anti-fraud controls that larger 
organizations rely on are simply not enacted within small businesses. Figure 25 shows the implementation rates of 
anti-fraud controls at small businesses (i.e., organizations with fewer than 100 employees) compared to their larger 
counterparts. Across all 18 controls, small organizations had notably lower levels of implementation; even the most 
common controls—external audits of financial statements and a formal code of conduct—were only in place at 53% of 
small businesses in our study, compared to approximately 90% of larger organizations. 

FIG. 25  how do anti-fraud controls vary by size of victim organization?

External audit of financial statements

Code of conduct
Management certification of financial statements

Management review

External audit of internal controls over financial reporting

Internal audit department
Independent audit committee

Hotline

Anti-fraud policy

Fraud training for employees

Fraud training for managers/executives

Employee support programs

Proactive data monitoring/analysis

Surprise audits

Formal fraud risk assessments

Dedicated fraud department, function, or team

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Rewards for whistleblowers

<100 employees

100+ employees

53%

53%

45%

43%

37%

36%

28%

26%

25%

25%

25%

24%

21%

19%

17%

13%

12%

9%

90%

89%

82%

76%

80%

88%

77%

81%

69%

70%

68%

64%

51%

48%

55%

57%

29%

17%

External audit of financial statements

Code of conduct
Management certification of financial statements

Management review

External audit of internal controls over financial reporting

Internal audit department
Independent audit committee

Hotline

Anti-fraud policy

Fraud training for employees

Fraud training for managers/executives

Employee support programs

Proactive data monitoring/analysis

Surprise audits

Formal fraud risk assessments

Dedicated fraud department, function, or team

Job rotation/mandatory vacation

Rewards for whistleblowers

<100 employees

100+ employees

53%

53%

45%

43%

37%

36%

28%

26%

25%

25%

25%

24%

21%

19%

17%

13%

12%

9%

90%

89%

82%

76%

80%

88%

77%

81%

69%

70%

68%

64%

51%

48%

55%

57%

29%

17%



DID VICTIM ORGANIZATIONS MODIFY THEIR
ANTI-FRAUD CONTROLS FOLLOWING FRAUD?

WHICH TYPES OF ORGANIZATIONS WERE MOST LIKELY 
TO MODIFY THEIR ANTI-FRAUD CONTROLS?

MODIFYING ANTI-FRAUD CONTROLS FOLLOWING A FRAUD

Management
review

Surprise audits

Of changes made to anti-fraud controls, the most common involved implementing or modifying:

Anti-fraud training Internal audit 
department

Proactive data 
monitoring

MOST COMMON CHANGES MADE
TO ANTI-FRAUD CONTROLS

Modified
anti-fraud controls

Did not modify 
anti-fraud controls

19%

81%

75% 64% 54% 48% 42%

87%Nonprofit

Government 74%

Private company 83%

Public company 83%

M
ED

IA
N 

LO
SS

Did not
modify controls

Modified 
controls

$120,000

$58,000

A comprehensive response to a discovered fraud should include assessing the factors that allowed the fraud to occur and 
taking steps to prevent similar frauds from being able to happen again in the future. 

ORGANIZATIONS THAT HAD
HIGHER LOSSES were more 
likely to modify their controls 
following the fraud

MODiFyiNg ANTi-FRAUD CONTROLS FOLLOWiNg A FRAUD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 39



COVID’S EFFECT ON OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD

It’s important to note that this study analyzes cases that were investigated between 
January 2020 and September 2021, not necessarily frauds that were committed 
during that time. Since the median duration of the frauds in this study was 12 months, 
many of the frauds analyzed were perpetrated before the COVID-19 pandemic began. 
Consequently, we anticipate seeing additional pandemic-related factors underlying 
the cases in our 2024 study, when many more frauds that began during the pandemic 
will have been detected and investigated.

TO WHAT EXTENT DID PANDEMIC-RELATED FACTORS 
CONTRIBUTE TO OCCUPATIONAL FRAUDS?

Organizational sta�ng changes 16% 14% 58%12%

Operational process changes 14% 13% 60%12%

Internal control changes 14% 12% 61%13%

Shift to remote work 14% 9% 62%15%

Changes to strategic priorities 12%12% 65%10%

Technology challenges 10%11% 69%9%

Supply chain disruptions 10%11% 71%9%

Changes to anti-fraud program 11%11% 70%8%

Significant factor Moderate factor Slight factor Not a factor

We asked survey participants whether several 
pandemic-related issues contributed to the frauds 
that they investigated; 52% of respondents noted 
that at least one of these factors was present in 
their case. Of the factors analyzed, pandemic-relat-
ed organizational sta�ng changes were the most 
common (42% of cases), and a shift to remote work 
was the factor most commonly cited as significant 
(15% of cases).

12 
MONTHS

MEDIAN DURATION 
OF FRAUD

COVID’S EFFECT ON OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations40



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 41

background checks
Background checks are an important tool in the fight against fraud, as they can prevent organizations from hiring individu-
als with known histories of misconduct. However, as noted in Figure 26, 43% of victim organizations did not run a back-
ground check on the perpetrator prior to hiring. Further, of the background checks that were run on the perpetrators, 21% 
revealed previous red flags, meaning that the individuals were hired even with known instances of misconduct or other 
concerns.

We also asked about the specific types of background checks that the victim organizations conducted. As shown in Figure 
28, the two most common forms of background checks run by the organizations were employment history checks (45%) 
and criminal background checks (40%). 

FIG. 28  what types of background checks were run on the perpetrator prior to hiring?

FIG. 26  was a background check run on the perpetrator prior to hiring?

FIG. 27  did the background checks 
reveal existing red flags?

45%

43%

40%

30%

30%

21%

11%

2%

Employment history

No background checks

Criminal checks

Reference checks

Education verification

Credit checks

Drug screening

Other

43%

No
57%

Yes

79%
No

21%
Yes



42

Internal Control Weaknesses That Contributed to the Fraud
Even in organizations with anti-fraud programs, fraud can and does happen. To better understand the factors that can 
lead to occupational fraud, we asked survey participants to identify the primary internal control weakness that allowed 
the fraud case to occur. The most common factor underlying the occupational frauds in our study was a lack of internal 
controls; 29% of victim organizations did not have adequate controls in place to prevent the fraud from occurring. Another 
20% of cases involved an override of existing internal controls, meaning the victim organization had implemented mech-
anisms to protect against fraud, but the perpetrator was able to circumvent those controls. Together, this data shows that 
nearly half of the frauds in our study likely could have been prevented with a stronger system of anti-fraud controls. 
 
Individuals with different levels of authority within an organization tend to have different amounts of access and influence, 
which can affect how they are able to perpetrate fraud. We analyzed how the internal control weaknesses varied by the 
position of the perpetrator, as shown in Figure 30. Not surprisingly, a poor tone at the top was the most common factor 
underlying schemes perpetrated by owners and executives. The most common control weakness for both staff-level 
employees and mid-level managers was a lack of internal controls (34% and 29%, respectively).  

42

FIG. 29  what are the primary internal control weaknesses that contribute to occupational fraud?

Lack of clear lines of authority

Lack of independent checks/audits

Lack of employee fraud education

Lack of reporting mechanism 

Lack of internal controls  29%

Override of existing controls  20%

Lack of management review 16%

Poor tone at the top 10%

Lack of competent personnel in oversight roles 8%

Other 7%5%

3%

2%

<1%

ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



ViCTiM ORgANiZATiONS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 43

FIG. 30  Top 3 Internal Control Weaknesses Based on the Perpetrator’s Position

EMPLOYEE

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
management 
review

Lack of internal controls 

Manager
Lack of internal controls 

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
management 
review

owner/executive
Poor tone at the top

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
internal controls

18%17%

23%

20%

23%34% 29%

19%23%

EMPLOYEE

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
management 
review

Lack of internal controls 

Manager
Lack of internal controls 

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
management 
review

owner/executive
Poor tone at the top

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
internal controls

18%17%

23%

20%

23%34% 29%

19%23%

EMPLOYEE

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
management 
review

Lack of internal controls 

Manager
Lack of internal controls 

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
management 
review

owner/executive
Poor tone at the top

Override of existing
internal controls

Lack of 
internal controls

18%17%

23%

20%

23%34% 29%

19%23%



PERPETRATORS 

44 PERPETRATORS   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

displayed at least one 
BEHAVIORAL RED FLAG OF FRAUD

of fraudsters85%

Owners/executives 
committed only 23% of 

occupational frauds, 
but they caused the 

largest losses. 

$337,000

$125,000

$50,000

Owner/executive

Manager

Employee

Participants in our survey answered several questions about the fraud perpetrators’ 
job details, basic demographics, prior misconduct, and behavioral warning signs that 
might have indicated fraud. This information helps us identify common characteristics 
and behaviors of fraud perpetrators, which can be used by organizations to assess 
relative levels of risk among their own employees. 

Perpetrator’s Position
Our data shows a strong correlation between the perpetrator’s level of authority and the size of the fraud. Owner/execu-
tives only committed 23% of the frauds in our study, but the median loss in those cases (USD 337,000) was significantly 
larger than losses caused by managers. In turn, managers caused much larger losses than staff-level employees. This find-
ing is consistent with our past studies, all of which have shown that fraud losses tend to be larger in schemes committed by 
higher-level fraudsters.

Frauds committed by higher-level perpetrators also typically take longer to detect. As shown in Figure 32, the median du-
ration of a fraud committed by an owner/executive was 18 months, whereas frauds committed by staff-level employees had 
a median duration of only eight months. One of the challenges of dealing with fraud committed by high-level perpetrators 
is that these individuals often have the ability to evade or override controls that would otherwise detect fraud. Additionally, 
fraudsters in positions of authority might bully or intimidate employees below them, which can deter those employees from 
reporting or investigating suspected wrongdoing. Both of these factors might contribute to the longer duration of frauds 
committed by high-level employees.



45  PerPetrators   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

18 monthsOwner/executive

Median duration

8 months

16 months

Employee

Manager

FIG. 31  how does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to occupational fraud?

FIG. 32  how does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to scheme duration?

37% 39%

23%

2%

$50,00o

$125,00o

$337,00o

$133,00o

Employee Manager Owner/executive Other

Median loss

Percent of cases



PERPETRATORS   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations46

Perpetrator’s Tenure
The perpetrator’s length of service with the victim organization is also strongly correlated with the size of the fraud. In our 
study, fraudsters with at least ten years of tenure at the victim organization caused median losses of USD 250,000. This 
was five times the median loss caused by perpetrators with less than one year of tenure.

9%

47%

25%

20%

$50,00o

$100,00o

$137,00o

$250,00o

<1 year 1–5 years 6–10 years >10 years

Median loss

Percent of cases

Perpetrator’s Department
In order to allocate anti-fraud controls and resources most effectively, it is important to understand the relative risks of 
occupational fraud throughout an organization. The heat map in Figure 34 shows the frequency and median loss of fraud 
schemes based on the departments in which fraud perpetrators worked. We can see, for example, that frauds committed 
by executives and upper management were not only common (11% of cases) but also costly (USD 500,000 median loss), 
making this a very high-risk area in general. Accounting and sales departments were also both associated with a high 
percentage of cases (12% and 11%, respectively) while also causing six-figure median losses.

FIG. 33  how does the perpetrator’s tenure relate to occupational fraud?



PERPETRATORS   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 47

FIG. 34  what departments pose the greatest risk for occupational fraud?

Less risk More risk

Administrative 
support

Accounting

Purchasing

Finance
Information 
technology

Sales

Operations

Customer service

Executive/upper
management

Board of directors

Manufacturing and 
production

Marketing/
public relations

Human resources
Research and development

Facilities and maintenance

Warehousing/inventory

Department* Number of cases Percent of cases Median loss Department* Number of cases Percent of cases Median loss

Operations 273 15% $74,000 
Accounting 230 12% $155,000 
Executive/upper management 206 11% $500,000 
Sales 203 11% $100,000 
Customer service 140 8% $40,000 
Purchasing 131 7%

$90,000 Administrative support 131 7%
$129,000 

Finance 95 5% $160,000 

Manufacturing and production 63 3% $100,000 

*Departments with fewer than 10 cases were omitted. 

Board of directors 58 3% $500,000 

Warehousing/inventory 58 3% $116,000 
Information technology 53 3% $150,000 

Facilities and maintenance 49 3% $58,000 
Marketing/public relations 35 2% $112,000
Human resources 29 2% $100,000 
Research and development 17 1% $75,000 

Less risk More risk

Administrative 
support

Accounting

Purchasing

Finance
Information 
technology

Sales

Operations

Customer service

Executive/upper
management

Board of directors

Manufacturing and 
production

Marketing/
public relations

Human resources
Research and development

Facilities and maintenance

Warehousing/inventory

Department* Number of cases Percent of cases Median loss Department* Number of cases Percent of cases Median loss

Operations 273 15% $74,000 
Accounting 230 12% $155,000 
Executive/upper management 206 11% $500,000 
Sales 203 11% $100,000 
Customer service 140 8% $40,000 
Purchasing 131 7%

$90,000 Administrative support 131 7%
$129,000 

Finance 95 5% $160,000 

Manufacturing and production 63 3% $100,000 

*Departments with fewer than 10 cases were omitted. 

Board of directors 58 3% $500,000 

Warehousing/inventory 58 3% $116,000 
Information technology 53 3% $150,000 

Facilities and maintenance 49 3% $58,000 
Marketing/public relations 35 2% $112,000
Human resources 29 2% $100,000 
Research and development 17 1% $75,000 



Perpetrators   Report to the Nations

Long-tenured FRAUDSTERS
steal almost

3X MORE
Even when
with similar LEVELS OF AUTHORITY,
LONG-TENURED FRAUDSTERS 

COMPARING FRAUDSTERS

MUCH LARGER LOSSES
caused

Employee

Manager

Owner/
executive

$36,000
$127,000

$100,000
$240,000

$280,000
$616,000

HOW DOES TENURE AFFECT FRAUD RISK?
The ability to commit fraud is a skill, and our data suggests that the longer a person works for a 
company, the better they become at fraud. In this infographic, we compare fraudsters with long 

tenure (more than 10 years) to those with moderate-to-low tenure (5 years or less).  

$90,00o

$250,00o

≤5 years >10 years ≤5 years >10 years

Long-tenured fraudsters are 
more likely to COLLUDE

56%

64%

Long-tenured fraudsters 
TAKE LONGER TO CATCH

1o months

24 months

Percent of cases with multiple perpetrators

≤5 years >10 years≤5 years >10 years

48 HOW DOES TENURE AFFECT FRAUD RiSK?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



These 6 RED FLAGS were much more
common among long-tenured employees

≤5 years >10 years

Living
beyond
means

36%

43%

Unusually close
association with
vendor/customer

17%
25%

Control issues,
unwillingness
to share duties

11%
19%

Bullying
or intimidation

?#!
?!#

11%
15%

Irritability,
suspiciousness,
or defensiveness

12%
15%

Recent
divorce or
family problems

10%
15%

Less-tenured fraudsters were more
likely to have a CRIMINAL RECORD

≤5 years >10 years≤5 years >10 years

Less-tenured fraudsters were MORE THAN 
TWICE AS LIKELY to have been previously 

FIRED or PUNISHED for fraud-related conduct

3%

8%21%

9%

49HOW DOES TENURE AFFECT FRAUD RiSK?  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



of perpetrators had a
prior fraud conviction

Only 6%

Sales 11%

Operations 15% Accounting 12%

Executive/upper
management

11%

Nearly half of all occupational frauds came from these four departments: 

PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations50

SCHEMES BASED ON PERPETRATOR’S DEPARTMENT
The eight departments shown in Figure 35 accounted for 76% of all occupational frauds in our study. In this chart, we 
have identified the frequency of various types of occupational fraud that occurred in each department. Boxes are shaded 
from light to dark, with darker boxes indicating higher-frequency schemes. This information can help organizations as-
sess fraud risk and implement effective anti-fraud controls in these high-risk areas.

FIG. 35  What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in high-risk departments? 

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in 
high-risk departments?

Less risk More risk

Cases Bi
llin

g

Ca
sh

 la
rc

en
y

Ca
sh

 o
n 

ha
nd

Ch
ec

k a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

t t
am

pe
rin

g

Co
rru

pt
io

n

Ex
pe

ns
e 

re
im

bu
rs

em
en

ts

Fin
an

cia
l s

ta
te

m
en

t f
ra

ud

No
nc

as
h

Pa
yr

ol
l

Re
gi

ste
r d

isb
ur

se
m

en
ts

Sk
im

m
in

g

DEPARTMENT

Operations 273 16% 7% 8% 11% 48% 9% 6% 16% 8% 1% 6%

Accounting 230 24% 15% 13% 29% 33% 10% 10% 7% 16% 3% 19%

Executive/upper  
management 206 31% 9% 10% 12% 65% 18% 22% 21% 13% 2% 12%

Sales 203 11% 6% 7% 2% 51% 8% 6% 18% 4% 2% 11%

Customer service 140 8% 10% 16% 11% 44% 6% 7% 17% 6% 3% 10%

Administrative support 131 23% 8% 15% 15% 37% 16% 5% 12% 12% 5% 10%

Purchasing 131 27% 1% 4% 2% 82% 5% 2% 14% 3% 0% 2%

Finance 95 26% 7% 11% 12% 48% 20% 14% 12% 7% 3% 12%



51PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

Perpetrator’s Gender
As Figure 36 illustrates, 73% of occupational fraud perpetrators were male. This is consistent with our prior studies, all of 
which have found there to be a significant gender disparity in terms of occupational fraud frequency. However, the gap 
in median loss between men and women in this study was much smaller than in our previous research. Median losses 
caused by men (USD 125,000) were only 25% higher than median losses caused by women (USD 100,000). By compari-
son, in each of our prior studies, median losses caused by male perpetrators were at least 75% higher than median losses 
caused by female perpetrators (see A Decade of Occupational Fraud infographic, page 18). 

FIG. 36  how does the perpetrator’s gender relate to occupational fraud?

27%

73%

$100,00o
$125,00o

Female Male

Median loss

Percent of cases



PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations52

PERPETRATOR’S GENDER BASED ON REGION
The gender disparity among occupational fraudsters varied significantly based on geographic region. In the United States and 
Canada, for example, female perpetrators accounted for 38% of occupational frauds, while in Southern Asia and the Middle 
East and North Africa, female fraudsters committed a far smaller percentage of all schemes (5% and 10%, respectively).

FIG. 37  how does the gender distribution of perpetrators vary by region?

�����Western Europe

United States
and Canada

Middle East
and North Africa

Asia-Pacific

Southern Asia

Sub-Saharan AfricaLatin America and 
the Caribbean

Eastern Europe and 
Western/Central Asia

����� �����
�����

25%

25%

75%

62%

38%

����� 72%28%

75%

80%

20%

�����90%

10%

�����95%

5%
�����79%

21%

Male

Female



PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 53

POSiTiON OF PERPETRATOR BASED ON gENDER
When we analyzed the cases in our study based on both the fraudster’s gender and job position, we found that men com-
mitted a much larger percentage of frauds than women did at all three levels of authority (staff-level employee, manager, 
and owner/executive). Interestingly, median losses for male and female perpetrators were almost identical in the employ-
ee and manager categories. It was only in the owner/executive category that fraud losses caused by men significantly 
exceeded those caused by women.

FIG. 38  how do gender distribution and median loss vary Based on the perpetrator’s level of authority?

Median loss
Employee

Manager

Owner/executive

Male
Female

Percent of cases

65%$50,000
$50,000

$125,000

$446,000

$120,000

$213,000

35%

75%

25%

82%

18%

Median loss
Employee

Manager

Owner/executive

Male
Female

Percent of cases

65%$50,000
$50,000

$125,000

$446,000

$120,000

$213,000

35%

75%

25%

82%

18%



PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations54

Perpetrator’s Age
The age distribution of fraud perpetrators in our study resembles a bell curve with the majority of frauds (54%) hav-
ing been committed by people between the ages of 31 and 45. Median losses, on the other hand, tended to directly 
correlate with age. Only 3% of fraudsters were over the age of 60, but the median loss in this group was USD 800,000, 
which far surpassed any other age category.

FIG. 39  How does the perpetrator’s age relate to occupational fraud?

<26 26–30 31–35 36–40 41–45 46–50 51–55 56–60 >60

$40,000 $36,000
$80,000

$100,000

$185,000
$200,000

$300,000

$347,000

$800,000

5%

10%

15% 14%

9%

5%
3%

20% 19%
Median loss

Percent of cases

<26 26–30 31–35 36–40 41–45 46–50 51–55 56–60 >60

$40,000 $36,000
$80,000

$100,000

$185,000
$200,000

$300,000

$347,000

$800,000

5%

10%

15% 14%

9%

5%
3%

20% 19%
Median loss

Percent of cases



55  PERPETRATORS   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

Perpetrator’s Education Level
As seen in Figure 40, 65% of occupational fraud perpetrators had a university degree or higher. Median losses were also 
larger among this group compared to those with lower education levels. Generally, we would expect losses to correlate 
to educational background because those with higher levels of authority also tend to have higher levels of education.

FIG. 40  how does the perpetrator’s education level relate to occupational fraud?

Median loss
Percent of cases

18%$135,00o
Postgraduate degree

47%$150,00o
University degree

16%$115,00o
Some university

High school
graduate or less

20%$65,00o

Median loss
Percent of cases

18%$135,00o
Postgraduate degree

47%$150,00o
University degree

16%$115,00o
Some university

High school
graduate or less

20%$65,00o



PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations56

FIG. 41  how does the number of perpetrators in a scheme relate to occupational fraud?

ONE 
PERPETRATOR

$57,000
Median loss

�����
�����

�����

of cases
42%

TWO
PERPETRATORS

THREE OR MORE
PERPETRATORS

$145,000
Median loss

$219,000
Median loss

of cases
20%

of cases
38%

Collusion by Multiple Perpetrators
The majority of frauds in our study (58%) were committed by two or more perpetrators acting in collusion. As Figure 41 
illustrates, median losses tend to rise significantly when more than one person conspires to commit fraud. One likely 
reason for larger losses in collusive schemes is that multiple perpetrators working together may be able to circumvent 
controls based on separated duties and independent verification of transactions. Interestingly, however, the median 
duration of frauds in all three categories was the same (12 months), meaning frauds committed by multiple perpetrators 
tended to be caught just as quickly as frauds committed by single perpetrators.



  PERPETRATORS   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 57

Perpetrator’s Criminal Background
Only 6% of perpetrators in our study had a prior fraud-related conviction, which is consistent with our findings in previous 
studies. It is worth noting, however, that 42% of cases in our study were not reported to law enforcement (see Response 
to Fraud infographic, page 63), which is also consistent with prior findings. Because so many frauds go unreported, it is 
very likely that the true number of repeat offenders is higher than the 6% who have prior convictions.

Perpetrator’s Employment History
As seen in Figure 43, 83% of fraudsters in our study had no prior record of having been punished or terminated by an em-
ployer for fraud-related conduct. But similar to the criminal conviction data in Figure 42, it is possible that this overstates 
the true number of first-time offenders. As seen in Figure 47 on page 62, 7% of fraudsters in our study were not punished, 
11% were permitted to resign, and 10% signed settlement agreements with the victim organization. This indicates that a 
considerable number of fraudsters may have no employment disciplinary record for fraud even after having been caught.

FIG. 42  do perpetrators tend to have prior fraud convICTIONS?

FIG. 43  do perpetrators tend to have prior EMPLOYMENT-RELATED disciplinary actions for fraud?

Other
1%

Never charged
or convicted

87%

Charged but
not convicted

6%
Had prior

convictions

7%

1%

83%

8%

9%

Never punished
or terminated

Previously
punished

Other

Previously
terminated



5858 PERPETRATORS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

Behavioral Red Flags Displayed by Perpetrators
When a person is engaged in occupational fraud, that person will often display certain behavioral traits that tend to be 
associated with fraudulent conduct. The median duration of a fraud in our study was 12 months, which means that for a 
full year before the typical fraud is detected, the perpetrator may be exhibiting warning signs that could help the victim 
organization discover the crime. 

We presented survey respondents with a list of 20 common behavioral red flags of fraud4, and asked which, if any, 
of these red flags were displayed by the perpetrator before the fraud was eventually detected. Figure 44 shows the 
results of this analysis. At least one red flag had been identified in 85% of the cases in our study, and multiple red 
flags were present in 51% of cases. The eight most common red flags were: (1) living beyond means; (2) financial 
difficulties; (3) unusually close association with a vendor or customer; (4) excessive control issues or unwillingness to 
share duties; (5) unusual irritability, suspiciousness, or defensiveness; (6) bullying or intimidation; (7) recent divorce or 
family problems; and (8) a general “wheeler-dealer” attitude involving shrewd or unscrupulous behavior. At least one 
of these eight red flags was identified in 76% of all cases.

FIG. 44  how often do perpetrators exhibit Behavioral red flags?

4 We added three new red flags to our survey this year that were not included in this question in previous studies: bullying or intimidation; excessive 
tardiness or absenteeism; and excessive internet browsing.

Living beyond means 39%

Financial di�culties 25%

Unusually close association with vendor/customer 20%

No behavioral red flags 15%

Control issues, unwillingness to share duties 13%

Irritability, suspiciousness, or defensiveness 12%

Bullying or intimidation 12%

Divorce/family problems 11%

"Wheeler-dealer" attitude 10%

Excessive pressure from within organization 8%

Addiction problems 7%

Complained about inadequate pay 7%

Refusal to take vacations 7%

Social isolation 6%

Past legal problems 5%

Complained about lack of authority 5%

Other employment-related problems 4%

Excessive family/peer pressure for success 4%

Excessive tardiness or absenteeism 3%

Instability in life circumstances 3%

Excessive internet browsing 2%

Other 2%



5959  PERPETRATORS   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

Human Resources–Related Red Flags
Figure 46 includes a list of factors that might relate to the fraudsters’ job performance or job security as would likely be 
noted in human resources (HR) records. We refer to these as HR-related red flags. Each of these factors could potentially 
cause financial stress or resentment toward an employer, which might impact a person’s decision to commit fraud. As 
shown in Figure 45, 50% of fraudsters had exhibited at least one HR-related red flag prior to or during the time of their 
frauds. The three most common were fear of job loss, poor performance evaluations, and having been denied a raise or 
promotion. Each of these flags was cited in more than 10% of all cases.

FIG. 45  do fraud perpetrators experience negative hr-related issues prior to or during their frauds?

FIG. 46  which hr-related issues are most commonly experienced by fraud perpetrators?

50%

50%

No

Yes

16%
Fear of job loss

15%
Poor performance 

evaluations

2%
Other

12%
Denied raise or promotion

6%
Cut in pay

7%
Cut in benefits

4%
Involuntary cut in hours

4%
Demotion

6%
Actual job loss



Perpetrators   Report to the Nations

BEHAVIORAL RED FLAGS OF FRAUD 
Recognizing the behavioral clues displayed by fraudsters can help 

organizations more e�ectively detect fraud and minimize their losses.

Unusually close 
association with 
vendor/customer

* "Bullying or intimidation" was included as an option in our survey beginning in 2014 and was asked in a separate question prior to 2022.

Divorce/family 
problems

Living beyond 
means 

Irritability, 
suspiciousness, 

or defensiveness

Control issues, 
unwillingness 

to share duties

"Wheeler-dealer" 
attitude

Financial 
di�culties 

Bullying or 
intimidation

These are the 8 most common behavioral clues 
of occupational fraud. At least one of these 
red flags was observed in 76% of all cases.

BEHAVIORAL 
RED FLAG   

displayed at least one
OF ALL FRAUDSTERS 

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

’08 ’10 ’12 ’14 ’16 ’18 ’20 ’22

Fraudsters living beyond their means has been the 
most common red flag in every study since 2008. 

8 KEY WARNING SIGNS

85%

39% 25% 20% 13% 12% 12% 11% 10%

LIVING BEYOND MEANS

Living beyond means

Financial di�culties

“Wheeler-dealer” attitude
Divorce/family problems

Unusually close association
with vendor/customer

Control issues, unwillingness
to share duties
Irritability, suspiciousness,
or defensiveness
Bullying or intimidation*

60 BEHAViORAL RED FLAgS OF FRAUD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



These five HR-related issues all involve a fraudster’s job 
or compensation security. All five increased in 2022. 

2022

2020

Some behavioral flags tended to 
correlate with the fraudster’s gender.

Bullying or intimidation

Control issues

"Wheeler-dealer" attitude

Excessive pressure from
within organization

Past legal problems Owner/executive
Non-Owner/executive

These 5 red flags were much more common among owner/executives

* Although all cases in our study were   
 investigated in 2020–2021, some of the  
 frauds may have predated COVID.

Fear of job loss
16%

12%

23%

18%

17%

13%

11%

3%

6%

9%

12%

8%

Living beyond 
means

44% 37%

Financial 
di�culties 

34% 22%

Recent divorce 
or family problems

17% 9%

Unusually close 
association with 
vendor/customer

13%23%

“Wheeler-dealer” 
attitude

5%13%

Bullying or 
intimidation

9%13%

GENDER AND
RED FLAGS

MORE COMMON WITH
FEMALE FRAUDSTERS

MORE COMMON WITH
MALE FRAUDSTERS

RED FLAGS IN THE C-SUITE

DID JOB UNCERTAINTY DURING
COVID CONTRIBUTE TO FRAUD?

Denied raise or promotion
12%

10%

Cut in benefits
7%

4%

Cut in pay

6%

4%

Involuntary cut in hours

2%

4%

61 BEHAViORAL RED FLAgS OF FRAUD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



FIG. 47  how do viCtim organizations puNIsh fraud perpetrators?

62

CASE RESULTS

CASE RESULTS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

We asked survey participants how the victim organizations responded to the discovery 
of fraud and the outcome those responses produced. This information gives an idea 
of how organizations handle internal discipline of employees found to be committing 
fraud, the types of civil and criminal legal repercussions for fraudsters who faced 
litigation as a result of their actions, and the chances for recovering funds lost to fraud.

Internal Action Taken Against Perpetrators
Once an organization has identified fraud and determined who was responsible, it must decide whether to punish the 
perpetrator(s) and how. As in our previous studies, termination was by far the most common punishment faced by perpetra-
tors (61% of cases). In 11% of cases, the perpetrator was permitted or required to resign in lieu of termination, and in 12% of 
cases, the perpetrator had already left the victim organization before the fraud was discovered.

61%

12%

12%

11%

10%

7%

Perpetrator was no longer with organization

Probation or suspension

Permitted or required resignation

Settlement agreement

No punishment

Other

Termination

5%



Response to FraudRESPONSE TO FRAUD
Outcomes in fraud cases vary based on the 
role of the perpetrator, the scheme carried

out, the losses incurred, and how the 
organization responds. 

of cases resulted in CIVIL LITIGATION

MEDIAN LOSS for those 
THAT DECLINED to file civil suits

CIVIL LITIGATION

of cases resulted in CRIMINAL REFERRAL

MEDIAN LOSS in these cases:

Pleaded guilty/no contest

Convicted at trial

Declined prosecution

 Acquitted

CRIMINAL REFERRALS

INTERNAL PUNISHMENT

Owners/executives are LEAST
LIKELY to be punished for fraud

29%

58%

“SUCCESS RATE” of criminal referrals
(perpetrator pleaded guilty + convicted)66%

MEDIAN LOSS in these cases: $300,000

$200,000

$70,000

Judgment for victim

Settled

Judgment for perpetrator

MEDIAN LOSS for those 
THAT DECLINED to refer $50,000

Did not make a criminal 
referral or file a civil suit 42%

Made a criminal referral
AND filed a civil suit26%

Termination for fraud

Received no punishment

40%

62%

73%

Owners/
executives

Managers

Employees

15% 6% 3%

Owners/
executives

Managers

Employees

39%

29%

27%

44%

22%

17%

10%

EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT •  NONCASH • BILLING/CORRUPTION
LEAST likely to be referred to law enforcement

6363RESPONSE TO FRAUD  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



of cases were referred to
law enforcement

58%

of perpetrators were 
terminated by their employers 

61%

of cases referred to law enforcement 
resulted in a conviction

66%

of organizations that didn't refer cases to law 
enforcement cited internal discipline as the reason

50%

CASE RESULTS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations64

FIG. 48  why d0 organizations decline to refer cases to law enforcement?

Internal discipline su�cient 50%

Fear of bad publicity 30%

Private settlement 28%

Too costly 20%

Lack of evidence 10%

Other 8%

Civil suit 5%

Perpetrator disappeared 1%

As illustrated in the Response to Fraud infographic on page 63, not all fraud cases end up in civil or criminal courts. More-
over, not all cases that do involve litigation lead to negative consequences for fraudsters. To better understand organi-
zations’ rationales for not pursuing criminal charges against fraudsters, we asked respondents whose organizations did 
not refer their cases to law enforcement why they chose not to. Internal discipline being deemed sufficient was the most 
commonly cited reason (50%), with fear of bad publicity ranking second (30%), and private settlements third (28%).  



CASE RESULTS  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 65

FIG. 49  How did the recovery of fraud losses vary by region?

52%

of victim organizations 
DID NOT RECOVER 
any fraud losses.

Recovering Fraud Losses
One of the primary motivating factors for management in determining an organization’s response to 
fraud is the ability to recover funds and assets lost to the fraud. Unfortunately, in more than half of the 
cases in our study (52%), the victim organization did not recover any of its fraud losses. To determine 
whether the geographic location of the organization was correlated with success in recovering fraud 
losses, we analyzed the responses by region. Based on our findings, recovering fraud losses proved 
to be challenging worldwide. Only in the Middle East and North Africa (52%), Southern Asia (60%), 
and the Asia-Pacific (51%) regions were more than half of victim organizations able to recover any 
fraud losses. In every region, at least 40% of organizations recovered nothing.

61%

12%

12%

11%

10%

7%

Perpetrator was no longer with organization

Probation or suspension

Permitted or required resignation

Settlement agreement

No punishment

Other

Termination

5%

Recovered nothing

Made a partial recovery

Recovered all losses

United States
and

Canada

13%

33%

54%

Sub-Saharan
Africa

11%

37%

52%

Southern
Asia

12%

48%

40%

Latin 
America
and the

Caribbean

9%

24%

67%

Asia-
Pacific

17%

34%

49%

12%

Eastern 
Europe and

Western/
Central Asia

34%
54%

Western
Europe

14%

32%

54%

47%

39%

13%

Middle East
and

North Africa

Recovered nothing

Made a partial recovery

Recovered all losses

United States
and

Canada

13%

33%

54%

Sub-Saharan
Africa

11%

37%

52%

Southern
Asia

12%

48%

40%

Latin 
America
and the

Caribbean

9%

24%

67%

Asia-
Pacific

17%

34%

49%

12%

Eastern 
Europe and

Western/
Central Asia

34%
54%

Western
Europe

14%

32%

54%

47%

39%

13%

Middle East
and

North Africa

Recovered nothing

Made a partial recovery

Recovered all losses

United States
and

Canada

13%

33%

54%

Sub-Saharan
Africa

11%

37%

52%

Southern
Asia

12%

48%

40%

Latin 
America
and the

Caribbean

9%

24%

67%

Asia-
Pacific

17%

34%

49%

12%

Eastern 
Europe and

Western/
Central Asia

34%
54%

Western
Europe

14%

32%

54%

47%

39%

13%

Middle East
and

North Africa



66

METHODOLOGY

METHODOLOgy  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations66

Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations is based on the results of the ACFE 
2021 Global Fraud Survey, an online survey opened to 53,118 Certified Fraud Examiners 
(CFEs) conducted from July 2021 to September 2021. 

As part of the survey, respondents were asked to provide a narrative description of 
the single largest occupational fraud case they had investigated since January 2020. 
Respondents were then presented with questions regarding the details of the fraud case, 
including information about the perpetrator, the victim organization, and the methods 
of fraud employed, as well as fraud trends in general. (Respondents were not asked to 
identify the perpetrator or the victim.) 

We received 7,890 total responses to the survey, 2,110 of which were usable for purposes 
of the report. The data contained herein is based solely on the information provided in 
these 2,110 survey responses.

Cases submitted were required to meet the following four criteria:
1. The case must have involved occupational fraud (i.e., fraud committed by a person 

against the organization for which they work).

2. The investigation must have occurred between January 2020 and the time of 
survey participation.

3. The investigation must have been complete at the time of survey participation.

4. The respondent must have been reasonably sure the perpetrator(s) was (were) identified.

Analysis Methodology

PERCENTAgES
In calculating the percentages discussed throughout this report, we used the total number of complete and relevant 
responses for the question(s) being analyzed. Specifically, we excluded any blank responses or instances where the 
participant indicated that they did not know the answer to a question. Consequently, the total number of cases includ-
ed in each analysis varies. 

In addition, several survey questions allowed participants to select more than one answer. Therefore, the sum of per-
centages in many figures throughout the report exceeds 100%. The sum of percentages in other figures might not be 
exactly 100% (i.e., it might be 99% or 101%) due to rounding of individual category data.



FIG. 50  what was the primary occupation of survey participants?

LOSS AMOUNTS
All loss amounts are expressed in terms of U.S. dollars, which is how respondents reported this information in the 
Global Fraud Survey. 

Unless otherwise indicated, all loss amounts discussed throughout the report are calculated using median loss rather 
than mean, or average, loss. Using median loss provides a more conservative—and we believe more accurate—pic-
ture of the typical impact of occupational fraud schemes. The statistical appendix to this report (see pages 86—88) 
provides a more holistic view of the losses in our study, reflecting quartiles and average loss amounts for numerous 
categories explored throughout the report.

To normalize the loss amounts reported 
to us and ensure that cases with extreme-
ly large losses were not identifiable, all 
average and total loss amounts reported 
were calculated using loss data that was 
winsorized at 5% (i.e., all cases in the top 
2.5% and bottom 2.5% were assigned the 
same value as the 97.5th percentile and 
2.5th percentile, respectively). Additional-
ly, we excluded median and average loss 
calculations for categories for which there 
were fewer than ten responses. 

Because the direct losses caused by 
financial statement frauds are typically 
spread among numerous stakeholders, 
obtaining an accurate estimate for this 
amount is extremely difficult. Conse-
quently, for schemes involving financial 
statement fraud, we asked survey partici-
pants to provide the gross amount of the 
financial statement misstatement (over- or 
understatement) involved in the scheme. 
All losses reported for financial statement 
frauds throughout this report are based 
on those reported amounts.

Survey Participants
To provide context for the survey re-
sponses and to understand who inves-
tigates cases of occupational fraud, we 
asked respondents to provide certain 
information about their professional expe-
rience and qualifications.

PRIMARY OCCUPATION
The majority of survey respondents 
indicated that their primary profession is 
either a fraud examiner/investigator (40%) 
or an internal auditor (20%). 

MeThOdOLOgY  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 67

Fraud examiner/investigator

Internal auditor

Accounting/finance professional

Compliance and ethics professional

Law enforcement

Risk and controls professional

Corporate security and loss prevention

Other

External/independent auditor

Consultant

Attorney/legal professional

Private investigator

IT/computer forensics specialist

Bank examiner

Educator

40%

20%

6%

6%

5%

5%

3%

3%

3%

3%

2%

1%

1%

1%

1%



METHODOLOgy  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations68

NATURE OF FRAUD EXAMiNATiON ROLE
More than half of our survey participants (55%) work in-house and conduct fraud-related engagements on behalf of a 
single organization (i.e., their employer), while one-quarter work for a professional services firm that conducts fraud-
related engagements for client organizations. In addition, 16% work for law enforcement agencies and conduct fraud 
investigations of other parties under their agency’s authority.

FIG. 51  What was the professional role of the survey participants?

Other
3%

In-house examiner
55%

Law enforcement

Professional
services firm 

25%

16%



METHODOLOgy  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 69

PROFESSiONAL EXPERiENCE
The CFEs who participated in the Global Fraud Survey had a median 11 years’ experience in the fraud examination field, 
with 31% having more than 15 years of experience. Additionally, nearly one-quarter of participants have investigated more 
than 20 cases of fraud in the past two years (see Figure 53).

FIG. 52  HOW MUCH FRAUD EXAMINATION EXPERIENCE DID SURVEY PARTICIPANTS HAVE?

≤5 years

6–10 years

11–15 years

16–20 years

>20 years

21%

28%

19%

14%

17%

FIG. 53  HOW MANY FRAUD CASES HAVE SURVEY PARTICIPANTS INVESTIGATED IN THE PAST TWO YEARS?

>20 cases (24%)

16–20 cases (7%)
11–15 cases (8%)

6–10 cases (19%)

≤5 cases (41%)



REgiONAL FOCUS  |  ASiA-PACiFiC  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations70

How is occupational fraud initially detected in the Asia-Pacific region?

58%
Tip

Internal audit

Document examination

Management review

By accident

Account reconciliation

Notification by law enforcement

Confession

External audit

Automated transaction/data monitoring

Surveillance/monitoring

11%

10%

5%

5%

3%

2%

3%

2%

1%

1%

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in the Asia-Pacific region?

57%
Corruption

Billing

Noncash

Expense reimbursements

Cash on hand

Financial statement fraud

Payroll

Check and payment tampering

Skimming

Cash larceny

Register disbursements

20%

17%

15%

11%

11%

11%

9%

9%

6%

2%

FIG. 54  what are the most common occupational 
fraud schemes in the asia-pacific region?

FIG. 55  how is occupational fraud initially 
detected in the asia-pacific region?

REGIONAL FOCUS

ASIA-PACIFIC



 REgiONAL FOCUS  |  ASiA-PACiFiC  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 71

Control Percent of cases 

External audit of financial statements 88%
Code of conduct 84%
Internal audit department 82%
Hotline 80%
Management certification of financial statements 77%
Fraud training for employees 76%
Independent audit committee 75%
Management review 75%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 73%
Anti-fraud policy 72%
Fraud training for managers/executives 69%
Employee support programs 59%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 55%
Formal fraud risk assessments 54%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 52%
Surprise audits 46%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 31%
Rewards for whistleblowers 14%

Country Number of cases 

American Samoa 2
Australia 38
China 33
Fiji 1
Hong Kong 13
Indonesia 23
Laos 1
Malaysia 25
Micronesia 1
New Zealand 6
Papua New Guinea 3
Philippines 12
Singapore 13
Solomon Islands 1
South Korea 2
Taiwan 3
Thailand 9
Vietnam 8

TOTAL CASES  194

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 121,000

�����194 
CASES

10%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss Asia-Pacific region?

How does the Perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
occupational fraud in the ASIA-Pacific region?

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$50,000
$100,000

$500,000

36%
39%

23%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 56  what anti-fraud controls are the most 
common in the asia-pacific region?

FIG. 57  how does the perpetrator’s level of authority 
relate to occupational fraud in the asia-pacific region?

FIG. 58 CASES BY COUNTRY IN THE 
ASIA-PACIFIC REGION



REGIONAL FOCUS

EASTERN EUROPE AND 
WESTERN/CENTRAL ASIA

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  EASTERN EUROPE AND WESTERN/CENTRAL ASiA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations72

FIG. 59  what are the most common occupational fraud 
schemes in eastern europe and western/central asia?

FIG. 60  How is occupational fraud initially detected in 
Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia?

How is occupational fraud initially detected in Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia?

Automated transaction/data monitoring

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

By accident

Document examination

External audit

Notification by law enforcement

36%

22%

14%

10%

5%

4%

3%

3%

3%

1%

Surveillance/monitoring

Other

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia?

Corruption

Billing

Noncash

Financial statement fraud

Skimming

Cash on hand

Expense reimbursements

Check and payment tampering

Payroll

Register disbursements

Cash larceny

64%

26%

23%

9%

8%

6%

6%

5%

5%

4%

4%



Control Percent of cases 

Code of conduct 83%
External audit of financial statements 83%
Internal audit department 81%
Hotline 75%
Management review 71%
Independent audit committee 69%
Management certification of financial statements 68%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 66%
Fraud training for employees 62%
Fraud training for managers/executives 60%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 55%
Anti-fraud policy 52%
Surprise audits 46%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 40%
Formal fraud risk assessments 37%
Employee support programs 21%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 21%
Rewards for whistleblowers 12%

Country Number of cases 

Albania 3
Azerbaijan 3
Bulgaria 5
Croatia 1
Czech Republic 8
Estonia 1
Hungary 1
Kazakhstan 2
Moldova 1
Poland 9
Romania 4
Russia 11
Serbia 6
Slovakia 2
Slovenia 1
Tajikistan 1
Turkey 8
Ukraine 11

TOTAL CASES  78

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 190,000

�����78 
CASES

4%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia?

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$80,000

$302,000

$823,000

33%

39%

26%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 63  cases by country in eastern 
europe and western/central asia

73REgiONAL FOCUS  |  EASTERN EUROPE AND WESTERN/CENTRAL ASiA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations

FIG. 61  What anti-fraud controls are the most common 
in Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia?

FIG. 62  How does the perpetrator’s level of authority 
relate to occupational fraud in Eastern Europe and 
Western/Central Asia?

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$145,000 $160,000

$400,000

46%

29%

22%

Median loss

Percent of cases



REGIONAL FOCUS

LATIN AMERICA AND 
THE CARIBBEAN

Automated transaction/data monitoring

How is occupational fraud initially detected in Latin America and the Caribbean?

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

By accident

Surveillance/monitoring

Document examination

Account reconciliation

External audit

Other

Notification by law enforcement

41%

23%

9%

6%

5%

4%

2%

4%

2%

1%

1%

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in Latin America and the Caribbean?

59%

17%

15%

13%

9%

7%

5%

5%

4%

3%

2%

Corruption

Financial statement fraud

Billing

Cash on hand

Skimming

Check and payment tampering

Cash larceny

Payroll

Register disbursements

Expense reimbursements

Noncash

FIG. 64  What are the most common occupational fraud 
schemes in Latin America and the Caribbean?

FIG. 65  How is occupational fraud initially detected in 
Latin America and the Caribbean?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  LATiN AMERiCA AND THE CARiBBEAN  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations74



Country Number of cases 

Antigua and Barbuda 2
Argentina 8
Aruba 5
Bahamas 1
Barbados 2
Belize 2
Bermuda 1
Brazil 12
Chile 4
Colombia 7
Costa Rica 4
Curaçao 1
Guyana 1
Haiti 1
Jamaica 7
Mexico 22
Nicaragua 1
Panama 1
Peru 5
Suriname 2
Trinidad and Tobago 4
Uruguay 1
Virgin Islands, British 1

TOTAL CASES 95

How does the Perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
occupational fraud in the latin american and the caribbean?

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$50,000

$475,000

$275,000

34%

41%

24%

Median loss

Percent of cases

Control Percent of cases 

Code of conduct 84%
Internal audit department 81%
External audit of financial statements 76%
Management review 70%
Management certification of financial statements 69%
Independent audit committee 69%
Hotline 67%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 65%
Fraud training for managers/executives 52%
Anti-fraud policy 52%
Fraud training for employees 52%
Employee support programs 50%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 35%
Formal fraud risk assessments 32%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 30%
Surprise audits 28%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 21%
Rewards for whistleblowers 5%

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 175,000

�����95
CASES

5%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss  Latin America and the Caribbean?

FIG. 66  What anti-fraud controls are the most common in 
Latin America and the Caribbean? 

FIG. 67  How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate 
to occupational fraud in Latin America and the Caribbean?

FIG. 68  Cases by country in Latin America and 
the Caribbean

75REgiONAL FOCUS  |  LATiN AMERiCA AND THE CARiBBEAN  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



REGIONAL FOCUS

MIDDLE EAST AND 
NORTH AFRICA

How is occupational fraud initially detected in the Middle East and North Africa?

Automated transaction/data monitoring

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

By accident

Document examination

Account reconciliation

External audit

Other

Notification by law enforcement

41%

24%

9%

7%

5%

4%

2%

4%

1%

1%

1%

Confession

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in the Middle East and North Africa?

59%

17%

16%

  9%

9%

9%

8%

7%

7%

6%

4%

Corruption

Noncash

Billing

Expense reimbursements

Payroll

Skimming

Financial statement fraud

Cash on hand

Cash larceny

Register disbursements

Check and payment tampering

FIG. 69  What are the most common occupational fraud 
schemes in the Middle East and North Africa?

FIG. 70  how is occupational fraud initially detected in 
the middle east and north africa?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  MiDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRiCA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations76



Control Percent of cases 

External audit of financial statements 89%
Internal audit department 86%
Code of conduct 82%
Management certification of financial statements 79%
Management review 71%
Independent audit committee 71%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 70%
Hotline 68%
Anti-fraud policy 60%
Fraud training for employees 58%
Fraud training for managers/executives 54%
Surprise audits 48%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 44%
Formal fraud risk assessments 43%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 43%
Employee support programs 32%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 24%
Rewards for whistleblowers 14%

Country Number of cases 

Algeria 1
Bahrain 3
Cyprus 4
Egypt 8
Iraq 1
Jordan 4
Kuwait 8
Lebanon 3
Malta 2
Oman 4
Qatar 7
Saudi Arabia 29
Tunisia 2
United Arab Emirates 60
Yemen 2

TOTAL CASES 138

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 186,000

�����138 
CASES

7%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss Middle East and North Africa?

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$90,000

$186,000

$250,000

32%

45%

24%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 71  What anti-fraud controls are the most common 
in the Middle East and North Africa?

FIG. 72  how does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate 
to occupational fraud in the middle east and north africa?

FIG. 73  cases by country in the middle east 
and north africa

77REgiONAL FOCUS  |  MiDDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRiCA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



REGIONAL FOCUS

SOUTHERN ASIA

78

How is occupational fraud initially detected in Southern Asia?

51%
Tip

Internal audit

Document examination

Management review

By accident

Account reconciliation

External audit

Surveillance/monitoring

Other

Automated transaction/data monitoring

Notification by law enforcement

16%

9%

7%

5%

5%

1%

3%

1%

1%

1%

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in Southern Asia?

Corruption

Billing

Noncash

Financial statement fraud

Cash on hand

Cash larceny

Expense reimbursements

Skimming

Check and payment tampering

Register disbursements

Payroll

71%

18%

15%

15%

12%

11%

10%

10%

5%

4%

2%

FIG. 74  What are the most common occupational fraud 
schemes in Southern Asia?

FIG. 75  How is occupational fraud initially detected in 
Southern Asia?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  SOUTHERN ASiA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



Control Percent of cases 

External audit of financial statements 91%
Code of conduct 88%
Internal audit department 85%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 85%
Management certification of financial statements 84%
Independent audit committee 76%
Management review 72%
Hotline 72%
Fraud training for managers/executives 66%
Fraud training for employees 63%
Anti-fraud policy 63%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 53%
Surprise audits 48%
Employee support programs 45%
Formal fraud risk assessments 45%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 42%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 33%
Rewards for whistleblowers 24%

Country Number of cases 

Afghanistan 7
Bangladesh 7
Bhutan 1
India 103
Nepal 1
Pakistan 10
Sri Lanka 9

TOTAL CASES 138

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 92,000

Median Loss Southern Asia?

�����138
CASES

7%
OF ALL CASES

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$16,000

$65,000

$225,000

28%

42%

27%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 76  What anti-fraud controls are the most common 
in Southern Asia? 

FIG. 77  How does the perpetrator’s level of authority 
relate to occupational fraud in Southern Asia?

FIG. 78  cases by country in southern asia

79REgiONAL FOCUS  |  SOUTHERN ASiA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



80

REGIONAL FOCUS

SUB-SAHARAN 
AFRICA

How is occupational fraud initially detected in Sub-Saharan Africa?

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

Account reconciliation

Document examination

By accident

Automated transaction/data monitoring

External audit

Notification by law enforcement

Confession

Surveillance/monitoring

Other

48%

11%

10%

6%

6%

5%

4%

4%

2%

2%

1%

<1%

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in Sub-Saharan Africa?

Corruption

Noncash

Billing

Check and payment tampering

Financial statement fraud

Cash on hand

Skimming

Expense reimbursements

Payroll

Register disbursements

Cash larceny

62%

19%

19%

10%

9%

8%

7%

6%

5%

5%

1%

FIG. 79  What are the most common occupational fraud 
schemes in Sub-Saharan Africa?

FIG. 80  How is occupational fraud initially detected in 
Sub-Saharan Africa?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  SUB-SAHARAN AFRiCA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



81

Country Number of cases 

Angola 2
Botswana 5
Burkina Faso 1
Burundi 2
Cameroon 4
Democratic Republic of the Congo 11
Ethiopia 1
Ghana 15
Kenya 49
Lesotho 5
Liberia 4
Madagascar 4
Malawi 9
Mali 1
Mauritius 5
Mozambique 2
Namibia 3
Niger 1
Nigeria 61
Rwanda 2
Senegal 3
Seychelles 1
Sierra Leone 2
Somalia 4
South Africa 188
South Sudan 1
Sudan 1
Swaziland 1
Tanzania 8
Togo 1
Uganda 16
Zambia 5
Zimbabwe 11

TOTAL CASES 429

Control Percent of cases 

Code of conduct 89%
External audit of financial statements 87%
Internal audit department 87%
Management certification of financial statements 83%
Hotline 76%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 76%
Independent audit committee 74%
Management review 72%
Anti-fraud policy 69%
Fraud training for employees 67%
Fraud training for managers/executives 62%
Employee support programs 58%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 56%
Formal fraud risk assessments 53%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 47%
Surprise audits 47%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 30%
Rewards for whistleblowers 18%

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 100,000

�����429 
CASES

23%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss Sub-Saharan Africa?

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$30,000

$121,000

$215,000

40% 40%

18%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 81  What anti-fraud controls are the most common 
in Sub-Saharan Africa?

FIG. 82  How does the perpetrator’s level of authority 
relate to occupational fraud in Sub-Saharan Africa? 

FIG. 83  cases by country in sub-saharan africa

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  SUB-SAHARAN AFRiCA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



REGIONAL FOCUS

UNITED STATES 
AND CANADA

82

How is occupational fraud initially detected in the United States and Canada?

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

By accident

Surveillance/monitoring

Document examination

Automated transaction/data monitoring

Account reconciliation

External audit

Confession

Notification by law enforcement

Other

32%

18%

16%

7%

5%

5%

5%

5%

4%

2%

1%

1%

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in the United States and Canada?

37%
Corruption

Billing

Noncash

Expense reimbursements

Payroll

Check and payment tampering

Skimming

Cash on hand

Cash larceny

Financial statement fraud

Register disbursements

24%

18%

17%

16%

15%

13%

11%

10%

8%

4%

FIG. 84  What are the most common occupational fraud 
schemes in the United States and Canada?

FIG. 85  how is occupational fraud initially detected in 
the united states and canada?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  UNiTED STATES AND CANADA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



Control Percent of cases 

Code of conduct 74% 
External audit of financial statements 72% 
Employee support programs 66% 
Internal audit department 66% 
Management certification of financial statements 65% 
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 63% 
Hotline 63% 
Management review 63% 
Independent audit committee 56% 
Fraud training for employees 55% 
Fraud training for managers/executives 55% 
Anti-fraud policy 51% 
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 43% 
Formal fraud risk assessments 42% 
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 41% 
Surprise audits 35% 
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 20% 
Rewards for whistleblowers 14% 

Country Number of cases 

Canada 50
United States 625

TOTAL CASES 675

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 120,000

�����675
CASES

36%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss United States and Canada?

FIG. 86  What anti-fraud controls are the most common 
in the United States and Canada?

FIG. 87  How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate 
to occupational fraud in the United States and Canada?

FIG. 88  cases by country in the united 
states and canada

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$50,000

$122,000

$331,000

37% 38%

24%

Median loss

Percent of cases

83REgiONAL FOCUS  |  UNiTED STATES AND CANADA  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations



REGIONAL FOCUS

WESTERN EUROPE

How is occupational fraud initially detected in Western Europe?

Tip

Internal audit

Management review

By accident

Surveillance/monitoring

Document examination

Automated transaction/data monitoring

Account reconciliation

External audit

Confession

Notification by law enforcement

Other

41%

16%

10%

9%

6%

6%

2%

5%

2%

1%

1%

1%

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in Western Europe?

44%
Corruption

Noncash

Billing

Cash on hand

Financial statement fraud

Expense reimbursements

Check and payment tampering

Cash larceny

Payroll

Skimming

Register disbursements

24%

19%

13%

10%

10%

9%

9%

8%

7%

3%

FIG. 89  WHAT ARE THE MOST COMMON OCCUPATIONAL  
FRAUD SCHEMES IN WESTERN EUROPE?

FIG. 90  HOW IS OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD INITIALLY  
DETECTED IN WESTERN EUROPE?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  WESTERN EUROPE  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations8484



Country Number of cases 

Aland Islands 1
Andorra 2
Austria 3
Belgium 5
Denmark 1
Finland 2
France 6
Germany 24
Greece 27
Ireland 3
Italy 17
Luxembourg 1
Netherlands 12
Norway 1
Spain 13
Switzerland 6
United Kingdom 21

TOTAL CASES 145

Employee Manager Owner/
executive

$145,000 $160,000

$400,000

46%

29%

22%

Median loss

Percent of cases

FIG. 92  HOW DOES THE PERPETRATOR’S LEVEL OF AUTHORITY  
RELATE TO OCCUPATIONAL FRAUD IN WESTERN EUROPE?

FIG. 93  CASES BY COUNTRY IN WESTERN EUROPEFIG. 91  WHAT ANTI-FRAUD CONTROLS ARE THE MOST COMMON  
IN WESTERN EUROPE? 

Control Percent of cases 

External audit of financial statements 90%
Code of conduct 84%
Management certification of financial statements 78%
External audit of internal controls over financial reporting 77%
Internal audit department 74%
Management review 72%
Hotline 68%
Independent audit committee 65%
Fraud training for employees 59%
Fraud training for managers/executives 58%
Anti-fraud policy 56%
Formal fraud risk assessments 52%
Employee support programs 51%
Proactive data monitoring/analysis 48%
Dedicated fraud department, function, or team 47%
Surprise audits 40%
Job rotation/mandatory vacation 25%
Rewards for whistleblowers 7%

MEDIAN LOSS:

USD 173,000

�����145 
CASES

8%
OF ALL CASES

Median Loss  Western Europe?

REgiONAL FOCUS  |  WESTERN EUROPE  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 8585



STATiSTiCAL APPENDiX  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations86

STATISTICAL APPENDIX

Cases 25th percentile Median (50th) 75th percentile Mean*

ALL CASES† 2,046 $20,000 $117,000 $600,000 $1,783,000
Schemes
Asset misappropriation 1,605 $20,000 $100,000 $500,000 $1,203,000

Noncash 284 $10,000 $78,000 $500,000 $921,000
Billing 281 $20,000 $100,000 $500,000 $852,000
Expense reimbursements 140 $10,000 $40,000 $100,000 $152,000
Skimming 137 $10,000 $50,000 $188,000 $185,000
Check and payment tampering 135 $26,000 $100,000 $500,000 $1,020,000
Cash on hand 129 $5,000 $15,000 $100,000 $131,000
Payroll 117 $10,000 $45,000 $185,000 $201,000
Cash larceny 103 $10,000 $45,000 $389,000 $6,920,000
Register disbursements 25 $5,000 $10,000 $42,000 $33,000

Corruption 906 $25,000 $150,000 $1,000,000 $2,647,000
Financial statement fraud 150 $100,000 $593,000 $6,000,000 $50,482,000

Detection method
Tip 810 $25,000 $117,000 $650,000 $1,754,000
Internal audit 306 $20,000 $108,000 $500,000 $1,245,000
Management review 235 $20,000 $105,000 $500,000 $1,340,000
Document examination 107 $37,000 $200,000 $1,500,000 $2,256,000
By accident 105 $25,000 $100,000 $730,000 $1,293,000
Account reconciliation 91 $10,000 $74,000 $370,000 $985,000
Automated transaction/data monitoring 85 $10,000 $50,000 $203,000 $696,000
External audit 73 $56,000 $219,000 $1,224,000 $3,490,000
Surveillance/monitoring 51 $5,000 $60,000 $350,000 $1,127,000
Notification by law enforcement 34 $148,000 $500,000 $6,150,000 $5,185,000
Confession 16 $29,000 $159,000 $8,375,000 $5,521,000

*Mean amounts were calculated using loss data that was winsorized at 5% (i.e., assigned all cases in the top 2.5% and bottom 2.5% the same value as 
the 97.5th percentile and 2.5th percentile, respectively). 
†Loss calculations were omitted for categories with fewer than ten responses.



  STATiSTiCAL APPENDiX  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 87

Cases 25th percentile Median (50th) 75th percentile Mean*

Victim organization
Region:

United States and Canada 663 $20,000 $120,000 $649,000 $1,460,000
Sub-Saharan Africa 425 $15,000 $100,000 $352,000 $1,841,000
Asia-Pacific 188 $15,000 $121,000 $723,000 $2,310,000
Western Europe 140 $60,000 $173,000 $577,000 $1,152,000
Middle East and North Africa 136 $42,000 $186,000 $875,000 $2,093,000
Southern Asia 130 $10,000 $92,000 $500,000 $1,490,000
Latin America and the Caribbean 94 $33,000 $175,000 $915,000 $1,550,000
Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia 78 $42,000 $190,000 $1,125,000 $1,669,000

Organization type:
Private company 851 $20,000 $120,000 $550,000 $1,389,000
Public company 484 $25,000 $118,000 $735,000 $1,694,000
Nonprofit 180 $14,000 $60,000 $266,000 $851,000
Government 346 $20,000 $138,000 $800,000 $2,522,000

National 157 $40,000 $200,000 $1,450,000 $3,319,000
State/provincial 91 $15,000 $56,000 $503,000 $2,306,000
Local 84 $17,000 $125,000 $521,000 $1,370,000

Organization size:
<100 employees 423 $25,000 $150,000 $550,000 $1,373,000
100–999 employees 468 $20,000 $100,000 $500,000 $1,641,000
1,000–9,999 employees 543 $16,000 $100,000 $500,000 $1,704,000
10,000+ employees 476 $24,000 $138,000 $900,000 $1,973,000

Organization revenue:
<$50 million 720 $20,000 $100,000 $400,000 $1,027,000
$50 million–$499 million 496 $20,000 $105,000 $644,000 $1,821,000
$500 million–$999 million 222 $27,000 $150,000 $1,150,000 $2,840,000
$1 billion+ 455 $25,000 $150,000 $973,000 $2,076,000

industry:
Banking and financial services 341 $15,000 $100,000 $368,000 $1,739,000
Government and public administration 193 $20,000 $150,000 $1,450,000 $2,555,000
Manufacturing 191 $35,000 $177,000 $1,000,000 $1,755,000
Health care 126 $18,000 $100,000 $600,000 $1,392,000
Energy 95 $30,000 $100,000 $1,000,000 $1,793,000
Retail 89 $15,000 $65,000 $375,000 $1,024,000
Insurance 88 $20,000 $130,000 $500,000 $1,235,000
Technology 82 $34,000 $150,000 $735,000 $952,000
Transportation and warehousing 79 $37,000 $250,000 $1,000,000 $2,071,000
Construction 75 $35,000 $203,000 $1,143,000 $2,868,000
Education 67 $10,000 $56,000 $306,000 $1,022,000
Religious, charitable, or social services 58 $20,000 $78,000 $275,000 $323,000
Information (e.g., publishing, media, telecommunications) 58 $20,000 $58,000 $500,000 $714,000
Food service and hospitality 50 $10,000 $55,000 $388,000 $579,000
Services (professional) 41 $33,000 $125,000 $625,000 $1,716,000
Real estate 40 $50,000 $435,000 $1,875,000 $2,342,000
Arts, entertainment, and recreation 40 $10,000 $73,000 $475,000 $1,169,000
Agriculture, forestry, fishing, and hunting 39 $15,000 $154,000 $1,500,000 $2,114,000
Services (other) 31 $15,000 $100,000 $268,000 $417,000
Utilities 30 $34,000 $200,000 $1,194,000 $3,043,000
Wholesale trade 27 $50,000 $400,000 $1,000,000 $2,143,000
Mining 22 $45,000 $175,000 $965,000 $662,000



Gender
Male 1,311 $25,000 $125,000 $700,000 $1,961,000
Female 480 $15,000 $100,000 $382,000 $753,000

Age
<26 78 $5,000 $40,000 $200,000 $836,000
26-30 174 $6,000 $36,000 $154,000 $388,000
31-35 261 $12,000 $80,000 $300,000 $778,000
36-40 348 $20,000 $100,000 $500,000 $1,235,000
41-45 315 $40,000 $185,000 $900,000 $1,376,000
46-50 233 $34,000 $200,000 $600,000 $2,013,000
51-55 151 $49,000 $300,000 $1,800,000 $3,347,000
56-60 89 $73,000 $347,000 $1,802,000 $3,153,000
>60 47 $125,000 $800,000 $7,978,000 $6,487,000

Education level
High school graduate or less 289 $10,000 $65,000 $350,000 $1,196,000
Some university 228 $24,000 $115,000 $543,000 $1,469,000
University degree 681 $25,000 $150,000 $641,000 $1,729,000
Postgraduate degree 251 $33,000 $135,000 $1,000,000 $2,613,000

STATiSTiCAL APPENDiX  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations88

Cases 25th percentile Median (50th) 75th percentile Mean*

Perpetrator
Number of perpetrators:
   One perpetrator 773 $12,000 $57,000 $269,000 $896,000
   Two perpetrators 360 $29,000 $145,000 $750,000 $1,499,000
   Three or more perpetrators 691 $42,000 $219,000 $1,300,000 $2,638,000
Position:
   Employee 671 $10,000 $50,000 $200,000 $623,000
   Manager 699 $28,000 $125,000 $600,000 $1,265,000
   Owner/executive 411 $80,000 $337,000 $2,380,000 $3,928,000
Tenure:
   >10 years 359 $50,000 $250,000 $1,200,000 $2,357,000
   6–10 years 448 $27,000 $137,000 $500,000 $1,568,000
   1–5 years 839 $15,000 $100,000 $450,000 $1,439,000
 <1 year 162 $6,000 $50,000 $305,000 $1,480,000
Department:
   Operations 269 $14,000 $74,000 $500,000 $1,133,000
   Accounting 224 $43,000 $155,000 $500,000 $847,000
   Executive/upper management 202 $100,000 $500,000 $3,625,000 $4,950,000
   Sales 200 $25,000 $100,000 $460,000 $998,000
   Customer service 136 $10,000 $40,000 $248,000 $765,000
   Purchasing 130 $33,000 $129,000 $700,000 $1,672,000
   Administrative support 129 $19,000 $90,000 $298,000 $421,000
   Finance 93 $31,000 $160,000 $1,000,000 $1,324,000
   Manufacturing and production 63 $14,000 $100,000 $550,000 $1,128,000
   Warehousing/inventory 58 $17,000 $116,000 $750,000 $939,000
   Board of directors 55 $100,000 $500,000 $10,000,000 $7,024,000
   Information technology 53 $25,000 $150,000 $625,000 $2,240,000
   Facilities and maintenance 44 $6,000 $58,000 $475,000 $1,143,000
   Marketing/public relations 34 $4,000 $112,000 $850,000 $895,000
   Human resources 27 $38,000 $100,000 $165,000 $136,000
   Research and development 17 $18,000 $75,000 $575,000 $2,554,000



INDEX OF FIGURES  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 89

Age of Perpetrator
How does the perpetrator’s age relate to occupational fraud?        54

Anti-Fraud Controls
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Spotlight: COVID’s Effect on Occupational Fraud  40

Did the background checks reveal existing red flags?  41

Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness            24–25

How do anti-fraud controls vary by size of victim organization?  38

How does the perpetrator’s age relate to occupational fraud?  54

How does the perpetrator’s education level relate to 
occupational fraud?           55

How does the presence of anti-fraud controls relate to median loss?   36

How does the presence of anti-fraud controls relate to the 
duration of fraud?            37

Spotlight: Modifying Anti-Fraud Controls Following a Fraud  39

Top 3 internal control weaknesses based on the perpetrator’s position 43

Was a background check run on the perpetrator prior to hiring?  41

What anti-fraud controls are most common?  34

What anti-fraud controls are the most common in various regions? 70–85

What are the primary internal control weaknesses that contribute to 
occupational fraud?           42

What types of background checks were run on the perpetrator 
prior to hiring?            41

Behavioral Red Flags of Perpetrator
Spotlight: Behavioral Red Flags of Fraud   60–61

Do fraud perpetrators experience negative HR-related issues 
prior to or during their frauds?          59

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?  48–49

How often do perpetrators exhibit behavioral red flags?  58

Which HR-related issues are most commonly experienced by 
fraud perpetrators?          59

Case Results
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?  48–49

How do victim organizations punish fraud perpetrators?  62

Spotlight: Response to Fraud  63

Cost of Fraud
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness               24–25

How does an organization’s gross annual revenue relate to its  
occupational fraud risk?          30

How does an organization’s size relate to its occupational fraud risk?   29

How does detection method relate to fraud loss and duration?  23

How do gender distribution and median loss vary based on the 
perpetrator’s level of authority?          53

How does occupational fraud affect organizations in 
different industries?           32

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?  48–49

How does the duration of a fraud relate to median loss?   13

How does the number of perpetrators in a scheme relate to 
occupational fraud?           56

How does the perpetrator’s gender relate to occupational fraud?  51

How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
occupational fraud?           45

How does the perpetrator’s tenure relate to occupational fraud?  46

How does the presence of anti-fraud controls relate to median loss?     36

How is occupational fraud committed?  9

Spotlight: Modifying Anti-Fraud Controls Following a Fraud       39

INDEX OF FIGURES



INDEX OF FIGURES   Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations90

Spotlight: The Global Cost of Fraud  8

What departments pose the greatest risk for occupational fraud?  47

What is the typical velocity (median loss per month) of different 
occupational fraud schemes?           15

What levels of government are victimized by occupational fraud?  28

What types of organizations are victimized by occupational fraud?  28

Which asset misappropriation schemes present the greatest risk?  12

Concealment of Fraud Schemes
Spotlight: How Do Perpetrators Conceal Their Frauds?          17

Criminal and Employment Background  
of Perpetrator
Do perpetrators tend to have prior employment-related disciplinary 
actions for fraud?            57

Do perpetrators tend to have prior fraud convictions?  57

Demographics of Survey Participants
How many fraud cases have survey participants investigated in the 
past two years?         69

How much fraud examination experience did survey 
participants have?           69

What was the primary occupation of survey participants?  67

What was the professional role of the survey participants?  68

Department of Perpetrator
What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in 
high-risk departments?        50

What departments pose the greatest risk for occupational fraud?  47

Detection Method
Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness  24–25

How does detection method relate to fraud loss and duration?  23

How is occupational fraud initially detected?  22

How is occupational fraud initially detected in various regions?     70–85

To whom did whistleblowers initially report?  27

What formal reporting mechanisms did whistleblowers use?  26

Who reports occupational fraud?  22

Duration of Fraud
Spotlight: COVID’s Effect on Occupational Fraud  40

Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness            24–25

How does detection method relate to fraud loss and duration?  23

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?  48–49

How does the duration of a fraud relate to median loss?  13

How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
scheme duration?           45

How does the presence of anti-fraud controls relate to the 
duration of fraud?            37

How long do different occupational fraud schemes last?        14

Education Level of Perpetrator
How does the perpetrator’s education level relate to 
occupational fraud?       55

Gender of Perpetrator
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Spotlight: Behavioral Red Flags of Fraud  60–61

How does the gender distribution of perpetrators vary by region?  52

How does the perpetrator’s gender relate to occupational fraud?  51

How do gender distribution and median loss vary based on the 
perpetrator’s level of authority?          53

Geographical Region of Victim Organization
Reported cases by region  7

Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness            24–25

How does the gender distribution of perpetrators vary by region?  52

Asia-Pacific  70–71

Eastern Europe and Western/Central Asia  72–73

Latin America and the Caribbean  74–75

Middle East and North Africa  76–77

Southern Asia  78–79

Sub-Saharan Africa  80–81

United States and Canada  82–83

Western Europe  84–85

Industry of Victim Organization
How does occupational fraud affect organizations in different 
industries?       32

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in various 
industries?           33

Number of Perpetrators
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?   48–49

How does the number of perpetrators in a scheme relate to 
occupational fraud?       56

Position of Perpetrator
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Spotlight: Behavioral Red Flags of Fraud  60–61



  INDEX OF FIGURES  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 91

Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?  48–49

How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
occupational fraud?           45

How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
occupational fraud in various regions?                    70–85

How does the perpetrator’s level of authority relate to 
scheme duration?           45

How do gender distribution and median loss vary based on the 
perpetrator’s level of authority?          53

Spotlight: Response to Fraud  63

Top 3 internal control weaknesses based on the 
perpetrator’s position          43

Scheme Type
Spotlight: A Decade of Occupational Fraud: Trends 
from 2012–2022   18–19

Among frauds involving cryptocurrency, how was it used?  20

How do fraud schemes vary by organization size?  31

How is occupational fraud committed?  9

How long do different occupational fraud schemes last?  14

How often do fraudsters commit more than one type of 
occupational fraud?          11

Occupational Fraud and Abuse Classification System (The Fraud Tree)   10

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in high-risk 
departments?         50

Spotlight: Response to Fraud  63

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in various 
industries?         33

What are the most common occupational fraud schemes in various 
regions?   70–85

What is the typical velocity (median loss per month) of different 
occupational fraud schemes?           15

Which asset misappropriation schemes present the greatest risk?           12

Size of Victim Organization
Spotlight: Hotline and Reporting Mechanism Effectiveness  24–25

How does an organization’s gross annual revenue relate to its 
occupational fraud risk?          30

How does an organization’s size relate to its occupational fraud risk?     29

How do anti-fraud controls vary by size of victim organization?  38

How do fraud schemes vary by organization size?   31

Tenure of Perpetrator
Spotlight: How Does Tenure Affect Fraud Risk?   48–49

How does the perpetrator’s tenure relate to occupational fraud?          46

Type of Victim Organization
Spotlight: Modifying Anti-Fraud Controls Following a Fraud         39

What levels of government are victimized by occupational fraud?  28

What types of organizations are victimized by occupational fraud?  28



Fraud Prevention CheCklist  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations92

1. Is ongoing anti-fraud training provided to all
employees of the organization?

❑ Do employees understand what constitutes
fraud?

❑  Have the costs of fraud to the company and
everyone in it—including lost profits, adverse
publicity, potential job loss, and decreased
morale and productivity—been made clear to
all employees?

❑  Do employees know where to seek advice
when faced with uncertain ethical decisions,
and do they believe that they can speak freely?

❑  Has a policy of zero-tolerance for fraud been
communicated to employees through words
and actions?

2. Is an effective fraud reporting mechanism in
place?

❑ Have employees been taught how to com-
municate concerns about known or potential
wrongdoing?

❑  Are one or more reporting channels (e.g., a
third-party hotline, dedicated email inbox, or
web-based form) available to employees?

❑  Do employees trust that they can report sus-
picious activity anonymously and/or confiden-
tially (where legally permissible) and without
fear of reprisal?

❑ Has it been made clear to employees that
reports of suspicious activity will be promptly
and thoroughly evaluated?

❑ Do reporting policies and mechanisms extend
to vendors, customers, and other outside
parties?

❑ Do reporting mechanisms include multilingual
capabilities and provide access to a trained
interviewer 24 hours a day, 7 days a week?

3. To increase employees’ perception of detec-
tion, are the following proactive measures
taken and publicized to employees?

❑ Is possible fraudulent conduct aggressively
sought out, rather than dealt with passively?

❑  Are surprise fraud audits performed in
addition to regularly scheduled audits?

❑  Are data analytics techniques used to pro-
actively search for fraud and, if so, has the
use of such techniques been made known
throughout the organization?

❑  Do managers actively review the controls,
processes, accounts, or transactions under
their purview for adherence to company
policies and expectations?

4. Is the management climate/tone at the top one
of honesty and integrity?

❑  Are employees periodically surveyed to
determine the extent to which they believe
management acts with honesty and integrity?

❑  Are performance goals realistic and clearly
communicated?

❑  Have fraud prevention goals been incorpo-
rated into the performance measures that are
used to evaluate managers and to determine
performance-related compensation?

❑  Has the organization established, implemented,
and tested a process for oversight of fraud risks
by the board of directors or others charged with
governance (e.g., the audit committee)?

FRAUD PREVENTION CHECKLIST

The most cost-effective way to limit fraud losses is to prevent fraud 
from occurring in the first place. This checklist is designed to help 
organizations test the effectiveness of their fraud prevention 
measures. Additional guidance, resources, and tools for managing 
organizational fraud risk can be found at ACFE.com/fraudrisktools.

http://ACFE.com/fraudrisktools
https://www.acfe.com/fraud-resources/fraud-risk-tools


  FRAUD PREVENTiON CHECKLiST  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations 93

5. Are fraud risk assessments performed to pro-
actively identify and mitigate the company’s 
vulnerabilities to internal and external fraud?

 ❑ Are fraud risk assessments updated regular-
ly (e.g., annually), as well as following times 
of notable organizational or environmental 
changes?

 ❑ Are the results of the fraud risk assessment 
shared with appropriate levels of manage-
ment and used to update the organization’s 
anti-fraud program and controls?

6. Are strong anti-fraud controls in place and  
operating effectively, including the following?

 ❑ Proper separation of duties

 ❑ Use of authorizations

 ❑ Physical safeguards

 ❑ Job rotations

 ❑ Mandatory vacations

7. Does the internal audit department, if one 
exists, have adequate resources and authority 
to operate effectively and without undue influ-
ence from senior management?

8. Does the hiring policy include the following 
(where permitted by law)?

 ❑ Past employment verification

 ❑ Criminal and civil background checks

 ❑ Credit checks

 ❑ Drug screening

 ❑ Education verification

 ❑ References checks

9. Are employee support programs in place to 
assist employees struggling with addiction, 
mental/emotional health, family, or financial 
problems? 
 
 

 

10. Is an open-door policy in place that allows 
employees to speak freely about pressures, 
providing management the opportunity to 
alleviate such pressures before they become 
acute?

11. Are regular, anonymous surveys conducted to 
assess employee morale?



gLOSSARy OF TERMiNOLOgy  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations94

Asset misappropriation: A scheme in which an employee 
steals or misuses the employing organization’s resources 
(e.g., theft of company cash, false billing schemes, or 
inflated expense reports)

Billing scheme: A fraudulent disbursement scheme in 
which a person causes their employer to issue a payment 
by submitting invoices for fictitious goods or services, 
inflated invoices, or invoices for personal purchases (e.g., 
employee creates a shell company and bills employer 
for services not actually rendered; employee purchases 
personal items and submits an invoice to employer for 
payment)

Cash larceny: A scheme in which an incoming payment 
is stolen from an organization after it has been recorded 
on the organization’s books and records (e.g., employee 
steals cash and checks from daily receipts before they can 
be deposited in the bank)

Cash-on-hand misappropriations: A scheme in which 
the perpetrator misappropriates cash kept on hand at the 
victim organization’s premises (e.g., employee steals cash 
from a company vault)

Check or payment tampering scheme: A fraudulent 
disbursement scheme in which a person steals their 
employer’s funds by intercepting, forging, or altering 
a check or electronic payment drawn on one of the 
organization’s bank accounts (e.g., employee steals blank 
company checks and makes them out to themself or an 
accomplice; employee re-routes an outgoing electronic 
payment to a vendor to be deposited into their own bank 
account)

Corruption: A scheme in which an employee misuses their 
influence in a business transaction in a way that violates 
their duty to the employer in order to gain a direct or 
indirect benefit (e.g., schemes involving bribery or conflicts 
of interest)

Employee support programs: Programs that provide 
assistance to employees dealing with personal issues 
or challenges, such as counseling services for addiction, 
family, or financial problems

Expense reimbursements scheme: A fraudulent 
disbursement scheme in which an employee makes a 
claim for reimbursement of fictitious or inflated business 
expenses (e.g., employee files fraudulent expense report 
claiming personal travel or nonexistent meals)

Financial statement fraud: A scheme in which an 
employee intentionally causes a misstatement or omission 

of material information in the organization’s financial 
reports (e.g., employee files fraudulent expense report 
claiming personal travel or nonexistent meals)

Fraudulent disbursement scheme: A scheme in which 
an employee makes a distribution of organizational 
funds or manipulates a disbursement/payment function 
for a dishonest purpose (e.g., submitting false invoices 
for payment, altering time cards, or making personal 
purchases with company funds)

Hotline: A mechanism to report fraud or other violations, 
whether managed internally or by an external party. 
This might include telephone hotlines, dedicated email 
addresses, web-based platforms, and other mechanisms 
established to facilitate fraud reporting.

Management review: The process of management 
reviewing organizational controls, processes, accounts, 
or transactions for adherence to company policies and 
expectations

Noncash misappropriations: A scheme in which an 
employee steals or misuses noncash assets of the victim 
organization (e.g., employee steals inventory from a 
warehouse or storeroom; employee steals or misuses 
confidential customer information)

Occupational fraud: The use of one’s occupation for 
personal enrichment through the deliberate misuse or 
misapplication of the employing organization’s resources 
or assets

Payroll scheme: A fraudulent disbursement scheme in 
which an employee causes their employer to issue a 
payment by making false claims for compensation (e.g., 
employee claims overtime for hours not worked; employee 
adds ghost employees to the payroll)

Primary perpetrator: The person who worked for the 
victim organization and who was reasonably confirmed as 
the primary culprit in the case

Register disbursements scheme: A fraudulent 
disbursement scheme in which an employee makes 
false entries on a cash register to conceal the fraudulent 
removal of cash (e.g., employee fraudulently voids a sale 
on a cash register and steals the cash)

Skimming: A scheme in which an incoming payment is 
stolen from an organization before it is recorded on the 
organization’s books and records (e.g., employee accepts 
payment from a customer but does not record the sale and 
instead pockets the money)

GLOSSARY OF TERMINOLOGY



95

Founded in 1988 by Dr. Joseph T. Wells, CFE, CPA, the Association of Certified Fraud 
Examiners (ACFE) is the world’s largest anti-fraud organization and premier provider 
of anti-fraud training and education. Together with more than 90,000 members, the 
ACFE is reducing business fraud worldwide and inspiring public confidence in the 
integrity and objectivity within the profession.

The ACFE unites and supports the global anti-fraud community by providing  
educational tools and practical solutions for professionals through events,  
publications, networking, and educational materials for colleges and universities. 

CERTIFIED FRAUD EXAMINERS
The ACFE offers its members the opportunity for professional certification with the Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE) 
credential. The CFE is preferred by businesses and government entities around the world, and indicates expertise in 
fraud prevention and detection. CFEs are anti-fraud experts who have demonstrated knowledge in four critical areas: 
Financial Transactions and Fraud Schemes, Law, Investigation, and Fraud Prevention and Deterrence.

MEMBERSHIP
Members of the ACFE include accountants, internal auditors, fraud investigators, law enforcement officers, lawyers, 
business leaders, risk/compliance professionals, and educators, all of whom have access to expert training,  
educational tools, and resources. Whether their career is focused exclusively on preventing and detecting fraudulent 
activities or they just want to learn more about fraud, the ACFE provides anti-fraud professionals with the essential 
tools and resources necessary to accomplish their objectives.

To learn more, visit ACFE.com or call (800) 245-3321 / +1 (512) 478-9000.

CONTACT
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners
Global Headquarters
716 West Ave | Austin, TX 78701-2727 | USA
Phone: (800) 245-3321 / +1 (512) 478-9000
ACFE.com | info@ACFE.com

TERMS OF USE
Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations is available for use free of charge as a public service of the ACFE. You may 
download, copy and/or distribute the report for personal or business use on the following conditions:

1. No portion of Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations may be sold or otherwise licensed, shared or transferred to
any party for a fee, or included in any work that is to be sold, licensed, shared or transferred to any party for a fee, without the
express written consent of the ACFE. The foregoing notwithstanding, you are permitted to use the report as part of a speech
or presentation for which an admission fee is charged.

2. Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations must be properly attributed to the ACFE, including the name of the publi-
cation. An example of proper attribution is: “Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations. Copyright 2022 by the Associ-
ation of Certified Fraud Examiners, Inc.”

ABOUT THE ACFE

ABOUT THE ACFE  Occupational Fraud 2022: A Report to the Nations  

http://ACFE.com
http://ACFE.com
mailto:info%40ACFE.com?subject=


ACFE.com/RTTN
© 2022 Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, Inc. 
“ACFE,” “CFE,” “Certified Fraud Examiner,” “CFE Exam 

Prep Course,” “Fraud Magazine,” “Association of Certified 
Fraud Examiners,” “Report to the Nations,” the ACFE seal, 
the ACFE logo and related trademarks, names and logos 

are the property of the Association of Certified Fraud 
Examiners, Inc., and are registered and/or used in the U.S. 

and countries around the world.

https://legacy.acfe.com/report-to-the-nations/2022/default.aspx


INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4G 



1 

February 24, 2023 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 
a Municipal Water District 

Federal Update 

www.carpiclay.com 

Senator Feinstein Announces She Will Not Seek Re-election in 2024 
Senator Dianne Feinstein (D-CA) has announced that she will not be seeking re-election at 
the end of her current term in 2024. Feinstein has served in the Senate for over three decades 
since her first Senate election in 1992. To date, three Democratic House Members, Reps. 
Adam Schiff, Katie Porter, and Barbara Lee, have all announced that they are running for 
Feinstein’s seat. 

President Biden Delivers State of the Union Address
On Tuesday, February 7th, President Joe Biden delivered his second State of the Union 
address to a joint session of Congress. Marking roughly the halfway point of President 
Biden’s first term, the speech focused heavily on economic and domestic issues. 

Colorado River Update 
Last year, Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) Commissioner Camille Touton told Congress 
that the seven Colorado River Basin states needed to reach a deal to save up to 4 million acre-
feet in 2023 to have enough water in the system to protect power generation at Glen Canyon 
Dam. The initial deadline to reach this goal was last summer, which came and went without 
a deal. Last fall, the Department of the Interior (DOI) announced it would seek to revise the 
2007 Colorado River Interim Guidelines, which provide Lake Powell and Lake Mead 
operating criteria.  

As a result, six of the Colorado River Basin states (Arizona, Colorado, Nevada, New Mexico, 
Utah, and Wyoming) sent a proposal in early February to DOI Assistant Secretary of Water 
and Science Tanya Trujillo and Reclamation Commissioner Touton to significantly reduce 
reliance and usage of Colorado River water. Absent from signing onto this proposal is the 
seventh basin state, California. Under the proposed plan, California could see a reduction of 
up to 32 percent of its Colorado River allocation or 1.4 million acre-feet. In response, 
California submitted its own proposal to DOI and Reclamation. Under the California 
proposal, the state would agree to give up 400,000 acre-feet annually for the Colorado River 
system, while asking Arizona to give up 560,000 acre-feet annually and Nevada 40,000 acre-
feet annually. Additionally, should the worst-case scenario occur, and Lake Mead reaches 
dead pool (895 feet), California would give up an additional 950,000 acre-feet annually. 
California’s proposal also clarifies that it will not forfeit its senior water rights status to 
Arizona or Nevada.  



2 www.carpiclay.com 

DOI will consider both proposals as it seeks to update the Colorado River Interim Guidelines 
and is expected to produce a supplemental environmental impact statement this spring, with 
a final record of decision due this summer. The six-state proposal can be found HERE, and 
the California proposal can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces Initial 2023 CVP Allocation  
The Bureau of Reclamation announced the initial 2023 water supply allocations for Central 
Valley Project (CVP) water users. Water supply allocations are based on an estimate of water 
available for delivery to CVP water users and reflect current reservoir storage, precipitation, 
and snowpack in the Sierra Nevada.  This year’s initial allocations reflect the improved 
hydrologic conditions caused by the winter storms that left the Sierra Nevada snowpack at 
well above normal conditions. Adequate water elevations in Shasta Reservoir are crucial to 
ensuring deliveries to agricultural contractors and wildlife refuges. It also ensures enough 
cold water exists for spawning salmon later in the year.  More information can be found 
HERE.  
 
EPA Begins to Rollout Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund  
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is beginning to roll out more information about 
the $27 billion included in the Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) for the Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Fund (GGRF). GGRF is the largest non-tax incentive program included in IRA and 
is intended to help fund projects in communities nationwide to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. The $27 bill is divided into two programs: 1) General and Low-Income Assistance 
Program (aimed at funding projects by non-profits) and 2) Zero Emission Technology Fund 
Program (aimed at funding projects by states and local governments). The IRA requires that 
EPA obligate $27 billion in funding by September 30th, 2024. EPA has set a target date of 
summer 2023 to release guidance on how to apply for both programs. EPA also launched a 
website to house all information about GGRF. 
 
WOTUS Rule Update 
In response to the Army Corps of Engineers and EPA’s recent release of an updated Waters 
of the United States (WOTUS) rule, Republicans in both the House and the Senate have 
introduced a resolution to use the Congressional Review Act to try to prevent the rule from 
being implemented. Additionally, twenty-four states, led by West Virginia Attorney General 
Patrick Morrisey, filed a lawsuit challenging the rule. The United States Supreme Court is 
scheduled to consider a case during its next term that could have further implications on 
implementing the new rule in Sackett v. EPA. 
 
House Passes Grid Cybersecurity Bill 
On February 6th, the House passed the Energy Cybersecurity University Leadership Act of 2023 
(H.R. 302). The legislation would create an Energy Cybersecurity University Leadership 
program at the Department of Energy (DOE) to provide financial assistance to graduate 
students and researchers studying cybersecurity and energy infrastructure. The bill now 
heads to the Senate for consideration.  
 

https://www.scribd.com/document/622848010/Consolidated-SEIS-Letter-FINAL#from_embed
https://www.mwdh2o.com/media/sc4f2txf/california-seis-submittal-package_01312023.pdf
https://www.usbr.gov/newsroom/news-release/4433
https://www.epa.gov/greenhouse-gas-reduction-fund
https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/302


3 www.carpiclay.com 

Congressional Letters 
 
California Members Urge Reclamation to Lift Desalination Funding Cap. Senators 
Dianne Feinstein and Alex Padilla, along with Representative Mike Levin (D-CA) sent a letter 
to Reclamation Commissioner Camille Touton requesting to lift the $30 million per-project 
cap for desalination projects. The letter states that lifting the cap would give Reclamation 
more flexibility to administer the $250 million authorized by the Bipartisan Infrastructure 
Law (BIL) for desalination projects. The letter can be found HERE. 
 
Senators Urge Biden Administration to Address PFAS Contamination in Upcoming 
Budget Request. Thirty-six senators, including Senator Alex Padilla, sent a letter to 
President Biden urging him to include funding in the Administration’s upcoming budget 
request for fiscal year (FY) 2024 to comprehensively address per- and polyfluoroalkyl 
substances (PFAS) contamination. The letter requests funding to close gaps in available PFAS 
data and research, bolster testing and cleanup efforts, and support regulations that protect 
people and the environment from contamination. The letter can be found HERE. 
 
Federal Funding Opportunities/Announcements 
 
White House Releases Open and Upcoming Infrastructure NOFOs Calendar. The White 
House released a calendar detailing current and upcoming notices of funding opportunities 
(NOFOs) related to infrastructure. More information can be found HERE.  
 
EPA Issues RFI for $3 Billion Environmental and Climate Justice Program. EPA issued a 
Request for Information (RFI) seeking comments on its $3 billion Environmental and Climate 
Justice (ECJ) program authorized by the IRA. The program will provide grants and technical 
assistance to disadvantaged communities for climate and environmental justice projects. 
EPA is seeking input on program design, project types, reducing application barriers, 
reporting and oversight, and technical assistance. Comments are due by March 17th and more 
information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Availability of $2 Billion for EC-SDC Grant Program. EPA announced the 
availability of $2 billion in grant funding through its Emerging Contaminants in Small or 
Disadvantaged Communities (EC-SDC) Grant Program to address PFAS in drinking water. 
The funding was authorized by BIL to promote access to safe and clean water in small, rural, 
and disadvantaged communities through infrastructure upgrades, source water treatment 
for pollutants, and water quality testing. EPA will release the grant application timeline in 
the coming weeks and more information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Availability of $550 Million for Environmental Justice Grants. EPA 
announced the availability of $550 million in grant funding through the new Environmental 
Justice Thriving Communities Grantmaking program. This program will fund up to 11 
entities to serve as grantmakers to community-based projects that reduce pollution. EPA 
intends to award up to 11 cooperative agreements for up to approximately $50 million each 

https://www.feinstein.senate.gov/public/index.cfm?a=files.serve&File_id=89F62C9A-16C9-49C3-A9F8-6A876CD30E8F
https://www.manchin.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/2023_pfas_letter.pdf?cb
http://www.build.gov/
https://www.regulations.gov/docket/EPA-HQ-OEJECR-2023-0023
https://www.epa.gov/dwcapacity/emerging-contaminants-ec-small-or-disadvantaged-communities-grant-sdc


4 www.carpiclay.com 

to be funded incrementally over a 3-year period. The deadline to apply is May 31 and more 
information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces CWSRF Funding Allocation. EPA announced the allocation of $2.4 billion 
from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 
to states, Tribes, and territories. This represents the second allotment of CWSRF funding 
from BIL (the first allocation was $1.9 billion). A link to the state allocations can be found 
HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $728 Million for Western Drought Resilience. Reclamation 
announced $728 million in funding authorized by BIL to improve water systems impacted 
by drought conditions in Western states. The funding will support clean drinking water 
projects for rural and tribal communities, water conservation in the Upper Colorado River 
Basin, and projects to improve water supply reliability. The list of projects funded can be 
found HERE. 
 
Federal Agency Personnel/Regulatory Announcements 
 
President Biden Issues EO on Racial Equity and Support for Underserved 
Communities. On February 16th, President Biden issued Executive Order (EO) 14091 
entitled “Further Advancing Racial Equity and Support for Underserved Communities 
Through the Federal Government.” The EO adds to the Biden Administration’s previous 
actions to promote equity initiatives and requirements at federal agencies. The text of the 
EO can be found HERE. 
 
OIRA Issues Recommendations on Broadening Public Engagement in the Federal 
Regulatory Process. The White House Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs (OIRA) 
released recommendations to broaden public engagement in the federal regulatory process. 
OIRA is seeking stakeholder feedback on the recommendations and is hosting a listening 
session on March 7th at 3:00 pm ET. Comments are due by March 10th. Registration for the 
listening session and more information on the recommendations can be found HERE. 
 
OMB Proposes Buy America Revisions for Guidance on Grants and Agreements. The 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) issued a proposed rule to revise guidance on grants 
and agreements to support implementation of Build America, Buy America Act provisions 
included in the IRA. Comments are due by March 13th and more information can be found 
HERE.  
 
EPA Announces CERCLA PFAS Enforcement Listening Sessions. EPA has announced that 
it will be holding two public listening sessions to seek input on concerns about enforcement 
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act 
(CERCLA) for per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) contamination. There will be 
opportunities to provide verbal input during the listening sessions and written input 
submissions in a separate form. The listening sessions will be held on March 14th and March 
23rd. More information, as well as registration information, can be found HERE. 

https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/biden-harris-administration-announces-550-million-advance-environmental-justice
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-02/FY23%20CWSRF%20BIL%20Allotments%20Memo_February%202023.pdf
https://www.usbr.gov/budget/2023/FY-2023-Distribution-of-Additional-Funds-for-Ongoing-Work.pdf
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/presidential-actions/2023/02/16/executive-order-on-further-advancing-racial-equity-and-support-for-underserved-communities-through-the-federal-government/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/information-regulatory-affairs/broadening-public-engagement-in-the-federal-regulatory-process/
https://www.regulations.gov/document/OMB-2023-0004-0001
https://www.epa.gov/enforcement/cercla-pfas-enforcement-listening-sessions


5 www.carpiclay.com 

EPA Releases Updated CWA FCA Guidance. EPA released its updated Clean Water Act 
Financial Capability Assessment (FCA) Guidance to assist communities with Clean Water Act 
(CWA) compliance. The FCA Guidance describes financial information and formulas that EPA 
uses to assess a community's financial resources and ability to comply with CWA. More 
information can be found HERE. 
 
EPA Announces Water Workforce Webinar on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion. EPA is 
hosting a Water Workforce Webinar on March 21st at 2:00 pm ET, entitled “It Really Matters: 
Ensuring Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion in the Water Workforce.” The webinar will feature 
Sharise Horne from the Louisville Metropolitan Sewer District and Julianne Jones from the 
Water Environment Foundation. Registration can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Issues NOPR on Public Access Conduct on Agency Lands. Reclamation 
issued a notice of proposed rulemaking (NOPR) seeking comments on proposed updates to 
regulations and definitions for public access and conduct on Reclamation lands, waters, and 
facilities. Reclamation is proposing updates to existing definitions for aircraft usage, firearm 
possession, and camping, swimming, and winter recreation regulations. Comments are due 
by April 17th and more information can be found HERE. 
 
 
 

## ## ## 
 

https://www.epa.gov/waterfinancecenter/clean-water-act-financial-capability-assessment-guidance
https://www.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_zAmdyUpyQGGYpyQRZCAMNg
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/02/16/2023-03151/public-conduct-on-bureau-of-reclamation-facilities-lands-and-waterbodies


INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4H 



February 24, 2023 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From: Michael Boccadoro 

Beth Olhasso 

RE: February Report 

Overview: 

State regulators are switching from a tone of jubilee at all the precipitation in January to cautious 

optimism after a relatively warm and dry February. The Sierra snowpack is still above average 

for this time of year and April 1 average, but has dropped in recent weeks as snow has melted. 

Reservoirs are slowly filling backup as the snowmelt makes its way into the river system and 

into storage. Even while regulators expressed concern over dry conditions, DWR did announce a 

five percent increase to State Water Project allocations, bringing the 2023 total to 35 percent. 

Storms expected to move through in the final days of February are expected to bring significant 

additional snowpack to the Sierras.  

The State Water Resources Control Board has issued a Temporary Urgency Change Petition to 

allow for more water to flow to Southern California. Predictably controversial, state and federal 

regulators have noted that their modeling indicates there is enough water flowing through the 

Delta to not cause any harm to fish or habitat.  

In the ongoing process to establish an Advanced Clean Fleets rule for public agencies, ten key 

legislators, including Asm. Eliose Reyes, have sent a letter to the CA Air Resources Board 

asking them to make considerations for public agency fleets.  

After a five-year break, western energy grid regionalization is back under discussion in the 

Legislature. After the summer grid reliability crisis, proponents of a regional grid are trying 

again to set the structure and governance for such a system. The goal of a regional grid is to 

better enable power movement between regions when needed- allowing for greater reliability, 

flexibility and cost effectiveness.  

Continuing on the energy front, efforts to keep Diablo Canyon Nuclear Generating Station open 

got more difficult. Keeping Diablo Canyon open became a statewide energy reliability measure 

this summer when regulators realized that the entire state needs the 2,220 MW of electricity 

generated on the North Coast. Federal energy regulators recently denied PG&E’s request to use a 

“paused” relicensing application from 2009 and is requiring the utility to submit new 

applications for each of its reactors. Applications typically take about five years to review, and 

the reactors are slated to be shut down at Diablo Canyon in 2024 and 2025.  

The Legislative Analyst Office has issued a paper stating that the budget shortfall will likely be 

far worse than the Governor predicted in his January budget. The shortfall could be as much as 

$80 billion.  



Legislators introduced over 2,600 bills before the February 17 bill introduction deadline. About 

40 percent of those bills are “spot” or “intent” bills with no substantive change to law yet in 

writing. Two resources bonds have been introduced, which will slowly make their way through 

the process before they have to be finalized in July of 2024.  There are several spot bills on 

PFAS that look to be focusing on source control, not regulation at POTWs. There are quite a few 

bills on water rights, which WCA and IEUA staff are evaluating to see if they have impacts on 

State Water Contractors and Metropolitan. Finally, there are a number of bills relating to PERS, 

construction contracting and virtual meetings by public agencies that IEUA staff is evaluating.  

Bills have until April 28 to advance out of policy committees. 

 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – February 2023 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

The excitement over significant January precipitation has tapered off as February has been fairly 

warm and dry. The statewide snowpack is still above average, but has been melting, at 173 

percent of average for this time of year and 140 percent of April 1 averages. A cold storm is 

supposed to roll through the state that should help maintain the existing snowpack while adding 

over five feet of additional snow. Reservoir levels continue to rise as the snow melts, but still 

aren’t full. Lake Oroville is sitting at 115 percent of historical average and 71 percent 

capacity.  San Luis Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta storage facility for the State Water 

Project, is at 93 percent of average for this time of the year and 74 percent capacity.   

 

The Natural Resources Agency held a webinar, “After the Storm: A Timely Update on CA’s 

Water Supply Situation.” Natural Resources Secretary Crowfoot and DWR Director Nemeth 

expressed excitement at the conditions of the snowpack, but made it very clear that California is 

not out of the drought. They noted that the state has seen early snow like this before only for the 

rest of the winter to be dry.   

 

While expressing caution, DWR did recognize the improved reservoir conditions and announced 

a five percent increase to State Water Project Allocations for a total of 35 percent.  

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hAWKMQYKblk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hAWKMQYKblk


 
 

State Water Resources Control Board Approves Conditional Temporary Urgency Change 

Petition for Delta 

Following Governor Newsom’s relaxing of several regulations, SWRCB Executive Director 

Eileen Sobeck signed an order modifying the state’s flow rules in the Delta. The order allows 

more water to be exported south, as of February 21. Until March 31, the state can allow an 

additional 15,000 CFS to flow south—water that would flow through the Delta and out to the 

ocean.  

 

The order was met with predictable outcry from environmentalists who are concerned about 

flows for juvenile salmon and Delta smelt. 

 

ED Sobeck noted that the waiver is permissible only if it is made in the public interest and “will 

not result in unreasonable effects to fish and wildlife.” DWR Director Nemeth and U.S. Bureau 

of Reclamation regional director Conant both noted that lifting the flow requirements is unlikely 

to harm Delta fish. They highlighted modeling and operational actions that have created 

conditions that will be protective of species throughout February and March. 

 

 

 



Legislators Weigh in on Advanced Clean Fleets 

In mid-February, ten influential legislators, including Assemblymember Reyes, sent a letter to 

the California Air Resources Board asking the Board to make considerations for public agency 

fleets in their Advanced Clean Fleets Rule. They ask for the public fleet regulations to be 

clarified in two ways: 

“1. It should recognize the diversity of fleet size, terrain, and climate, with workable 

provisions allowing publicly owned utilities to purchase replacements for traditional 

utility specialized vehicles, that are at the end of their life, when needed to maintain 

reliable service and respond to emergencies.  

2. CARB should work with public utilities to create a list of vehicle vendors/suppliers 

that meet CARB’s zero-emission standard and the public utilities technical and 

performance requirements.” 

As discussed in previous reports, the requirements being placed on public agencies are onerous 

and very difficult to comply with. CARB is expected to release changes to the proposed rules in 

the coming months.  

 

A spot bill, AB 1594 (E. Garcia), has been introduced that is ready to be used by public agencies 

to make a statutory change to the Advanced Clean Fleets rule if needed.  

 

Western Energy Regionalization Under Discussion Again 

In 2018, Assemblymember Chris Holden (D, Pasadena) introduced legislation to create a new 

Western wholesale energy trading market. The bill faced significant opposition at the time and 

failed passage. After the energy crisis of Labor Day Weekend, Assm. Holden has re-introduced 

the concept in AB 538. The legislation would direct CAISO’s Board of Governors to develop 

and submit to the CEC a governance proposal for a regional transmission organization. The 

proposal would be reviewed by CEC leadership and would require retention of “a state’s 

leadership over energy procurement, resource planning and transmission siting and investment.” 

It would prohibit a centralized capacity market, ensure California’s climate policies would be 

retained and establish equitable transmission cost-allocation rules.  

 

Regional markets are already functioning in the West. CAISO’s recent FERC approval to bring 

its extended day-ahead market across the regional footprint of the Western Energy Imbalance 

market is seen as a move to a more effective and expansive regional market.  

 

Environmentalists are split on the matter, some (Food and Water Watch) are concerned 

California will import energy generated from fossil resources like coal from other states, while 

others (Natural Resources Defense Council) think regionalization is critical to achieving the 

state’s ambitious climate goals. 

 

As energy costs keep increasing, continued monitoring of energy-related policy is critical for 

IEUA to help predict cost drivers for operations expenses.  

 

 

 

 

 



Keeping Diablo Canyon Open Just Got Harder- surprisingly important to Southern CA 

PG&E and the State’s attempt to keep Diablo Canyon Nuclear Plant just got a bit more difficult. 

In order to keep Diablo Canyon open, PG&E needs a new license from the Federal Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission, which usually takes about five years for review. Diablo Canyon’s two 

reactor licenses are set to expire in Nov 2024 and Aug 2025.  

 

PG&E had applied for a new license in 2009, but withdrew the application when they decided to 

decommission the plant in 2018. PG&E recently asked the NRC to resume review of its 2009 

license renewal application in October 2022, after the Legislature and Governor authorized 

funding for retrofits and upgrades to keep the plant online after significant power supply issues 

during the heat wave this past summer. Diablo Canyon is a 2,220 MW plant, supplying about 9 

percent of the state’s total electricity supply. 

 

The NRC denied PG&E’s request to use their 2009 application and instructed them to submit a 

new application, which they intend to do by the end of 2023—less than a year before the first 

reactor is scheduled to be shut down.  

 

There is significant worry that PG&E will be forced to shut down Diablo Canyon because they 

don’t have a license in time. 

 

While Diablo Canyon is in Northern California and operated by PG&E, the State considers at 

least half of the power to be beneficial to state-wide reliability. Because of the significant amount 

of energy produced, if Diablo Canyon closes, grid operators are worried that disruptions will be 

felt up and down the state as replacement power will have to come in from other sources that 

could impact Southern California.  

 

Budget Update 

As previously reported, the Governor presented a budget assuming a $25 billion shortfall. Since 

the Governor’s predictions were made in December, more information has been gathered about 

revenue trends and economic conditions. The Legislative Analyst Office is sounding the alarm that 

the state should assume at least another $8-10 billion shortfall. Additionally, they have noted that 

the “trigger cuts” the Governor proposed are not likely to provide the revenue needed.  

 

This new information, along with income tax filings, will help to inform the May Revise. Further 

complicating matters, the Governor has delayed state income tax filing deadline to May 15 because 

of the major January floods. It is unclear how many Californians will avail themselves of this 

delay- but if it is significant, it could make the May Revise less reliable. 

 

Budget Sub-Committees are starting to meet to hear specific budget items. They will hear 

presentations from state departments, discuss and listen to public testimony, but leave items open 

to be voted on after the May Revise.  

 

 



 
 

Legislation 

Bill introduction deadline was February 17 and 2,632 bills have been introduced for the 2023 

Legislative Session. Nearly 40 percent of the bills are “spot bills,” or “intent bills” meaning they 

don’t have any substantive language in them yet. Bills have until the end of March to take 

amendments before hearings in policy committees. Policy committees have until the end of April 

to report out all fiscal bills to Appropriations Committees 

 

Water rights is a hot topic among legislators this year, with a number of bills trying to address 

issues that arose when the SWRCB issued curtailment orders in parts of the state over the summer. 

WCA and IEUA staff are evaluating if those will have a broader impact on State Water Contractors 

and Metropolitan.  

 

There are several bond measures that have been introduced. As reported previously, the Governor 

called for a Resources Bond when he presented his January 10 budget. Senator Ben Allen (D-Santa 

Monica) and Assemblymember Eduardo Garcia (D-Coachella) have both introduced placeholder 

language for a resources bond. SB 867 does not include any total funding cost while AB 1567 has 

rough language for a $15 billion bond. It is expected that discussions on these bills will continue 

until 2024. Final language does not need to be passed until July of 2024 to make it onto the 

November 2024 General Election Ballot.   

 

There are a number of PFAS bills that are still in spot form, but so far, they are all focusing on 

different types of source control- nothing yet on requiring POTWs to do any extra removal.  

  



As always, there are a number of CEQA exemption bills, but it remains to be seen if the 

progressive-leaning legislature will be willing to make any exceptions to California’s landmark 

environmental law. Exceptions have generally been reserved for very special circumstances like 

new arenas or the new Capitol Annex Building in Sacramento. 

 

On the administrative side, there are several bills IEUA staff is reviewing regarding virtual public 

meetings, PERS benefits, construction contracting. 

 

A comprehensive list will be created after the Legislative Committee reviews legislation and 

makes recommendations to the Board for action and regular updates will commence in this report 

starting in March. 

   



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4I 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Public Outreach and Communication

• March, Procurement Month
• March 3, Employee Appreciation Day
• March 4, World Engineering Day
• March 5-11, Groundwater Awareness Week
• March 12, Intl. Grant Professionals Day
• March 20-26, Fix a Leak Week
• March 22, World Water Day

Staff is working closely with its customer agency representatives and the Agency’s Collections
team to expand upon messaging related to FOG (fats, oil, and greases) and the impacts on sewer
systems. Other FOG outreach collaboration efforts are being finalized.

Staff is working closely with customer agencies and MWD on drought messaging and adjusting
based on current conditions.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

03/08/23Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

23056



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
March 

• March, Procurement Month 
• March 3, Employee Appreciation Day 
• March 4, World Engineering Day 
• March 5-11, Groundwater Awareness Week 
• March 12, Intl. Grant Professionals Day 
• March 20-26, Fix a Leak Week 
• March 22, World Water Day 

 
Media and Outreach 

General 
• Staff continues to work with the Chino Basin Program team leads, partners, and Arellano 

Associates to develop and implement an outreach strategy for additional program 
communication, roadshow scheduling, identifying collaboration and partnership 
opportunities on shared media, and more. Program Staff have begun leading stakeholder 
presentations to provide outreach on the Chino Basin Program to local community 
organizations. 

• Staff began promoting submission requests for the Agency’s 2023 Water is Life Student 
Art Poster Contest. 

• Staff shared wetland protection tips and reminders in honor of World Wetlands Day. 
• Staff announced the return of the 2023 Earth Day Celebration with promotional posts on 

Agency social channels.  
• Staff celebrated Engineers Week with posts and videos on four of IEUA’s Engineers. 

Recognition included a post introducing the highlighted staff, a Project Highlight reel, a 
blog interview post on various STEM careers within the Agency, and a Day in the Life 
reel.  

• Staff shared a reel for Government Communications Day on February 24th featuring the 
Agency’s External Affairs Unit. 

• Staff is working closely with its customer agency representatives and the Agency’s 
Collections team to expand upon messaging related to FOG (fats, oil, and greases) and 
the impacts on sewer systems. Other FOG outreach collaboration efforts are being 
finalized. 
 

Drought Awareness Efforts 
• Staff is coordinating with customer agencies on messaging geared towards conservation 

and the irrigation of trees. 
• Staff is continuing to work closely with the Water-Use Efficiency team on promoting the 

turf replacement program.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

• Staff will continue to work with customer agencies on drought messaging and outreach. 
Staff is drafting message points and creative for outreach and will be adding these assets 
to the drought communication toolkit for customer agencies. 

• Staff continues to promote the “Time is Now” message through timely facts, video 
shorts, and water-saving tips shared to the Agency’s social media channels. 
 

Advertising/Marketing  
• An “Time is Now” ad ran on February 25 in the Chino Champion.  
• A “Time is Now” banner ad ran in February in La Opinion.  
• A “Time is Now” ad ran in the February issue of Inland Empire Magazine. 

 
Social Outreach and Analytics 
• The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained 68 followers since 

January, with 727 page views in the last 30 days (January 23 – February 21).  
• February: 29 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 28 tweets were sent on 

the @IEUAWater Twitter handle, 29 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 
20 posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
February were:  
 2/14 Associate Engineer and Records Specialist Hiring 
 2/21 Senior Associate Engineer – PE Hiring 
 2/6 IEUA Staff Photo Dump 

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
February were: 
 2/12 Super Bowl FOG/Wipes Reminder 
 2/21 Engineers Week Project Highlight Reel 
 2/2 Chino Basin Program Manager Liz Hurst and Senior Engineer Liza 

Munoz at Santa Ana River Science and Conservation Symposium 
o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 

February were: 
 2/12 Super Bowl FOG/Wipes Reminder  
 2/19 Engineers Week Feature- Jose Mendez 
 2/14 Associate Engineer and Records Specialist Hiring  

o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 
February were: 
 2/2 New Splash tour highlight 
 2/7 Deputy General Manager Christiana Daisy and Chino Basin Program 

Manager Liz Hurst at the Resolve Workshop 
 2/19 Engineers Week Feature- Brian Noh 

• For the month of February, there were 8,618 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area 
on Yelp and the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 507 times.  

 
Education and Outreach Updates 

• Staff is coordinating with the city of Chino to plan for this year’s in-person two-day Earth 
Day event. 

• Field trip dates for the Water Discovery Field Trip Program are filling up. Dates are 
booked from February through May, with only a few available dates remaining.  



Page 3 of 3 
 

• Staff coordinated a special engineering focused Water Discovery Field trip activity with 
members from IEUA’s engineering team. Students put their engineering skills to the test 
by building tin foil boats to withstand the weight of paper clips and binder clips. 

• Staff is continuing to work on closing out the last year of the Garden in Every School® 
program.  

o Randall Pepper Elementary in Fontana is completing final clean-up of the site to 
prepare for construction to begin. Chino Basin Water Conservation District will 
be completing the construction. 

o Our Loving Savior’s garden construction is completed. The school has confirmed 
that the bunny fencing will be completed shortly. Planting and the dedication will 
be scheduled this spring.  

• IEUA is now accepting entries for the Water is Life Student Art Poster Contest. The 
deadline for this year’s contest will be March 9, 2023. Staff will be promoting the contest 
through email blasts, social media, educator email blasts, and more.  

• Staff continues to provide support to Chino Hills High School and Upland High School 
for the Metropolitan Water District’s new program, Water Engineering 4 Good.  
 

 Agency-Wide Membership Updates 
• Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager and Lisa Dye, Director of Human 

Resources, attended the Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts 
(ASBCSD) Membership Meeting on January 23.  

• Board President Marco Tule, Board Vice President Steven J. Elie, Director of External & 
Government Affairs, Alyson Piguee, Chino Basin Program Manager, Elizabeth Hurst, 
Acting Director of Finance, Randy Lee, and Executive Assistant, Laura Mantilla attended 
the Southern California Water coalition (SCWC) Quarterly Luncheon on January 27. 

• Director Michael Camacho and Assistant General Manager, Kristine Day, attended the 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) 2023 Winter Conference 
Navigating Uncharted Water from January 25 – January 27. 
 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4J 



Vicky Salazar

Senior Associate Engineer

March 2023

RP-5 Expansion Project Update
March 2023

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 - Jan 2025 Construction
Jan 12 - Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 - Nov 7 MBR Phase1 
Dec 14 - Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 - Sep 23 Digesters
Feb 15 - Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 - Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 - Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award
Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone
Jan 11

Project Completion
Jan 10

Day 958 of 1640 = 58%
RP-5: Project Status

Role Firm Contract This Month’s 
Payment Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $339,913,477 $6,527,538 $205,523,873 60%

Designer Parsons $36,833,185 $254,398 $33,448,657 90%

Construction 
Management Arcadis $21,125,523 $364,759 $11,151,799 53%

2

Data date: 2/28/2023



Maintain Agency Standards:
• Optimized plant operation 
• Training 

Ongoing workshops: 
• SCADA Planning and Structure

• HMI Graphics Standards and Requirements 

• PLC Architecture and Equipment 

— Vendor system integration 

• Generator Controls 

• Process Control Narratives (PCNs) and 
Controls

RP-5: System Integration

3

Contractor
W.M. Lyles

Helix
Rovisys

Designer
Parsons

Consultants
Arcadis

Jeff Traugott

IEUA IT Staff
Phebe Wang 

Michael Gallagher

System 
Integration 

Team 



SCADA System Upgrades

• Upgrade existing controllers

• Add new controllers 

• 6 new power centers 

• Convert networks to Parallel 
Redundancy Protocol (PRP) 

• Upgrade to PlantPAx Ver. 4.6

• New Smart MCCs and VFDs with 
Ethernet/IP communications

RP-5: System Integration

4

HEADQUARTERS “B” BUILDING NEW POWER CENTER 5

EXISTING POWER 
CENTER 2

EXISTING POWER 
CENTER 1

EXISTING POWER 
CENTER 3

NEW POWER 
CENTER 9

NEW POWER 
CENTER 6

NEW POWER 
CENTER 4

• ACID PHASE DIGESTERS
• THICKENING
• GAS PHASE DIGESTERS
• BOILERS 

RP5PRI

NEW 
“PRIMARY2”

RP5PRI2 RP5SEC1&2 RP5TER RP5SOL1-RP5SOL6

NEW MBR, BLOWERS, 
FLARES, GAS COND., 

ETC.

NEW POWER CENTERS 
7 & 8 



Update Existing Systems

• Power supplies in distributed control panel (DCP) 

replaced 

• Terminal blocks added for new power supplies 

• Existing switches relocated to new side of panel 

• Existing controller relocated to new side of panel 

• Installation of new Parallel Redundancy Protocol

switches in existing panels

RP-5: System Integration

5



RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff

• WML Craft:      125
• WML Project:    32
• IEUA & CM:       15
• Total:                172

6

RP-5 Tours

• 95 total tours
• 570 total visitors 
• 33 different visiting groups 



RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station
7



RP-5: Major Activities

8

Fine Screens



RP-5: Major Activities

9

Duct Bank 30 Installation 



RP-5: Major Activities

Gas Phase Digesters
10



RP-5: Major Activities

Thickening Building
11



RP-5: Major Activities

Boiler Building
12



RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building
13



Questions?



Appendix



ISS Assets



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4K 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Fiscal Year 2022/23 Second Quarter Budget Variance, Performance Updates, and
Budget Transfers

The attached budget variance report presents the Agency's financial performance through the
second quarter, ending December 31, 2022, and associated analyses provided in the attachments.

The total revenue collected during the second quarter was $144.4 million, or 69.4 percent of the
anticipated budgeted revenues for the quarter. The variance is primarily due to lower than
budgeted grant and loan receipts which are primarily reimbursable.

The total expenses in the second quarter were $141.6 million, or 63.8 percent of the anticipated
budgeted expense for the quarter. The variance is primarily due to lower than budgeted
administrative and operating expenses and the delays in material procurement and timing of
capital project execution.

The net change of unaudited total revenues over the total expenses for the quarter ending
December 31, 2022 is an estimated increase of $2.8 million.

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 second quarter budget variance, performance goal updates, and
budget transfers is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

The net change of total revenues and other funding sources over total expenses and other uses of
funds is an increase of $2.8 million for the quarter ended December 31, 2022.

03/08/23Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The quarterly budget variance report is consistent with the Agency's business goal of fiscal
responsibility to demonstrate the Agency has appropriately funded operational, maintenance,
and capital costs.

On December 21, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Fiscal Year 2022/23 First Quarter
Budget Variance, Performance Goal Updates, and Budget Transfers.

Attachment 1 - Background
Exhibit A - Q2 Budget Variance Summary and Detail Report
Exhibit B - Business Goals Status Updates by Department
Exhibit C-1 - Summary of Annual Budget Transfers through the Fourth Quarter
Exhibit C-2 - Summary of the GM Contingency Account Activity
Exhibit D - Project Budget Transfers for Capital and Non-Capital Projects

Attachment 2 - Power Point

Not Applicable

23049



User Charges

Recycled Water Sales 

MWD Water Sales 

Connection Fees

Property Taxes 



Grants & Loans

Cost Reimbursements 



Employment – 

Office and Administration –

Professional Fees & Services – 

O&M (Non-capital) and Reimbursable Projects

Operating Fees

MWD Water Purchases 



Utilities 

Capital Projects – 

Financial Expenses - 



                   +/- difference due to rounding 

Intra-fund O&M 

General Manager (GM) Contingency Account

Inter-fund Capital and O&M project



Exhibit A Detail

Amended
% Budget % Annual 

Amended Budget Actual Variance YTD Budget
Budget YTD YTD YTD Used Used

OPERATING REVENUES
User Charges $99,477,897 $49,738,948 $48,709,055 ($1,029,893) 97.9% 49.0%
Recycled Water 17,610,000           8,805,000                12,591,216          3,786,216              143.0% 71.5%
MWD Water Sales 49,956,000           24,978,000              20,505,329          (4,472,671)            82.1% 41.0%
Cost Reimbursement from JPA 7,154,713             3,577,357                3,087,299            (490,058)                86.3% 43.2%
Interest Revenue 3,699,063             1,849,532                2,187,986            338,454                 118.3% 59.1%

TOTAL OPERATING  REVENUES $177,897,673 $88,948,836 $87,080,885 ($1,867,952) 97.9% 48.9%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Property Tax $74,018,000 $37,009,000 $42,852,137 $5,843,137 115.8% 57.9%
Connection Fees 39,052,365           19,526,183              9,773,464            (9,752,719)            50.1% 25.0%
Grants 16,248,545           8,124,273                3,054,747            (5,069,526)            37.6% 18.8%
Debt Proceeds 107,120,000         53,560,000              40,000 (53,520,000)          0.1% 0.0%
Project Reimbursements 1,648,413             824,207                   1,432,913            608,706                 173.9% 86.9%
Other Revenue 388,000                 194,000                   183,328               (10,672)                  94.5% 47.2%

TOTAL NON OPERATING  REVENUES $238,475,323 $119,237,662 $57,336,588 ($61,901,074) 48.1% 24.0%

TOTAL REVENUES $416,372,996 $208,186,498 $144,417,473 ($63,769,026) 69.4% 34.7%

ADMINISTRATIVE and OPERATING EXPENSES

EMPLOYMENT EXPENSES
Wages $29,290,234 $14,645,117 $17,325,891 ($2,680,774) 118.3% 59.2%
Benefits 27,491,261 13,745,630 10,027,580          3,718,051              73.0% 36.5%

TOTAL EMPLOYMENT EXPENSES $56,781,495 $28,390,748 $27,353,472 $1,037,277 96.3% 48.2%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Office & Administrative $2,693,901 $1,346,951 $800,491 $546,460 59.4% 29.7%
Insurance Expenses 1,753,705 876,852 904,168               (27,316)                  103.1% 51.6%
Professional Fees & Services 17,242,390 8,621,195 3,822,937            4,798,258              44.3% 22.2%
O&M Projects 20,496,134 10,248,067 3,012,486 7,235,581              29.4% 14.7%
Reimbursable Projects 952,688 476,344 292,611 183,733                 61.4% 30.7%

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $43,138,818 $21,569,410 $8,832,694 $12,736,716 41.0% 20.5%

Quarter Ended December 31, 2022

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2022/23

CONSOLIDATED BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS REPORT

Page 1



Exhibit A Detail

Amended
% Budget % Annual 

Amended Budget Actual Variance YTD Budget
Budget YTD YTD YTD Used Used

Quarter Ended December 31, 2022

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2022/23

CONSOLIDATED BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS REPORT

OPERATING EXPENSES
Material & Supplies/Leases $3,856,588 $1,928,294 $1,714,946 $213,348 88.9% 44.5%
Biosolids Recycling 4,933,904 2,466,952 2,023,279 443,674                 82.0% 41.0%
Chemicals 9,041,206 4,520,603 3,777,093 743,510                 83.6% 41.8%
MWD Water Purchases 49,956,000 24,978,000 20,505,329          4,472,671              82.1% 41.0%
Operating Fees/RTS Fees/Exp. Alloc. 13,932,866 6,966,433 6,461,507            504,926                 92.8% 46.4%
Utilities 14,375,030 7,187,515 8,402,070 (1,214,555)            116.9% 58.4%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $96,095,594 $48,047,797 $42,884,224 $5,163,574 89.3% 44.6%

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE
and OPERATING EXPENSES $196,015,908 $98,007,955 $79,070,390 $18,937,567 80.7% 40.3%

CAPITAL OUTLAY $208,682,551 $104,341,276 $49,207,947 $55,133,328 47.2% 23.6%
FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Principal, Interest and Financial Expenditures 19,241,864 19,241,864 13,010,223 6,231,641              67.6% 67.6%

OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 352,050 352,050 351,995               55                          100.0% 100.0%

TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $228,276,465 $123,935,190 $62,570,165 $61,365,024 50.5% 27.4%

TOTAL EXPENSES $424,292,373 $221,943,145 $141,640,555 $80,302,591 63.8% 33.4%

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ($7,919,377) ($13,756,647) $2,776,917 $16,533,565
Totals may not add up due to rounding

Page 2



I.  Actual vs. Budget Summary:

Quarter Ended December 31, 2022
 % of the Year       
Elapsed:50% 

Adopted
Annual 
Budget  Amended Budget

Budget 
 (YTD)

Actual 
 (YTD)

Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues $177,897,673 $177,897,673 $88,948,836 $87,080,885 ($1,867,951) 97.9%

Non-Operating (Other Sources of Fund) 238,475,323 238,475,323 119,237,662 57,336,588 (61,901,074) 48.1%

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES 416,372,996 416,372,996 208,186,498 144,417,473 (63,769,025) 69.4%

Administrative & Operating Expense (181,401,779) (196,015,908) (98,007,955) (79,070,390) 18,937,565 80.7%

Capital Improvement Project Expense (201,575,467) (208,682,551) (104,341,276) (49,207,947) 55,133,329 47.2%

Debt Service and All Other Expenses (22,033,057) (19,593,914) (19,593,914) (13,362,218) 6,231,696 68.2%

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS (405,010,303) (424,292,373) (221,943,145) (141,640,555) 80,302,590 63.8%

Net Increase/(Decrease) $11,362,693 ($7,919,377) ($13,756,647) $2,776,918 $16,533,565 

EXHIBIT A

69%

81%

47%

68%

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

Total Funding Sources Administrative & Operating Expense Capital Improvement Project Expense Debt Service and All Other Expenses

M
ill
io
n
s

Actual vs. Budget YTD
For the Quarter

Ended December 31, 2022

Budget
(YTD)

Actual
(YTD)

Page 1



2. Actual Revenue vs. Budget:

Quarter Ended December 31, 2022
 % of the Year       
Elapsed:50% 

Adopted
Annual 
Budget  Amended Budget

Budget 
 (YTD)

Actual 
 (YTD)

Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues:

  User Charges $99,477,897 $99,477,897 $49,738,948 $48,709,055 ($1,029,893) 97.9%

17,610,000 17,610,000 8,805,000 12,591,216 $3,786,216 143.0%

  MWD Water Sales 49,956,000 49,956,000 24,978,000 20,505,329 ($4,472,671) 82.1%

  Cost Reimbursement 7,154,713 7,154,713 3,577,357 3,087,299 ($490,058) 86.3%

  Interest 3,699,063 3,699,063 1,849,532 2,187,986 $338,454 118.3%

177,897,673 177,897,673 88,948,837 87,080,885 (1,867,952) 97.9%

Non-Operating Revenues:

   Property Tax - Debt,  Capital, Reserves $74,018,000 $74,018,000 $37,009,000 $42,852,137 $5,843,137 115.8%

  Connection Fees 39,052,365 39,052,365 19,526,183 9,773,464 ($9,752,719) 50.1%

  Grants & Loans 123,368,545 123,368,545 61,684,273 3,094,747 ($58,589,526) 5.0%

  Other Revenue 2,036,413 2,036,413 1,018,205 1,616,240 $598,035 158.7%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 238,475,323 238,475,323 119,237,661 57,336,588 (61,901,073) 48.1%

Total Revenues $416,372,996 $416,372,996 $208,186,498 $144,417,473 ($63,769,025) 69.4%

User Charges, 97.9%

Property Tax/ 
AdValorem, 115.8%

Recycled Water Sales, 
143%

Interest Income, 118.3%

MWD Water Sales, 82.1%

Connection Fees, 50.1%

Grants and Loans, 5%

Cost Reimbursements 
JPA, 86.3%

Other Revenues, 158.7% Total other revenues and project reimbursements were $1.6 million, or 158.7 percent of year to date budget. Actual receipts include of $0.5 million from Chino Basin
Waster Master(CBWM) for it's share of the 2020A bond debt service and fixed project costs, $0.9 million project reimbursement for Prado Basin Assets Retrofits and the
Chino Basin Feasibility Study projects, and $0.2 million for other fees and miscellaneous reimbursements.

  Recycled Water Sales

OPERATING REVENUES

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) sale of pass-through imported water was $20.5 million or 82.1 percent of the year to date budget. Imported
water deliveries were 24,189 AF compared to the annual budgeted quantity of 60,000 AF. The variance can be attributed to the drought and imposed mandatory water
restrictions set by MWD to conserve water.
Total connection fee receipts of $9.8 million or 50.1 percent of the year to date budget. Receipts include $8.1 million for new regional wastewater system connections and
$1.7 million for new water connections. The number of new wastewater connections reported through December were 1,061 equivalent dwellings unit (EDU) compared to
the annual budget of 4,000. The total number of new water connections were 1,148 meter equivalent dwelling units (MEU) compared to the budgeted 4,700.

Grant and loans invoiced through the second quarter totaled $3.1 million dollars. Grant included $3.0 million for RMPU projects in the Recharge Water fund and forty-five
thousand for the Water Conservation grant in the Water Resources fund. SRF loans invoiced included forty thousand for the Wineville/Jurupa/RP-3 Improvements RMPU
project. Grant and loans are primarily reimbursable in nature and as such are dependent upon related capital project expenditures. Annual budgeted grants of $16.2 million
include $6.1 million for various projects in the Regional Wastewater Operations fund, $4.6 million for Recharge Master Plan Update projects, $5.0 million for the Chino Basin
Program projects, and $0.5 million for Recycled Water projects. State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan proceeds annual budget of $56.1 million includes $51.5 million for the RP-5
Expansion and various other wastewater projects, and $4.6 million for Recharge Master Plan Update projects in the Recharge Water Fund.

Total cost reimbursements of $3.1 million or 86.3 percent of the year to date budget were received through the second quarter. Actuals include reimbursements of $1.8
million from the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) and $0.7 million from Chino Basin Desalter Authority CDA for the Agency's operation & maintenance of
the IERCA Composter and CDA Desalter facilities respectively. Also included is $0.6 million for operations & maintenance costs related to the groundwater recharge basins,
net of the Agency's pro-rata share for the recycled water recharge costs. 

Total user charges were $48.7 million, or 97.9 percent of the year to date budget. The category includes monthly sewer charges based on equivalent dwelling units (EDU) of
$39.4 million, $4.6 million non-reclaimable wastewater fees paid by industrial and commercial users connected to the brine line system, and $4.7 million of monthly meter
equivalent unit charges (MEU) imposed on all potable water connections, and Readiness-to-Serve pass-through charges to meet our Readiness-to-Serve obligation to
Metropolitan Water District (MWD).
Property tax receipts through the second quarter totaled $42.9 million, or 115.8% of the year to date budget. General ad-valorem property tax receipts from the San 
Bernardino County Tax Assessor were $25.3 million and former redevelopment agencies (RDA) pass through tax receipts were $17.6 million through December. The second 
payment of "pass through" incremental Redevelopment Agencies (RDA) taxes are due from the county in June. Property tax receipts are budgeted based on valuation 
projected by the county, increased home sales, and anticipated adjustments in property tax distribution due to the dissolution of the redevelopment agencies.

Total Recycled water direct sales were $6.7 million for 13,092 acre feet (AF) and groundwater recharge sales were $5.3 million for 9,273 acre feet (AF). Also included is the
recycled water fixed cost recovery which totaled $0.6 million through December. Combined total recycled water sales is $12.6 million and 22,365 AF. Total deliveries of
32,000 AF (17,000 AF Direct and 15,000 AF Recharge) were budgeted for the fiscal year. Demand for direct use and groundwater recharge varies depending on weather
patterns, water use conservation efforts, reuse supply, and basin availability.

Interest Income was $2.2 million or 118.3 percent through the second quarter. The Agency earns interest income by investing funds not immediately required for daily
operations. The Agency's average portfolio yield for December 2022 was 2.573%. The budgeted interest rate assumption for FY 2022/23 is 1.75% based on the Agency's
overall fund balance which is higher than that of the agency's investment portfolio.

Page 2



3. Actual Operating and Capital Expense vs. Budget:

Quarter Ended December 31, 2022
 % of the Year       
Elapsed:50% 

Adopted
Annual 
Budget  Amended Budget

Budget 
 (YTD)

Actual 
 (YTD)

Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Expenses:

  Employment $56,781,495 $56,781,495 $28,390,748 $27,353,472 $1,037,276 96.3%

  Admin & Operating 74,664,284 89,278,412 44,639,207 31,211,589 $13,427,618 69.9%

  MWD Water Purchases 49,956,000 49,956,000 24,978,000 20,505,329 $4,472,671 82.1%

OPERATING EXPENSES $181,401,779 $196,015,907 $98,007,955 $79,070,390 $18,937,565 80.7%

  Capital 201,575,467 208,682,551 104,341,276 49,207,947 $55,133,328 47.2%

  Debt Service and All Other Expenses 22,033,057 19,593,915 19,593,914 13,362,218 $6,231,696 68.2%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $223,608,524 $228,276,466 $123,935,190 $62,570,165 $61,365,024 50.5%

     Total Expenses $405,010,303 $424,292,373 $221,943,145 $141,640,555 $80,302,589 63.8%

Total expenses were $6.5 million or 92.8 percent of the year to date budget. A major part of this category are the "pass-through" fees from Los Angeles County Sanitation
District (LACSD) and Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) for the Agency's non-reclaimable wastewater system (NRWS).

Expenses through the of the second quarter were $1.7 million or 88.9 percent of the year to date budget. Category budget includes costs for items such as maintenance
parts and consumables, replacements parts for electrical devices, control panels, isolation valves, motors, clarifier panel replacements, and safety equipment. 

Employment expenses were $27.4 million or 96.3 percent of the year to date budget. At the end of the second quarter, total filled regular positions were 276 and 13
limited term positions compared to the 312 authorized positions (302 FTE and 10 LT positions). Recruitment efforts continue to focus on filling key positions and a lower
vacancy factor is expected going forward. The budget includes $7.5 million of payment towards unfunded retirement liabilities with actuals of $4.0 million through
December.

Total expenses were $3.8 million, or 44.3 percent of the year to date budget. The positive variance can be attributed to continued supply challenges and timing of
contracts and services that are anticipated in future quarters, such as basin cleaning, contractor and consultant support for project management, traffic control services,
special studies, and other administrative services.

Total expenses through the second quarter were $0.8 million or 59.4 percent of the year to date budget. The favorable variance is due to lower actual expense for office
supplies, travel, training, seminars, and conferences. Expenditures expected in the coming quarters include Earth Day and career outreach events, safety training, and new
furniture for the Recycled water trailer. Also contributing the variance is the inclusion of $211 thousand of GM contingency budget that serves as a funding source for
unexpected operating expense, and was only partially utilized in the second quarter. 

Professional Fees & Services, 44.3%

Materials & Supplies/Leases/Contribution, 88.9%

The combined O&M and reimbursable project costs were $3.3 million or 30.8 percent of the combined year to date budget. The favorable budget is mainly due to project
deferrals, lower spending for planning documents, various fund emergency projects, other miscellaneous on call projects, timeline extensions, and project scope changes.

Operating Fees, 92.8%

Total utilities expenses were $8.4 million or 116.9 percent of the year to date budget. This category includes the purchase of electricity from Southern California Edison
(SCE), natural gas, and purchase of renewable energy generated on site from solar and wind. Through the second quarter, the average rate for imported electricity was
$0.189/kWh compared to the average budgeted rate of $0.176/kWh.

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) pass-through imported water purchased was $20.5 million or 82.1 percent of the year to date budget.
Imported water deliveries were 24,189 AF compared to the annual budgeted quantity of 60,000 AF. The variance can be attributed to the drought conditions and mandatory
water restrictions imposed by MWD to conserve water.

Utilities, 116.9%

Chemicals, 83.6%

Non-Operating Expenses:

Employment, 96.3%Employment Expenses 
net of allocation to 
projects

Chemical expenses were $3.8 million, or 83.6 percent of the year to date budget. Chemicals are essential in meeting regulatory requirements, treatment process
performance goals, and sustainment of high quality recycled water. Due to price increases for several chemicals it is anticipated this category will utilize the entire
budgeted amount.

O&M and Reimbursable Projects, 29.4% and 61.4%

Administrative & 
Operating Expenses

Office and Administrative, 59.4%

Biosolids expenses through the end of the second quarter were $2.0 million or 82.0 percent of the year to date budget. Total shipped to IERCA was 35,712 tons with a
hauling rate of $59 per ton. The biosolids budget includes costs for hauling and disposal of biosolids and non-biological materials. Tonnage of the Agency's biosolids
generated from all its water recycling facilities. 

MWD Water Purchases, 82.1%

Biosolids Recycling, 82%

Page 3



Financial Expenses

Other Expenses

Capital Expenses

Capital Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN19006 67,000,000                  20,674,699                30.9%

EN19001 40,000,000                  15,094,053                37.7%

RW15003 13,246,410                  4,106,429                  31.0%

EN17006 9,000,000                    171,638                     1.9%

EN11039 8,270,000                    1,264,141                  15.3%

O&M & Reimbursable Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN16021 1,985,700                    15,192                       0.8%

PA22002 1,118,485                    323,432                     28.9%

PA22003 645,620                       53,365                       8.3%

PA17006 583,910                       3,293                         0.6%

The project will evaluate and replace the pumps with a more durable system. It will also provide an automatic stand-by pump at each delivery points. The RP-1 Disinfection
Project is in construction. The contractor had some issues with a paving subcontractor that caused a delay in completing the new parking lot. This is a critical path activity
that was required completion prior to construction beginning on the new sodium hypochlorite facility.

Agency-Wide Coatings
Most of the Agency's process piping is aging and requires periodic rehab or repairs.  This project will ensure coating and painting for each facility is properly maintained. 
Regional Plant 1 Coating and Painting is currently 36 percent complete.  

Recharge Master Plan
Per the approved 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU), IEUA and CBWM agreed to implement the seven (7) recommended new projects which
have been selected by the RMPU Steering Committee to enhance stormwater yield for nine (9) groundwater recharge basins. The basins considered for yield enhancement
are: SCI, Wineville, Jurupa, RP3, Victoria, Turner, Ely, and Montclair basins. The Victoria basin is fully completed. Wineville and Jurupa construction is 59% complete, and
RP3 improvements construction is 99% complete. Montclair is construction bid was delayed due to additional required CDWF permits.

CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements
Project will provide process improvements to the preliminary , primary, and secondary treatments including the replacements of the existing headworks, the odor control
system, and the aeration blowers. Project has been delayed due to pending approval of the addition of the ammonia control design, and the issuance of the AQMD permits.
Project is out for Bid with construction award by February 2023.

RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements

Most of the Agency's paved areas are aging and require periodic rehab or repairs. This project will ensure paving for each facility is properly maintained. The project design
has been completed. Construction bid pending until  design for PA22003.01 is complete.  The projects will be bid together.

RP-5 Solids Handling Facility
Design of the offsite pump stations and Radio Tower is ongoing. Completed all digester roofs and digester building roof. Completed the Thickening Building second floor
walls. Completed Dewatering Building block wall installation. Installation of Boiler Building Block walls complete. Construction schedule delayed due to extensive conflict
with buried utilities. 

RP-5 Expansion to 31 mgd
Design of the offsite pump stations and Radio Tower is ongoing. Influent Pump Station walls completed and completed deck slab. Continue Membrane Bioreactor Phase 1
installing mechanical piping. Power Center 4, 6, and 9 continued installing electrical equipment and interior building systems, 80% complete. Installing center columns on
both Primary Clarifiers. Completed concrete structure on the Fine Screens facility and installed the conveyor support structure. Continued the Title 22 Engineering Report
for the permit changes based on the Membrane Bioreactor system.

Agency Wide Paving

TCE Plume Cleanup

The Project is a remedial solution to the South Archibald TCE plume by strengthen CDA's groundwater supply infrastructure to capture and treat the contamination. Design 
and construction of the project are completed. IEUA and CDA are currently coordinating on the next steps to meet ongoing progress reports for Prop 68 & Prop 1 funding. 
Also, IEUA and CDA are evaluating the need of additional monitoring wells. IEUA is working with West Yost to perform a particle analysis to model groundwater flows to 
determine the need of constructing additional monitoring wells.  Additional sampling has been requested by the State. The contract and permit has been establish and will 
be spending will occur in the future. This task is scheduled to be completed by March 2024.

Other Expenses, 100%

Financial Expense, 67.6%
Total financial expenses were $13.0 million or 67.6 percent of the year to date budget. Actual costs include $6.0 million of principal payments for the 2017A Bond and
various State Revolving Fund loans. Total interest and financial administration fees were $7.0 million. 

 Summary of major capital and non-capital project expenses and status as of December 31, 2022

Agency Wide Aeration
Replacement of aeration panels for each aeration basins/trains at the RP1, RP4, CCWRF, and RP5. The project budget will be available to support improvements in the
Aeration Basins at all of our treatment facilities.  Funds will be utilized as opportunities arise.

Total other expenses were $0.4 million or 100.0 percent of the year to date budget. The category expense includes the annual contribution-in-aid to the Santa Ana
Watershed Project Authority and other miscellaneous expense. 

Total capital project expenditures were $49.2 million or 47.2 percent of the year to date budget. The favorable variance can be attributed material procurement and
contract award delays, project scope and design adjustments, equipment procurement, delivery, and field assessment delays. Capital project budget related to the
Regional Wastewater program is $157.8 million, or 76 percent of the $208.7 million annual project budget. 

Capital Costs, 47.2%

Page 4



























Exhibit C-1

Fund Fund Name Date Cost Center GL Account Category
Amt 

Transfer Out Cost Center GL Account Category
Amount 

Transfer In Description QTR

11/2/2022 151151 545110 Utilities $30,000 140100 512351
Office & 

Administration 
Expenses

$30,000
Transfer of funds will be used to pay for courier services that picks up 
samples from the facilities and delivers to the Lab. Since the Lab is at HQ, 
RP-1 will fully pay for the courier services. 

2

11/14/2022 120100 520980 Professional Fees & 
Services

$10,000 120100 511320
Office & 

Administration 
Expenses

$10,000 Transfer of funds will be used to purchase service award pins and materials. 2

512010 $2,500 512010 $2,500 2
511220 $100 511220 $100 2
513020 $700 513020 $700 2

545310 $13,491 545310 $13,491

545311 $54,062 545311 $54,062

12/19/2022 120100 520980 Professional Fees & 
Services

$700 120100 511320
Office & 

Administration 
Expenses

$700 Transfer of funds to cover the costs for service award pins, plaques, and 
award supplies. 

2

520980 Prof. fees & Services $2,500

511340
Office & 

Administration 
Expenses

$2,500

10600 Recycled Water 12/7/2022 124100 570005 O&M Project Budget $225,000 124100 520980 Prof. fees & Services $225,000 Transfer of funds from Project#PL23010 - Recycled Water Diversion to 
Professional Fees and Services due to project being discontinued.

2

10700 Water Resources 12/8/2022 124100 570005 O&M Project Budget $225,000 124100 520980 Prof. fees & Services $225,000 Transfer of funds from Project#PL23011 - Recycled Water Diversion to 
Professional Fees and Services due to project being discontinued.

2

Total O&M Transfers 
Out $566,553

Total O&M 
Transfers In $566,553

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Inter-Departmental / Division Transfers FY 2022/23

Budget Transfer

TRANSFER FROM TRANSFER TO

10200 Administrative Services

11/21/2022 112100 110100

11510012/14/2022 Utilities 118100

Office & 
Administration 

Expenses

Office & 
Administration 

Expenses
Transfer of funds due to the organization restructuring. 

Transfer of funds to assist in the transition of responsibility for the 
replacement of existing Agency phones and issuing new phones to new 
employees. 

2Utilities

212/19/2022 120100 120100 Transfer of funds to cover the costs for office constructiuon. 521080 Professional Fees & 
Services

$5,000



Exhibit C-2

Date From Expense Account Amount 
Transfer Out

Receiver Fund 
Name

Receiver Fund 
Center Name

Receiver 
Project / 
Expense 
Account

Receiver Project / 
Expense Account 

Name

Amount 
Transfer In Balance Justification

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2022 $250,000
Balance, September 30, 2022 $28,900 $221,100

511120
Employee Training 

and Seminars $1,200

512350
Postage and 

Delivery Charges $400
513010 Meeting Expenses $8,000

Balance, December 31, 2022 $9,600 $211,500

Administrative Services program 38,500          
Recharge Water program -                 
Non-Reclaimable Wastewater program -                 
Recycled Water program -                 
Regional Wastewater O&M program -                 
Regional Wastewater Capital program -                 
Water Resources program -                 

Total GM Contingency Transfers 38,500          

GM Contingency Transfers Summary by Fund

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
FY 2022/23 General Manager Contingency Account Activity

Budget Transfer

11/21/2022 GM Contingency $9,600 Administrative 
Services

Board of 
Directors

The budget transfer is to due to the 
organization restructuring. 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Changes in Total Project Budget: Inter-Departmental/Division Capital & O&M Transfers FY 2021/22

Exhibit D

Fund Transfer 
Date

Project 
Number Project Title

Adopted Total 
Project (TP) 

Budget

Prior TP 
Changes in 
Current FY

Amt. of 
Transfer In / 

(Out)
New TP Budget Annual Project 

Budget

Annual Proj. 
Budget 
Change

New Annual 
Project 
Budget

Project 
Transferred 
To/(From)

Justification

IS22001 Telephone System Upgrade $150,000 $0 ($40,000) $110,000 $75,000 ($40,000) $35,000 IS23002

IS23002 SAP Users Licenses $0 $0 $40,000 $40,000 $0 $40,000 $40,000 IS22001

Subtotal General Administrative (GG): $150,000 $150,000 $75,000 $75,000

EN23087 New Recycle Water PDR $1,000,000 $0 ($15,000) $985,000 $100,000 ($15,000) $85,000 EN23040

EN23040 Turner Basin 1 Turnout 
Fencing $0 $0 $15,000 $15,000 $0 $15,000 $15,000 EN23087

EN23087 New Recycle Water PDR $985,000 $0 ($30,000) $955,000 $85,000 ($30,000) $55,000 EN23043

EN23043 HQ/Lab New Potable Water 
Connection $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000 $0 $30,000 $30,000 EN23087

Subtotal Recycled Water (WC): $1,985,000 $1,985,000 $185,000 $185,000

Adopted Amended Adopted Amended
$2,135,000 $2,135,000 $260,000 $260,000

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $0 N/A ($2,000) ($2,000) EN20008

EN20008 HQ Parking Lot FY19/20 $590,000 $13,654 $2,000 $605,654 $15,000 $2,000 $17,000 N/A

Subtotal General Administrative (GG): $590,000 $605,654 $15,000 $15,000

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $0 N/A ($40,000) ($40,000) EN22055

EN22055 WC On-Call/Small Projects 
FY 21/22 $90,000 $0 $40,000 $130,000 $66,307 $40,000 $106,307 N/A

WR21029 Implement. of Upper SAR 
HCP - Recy Water $250,000 $0 ($225,000) $25,000 $250,000 ($225,000) $25,000 PL23010

PL23010 Recycled Water Diversion 
Modeling - Deve $0 $0 $225,000 $225,000 $0 $225,000 $225,000 WR21029

Subtotal Recycled Water (WC): $340,000 $380,000 $316,307 $316,307

WU22001 WUE General Program $788,695 $0 ($250,000) $538,695 $788,695 ($250,000) $538,695 WU23020

WU23020 Residential Turf Replacement 
Rebates $385,225 $0 $250,000 $635,225 $385,225 $250,000 $635,225 WU22001

Capital Projects

10200 10/11/22
This budget transfer is to assist the Agency's plans for staffing increases to 
fill vacancies and upcoming sucession planning. New licenses are needed 
to accommodate new hires. 

10600

11/2/22
This budget transfer is needed to install a new fence enclosure to Turner 
Basin 1 RW Turnout due to the on-going vadalism. This new project 
should provide safety and deter/prevent future theft and vandalism. 

11/7/22

This budget transfer is needed to install a new PVC tee and valve on the 
existing 2" potable line in order to feed all restrooms at HQ A, HQ B, and 
Lab Buildings in cases where the reclaimed water line is down, which will 
add an air gap to prevent back-flow or cross contamination between the 
potable water and recalimed water lines.

To transfer funds from 127100-10200-100000-520920 Professional Fees 
and Services into the HQ Parking Lot FY19/20 for FY 22/23. The 
transfer is to cover labor costs for final close out. This project is now 
closed, and no further costs should be incurred.

Capital Total Project Budget Total Annual Capital Budget

O&M Projects

10200 11/9/22

10600

11/7/22

To transfer funds from 127100-10200-100000-520920 Professional Fees 
and Services into the HQ Parking Lot FY19/20 for FY 22/23. The 
transfer is to cover labor costs for final close out. This project is now 
closed, and no further costs should be incurred.

11/15/22 To transfer funds from Project#WR21029 to cover expenses for a newly 
created Project#23010 in FY 22/23.

11/2/22 To transfer funds from Project#WU22001 to cover expenses for a newly 
created Project#WU23020 in FY 22/23.



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Changes in Total Project Budget: Inter-Departmental/Division Capital & O&M Transfers FY 2021/22

Exhibit D

Fund Transfer 
Date

Project 
Number Project Title

Adopted Total 
Project (TP) 

Budget

Prior TP 
Changes in 
Current FY

Amt. of 
Transfer In / 

(Out)
New TP Budget Annual Project 

Budget

Annual Proj. 
Budget 
Change

New Annual 
Project 
Budget

Project 
Transferred 
To/(From)

Justification

WR21028 Implement. of Upper SAR 
HCP - Wtr Benefit $250,000 $0 ($225,000) $25,000 $250,000 ($225,000) $25,000 PL23011

PL23011 Recycled Water Diversion 
Modeling $0 $0 $225,000 $225,000 $0 $225,000 $225,000 WR21028

PL23005 WW Planning Documents $250,000 $0 ($100,000) $150,000 $250,000 ($100,000) $150,000 PL23012

PL23012 Reg Imported Supply 
Reliability Analysis $0 $0 $100,000 $100,000 $0 $100,000 $100,000 PL23005

WU23020 Residential Turf Replacement 
Rebates $635,225 $0 ($100,000) $535,225 $635,225 ($100,000) $535,225 WU23019

WU23019 CIl Turf Replacement Rebates $180,000 ($782) $100,000 $279,218 $179,218 $100,000 $279,218 WU23020

Subtotal Water Resources (WW): $2,489,145 $2,488,363 $2,488,363 $2,488,363

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $0 N/A ($40,000) ($40,000) EN20038

EN20038 Agency Wide Pavement 
Management Study $300,000 $0 $40,000 $340,000 $21,921 $40,000 $61,921 N/A

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $0 N/A ($95,000) ($95,000) EN19023

EN19023 Asset Management Planning 
Document $977,036 $124,110 $95,000 $1,196,146 $400,976 $95,000 $495,976 N/A

Subtotal Regional Wastewater Operations & Maint. (RO): $1,277,036 $1,536,146 $422,897 $422,897

Adopted Amended Adopted Amended
$4,696,181 $5,010,163 $3,242,568 $3,242,568

10700

To transfer funds from Project#PL23012 to cover expenses for a newly 
created Project#PL23012 in FY 22/23.

Transfer of funds is required to meet the increasing demand for the MWD 
commercial socalwatersmart.com turf replacement rebates.

11/22/22

11/22/22

11/22/22 To transfer funds from Project#WR21028 to cover expenses for a newly 
created Project#PL23011 in FY 22/23.

10800

11/7/22

Transfer from the Engineering Department RO Fund Professional Fees 
and Services Budget to the RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades, 
EN22032.  The additional budget amendment request is for staff time and 
project overhead costs.

11/7/22

Transfer from the Engineering Department RO Fund Professional Fees 
and Services Budget to the RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades, 
EN22032.  The additional budget amendment request is for staff time and 
project overhead costs.

O&M Total Project Budget Total Annual O&M Project Budget

















INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4L 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

March 15, 2023

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended January 31, 2023 is submitted
in a format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of January 2023, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $490,552,978
reflects an decrease of $6,777,782 compared to the total of $497,330,760 reported for December
2022. The decrease can be attributed primarily to the RP-5 Expansion and other capital project
expenditures. The average days cash on hand for the month ended January 2023 decreased from
325 to 311 days.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in January 2023 was 2.999 percent, an
increase of 0.426 percent compared to the December 2022 yield of 2.573 percent. The change in
yield is mainly attributed to market conditions and an increased earnings yield in the Local
Agency Investment Fund and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) accounts.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended January 31, 2023 is an
information item for the Board of Director's review

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

03/08/23Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On February 15, 2023 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs
for the month ended December 31, 2022.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

23056





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/




https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/








INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

January December Variance

Investments
   Agency Managed

Total Agency Managed Investments

PFM Managed

Total PFM Managed Investments

Total Investments

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency

Restricted Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $490,552,978 $497,330,760 ($6,777,782)
**Total reported as of Dec 2022 (incl. adjusted beg. balances)

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Other Cash and Bank Accounts

US Bank Pre-Investment Money Market Account

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,190,365

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $146,375,161

Brokered Certificates of Deposit

Supra-National Agency Bonds

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Subtotal PFM Managed Investment Accounts $114,556,470

Total Investments $260,931,631

Restricted Deposits

   Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Restricted Deposits Continued

2020B Construction Project Accounts

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

CalPERS 

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of January 31, 2023 $490,552,978

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease)

**Total reported as of Dec 2022 (incl. adjusted beg. balances)

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)

US Bank (USB)
(Investment Mgmt.)
(Debt Service)

Petty Cash

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,190,365 $2,190,365 $2,190,365 $2,190,365

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

LAIF Accounts

CAMP Accounts

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $146,375,161 $146,375,161 $146,375,161 3.97% $146,375,161

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Investments (continued)

US Treasury Note

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Supra-National Agency Bond

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

Subtotal PFM Managed Investment Accounts $116,188,000 $114,587,016 $114,556,470 1.764% $109,039,467

Total Investments $262,563,161 $260,962,177 $260,931,631 $255,414,628
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Total Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

Total Bond and Note Accounts

2020B Construction Project Account

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $55,740,275 $55,740,275 $55,740,275 2.831% $55,740,275

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies 

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
**Total reported as of Dec 2022 (incl. adjusted beg. balances)

CalPERS Deposits

CERBT Strategy 2 Performance as of November 30.2022 based on 1 year net return was -13.78%
 Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits $222,651,688 $222,651,688 $227,430,982 $227,430,982

$487,405,214 $485,804,230 $490,552,978 $485,035,975
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted 
Deposits as of January 31,2023

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

January Purchases

Total Purchases 6,100,000$       

January Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 5,430,000$       

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
January 31, 2023

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield

Total Investment Portfolio $260,931,631
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 2.999%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $229,621,347
Average Yield of Other Accounts 3.516%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $490,552,978

*Petty Cash

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended January 31, 2023
Agency Investment Portfolio (Net of Escrow Accounts)

$480,046,777

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 1.81%

Restricted 
Accounts (net of 
escrow), 45.19%

LAIF -
Unrestricted, 

4.70%

Medium Term 
Notes, 4.34%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.38% Other Accounts, 

0.46%
U.S. Government 

Sponsored 
Entities, 4.53%

US Treasuries, 
13.81%

CAMP -
Unrestricted, 

23.98%

Supra-National , 
0.35%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.45%

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended January 31, 2023
Unrestricted Agency Investment Portfolio

$260,931,631

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 3.33%

Local Agency 
Investment Fund, 

8.65%

Medium Term 
Notes, 7.99%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.69%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.82%

U.S. Government 
Sponsored Entities, 

8.34%

US Treasuries, 
25.42%

Supra-National, 
0.64%

CAMP, 44.12%

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended January 31, 2023
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities Portfolio

$21,766,903

Fannie Mae Bonds, 
67.05%

Freddie Mac 
Bonds, 23.71%

Federal Home Loan 
Bank Bonds, 9.24%

14



$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

$160,000,000

0-30 Days 31-180 Days 181-365
Days

366-730
Days

2 to 3 Years Over 3 Yrs

LAIF+CAMP $137,702,848
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $8,672,313
GSE+CD+MTN+MUNI $0 $2,838,771 14,019,095 21,217,887 45,097,895 31,382,822
Percent 56.10% 1.09% 5.37% 8.13% 17.28% 12.03%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended January 31, 2023
Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)

$260,931,631

15



0.821% 0.861%

2.573%
2.999%

-0.430%

-1.860%

0.060%

1.050%

0.278% 0.365%

2.173%
2.425%

0.638% 0.847%

4.721% 4.845%

-2.000%
-1.500%
-1.000%
-0.500%
0.000%
0.500%
1.000%
1.500%
2.000%
2.500%
3.000%
3.500%
4.000%
4.500%
5.000%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended January 31, 2023
Agency Investment Portfolio Yield Comparison

Agency Yield Merrill Lynch 1-5 US Treasury Index LAIF Yield 6 Months T-Bill

16



        AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

  REPORTS 

5A 



S A W P A 
 
 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF AB 361, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY WITH 

THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT.  ALL VOTES TAKEN WILL BE CONDUCTED BY ORAL 
ROLL CALL. 

This meeting will be accessible as follows: 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom)*: Meeting Access Via Telephone: 
• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/87028603420 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 870 2860 3420 • Meeting ID: 870 2860 3420 

*Participation in the meeting via the Zoom app (a free download) is strongly 
encouraged. 

 

 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2023 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Bruce Whitaker, Vice Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, 
no action may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
Government Code §54954.2(b). 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by 
the Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: FEBRUARY 7, 2023 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. SOLVE THE WATER CRISIS PRESENTATION BY WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT (CM#2023.10) 
Presenter:  Mike Gardner 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 

B. UPDATED PROCUREMENT POLICY AND PURCHASING AUTHORITY (CM#2023.11) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
Recommendation:  Approve the updated PRO110 – Procurement Policy and 
Purchasing Authority. 
 
 

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/87028603420


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

February 21, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 

C. FYE 2024 AND 2025 OWOW AND ROUNDTABLE FUND DRAFT BUDGETS 
(CM#2023.12) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
Recommendation:  Review and discuss the Draft FYE 2024 and 2025 OWOW and 
Roundtable Fund Budgets. 
 

D. BROWN ACT REMOTE MEETING GUIDELINES (CM#2023.13) 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
Recommendation:  Receive for information. 

 
A. CASH TRANSACTIONS REPORT – DECEMBER 2022 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

B. INTER-FUND BORROWING – DECEMBER 2022 (CM#2023.14) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

C. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS/FINANCIAL REPORTING – DECEMBER 2022 
(CM#2023.15) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
D. PROJECT AGREEMENT 25 – OWOW FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT,  

NOVEMBER 2022  
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
E. PROJECT AGREEMENT 26 – ROUNDTABLE FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, 

NOVEMBER 2022 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

F. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 

 
G. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT 

Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
 

H. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 
 

I. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 

J. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

There were no Closed Session items anticipated at the time of the posting of this agenda. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

  



SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

February 21, 2023 
Page 3 

 

 

PLEASE NOTE: 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call (951) 354-4220 
or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at www.sawpa.org, subject to 
staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
Declaration of Posting 
I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on February 16, 2023, a copy of this agenda has 
been uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 
 

 

2023 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/3/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/7/23 Commission Workshop 
2/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/7/23 Commission Workshop 
3/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/4/23 Commission Workshop 
4/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/2/23 Commission Workshop 
5/16/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/9 – 5/11/23 ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey, CA 

June 
6/6/23 Commission Workshop 
6/20/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/4/23 Commission Workshop 
7/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/1/23 Commission Workshop 
8/15/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/5/23 Commission Workshop 
9/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/3/23 Commission Workshop 
10/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/7/23 Commission Workshop 
11/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
11/28 – 11/30/23 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

December 
12/5/23 Commission Workshop 
12/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting  
 

 

 

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


S A W P A 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom): Meeting Access Via Telephone: 
• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/83148503884 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 831 4850 3884 • Meeting ID: 831 4850 3884 

 

 
 
This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above.  As a convenience to the public, members of 
the public may also participate virtually using one of the options set forth above. Any member of the public may 
listen to the meeting or make comments to the Commission using the call-in number or Zoom link above.  However, 
in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Authority from broadcasting the meeting to members 
of the public, the meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without remote participation.  The 
remote participation option is provided as a convenience to the public and is not required.  Members of the public 
are welcome to attend the meeting in-person. 
 
 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, MARCH 7, 2023 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Bruce Whitaker, Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, no action may be 
taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by Government Code §54954.2(b). 
Members of the public may make comments in-person or electronically for the Commissions’ consideration by sending them to 
publiccomment@sawpa.org with the subject line “Public Comment”. Submit your electronic comments by 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 
March 6, 2023. All public comments will be provided to the Chair and may be read into the record or compiled as part of the record. 
Individuals have a limit of three (3) minutes to make comments and will have the opportunity when called upon by the Commission. 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 

Pursuant to Government Code §54954.2(b), items may be added on which there is a need to take immediate action and the need 
for action came to the attention of the SAWPA Commission subsequent to the posting of the agenda. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by the 
Commission by one motion as listed below. 
 
A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: FEBRUARY 21, 2023 

Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

B. TREASURER’S REPORT:  JANUARY 2023 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

  

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/83148503884


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

March 7, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. FYE 2024 AND 2025 GENERAL FUND DRAFT BUDGET (CM#2023.16) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 
Recommendation:  To review and discuss the Draft FYE 2024 and 2025 General Fund 
Budget. 
 

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
Recommendation:  Receive for information. 

 
A. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 

 
B. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
C. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

There were no Closed Session items anticipated at the time of the posting of this agenda. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call (951) 354-4220 
or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at www.sawpa.org, subject to 
staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
Declaration of Posting 
I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on March 2, 2023, a copy of this agenda has been 
uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 

 

2023 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/3/23 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/7/23 Commission Workshop 
2/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/7/23 Commission Workshop 
3/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/4/23 Commission Workshop 
4/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/2/23 Commission Workshop 
5/16/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/9 – 5/11/23 ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey, CA 

June 
6/6/23 Commission Workshop 
6/20/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/4/23 Commission Workshop 
7/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/1/23 Commission Workshop 
8/15/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/5/23 Commission Workshop 
9/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/3/23 Commission Workshop 
10/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/7/23 Commission Workshop 
11/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
11/28 – 11/30/23 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

December 
12/5/23 Commission Workshop 
12/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting  
 

 

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


        AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

  REPORTS 

5B 



Tuesday, February 28, 2023
Meeting Schedule

Special Board Meeting - Final

February 28, 2023

1:00 PM

10:00 a.m. LRPPBM
11:30 a.m. Break
12:00 p.m. Exec
01:00 p.m. Sp BOD

Agendas, live streaming, meeting schedules, and other board materials are available 
here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. A listen only phone line is 
available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 831 5177 2466. Members of the public 
may present their comments to the Board or a Committee on matters within their 
jurisdiction as listed on the agenda via in-person or teleconference. To participate 
via teleconference (833) 548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276.

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board limited 
to the items listed on agenda. (As required by Gov. Code §54954.3(a))

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

5. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-2025Approve Committee Assignments

B. 21-1953Adopt resolution authorizing remote teleconference meetings 
pursuant to the Brown Act Section 54953(e) for meetings of 
Metropolitan’s legislative bodies for a period of 30 days; the 
General Manager has determined that this proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA

02282023 Sp BOD 5A ResolutionAttachments:

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

6. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

NONE

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3125
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3053
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bbf80cab-9a0b-4dc6-a700-6895be67d608.pdf


Special Board Meeting February 28, 2023

Page 2 

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE: Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by 
one or more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors. The committee 
designation appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g. (EOT). Committee agendas 
may be obtained from the Board Executive Secretary. 

Writings relating to open session agenda items distributed to Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting 
are available for public inspection at Metropolitan's Headquarters Building and on Metropolitan's Web site 
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx.

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Board Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to 
ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online and Boardroom



Tuesday, March 14, 2023
Meeting Schedule

Board of Directors - Final

March 14, 2023

12:00 PM

09:00 a.m. OWS
11:00 a.m. EIA
11:30 a.m. Break
12:00 p.m. BOD
01:00 p.m. EOP Wksp

Agendas, live streaming, meeting schedules, and other board materials are available 
here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx. A listen only phone line is 
available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 891 1613 4145. Members of the public 
may present their comments to the Board or a Committee on matters within their 
jurisdiction as listed on the agenda via in-person or teleconference. To participate 
via teleconference (833) 548-0276 and enter meeting ID: 815 2066 4276.

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

a. Invocation: TBD

b. Pledge of Allegiance: Director David D. De Jesus, Three Valleys Municipal 
Water District

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction. (As required by Gov. Code 
§54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-1954Report on Directors' Events Attended at Metropolitan's Expense

03142023 BOD 5A ReportAttachments:

B. 21-1955Chair's Monthly Activity Report

C. 21-1956General Manager's summary of activities

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3054
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5c647f4c-9ec7-4dfb-bd98-59e9ae7eac34.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3055
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3056


Board of Directors March 14, 2023

Page 2 

D. 21-1957General Counsel's summary of activities

03142023 BOD 5D ReportAttachments:

E. 21-1958General Auditor's summary of activities

F. 21-1959Ethics Officer's summary of activities

G. 21-2018Presentation of Commendatory Resolution honoring Director Gloria 
D. Gray, West Basin Municipal Water District for her leadership 
during her term as Chair of Metropolitan’s Board of Directors

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-1960Approval of the Minutes of the Special Board of the Directors 
Meeting for January 17, 2023 and Minutes of the Board of the 
Directors Meeting for February 13, 2023 (Copies have been 
submitted to each Director, any additions, corrections, or 
omissions)

B. 21-2017Approve Commendatory Resolutions for Directors Phillip D. 
Hawkins and Robert Apodaca both representing Central Basin 
Municipal Water District; Randy Record representing Eastern 
Municipal Water District; Steve Blois representing Calleguas 
Municipal Water District; Satoru Tamaribuchi representing 
Municipal Water District of Orange County; and Harold C. Williams 
representing West Basin Municipal Water District

C. 21-1961Approve Committee Assignments

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

7-1 21-1963Adopt the Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Resolution to the Master 
Bond Resolution authorizing the issuance of up to $330 million of 
Water Revenue Bonds, 2023 Series; and approve expenditures to 
fund the costs of issuance of the Bonds; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (FAIRP)

03132023 FAIRP 7-1 B-LAttachments:

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3057
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=44c76d5c-c39a-4707-a10c-0347ad692785.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3058
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3059
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3118
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3060
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3117
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3061
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3063
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7f38a160-1cbd-404e-9042-97ec85cc7c6e.pdf


Board of Directors March 14, 2023

Page 3 

7-2 21-1962Authorize the General Manager to issue a new fifty-year license 
agreement, with options to extend for up to fifty additional years, to 
DesertXpress Enterprises, LLC for the purpose of a high-speed rail 
line traversing Metropolitan property in the city of Fontana, 
California; the General Manager has determined that the proposed 
action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (FAIRP)

03142023 FAIRP 7-2 B-LAttachments:

7-3 21-1964Authorize agreement with Black & Veatch Corporation, Inc. in an 
amount not to exceed $8 million for the preliminary design of 
conveyance Reach 1 of the Pure Water Southern California 
program; authorize agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. in an 
amount not to exceed $9 million for preliminary design of 
conveyance Reach 2 of the Pure Water Southern California 
program; and adopt a resolution to support a grant application to 
the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for water recycling and 
desalination planning and authorize the General Manager to accept 
the grant if awarded; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed actions are exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
(EOT)

03142023 EOT 7-3 B-LAttachments:

7-4 21-1965Authorize an increase of $500,000 in change order authority for the 
contract to replace the overhead bridge cranes at the five Colorado 
River Aqueduct pumping plants; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (EOT)

03142023 EOT 7-4 B-LAttachments:

7-5 21-1966Authorize on-call agreements with Fugro USA Land, Inc., 
GeoPentech, Inc., Geosyntec Consultants, Inc., and Kleinfelder 
West, Inc., in amounts not to exceed $3 million each, for a 
maximum of five years for geotechnical engineering services; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EOT)

03142023 EOT 7-5 B-LAttachments:

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3062
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8f9bb40e-ae59-4dc9-a08a-8e8d59212c12.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3064
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=71a94474-4f95-48d5-992a-314f76236084.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3065
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46d66d92-7f1d-427b-bb7e-aa9b0d7dfd4a.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3066
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2914e586-19e7-403d-ad0d-4ab93e59854b.pdf


Board of Directors March 14, 2023

Page 4 

7-6 21-1967Award a $394,534 contract to Slater Waterproofing, Inc. to 
rehabilitate concrete walls within the ozone contactor structure at 
the Robert A. Skinner Water Treatment Plant; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA (EOT)

03142023 EOT 7-6 B-LAttachments:

7-7 21-1968Adopt Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Copper Basin 
Discharge Valve Replacement and Access Road Improvements 
Project and take related CEQA actions (EOT)

03142023 EOT 7-7 B-LAttachments:

7-8 21-1969Authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with 
Western Municipal Water District, Rubidoux Community Services 
District, West Valley Water District, and San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District to provide Rubidoux Community Services 
District assistance with water deliveries; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (OWS)

03142023 OWS 7-8 B-LAttachments:

7-9 21-1970Consider changes to the Water Shortage Emergency Condition 
and the Emergency Water Conservation Program for the State 
Water Project dependent area and reaffirm the Regional Drought 
Emergency for all member agencies; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (OWS)

03142023 OWS 7-9 B-LAttachments:

7-10 21-1971Approve The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California's 
salary schedules pursuant to CalPERS regulations; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA (EOP)

7-11 21-1972Adopt CalPERS Resolutions for Paying and Reporting the Value of 
Employer Paid Member Contributions; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (EOP)

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3067
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=515187b0-f177-44bc-a476-35832c629559.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3068
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d98112bb-0199-4fee-8b73-1c20360896be.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3069
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1a43677e-9109-41fa-9894-51a822bda817.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3070
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4718c2da-4800-4fe7-b493-5affb26f9d30.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3071
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3072


Board of Directors March 14, 2023

Page 5 

7-12 21-1973Approve proposed amendment to Administrative Code section 
6471 to increase the amount of the Ethics Officer’s authority to 
obtain professional services for external investigations from 
$50,000 to $100,000; the General Manager has determined that 
the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA 
(EOP)

7-13 21-1974Authorize an increase in the maximum amount payable under 
contract with Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP for legal services 
related to general real estate and leasing law issues by $100,000 
to a maximum amount payable of $200,000; the General Manager 
has determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA (LC)

03142023 LC 7-13 B-LAttachments:

7-14 21-1975Authorize increase of $100,000, to a maximum amount payable of 
$400,000, for existing General Counsel contract with Olson 
Remcho LLP to provide general government law advice related to 
the Political Reform Act, the Fair Political Practices Commission 
regulations, conflict of interest law and other legislative and ethics 
matters; the General Manager has determined the proposed action 
is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (LC)

03142023 LC 7-14 B-LAttachments:

7-15 21-1976Approve amendments to the Metropolitan Water District 
Administrative Code to provide for the implementation of new 
legislation authorizing the use of alternative project delivery 
methods; adopt an organizational conflict-of-interest policy 
governing the solicitation of a design-build or progressive 
design-build project; and authorize an increase in the maximum 
amount payable under contract with Hanson Bridgett LLP, for legal 
services related to implementation of new legislation, by $150,000 
for an amount not-to-exceed $250,000; the General Manager has 
determined the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject 
to CEQA (LC)

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3073
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3074
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aa48e9dd-d935-4b98-b901-2c128efd7335.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3075
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=60a47d6f-ab25-4ca7-a4ec-0eb71a73c233.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3076


Board of Directors March 14, 2023

Page 6 

7-16 21-2026Report on litigation in Darren A. Reese v. Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, Riverside County Superior Court 
Case No. CVPS2204312; and authorize increase in maximum 
amount payable under contract for legal services with Seyfarth 
Shaw LLP in the amount of $(TBD) for a total amount not to 
exceed $(TBD); the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA  
[Conference with legal counsel - existing litigation; to be heard in 
closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)] (LC)

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

NONE

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-1977Conservation Program Board Report

03142023 BOD 9-1 ReportAttachments:

9-2 21-1978Information on the High Desert Water Bank Program status, 
updated costs, and water quality

03142023 OWS 9-2 B-LAttachments:

10. OTHER MATTERS

NONE

11. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

NONE

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3126
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3077
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=100a0896-d483-4cb0-a30b-ce2f25329fcf.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3078
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b505b94-da40-4ab4-aa1a-19b99ba231a9.pdf


Board of Directors March 14, 2023

Page 7 

NOTE: Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by 
one or more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors. The committee 
designation appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g. (EOT). Committee agendas 
may be obtained from the Board Executive Secretary.  

Writings relating to open session agenda items distributed to Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting 
are available for public inspection at Metropolitan's Headquarters Building and on Metropolitan's Web site 
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx.

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Board Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to 
ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online and Boardroom



        AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

 REPORTS 

5C 



 

 
Regional Sewerage Program  
Policy Committee Meeting 

 
AGENDA 

Thursday, March 2, 2023 
3:30 p.m. 

Teleconference Call 
 

Agency Headquarters – Board Room 
6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A 

Chino, CA 91708 
Telephone Access: (415) 856-9169/Conf ID: 966 283 115# 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by joining in person or by 
calling the number provided above.  Comments may also be submitted by email to the Recording 

Secretary Laura Mantilla at lmantilla@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of 
the meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Policy Members. 

 
   

 
Call to Order 
 
Roll Call 
 
Flag Salute 
 
Public Comment 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Committee; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

 
Additions to the Agenda 

 
 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 
(Continued) 

 

mailto:lmantilla@ieua.org


Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda 
March 2, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

 
1. Technical Committee Report (Oral)  

 
2. Action Item  

A. Approval of November 3, 2022 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes  
B. Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility Asset Management and 

Improvements Construction Contract Award 
 

3. Informational Items 
A. Regional Contract Negotiation Update (Oral)  

 
4. Receive and File 

A. Building Activity Report 
B. Recycled Water Distribution – Operations Summary  
 

5. Other Business 
A. IEUA General Manager’s Update  
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting 
C. Committee Member Comments  
D. Next Meeting – TBD 

 
 
Adjourn  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 
I, Laura Mantilla, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water District, hereby certify 
that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the Agency’s main office, 6075 
Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least seventy-two (72) hours 
prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact Laura Mantilla at (909) 993-1944 or lmantilla@ieua.org 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:lmantilla@ieua.org


        AGENCY 
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

  REPORTS 

5D 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING 

11:00 a.m. – February 23, 2023 
Mr. Jim Curatalo, Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair 
Mr. Bob Kuhn, Secretary/Treasurer 

At The Offices Of 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any short non-agenda items 
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Chino Basin Watermaster. No discussion or action 
can be taken on matters not listed on the agenda, per the Brown Act. Each member of the public who 
wishes to comment shall be allotted three minutes, and no more than three individuals shall address 
the same subject. 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-controversial 
and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate 
discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public requests 
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate action.  
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held January 26, 2023 (Page 1) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  

Receive and file as presented: 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of December 2022 (Page 10) 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of December 2022 (Page 22) 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (Page 26) 
4. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period December 1, 2022 through December 31, 

2022 (Page 29) 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (Page 33) 
6. Cash Disbursements for January 2023 (Information Only) (Page 62) 
 

C. WATER TRANSACTION – CITY OF UPLAND TO FONTANA WATER COMPANY 
Approve the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 10,000 acre-feet of water from City of Upland by Fontana Water Company. This 
purchase is made from City of Upland’s Excess Carryover Account. (Page 74) 

 
 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      February 23, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

D. WATER TRANSACTION – CITY OF CHINO TO CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Approve the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 7,500 acre-feet of water from City of Chino by Cucamonga Valley Water District. 
This purchase is made from City of Chino’s Excess Carryover Account. (Page 82) 

 
E. WATER TRANSACTION – CITY OF CHINO TO FONTANA WATER COMPANY 

Approve the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 10,000 acre-feet of water from City of Chino by Fontana Water Company. This 
purchase is made from City of Chino’s Excess Carryover Account. (Page 90) 

 
 II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE EXISTING SAFE YIELD COURT ORDER IMPLEMENTATION 
PLAN 
Adopt the budget amendment as presented. (Page 98) 
 

B. OPTIMUM BASIN MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (OBMP) UPDATE ESSENTIAL MANAGEMENT 
ACTIONS 
Provide direction to staff to proceed with the identified management actions. (Page 111) 
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. January 20, 2023 Hearing 
2. March 17, 2023 Hearing 
3. April 5, 2023 Hearing  
4. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080457 
6. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533  
7. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit  
8. Rules and Regulations Update 

 
B. ENGINEER  

1. Ground-Level Monitoring Committee 
2. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee (PBHSC) 

 
C. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

1. Fiscal Year 2023/24 Budget Schedule 
 

D. GENERAL MANAGER 
1. OBMP CEQA – Project Description Comments Deadline 
2. OBMP Implementation Plan Update  
3. Other  

 
IV. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION 
Pursuant to Article II, Section 2.6, of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may 
be held during the Watermaster Board meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action. 
 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – PENDING LITIGATION: a) Chino Basin Municipal Water 

District v. City of Chino et al., San Bernardino County Superior Court Case No: RCVRS51010 
 
 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      February 23, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 
 02/23/23    Thu    9:30 a.m.    Watermaster Orientation* 
 02/23/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 
 02/28/23    Tue    9:00 a.m. Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) 
 03/02/23    Thu    9:00 a.m. Ground-Level Monitoring Committee (GLMC) 
 03/08/23    Wed   2:00 p.m. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee (PBHSC) 
 03/09/23    Thu    9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Committee 
 03/09/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 03/09/23    Thu    1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool Committee 
 03/16/23    Thu    9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee 
 03/21/23    Tue    9:00 a.m.    Safe Yield Court Order – Data Collection and Evaluation 
 03/21/23    Tue    1:00 p.m.    Fiscal Year 2023/24 Budget Release  
 03/23/23    Thu    9:30 a.m. Watermaster Orientation* 
 03/23/23    Thu  11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 
 

* Meeting held in person only, no remote access.   
   

 ADJOURNMENT 



GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 

 REPORT 



FEBRUARY 2023 NOTES: 

 Total stormwater and dry weather flow
recharged is preliminarily estimated at 2,200
acre-feet.

 Recycled water delivered for recharge totaled
1,196 acre-feet.

 Imported water recharge did not occur.
 Chino Basin Watermaster will remove 1.5% for

evaporation losses from delivered supplemental
water sources (imported water and recycled
water). 

 Considering evaporation losses, total recharge
is preliminarily estimated at 3,378 acre-feet.

Groundwater Recharge 

Recycled Water Use Agency-Wide Effluent TDS & TIN 

Full Service Imported Water Deliveries Summary 
(FY 2018/19 to 2022/23) 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT MARCH 2023 

Imported Water 

Imported Water TDS Summary 
(FY 2018/19 to 2022/23) 

A
cr

e 
Fe

et
 

Recycled Water 



 

 
 

 Pulse of the Organization 

 

Agency Highlights 

* Members of the Technical Resources Division attended the 50th Annual 
Pretreatment, Pollution, Prevention, and Stormwater (P3S) Conference 
hosted by the California Water Environment Association (CWEA). Staff took 
the opportunity to participate in technical sessions on EPA regulations, 
environment investigations, controlling prominent and emerging 
pollutants, and the power of effective communication. 

* On February 1, the Agency participated in the 2023 Virtual California Water 
Career Fair hosted by the California Water Environment Association (CWEA), 
which featured over 154 registered job seekers. 8 other agencies and 
associations were in attendance including Brown and Caldwell, Central Contra 
Costa Sanitary District, United States EPA, West Yost, CWEA SFBS Students & 
Young Professionals Committee, Valley Water, City of Santa Cruz, and the CA 
State Water Resources Control Board. The virtual job fair connected water 
industry professionals with high quality employers. By offering a platform for 
connection and employment opportunities, the event aimed to support the 
growth and success of both the job seekers and employers. 

* On February 1, Chino Basin Program Manager Liz Hurst and Senior Engineer 
Liza Muñoz, attended the Santa Ana River Science and Conservation 
Symposium at the ESRI campus in Redlands. The event featured presentations 
and research and conservation activities occurring throughout the Santa Ana 
River Watershed. 

* On February 16, supervisors from the Agency’s Mutual Aid partners 
attended the quarterly Mutual Aid Supervisor/Manager meeting to discuss 
Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) concerns and upcoming trainings. The group also 
participated in a tour of the RP-5 Expansion Project as part of the meeting. 

* On February 24, the Agency participated in the 2023 Education and Social
Impact Career Fair hosted by UC Riverside. More than 50 employers were in 
attendance, including the County of Riverside, Chino Valley Unified School
District, and IEUA. The fair focused on connecting employers with diverse and 
well-prepared students from the School of Education and the College of 
Humanities, Arts, and Social Sciences. 

Bid & Award Look Ahead Schedule 
Active Capital Improvement Project Status 
Emergency Projects 

Engineering & Construction Management FY 2022/23 
Budget Status Update 

Grants Human Resources 

Biosolids/Compost  
 

https://www.dropbox.com/s/rinykqmd6budtap/23062%20GM%20Report%20-%20March%202023%20-%20Attachment%201.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/cgsj8qm24ttooq6/23062%20GM%20Report%20-%20March%202023%20-%20Attachment%202.pdf?dl=0
https://www.dropbox.com/s/65ft9vw5w7531kp/23062%20GM%20Report%20-%20March%202023%20-%20Attachment%203.pdf?dl=0


  
 

 
 

  
 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 

  Project Name 

Projected  
Bid 

Opening 
Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 

 Apr-23   

1 AM23001.00  Old VFD Replacement (Wastewater) 3/1/2023 4/19/2023 

2 AM23002.00  Old VFD Replacement (Recycled Water) 3/1/2023 4/19/2023 

3 EN13016.06  RP-1 TP Building Water Piping Upgrades 1/31/2023 4/19/2023 

 May-23   

4 EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1) 3/14/2023 5/17/2023 

5 EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs 3/30/2023 5/17/2023 

6 EN23124.00  1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation 4/4/2023 5/17/2023 

 Jun-23   

7 EN21053.00  RP-1 Filter Effluent Structure #2 5/3/2023 6/21/2023 

8 RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements 5/10/2023 6/21/2023 

9 EN23121.00  1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades 4/19/2023 6/21/2023 

 Jul-23   

10 EN23123.00  RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades 5/24/2023 7/19/2023 

 Oct23   

11 EN21041.00  RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow Line 8/24/2023 10/18/2023 

12 EN23113.00  RW/GRW Safety Work Improvements for Basin Gate Actuator Access 9/6/2023 10/18/2023 

13 PA22003.01  Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station 8/13/2023 10/18/2023 

 Nov23   

14 EN24020.00  RP-1 Dewatering Centrate Pumps 9/16/2023 11/15/2023 

 Nov23   

15 EN22027.00  RP-1 Repurpose Lab 10/26/2023 12/20/2023 

16 EN23000.00  RP-1 Device Net Replacement 10/15/2023 12/20/2023 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



  
 

 
 

 

  

 

Agency-Wide 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 
EN21020.00 Oracle P6 Migration and Web Hosting Services                3,199               325,000  Behind 

Schedule 
Consultant 

Contract Award 
The Request for Proposal was placed on Planet Bids on December 12, 2022, and proposals were received on February 2.  
The project will be rebaselined once the consultant contract is awarded.  

2 
EN20034.03 RP5 Solids Handling Future Uses Evaluation           401,214                550,000  Behind 

Schedule 
Consultant 

Contract Award 
A workshop is needed with the PMO and senior leadership for approval prior to releasing the RFP. The RFP will be to 
invite interested parties for submitting proposals for investing/utilizing in the Facility. (No Change in note this update) 

3 EN19024.00 Regional System Asset Management (Assessment Only)        3,467,482             3,919,419  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design The sewer system operations plan, and tactical asset management plan are currently being prepared and reviewed. No 
recovery plan at this point. (No Change in note this update)  

4 EN22040.00 NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels           150,669                210,000  On-Time Construction   

5 EN19051.00 RW Hydraulic Modeling           123,851                677,534  On-Time Pre-Design   

6 EN20038.00 Agency Wide Pavement Management Study           218,170               340,000  On-Time Design   
7 PA22003.01 Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station                8,303               260,000  On-Time Design   
8 AM23001.00 Old VFD Replacement (Wastewater)                8,294             1,350,000  On-Time Bid & Award   
9 AM23002.00 Old VFD Replacement (Recycled Water)                 8,34             1,350,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

10 
FM21005.01 Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III        1,652,836            1,942,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Weather days has extended project completion as well as additional scope that was added. No remaining contingency.  

11 EN19030.00 WC Asset Management             90,403              1,087,510  On-Time Construction   

12 
EN23043.00 HQ/Lab New Potable Water Connection                9,375                 30,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

13 EN22024.00 AM Cleaning Services                7,429          15,000,000  N/A N/A   

14 EN19023.00 Asset Management Planning Document           961,982                245,976  N/A N/A   
15 EN19023.01 RO Assessment Project           131,036               250,000  N/A N/A   

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23
On-Time 23 24 21 19 13 15 22 20

Behind 9 6 9 9 10 9 10 12

Ontime % 72% 80% 70% 68% 57% 63% 69% 63%

Construction Schedual Performance (32)

On-Time Behind Ontime %

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23
On-Time 35 47 48 45 38 42 40 33

Behind 13 17 16 17 20 18 13 15

Ontime % 73% 73% 75% 73% 66% 70% 75% 69%

Design Schedule Preformance Trend (48)

On-Time Behind Ontime %



  
 

 
 

Agency-Wide (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

16 EN22005.00 RO Asset Management             57,239            6,450,000  N/A N/A   
17 EN23077.00 NRW Assessment Projects                        -                    50,000  N/A N/A   
18 EN23078.00 GWR Assessment Projects                        -                    50,000  N/A N/A   
19 EN23079.00 GG Assessment Projects                        -                    50,000  On-Time N/A   

20 EN22006.00 RC Asset Management                        -              51,150,000  N/A N/A   

21 EN22009.00 WC Asset Management Project                        -            54,100,000  N/A N/A   

22 EN22010.00 GG Asset Management Project                        -              6,350,000  N/A N/A   

23 EN22008.00 GWR Asset Management Project             18,896            4,500,000  N/A N/A   

24 EN23025.00 Agency Power Monitoring                   181               530,000  N/A Not Started   

25 EN23099.00 CIPO Enhancements                        -                  150,000  N/A Not Started   

26 EN22045.00 New Regional Project PDR's                        -              2,500,000  N/A Not Started   

27 EN23021.00 Agency Wide Infiltration and Inflow Study                        -                 600,000  N/A Not Started   

28 EN23034.00 Agency Wide EV Charging Stations                   609             1,100,000  N/A Not Started   
29 EN23085.00 New Regional Project PDR's FY22/23                        -              4,955,000  N/A Not Started   
30 EN23087.00 New Recycled Water Project PDR's FY 22/23                        -                  955,000  N/A Not Started   
31 EN23088.00 RO On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23             16,334             (330,000) N/A Not Started   

32 EN23089.00 RO Safety On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                        -                  475,000  N/A Not Started   

33 EN23090.00 WC On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                2,346               (38,000) N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        7,338,191       161,134,439        

Carbon Canyon  

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

34 EN23005.00 CCWRF Filter Effluent Sodium Hypochlorite Modification             19,498                105,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

35 
EN23038.00 CWRF HVAC System Upgrade             20,511                  50,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

36 
EN23035.00 CCWRF RAS Header Replacement             22,750               285,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

37 EN23074.00 CCWRF Influent Box Rehab at the Primary Clarifiers             26,087               600,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

38 EN23004.00 CCWRF Aeration Basins 1-6 Drain Valve Replacements             27,840             1,500,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

39 
EN17006.00 CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements        4,460,947          28,550,436  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Project bid has now been extended due to the number of questions received from the bidders. Project has been delayed 
due to pending approval of the additional scope for the ammonia control design, and the issuance of the AQMD Permits. 
No recovery at this point. (No Change in note this update) 

40 
EN17006.01 CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit 

Improvements 
            134,07              1,456,614  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The long lead time for the controllers delayed the project by 4 months. Controllers are planned to arrive on 4/6/23. There 
is a non-compensable time extension currently pending approval. No recovery at this point. (No Change in note this 
update) 

    Sub Total        4,711,704          32,547,050        

Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) 

No. Project ID Project Title 
Total 

Expenditures
thru 2/23($) 

Total Project 
Budget($) 

ProjectSched
ulePerforma

nce 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

41 
 

None to report currently. 0 0    

    Sub Total                       -                           -          

  



  
 

 
 

Collections/NRWS 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

42 EN21058.00 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic Modeling             94,884                100,000  On-Time Pre-Design   
43 EN20064.00 NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement           975,207            4,500,000  On-Time Construction   
44 EN23015.00 Collection System Upgrades FY 22/23             30,436               500,000  On-Time Construction   
45 EN23014.00 NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 22/23             24,616               200,000  On-Time Construction   

46 
EN19025.00 Regional Force Main Improvements        1,805,918           4,800,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Contract has been executed. Awaiting mobilization date from contractor.  

47 EN19028.00 NRW Manhole and Pipeline Condition Assessment           831,400             1,256,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction The sewer system operations plan, and tactical asset management plan are currently being prepared and reviewed. No 
recovery plan at this point. (No Change in note this update) 

48 EN23075.00 NRWS On Call O&M Projects FY22/23                        -                  100,000  N/A Not Started   

49 EN23086.00 New NRW Projects PDR's FY 22/23                        -                 990,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        3,762,461        12,446,000        

Groundwater Recharge 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

50 EN23113.00 RW/GRW Safety Work Improvements for Basin Gate Actuator 
Access 

            27,649            1,020,000  On-Time Design   

51 
EN23040.00 Turner Basin 1 Turnout Fencing                2,414                  45,000  On-Time 

Bid & Award 
Currently executing the construction contract and plan to start construction first week of March. The schedule has been 
delayed due to waiting on a budget transfer.  

52 EN23090.01 Turner Basin 1 Turnout Modifications                4,472                 38,000  On-Time Construction   

53 EN21051.00 Ely Monitoring Well           210,668               284,999  On-Time Construction   

54 
RW15003.03 Montclair Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 2)           384,769              1,788,100  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Bidding was delayed because additional time was needed to complete the required CDWF permit 1602. The permit has 
now been received. There is no recovery plan at this point. The project will be rebaselined at the start of construction. 
(No Change in note this update) 

55 
RW15003.06 Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements (RMPU PID 23a)      14,520,490          23,477,040  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Project is estimated to be extended to October 2023 due to the delayed approval of the pump submittal, traffic control 
issues and SCE delays. Currently mitigating the SCE delay by providing contractor with a redesign. No recovery plan at this 
point. (No Change in note this update) 

56 EN21057.00 Recharge Basin Clean-up of Illegally Dumped Materials           102,071                247,919  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction Project is now out to bid for Jurupa and Turner, bids for Turner were extended due to no bids received. No recovery at 
this point. RP-3 Basin and Ely are in construction and planned for an on-time completion.  

57 EN23041.00 Ely Monitoring Well Capital Project                7,405               600,000  On-Time Construction   

58 RW15003.05 RP-3 Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 21)        2,159,257             1,819,300  Behind 
Schedule 

Project 
Acceptance 

  

59 EN23067.00 Hickory Basin Replacement Monitoring Well                        -                             -    N/A Not Started   

60 EN22049.00 GWR-RW OIT Upgrades                        -                     56,100  N/A Not Started   

61 EN22050.00 GWR Basin PLC Upgrades                        -                 900,000  N/A Not Started   

62 EN22051.00 Jurupa Basin VFD Upgrades                   117               300,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total      17,419,312          30,576,458        

Headquarters 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

63 
EN23003.00 Central Plant Cooling Tower Replacement             22,347           2,400,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

64 EN23039.00 Lab Rooms Temperature Variation                   362               240,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

65 FM20001.00 HQ Interior Replacements           134,433               320,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

    Sub Total           157,142           2,960,000        



  
 

 
 

Lift Stations 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

66 EN23036.00 San Bernardino Ave Lift Station Reliability Improvements             26,435           2,000,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

67 EN22020.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades           253,618            2,500,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

68 EN23002.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements        1,642,530          20,977,940  On-Time Design   

69 
FM21005.02 Prado Dechlor Roofing Assessment             42,199                150,000  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Request for Qualifications is in progress and planned to be complete by 5/5/23. We have received four RFQ's and they 
are currently in review. No recovery plan at this point due to the decision to not solicite until after the rainy season. (No 
Change in note this update) 

70 EN0000000066 Preserve Lift Station Improvements           221,783                           -    On-Time Construction   

71 EN22054.03 Montclair Lift Station Gate             30,032                150,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

72 
EN22037.00 Prado De-Chlorination Station Inundation Protection           215,203               380,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

73 EN23066.00 Preserve Lift Station Improvements                3,832             1,050,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        2,435,631        27,207,940        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 
Total 

Expenditures
thru 2/23($) 

Total Project 
Budget($) 

ProjectSched
ulePerforma

nce 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

74 
EN23114.00 RP-1 Instrumentation and Control Enhancement             13,611                100,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

75 EN23024.00 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades             12,735            1,300,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

76 EN23000.00 RP-1 Device Net Replacement             20,252            4,100,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design Project delayed due to the board being moved to February. At this point no recovery can be made but will rebase line 
project once we receive consultant’s new schedule. (No Change in note this update) 

77 
EN22022.00 RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades           162,999             4,126,316  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
Project was delayed due to an amendment needed for additional scope items and project charter needed. The 
amendment is still in progress. Project charter is anticipated to be approved by end of March. At this point no recovery 
can be made but will rebase line project once we receive consultant’s new schedule.  

78 
EN24020.00 RP-1 Dewatering Centrate Pumps             60,893               820,000  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Currently working on the 50% design. The centrate cleaning is planned to start first week of March. 

79 EN22031.00 RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Electrical improvements           336,362             9,237,147  Behind 
Schedule 

Design   

80 EN22027.00 RP-1 Repurpose Lab           130,547             1,847,400  On-Time Design   

81 EN23102.00 RP-1 New Parking Lot                6,476            1,200,000  On-Time Design   
82 EN20051.00 RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab           225,146              2,546,161  On-Time Design   
83 EN21053.00 RP-1 Filter Effluent Structure #2           264,796            2,450,050  On-Time Design   

84 
EN21056.00 RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building           175,963             1,085,840  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Received new schedule from consultant, which is pushing project completion out due to amendment #2. The 60% design 
is currently in-progress. No recovery plan currently. 

85 
EN22044.00 RP-1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester        3,963,582       123,324,034  Behind 

Schedule Design 
Awaiting on approval from SCE for the current line capacity. Currently working on the 90% design submittal. There was 
additional scope added to the design as well as additional design coordination that delayed design completion. No 
recovery plan at this point. (No Change in note this update) 

86 EN13016.05 SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant 
No. 1) 

       4,340,985          16,200,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award Bid was extended to 3/14/23 to include an additional job walk and Q&A session. Board is anticipated for May. No 
recovery plan at this point. 

87 
EN13016.06 RP-1 TP Building Water Piping Upgrades                   239               200,000  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Board now required and anticipated for April 2023. May recover some time in construction once we receive the 
contractors schedule submittal, which is anticipated to have a shorter duration then estimated.  

88 EN22041.00 RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement           154,982            2,090,941  On-Time Construction   

89 
EN22021.00 RP-1 Digester Area Utility Water (UW) Line Replacement             11,259                160,000  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
The contract with GCI has been executed. Schedule will be rebaselined once we receive the contractor’s schedule. No 
recovery at this point. (No Change in note this update) 

90 EN23111.00 RP-1 Headworks Bar Screens Improvements           158,945           3,900,000  On-Time Construction   
91 EN11039.00 RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements        3,310,365          12,997,043  On-Time Construction   

92 
EN17042.00 Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs        5,781,951            9,052,843  Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Design has slipped another month due to extensive coordination with operations and maintenance staff regarding 
digester 6 shutdown requirements and durations. Project is now out to bid and are due back on 3/30/23. No recovery 
plan currently. Project will be rebaselined once construction contract is awarded.   

93 EN18006.00 RP-1 Flare Improvements        7,879,129           9,200,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction The PLC program had delays with the flare supplier, delaying project completion. No recovery plan can occur at this point. 
(No Change in note this update) 



  
 

 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 
Total 

Expenditures
thru 2/23($) 

Total Project 
Budget($) 

ProjectSched
ulePerforma

nce 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

94 EN21042.00 RP-1 East Influent Gate Replacement           197,110                 666,117  On-Time Construction   

95 EN22034.00 RP1/RP4 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization             32,933              440,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction No recovery at this point. Contract duration extended to make repairs to RP4 generator cables through an Agency issued 
change order. (No Change in note this update) 

96 
EN17082.01 RP-1 Clarifier Level Sensor Signal Cable             55,416                  45,800  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

97 EN23022.00 RP-1 Solids Sludge Recirc Pump Upgrades                        -                             -    N/A Not Started   

98 EN22030.00 Replace Anoxic Mixers with More Energy Efficient System                        -                 840,000  N/A Not Started   

99 EN23020.00 RP-1 Solids Heat Exchanger Replacements & Upgrades                        -               1,500,000  N/A Not Started   

100 EN23076.00 RP-1 Centrate Line Improvements                        -                             -    N/A Not Started   

101 EN19009.00 RP-1 Energy Recovery                   408            4,325,000  N/A Not Started   

102 EN23116.00 RP-1 Solids Electrical Panel Upgrades                        -              1,800,000  N/A Not Started   

103 EN23117.00 RP-1 Motor Control Center 9M Upgrades                        -               1,050,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total      27,297,081     216,604,692        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

104 EN20057.00 RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II             60,129           8,300,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

105 EN23123.00 RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades             36,233             1,700,000  On-Time Design   

106 
EN21041.00 RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well 

Passive Overflow Line 
          290,393           4,844,690  On-Time 

Design 
  

107 EN23115.00 RP-4 Headworks Utility Water Addition             15,563                 175,000  On-Time Bid & Award   

108 
EN23090.02 RW Improvements (Valves, Blow Offs)                8,877                150,000  On-Time Construction 

Work 
  

109 EN22039.00 RP-4 SCADA Performance Improvement                2,741             1,012,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total           413,935          16,181,690        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

110 EN19001.00 RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd   114,724,448       245,000,000  On-Time Construction   

111 EN19006.00 RP-5 Biosolids Facility   137,099,951       205,020,000  On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total   251,824,398     450,020,000        

Recycled Water 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

112 EN23119.00 RW SCADA Migration             14,590           4,630,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

113 
EN23037.01 Etiwanda Interceptor Grade-Breadk RW Relocation                2,538                           -    On-Time 

Consultant 
Contract Award 

Everything is in place to sign the contract including the proposal from the Design Consultant.  Due to issues with the 
current Design Consultant, City of Rancho Cucamonga is reconsidering their use for this project.  This will not delay work 
since it is on hold while City looks for additional funding 

114 
EN15002.00 1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup           352,015              1,215,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

115 EN23121.00 1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades                6,968           2,000,000  On-Time Design   

116 
EN23124.00 1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation             96,241                750,000  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Project is showing delayed due to additional scope that was added to the design, as well as internal staff review times 
taking longer than planned. Construction duration was estimated longer than expected so project is planned to complete 
on time. Project is now out to bid. (No Change in note this update) 



  
 

 
 

Recycled Water (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 2/23 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

117 EN21045.00 Montclair Force Main Improvements           473,756             8,714,434  Behind 
Schedule 

Design 60% Design is currently in progress. Cal Trans Permit and OMUC Permit are now delaying the project completion. 
Recovery may happen within the 90% design phase but is unknown at this time. 

    Sub Total        1,086,106        17,449,434        

    Overall Totals   316,445,962       967,127,703        

  



  
 

 
 

FY22/23 Emergency Projects 
  Project ID Contractor Task Order Description  Location TO # 

Original Not-to-
Exceed /Estimate 

Actual Cost 
thru 1/31 

Date of 
Award Status 

Agency Wide 

1 EN23019.02 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc El Prado Road 8-inch Ductile Iron Primary Sludge Leak El Prado Road  TO-007 200,000 172,407 7/19/2022 Completed 

2 EN23017.01 W.A. Rasic 42-inch RW Leak South of I-10 fwy Ontario TO-032 98,615 12,803 11/19/2022 Completed 

Sub Totals 298,615 185,210     

CCWRF 

3 EN23019.04 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. CCWRF 12-inch Backwash Water Pipeline Leak CCWRF TO-009 50,000 39,271 11/10/2022 Completed 

4 EN23019.05 Houston Harris  CCWRF CCTV Inspection Sludge Line to RP-2 CCWRF   50,000 0 12/20/2022 Completed 

Sub Totals 100,000 39,271     

RP-1 

5 EN23019.01 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. West RP-1 Main Potable Water Line Leak RP-1 TO-006 25,000 24,266 7/7/2022 Completed 

6 EN23019.03 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. 13553 San Bernardino Ave., Fontana Force Main Strike RP-1 TO-008 50,000 14,171 8/22/2022 Completed 

7 EN11039.00 Innovative construction solutions (ICS) Water leak in roadway south of Equalization Basin #3 RP-1 N/A N/A N/A 12/23/2022 Active 

Sub Totals 75,000 38,437     

        Grand Total 473,615 262,918     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February Emergency Project(s) 

Contractor Task Order Description  
Details of the Circumstances/Cause of 
Emergency Scope of Repair Location 

Date of Call 
Out 

Not-to-Exceed 
/Estimate 

 
None this month 

    
 

Emergency Projects 


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Public Hearing 1A
	Consent Item 2A
	Consent Item 2B
	Consent Item 2C
	Consent Item 2D
	Consent Item 2E
	Consent Item 2F
	Consent Item 2G
	Action Item 3A
	Information Item 4A
	Information Item 4B
	Information Item 4C
	Information Item 4D
	Information Item 4E
	Information Item 4F
	Information Item 4G
	Information Item 4H
	Information Item 4I
	Information Item 4J
	Information Item 4K
	Information Item 4L
	Agency Representatives' Report 5A
	Agency Representatives' Report 5B
	Agency Representatives' Report 5C
	Agency Representatives' Report 5D
	General Manager's Report



